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PROCEZEDTINGS

MR GREENE: All right. Today's date is
October 4, 2019. My name is Kevin Greene. Our company
Fagle Intel Services has been contracted by the North
Carolina General Assembly Subcommittee for the ACP to
gather facts and report those facts back to the
subcommittee.

We're here today to interview you and we're
going to record this interview. And I would like to
have each person present to state your name and to
acknowledge -- and your position and to acknowledge
that you understand it's been recorded. So I'll start
with Tom.

MR. BEERS: My name is Tom Beers. I'm an
investigator for Eagle Intel Services and I understand
this is being recorded today.

MR. LANE: I'm Bill Lane with DEQ. I
understand this is being recorded.

MR. WRENN: Brian Wrenn with Division of Water
Resources. And I understand this is being recorded.

MR. HARGROVE: Drew Hargrove with DEQ and I
understand this is being recorded.

MR GREENE: Thank you, gentlemen. And I
believe Mr. Lane, would you like to -- yes, add

something.
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MR. LANE: Yes. Just a couple of things. By
agreement of the parties this interview will last no
longer than an hour and we're beginning at 2:43, so we
will be over no later than 03:43. And also, again by
agreement of the parties, the questions to be asked
will be related to Mr. Wrenn's official duties related
to the 401 Water Quality Certification for the Atlantic
Coast Pipeline, not his -- any other projects he has
worked on or anything with his personal life.

MR GREENE: Thank you. All right. We'll
start by first, you've already stated your name. Just
give us a brief history of your employment with DEQ?

MR. WRENN: I began working with Division of
Water Resources in 1997 in the Wilmington Regional
Office. I was animal waste facilities inspector. I
did some work with spray irrigation land application
compliance work. I have worked with -- on a detail
with the EPA, doing some rule making for CAFO Rules,
confined -- or Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations.
I've also worked with the 401 unit doing transportation
permitting. I did that for about 8 years. Four of
those I was the supervisor of the unit. I've done some
NPDES permitting with Virginia DEQ. And I --

MR GREENE: What is that?

MR. WRENN: Virginia -- NPDES? National
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Pollutant Discharge Elimination System for dischargers
-—- point source dischargers.

MR GREENE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. WRENN: And then for the last 3 years I've
been with the Water Sciences' Section in the ecosystems
branch. I'm the supervisor of that branch.

MR GREENE: Okay. Thank you. During
primarily 2017 and to 2018, I believe you were the
hearing officer. And can you give us a little bit
background as to how that came to be? How you were
chosen for that position and your duties as such?

MR. WRENN: Karen Higgins who was the
supervisor of the 401 unit at the time asked me if I
would be the hearing officer for this particular
project. I got involved with it probably late spring.
I think the -- of 2017, I guess, it was the -- I think
the hearings had already been scheduled at that time
and so I came in with -- started -- trying to get up to
speed on that in preparation for the hearings.

MR GREENE: Okay. What are the duties as a
hearing officer?

MR. WRENN: So as I understand it, my duties
were to preside over the public meetings that we had.
We had two of those, one in Rocky Mount and one in

Fayetteville. 1Is that right? Yes, Fayetteville. And
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I was to accept comment during the period -- during the
public meeting. I

called people up. We had people who had provided a
summary of the project, then the permitting process. I
would take the comments -- any written comments that
people had, I would take those as well. Once the
hearings were over we collected all comments. I went
through those comments and we began looking at the
comments and the application that ACP had provided,
plus any additional information letters that have been
put out in the submissions in regards to those
information letters. And then developed a hearing
officer's report with recommendations for what should
happen as far as whether the 401 certification should
be issued and any conditions that need to be included
in that to address the public comments -- or issues
that had not been covered already.

MR GREENE: Okay. And how closely do you
worked with the individuals making the decisions on the
permit, whether it's approved or disapproved?

MR. WRENN: We're in pretty good
communication, because I rely on the documentation that
they're getting from the applicant and any additional
information that's supplied. I may have some technical

questions. Although, I have a good knowledge of the
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401 certification process, there are some nuances that
maybe I don't understand completely. And so I was
working with them very closely from that standpoint.

As in regards to the hearing officer's report, they
helped me with some of the background information with
that regarding the sequence of events and number of
additional information letters and things like that.
But the hearing officer's report is largely my work.

MR GREENE: Okay. And who were you working
with during this time?

MR. WRENN: Karen Higgins and Jennifer
Burdette were the two main people that I worked with.

MR GREENE: Okay. And what were their
responsibilities or roles?

MR. WRENN: So Karen is the supervisor of 401
unit, so she is very involved with it. Jennifer
Burdette was the, what I would describe, as the project
manager. She was more of the technical expert on the
application itself. The additional information
letters, what was needed to have a complete application
-- that sort of things.

MR GREENE: And do you ever served in a role
as a hearing officer prior to that?

MR. WRENN: I think I've worked on three other

-— I've been hearing officer for three other particular
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projects.

MR GREENE: Okay. Was -- that was prior to
the --

MR. WRENN: Prior to ACP.

MR GREENE: Okay. And were those projects of
the same magnitude or -- I don't know, how would you --

how would you rate the ACP project compared to others
you've worked on?

MR. WRENN: It depends on what criteria you
want to use. We had 9,600 public comments, so it's
very high profile from that standpoint. The project
itself is probably not outside the realm of any other
project that we go through with the public hearing, but
it just happened to have a lot more publicity with it.

MR GREENE: Okay. And what causes as a public
hearing to occur?

MR. WRENN: Now, it's usually requested by
parties who -- interested parties who may have some
concerns about the project, if it were to be permit --
I guess, depending on what you're talking about. If it
was —-- 1in this particular case, if there were going to
be a certification issued they may have concerns about
the impacts of water quality or other things then they
may request a public hearing there. 1In this particular

case, we understood that this was going to be a high
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profile case. It really did not fall under an
individual permit classification, but we chose to send
it through that to make sure that we were, I guess,
transparent with the process, with the public.

MR GREENE: Okay. And would you say those
people that have a voice -- who are we talking about?
What entities or —--7

MR. WRENN: That could be anybody and I've
worked with some projects where interested parties --
third parties that may be part of a an NGO or some sort
of a --

MR GREENE: Right. But specifically with the
ACP, we're just going through (cross talk).

MR. WRENN: Well, there were too many to name.
There was --

MR GREENE: Okay.

MR. WRENN: Yes. I can throw some out, but it
would do disservice to all the others. I mean, there
was, like I said there was 9,600 comments on --

MR GREENE: Right. More than just individual
landowners, I mean, we go beyond that?

MR. WRENN: Individual landowners, there were
organizations, there were -- SELC was involved, some
other --

MR GREENE: What facility is that?






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 10

MR. WRENN: Southern Environmental Law Center.

MR GREENE: Okay. Any other large ones you
can think of organizations?

MR. WRENN: Blue Ridge Environmental Defense
League, I think, was involved. There was -- a lot of
the rep -- a lot of the groups had cross
representation, so there was different comment letters
from -- that came from multiple groups, so it's hard to
remember.

MR GREENE: Okay.

MR. WRENN: All of them so —--.

MR GREENE: What were the primary objections?

MR. WRENN: Yes, it's in the hearing officer's
report. We tried to summarize that pretty well. A lot
of them had to do with things that were outside the
permitting process such as moving away from fossil
fuels. Some of them more related to economic -- felt
like the economic stimulation that was being forecasted
with this was inaccurate. There were some that felt
like the pipelines were dangerous for folks living in,

what they called the blast zone, and there were folks

who were concerned about water quality issues. There
was a wide range -- environmental Jjustice was a big
one.

MR GREENE: Okay. All right. And you
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mentioned -- I've got some notes here that were on the
server or on the DEQ website and under the staff files.
And these -- and so I Jjust want to hand you those to
see if you could recognize those as being your notes.

MR. WRENN: It looks like the notes that I
submitted, vyes.

MR GREENE: Okay. And let's start with -- I
guess, we'll just start with first page here where it -
- this public comment e-mail, "Decision by September
18, unless (phonetic) require more info". What would
that be in reference to?

MR. WRENN: The public comment e-mail boxes we
set up a special e-mail account for people to submit
their public comments through electronically. I assume
and that was a trigger for me to go back and make sure
I had gone through all the comments that we had
received electronically.

MR GREENE: 9,600 or so -- you say 9,6007?

MR. WRENN: Roughly yes.

MR GREENE: Wow.

MR. WRENN: "Decision by September 18th", I
think that was based off of the end of the comment
period. I think the comment period ended roughly
August 18th, so 30 days -- we have 30 days after that

to get a permit out unless we get more info -- we had
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additional information that we needed. 1It's not
considered a complete application until we have all the
information we need. So, if we asked for additional
information based off of questions we have in the
application then it starts the clock over.

MR GREENE: Okay. And this one doesn't have a
date, but you mentioned Environmental Justice, I'm
assuming that's what "EJ" stands for?

MR. WRENN: That's correct.

MR GREENE: And, if you could just read your
notes there. And what do those notes say so for the
record?

MR. WRENN: Title is EJ, first note,
"Following department policy for EJ". Second note,
"Looking at water quality impacts through EJ
communities". Sub-note, "Not necessarily pipeline
impacts".

MR GREENE: And what did you mean by those
notes or comments? What are you talking about, further
explanation of those please.

MR. WRENN: There were lots of comments we had
received from commenters about environmental justice
issues, because this was impacting a lot of socio --
lot of socioeconomic communities —-- communities where

they may have minorities in -- a higher percentage of
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minority populations. The -- and I can't remember
exactly what this is regards to. But the first one is
for following department policy for EJ we have a Title
VI program that we follow in regards to evaluating
projects and permitting with respect to environmental
justice issues.

MR GREENE: Can you summarize that program?

MR. WRENN: I don't think I could do it
justice. I mean, that we -- it's on our website. It's
just a process where when we go through, as a agency we

go through looking at the environmental justice issues

that may arise through a permitting process. It's a
programmatic decision. It's not on a case by case
basis.

MR GREENE: Okay. Is it required for that
permit itself?

MR. WRENN: For this particular project?

MR GREENE: Yes.

MR. WRENN: No.

MR GREENE: Okay.

MR. WRENN: Then as part of that they were
looking at water quality impacts to EJ communities and
not necessarily pipeline impacts. Typically when you
do an EJ analysis you look at a wider scope than maybe

you look for the long, linear proj nature of this then
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may have to look outside of that to --

MR GREENE: How so?

MR. WRENN: There may be -- and I'm getting
out of my expertise. There may be EJ communities that
are adjacent to those that extend outside the project
boundaries so they would have to go outside those
boundaries to look at the impacts to those communities.

MR GREENE: Okay. All right. And, if I can
get you to look at the -- lot of pages these notes.

And I'll let you kind of summarize, I believe, the date
it appears to be -- is that September?

MR. WRENN: September 1, 2017.

MR GREENE: And if you will Jjust kind of
review those in this --

MR. WRENN: You want me to read them aloud?

Is that what you want?

MR GREENE: If you like, yes. If you don't
mind that will be great.

MR. WRENN: September 1, heading, "September
1, 2017 EJ issues for ACP." First note, "EJ 1is
procedural informational court decision, D.C. Circuit."
Next note, "Is application being reasoned in decision
as 1t evaluates or eval EJ".

MR. LANE: Do you need him to read this whole

page?
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MR GREENE: No, you don't have to. Just go
ahead and familiarize yourself with it.

MR. WRENN: Okay.

MR GREENE: And you made reference to a court
decision, D.C. Circuit, do you recall what that was
concerning?

MR. WRENN: I do not recall. That was -- I
remember Jay Osborne was talking about some case law
regarding EJ issues.

MR GREENE: Okay. Did that have an impact on
what you were doing?

MR. WRENN: No. The process of the water
quality certification does not involve environmental
justice issues.

MR GREENE: Okay. All right. And in your
question here, we're going to consider EJ and then
there is a question mark. Who was that being addressed
to or was that being addressed to you? I guess —-- I
mean, unfortunately, I don't know who was attending
this. But if you have a recall of who was attending
that would be wonderful.

MR. WRENN: That was more of a note to myself
in the sense that in reaction to some of the
conversation we have -- we had some coordination

meetings that kind of provide a status update of where
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we were in our analysis. The one where, I think, some
of the Title VI and environmental justice subjects were
being discussed. That was more of a question to myself
to ask the group if that was something that we were
going to try to consider in this, because I felt 1like
it was outside the scope of the evaluation.

MR GREENE: Okay. And when you say group, who
would we be -- or who were you referring to?

MR. WRENN: As I mentioned Jay Osborne was
providing some case history on that and --

MR GREENE: And what's his position?

MR. WRENN: He is in the general counsel.

MR GREENE: Okay.

MR. WRENN: The DEQ's general counsel.

MR GREENE: Okay.

MR. WRENN: I don't recall everybody who was
there. Then Jay and -- just referenced to Jay and
Linda, I assume they were not there, but that would be
Jay Zimmerman and Linda Culpepper.

MR GREENE: Okay. And their positions at that
time?

MR. WRENN: I think Jay was still the Director
at that and Linda was the interim or the Deputy
Director of Division of Water Resources.

MR GREENE: And what reference was they made
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in that note, I'm sorry?

MR. WRENN: In what does the note say or why
did I referenced them?

MR GREENE: Both.

MR. WRENN: I just made the note to remind
myself to speak to them about the EJ issue, if -- to
confirm that that was not something I was going to
evaluate the project on. So --

MR GREENE: Okay. And this particular meeting
of -—— I think the date was September?

MR. WRENN: That's correct.

MR GREENE: Were those meetings held on a
regular basis?

MR. WRENN: That -- yes. I don't remember the
frequency.

MR GREENE: Okay. And who would normally
attend those meetings?

MR. WRENN: It would vary, but typically.
Sheila Holman (phonetic) was there. Either Jay or
Linda was typically at one of those meetings. Karen
(phonetic) and/or I would attend that. For EJ, I think
Sarah Rice (phonetic) at the time was the EJ
coordinator.

MR GREENE: Okay. And what is the EJ

coordinator's role?
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MR. WRENN: Basically the programmatic manager
for the Title VI program.

MR GREENE: Okay. And I think there was -- I
think I've seen other references where you were
communicating with her regarding that. In fact, I
think it was a part of the HO report that you asked for
input on that, do you recall that.

MR. WRENN: I do.

MR GREENE: Okay. Was that -- 1s that
something that was always being -- not always, but
during the process until the end of the final written
project. Is that -- did you ever have a clear
understanding of what needed to be done regarding
environmental justice and how it was to be included?

MR. WRENN: In our -- in my hearing officer's
report is that what you're referring to?

MR GREENE: Yes sir.

MR. WRENN: I think shortly after this meeting
I was very clear that it was not something that we
needed to consider for our water quality certification
evaluation. That was -- they were just -- there was a
lot of comments that we got from the public and other
interested parties and we wanted to make sure that we
addressed those. These coordination meetings were a

broader than just the water quality certification.
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They included there -- again, now when I think about it
there was some folks from air quality, because they
were getting in air quality permit and there were
sometimes some of the DEMLR (phonetic) folks had to --
we're calling in, because they had to get an erosion
control plan approved and everything like that. So it
was a broader coordination of how this was happening
outside of just the water quality certification.

MR GREENE: Okay. Thank you for the
explanation there. 1I'd like to address the ICA, ICI,
cumulative impacts portion and can you give us a
definition or understanding of what that entails?

MR. WRENN: Sure. Indirect and cumulative
impacts analysis that goes by as several different
monikers. But that's generally when you have a project
-- and this is more specific to publicly funded
projects or projects that may require a federal permit.
If you have a project there may be impacts associated
with that project that are not directly related to the
project itself. So what you have to do is consider --
I'll use an example of a building of road. If you
build a road and you provide access to areas that have
-- may not have had access in the past it may spur
development. And that development is spurred there may

be additional water quality impacts from additional
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storm water or septic tanks, if it's out in a rural
area or there may be a more impervious surfaces and
detrimental effects there. Maybe this particular basin
it has a lot of the impacts already so you have to look
at the cumulative side of it. How much is going on
there, not just this particular project. And you have
to determine to the best of your ability what those
secondary and cumulative impacts might be.

MR GREENE: Sounds like predicting the future.

MR. WRENN: It very much is. It's a rough
sclence.

MR GREENE: It sounds like it. Was that an
issue? I mean, was that a driving part of the
permitting process to determine that?

MR. WRENN: It's a very big part of the
process. From the standpoint of, it is one of the
major points in which we evaluate a -- we evaluate an
application. The -- for this particular project,
because it is a pipeline that may provide a -- before
then untapped source of gas —-- natural gas there may be
more development through industrial or commercial uses
that might impact through secondary impacts of water
quality. For the most part this project it's not like
you can Jjust walk up to it and throw a tap on the

pipeline and start pulling gas off of it. So it's
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limited to three main areas, those metering stations.
And so we focused our attention on those three main
areas —-- those three metering stations to try to get a
determination of what the secondary and cumulative
impacts would be there.

MR GREENE: Okay. Was that the -- and you
phrased it quite well, the secondary and cumulative
impacts and all that. Was that something that was,
when you first got involved, was that an issue at the
forefront of the project when the application was
filed? And did it continue to gravitate were you're
getting answers from the applicant?

MR. WRENN: We were getting answers, but not
answers that were completely answering our questions
that we had asked and the information request we had
made to them. We weren't getting what we needed from
the applicant to feel comfortable about their analysis.

MR GREENE: Okay. So in the -- I think in
this case there were four, do you recall there were
four information requests?

MR. WRENN: Four or five something like that.

MR GREENE: Okay. Would that have been
something in the first set or two of these information
requests?

MR. WRENN: The very first information
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requested that went out, I'm not sure what was in that
one, because that was -- I was just becoming on board
with that project. I know that multiple information
requests after that dealt with the information that we
needed with the secondary and cumulative impacts
analysis, but there was also other items that we were
still asking questions about that we needed information
for.

MR GREENE: Right. Okay. I think the last
request really focused on that, the cumulative impact.
Were you in communication with the applicants or is
that primarily Higgins and Burdette?

MR. WRENN: I was involved with some of that
as well.

MR GREENE: Okay. And who did you talk to or
meet with?

MR. WRENN: Our conversations were on the
phone. I don't remember the names that we talked to.

MR GREENE: Okay. But these were the
representatives for the partnership?

MR. WRENN: As my —-- as I understand it they
were the consultants, then there may have been some ACP
employees, but mainly we were dealing with the
consultants who had done the analysis.

MR GREENE: Okay. Were they -- did they ever
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become, I would say, frustrated about how long it was
taking?

MR. WRENN: I think that goes along with water
quality certification process. People are always --
want their permit tomorrow. So I don't remember any
outward frustrations.

MR GREENE: Okay. No expressed concerns about
it taking so long?

MR. WRENN: Not that I remember off the top of
my head, nothing that stands out to me.

MR GREENE: Okay. Do you want to start with
these?

MR. BEERS: Yes. Coming back to this
information request, I'm going to give you a copy of
the -- this is I think the final hearing officer's
report that was submitted on January 22, 2018. And the
second —-- 1s that look like what that 1s?

MR. WRENN: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: On the second page of that there
is a -- it looks 1like a schedule that -- I guess, you
put that in? Did you prepare that schedule for the
dates of?

MR. WRENN: I did not prepare this schedule.
This was prepared by Jennifer and Karen. As I've said

earlier, they did the background part of this to assist
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me with summarizing the project in the chronological
history of some of the --

MR. BEERS: Okay. So they prepared a lot of
the bulk of that schedule as their work?

MR. WRENN: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: As part of that. Okay. And then
I also have -- these were -- this is a document, 1it's
in the notes of Karen Higgins from the DEQ website
public document. And it's kind of a -- the bottom left
is date 11/20/17 and that looks like somewhat of a
schedule based on some information request and it looks
like a projected schedule of when the permitting
process would occur.

MR. WRENN: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: So going back to the second page
of your hearing officer's report, we're going to just
kind of compares to its date. I just want to see if
you remember anything that may have occurred. And this
is November 15th, the last request of information was
received by you by the ACP. I'm just going to point
you to a document in here. November 15th and it looks
like these were all numbered to assoclate with a
additional information.

MR. WRENN: Correct.

MR. BEERS: It looks like that you're familiar
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with how this is done?

MR. WRENN: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: So November 15th, it looks 1like
the last piece of information was received in that
request on the 15th.

MR. WRENN: Yes. It looks like 1it.

MR. BEERS: And then this indicates that this
was prepared on the 20th, so five days later. So based
on that do you recall that having received all the
information necessary to get the permit to prepare your
hearing officer's report or was there more information
that you were discussing at this time to send out
another additional request?

MR. WRENN: I'm not -- I'm not sure I
understand the significance of the 20th versus the
15th.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So this looks to me -- and
you can tell me, if I'm wrong. But October 26th
request for additional permission number three.

MR. WRENN: Right.

MR. BEERS: Then November 4th and November
15th, it looks 1like all of the information is being
submitted at this time --

MR. WRENN: Correct.

MR. BEERS: -- for the request on the 15th.
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MR. WRENN: Okay.

MR. BEERS: So it looks like at this point in
time everything has been received. And then this, 5
days later, is a projected schedule of when the permit
would be issued. Do you recall around that time,
November 20th, of having discussions, "We have what we
need? We're going to get this permit in process to
going on."

MR. WRENN: Well, we always had those
discussions.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MR. WRENN: So we were —-- that was a pretty
continual, do we have everything we need? Is there
anything else we need to have, to make sure that we're
making an informed decision? The way that a lot of
this worked, we were trying to provide multiple avenues
for the permitee to provide information to us.
Sometimes it was e-mail, sometimes it was a hard copy,
sometimes we would take the e-mails and say -- and log
those in and, all right, once we get the hard copy,
we'll start looking in. Because there were some things
that they could give us quickly and other things that
they need to work on. So we —-- I don't remember the
details of why this was -- what the schedule was set up

on based off of this piece. And I just remember the,
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how we came out with this one.

MR BEERS: I'll ask a more, I guess, a
straightforward question. Was there at any point,
including this date November 20th when you, Higgins,
Burdette said we have what we need we're going to get
this permit going?

MR. WRENN: No.

MR BEERS: And then someone for some reason
came in did and did a another request for information
that --

MR. WRENN: No.

MR BEERS: -- that you weren't prepared for?

MR. WRENN: No.

MR BEERS: Okay. All right.

MR. WRENN: So I do remember that during this
time we were working hard to get the information from
the applicant. We had spelled out very clearly the
things that we wanted. We had provided some examples
for them on how to do the -- and I think this was
related to the secondary and cumulative impacts
analysis. We had even provided some guidance that DOT
uses to develop their analyses, because they're both
long linear projects and with nodes to potential
development. And I would say at this point we were

pretty frustrated by what we were getting from the
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applicants despite multiple phone calls and written
request kind of walking them through the process.

MR BEERS: Okay. Let me -- so let me put this
back. Whose decision is it to make a written request
conformation, additional information? Who would have
decided to do that?

MR. WRENN: It was multiple parties as far as
-- usually Jennifer, she was the project manager. Like
I said, she was the technical expert here. She had the
ability to request any of information she needed at
that time. There were things -- there was -- I'm
probably more familiar with secondary and cumulative
impacts analysis through my prior work with Department
of Transportation projects than maybe Karen or Jennifer
were at that time. So I provided probably more advice
on what we needed to have a good idea of what those
impacts were going to be than most hearing officers
would.

MR BEERS: Okay. Let's go back to this -- I
think at November 28th, I think the last request for
information went out November 28th.

MR. WRENN: November 28th, okay.

MR BEERS: And that was -- I've looked at
this, it looked like more of a cumulative impact

requests for information. Do you recall that to be the
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case in that last form, I mean --°

MR. WRENN: To the best of my knowledge --

MR BEERS: Yes. To the best of your knowledge
here as we sit.

MR. WRENN: Yes.

MR BEERS: Was that your decision, Jennifer
and Higgins' decision or did someone else above them
would make this request to make this -- or was it done
from you discussing these facts?

MR. WRENN: We didn't discuss the details of
the application as far as what we have, what we need,
what we don't have with anyone other than ourselves.

It was Jennifer, Karen and myself evaluating the
application and looking at the data we have and
determine whether we had an adequate amount of
information to make a decision. We -- I would say that
we knew that this would be happening and so we tried to
be as diligent and as thorough as possible in this. So

MR BEERS: Right. So that was your decision.
It didn't come down from that there are some other
office and say, hey do this, you can sure (cross talk).

MR. WRENN: At no point I had any directives
from anyone other than Jennifer, Karen and myself.

MR BEERS: Okay. Let's just move on to --
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MR. GREENE: Do you recall the time that you
were notified or told that any correspondence with the
applicant -- the secretary's office needed to be
briefly prior to some correspondence with them?

MR. WRENN: No, I don't recall anything.

MR BEERS: Okay. I'm going to move toward the
-- Jjust toward the end of the timeframe of the ACP
permit process. This would be in early January 2018.

MR. WRENN: Okay.

MR BEERS: And we have some e-mails that we
got from the website. And it looks like -- you look at
some of these -- I want you look at some of these.

MR. WRENN: This?

MR BEERS: Yes. Look at these, was that 16 or
196447

MR. GREENE: Yes, 19644.

MR. WRENN: Are these separate documents or
(cross talk).

MR BEERS: They are -- with him, they all have
multiple e-mails on it, because that's the way -- they
are kind of e-mail strings so, some are duplicates,
some are -- this is just more of the -- I don't know,
if they're all included with that. It's all part of
the same -- it's all part of that same exchange. So

it's -- tell me, if I'm wrong, but it looks like it's
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in the process of Higgins and Burdette or you are
involved with reviewing your hearing officer's report
and you're getting ready to send it to or where would
you normally sent that do you know?

MR. WRENN: The -- because of the high profile
of this case I sent it to Karen and Jennifer to review
my report, make sure that my references -- technical
references and the things that I've put in there were
accurate. They have a much better grasp of the
statutes. We sent it to Jeff who had -- I think, in
that reference its Jeff Poupart (phonetic). He 1is
Karen's boss so he could see the report. The
secretary's office had requested to get a brief on that
prior to us sending it to Linda.

MR BEERS: Okay. So do you recall the
conversation with -- did you a have conversation with
Bridget Munger asking to get a copy of that report? Do
you recall a conversation or do you (cross talk)?

MR. WRENN: To get a copy of what report?

MR BEERS: That hearing officer's report?

MR. WRENN: Whether she had asked me?

MR BEERS: Yes. So it looks like -- well, let
me put that together.

MR. WRENN: May be I missed that.

MR BEERS: Yes. I'm going to (cross talk).
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Is this is the one? 1If you recall who requested --
MR. WRENN: Oh, here I guess.

MR BEERS: Secretary's office officer to get a

copy?
MR. WRENN: I think that --
MR BEERS: Yes, this is the -- this is the --
MR. WRENN: It may have gone through
Bridgette. She was very involved with that -- the

whole hearing process, because it's a fairly high
profile case. She was the PIO officer at the time.

MR BEERS: So that wasn't unusual for her to
ask for copy that and ask -- did she ask that she was
taken it before it went to Linda Culpepper, do you
remember that conversation?

MR. WRENN: I don't know that -- I remember
that particular conversation that she was going to —-- I
don't remember.

MR BEERS: Okay.

MR. WRENN: You're talking about 2 years ago so

MR BEERES: Right.

MR. WRENN: So I can't remember the specifics
of that conversation.

MR BEERS: What is the usual process for
review and approving the HO report? And then

submitting or approving the permit based on that.
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Where does the chain of review usually fall?

MR. WRENN: The typical process goes through
whatever group is responsible for either the permit or
the certification. They would take a look at it to
make everything -- make sure everything is accurate.
Often the supervisor, depending on their level of
involvement with the project, would want to see that
particular report as well just for knowledge purposes.
And then I have had other situations where the director
has looked at the hearing officer's report prior to a -
- an official sign off on it. But I have not had a
situation where the director or the secretary has
requested it. But I've never worked on a project that
is this high profile either so.

MR BEERS: Okay. So just because haven't --
has haven't part of does it mean it wasn't
inappropriate for in this case, because it's a high
profile case --

MR. WRENN: I'm sure that there was a lot of
interest for them to see it, because of the profile of
it.

MR BEERS: Do you when -- from conversations
between yourself and Higgins and Burdette during that
timeframe before you were told to send it to

secretary's office when you thought the permit would
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probably be issued, if that -- if it was sent up on
normal channels?

MR. WRENN: I don't -- we were working as hard
as we could to get it out the door, that's we saw from
the prior e-mails we were hoping for September.

MR BEERS: Right.

MR. WRENN: So, but because the -- because of
lack of information that we were getting from the
applicant we weren't able to do that. But I -- if
you're and maybe you can ask me a more direct question.

MR BEERS: How long does it usually take after
you submit the hearing officer's report to get the
permit?

MR. WRENN: Usually once you submit the
hearing officer's report to the division director for
signature, the decision is made fairly quickly after --
within a matter of days. Sometimes, if the director is
familiar with the project and it's pretty simple, it
can be issued right there. Sometimes it takes -- they
want to take some time to take a look at it and feel
comfortable with the recommendations.

MR BEERS: Okay. And in this case it went to
another level of review to secretary's office so —--

MR. WRENN: They -- my understanding of that

review was just to be informed on what we're going to
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do. But I don't know of --

MR BEERS: Do you remember having a meeting
with Secretary Regan (phonetic) about this -- the
hearing officer's report?

MR. WRENN: I do.

MR BEERS: Okay. What happened in that
meeting?

MR. WRENN: We just walked through the
application process. We walked through the things that
we evaluated during that process, provided our -- went
through the recommendations that I had made in hearing
officer's report to make sure they understand or
understood why we were requiring or recommending those.
And there may be some technical pieces that the
secretary maybe didn't understand quite as well so we
want to make sure that he understood that as well --
those pieces.

MR BEERS: Do you think he understood
everything after the meeting?

MR. WRENN: He didn't have any more questions,
so I can only assume he understood.

MR BEERS: Okay. Understood. Did he ask when
it was going to be issued?

MR. WRENN: I don't recall.

MR BEERS: Do you know when the permit was
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actually issued?

MR. WRENN: I know the hearing officer's
report was signed in like 22nd of January. I can't
remember the exact date of the actual 401 when it was
signed.

MR BEERS: So that was on 26, so again like
you said, it's within days so --

MR. WRENN: That's a reasonable amount of
time.

MR BEERS: That's right once it's signed. Do
you know if why they were -- would have been a delay
from your meeting with the secretary, if he understood
it to -- us signing it till the 22nd -- just 10 days
after -- you remember the 12th --

MR. WRENN: Which area are you referring to?

MR BEERS: Oh you met with the secretary on
January 12th --

MR. WRENN: I don't remember the date that we
met.

MR BEERS: Well, there was a note that says
that. I believe Ms. Higgins' notes.

MR. GREENE: Yes. There is a -- (cross talk)

MR BEERS: Made a reference to that meeting.

MR. WRENN: Okay.
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MR BEERS: So, if in fact it was the 12th you
signed the hearing officer's report on the 22nd do you
recall that's --7

MR. WRENN: I don't know why there was a delay
from there. We had -- so we had a draft. I know that
Karen was working on the 401 certification. I don't
recall if the 401 certification was completed at that
time. Typically you have a hearing officer report and
you have a certification and then you have a denial
letter. And you take all three of those pieces, I
don't know, if any of those were -- all of those were
completed at that time. I don't have any information
on why it took that long.

MR GREENE: Had you ever seen a denial letter
prior to ACP?

MR. WRENN: Through -- from a public here --
or public comment and public meeting standpoint?

MR GREENE: I'm assuming a draft.

MR. WRENN: Had I seen the actual draft for
this particular one?

MR GREENE: Yes.

MR. WRENN: I don't -- I think I saw a draft
of it, but I never really looked at it. It's -- it 1is
procedural we have been beat up in the past for -- if

we just bring a permit to be signed to the table people
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have said that's pre-decisional, so we've started
bringing both so that we can say that we considered
both options.

MR GREENE: As you guys were the experts and
have the technical background to make that decision.

MR. WRENN: I'm sorry.

MR BEERS: So it's basically a formality so
that you --

MR. WRENN: TIt's form -- yes.

MR BEERS: You're not making decisions for the
director (cross talk)

MR. WRENN: I'm making a recommendation, but
the director can take my recommendation and throw it in
the trash and do whatever they want to do. So we
didn't want to -- we wanted to be transparent again, so
we brought both options.

MR BEERS: Okay. Do you recall any sense of
urgency prior to signing this hearing officer's report,
like, "Hey, we need to have this done by the next day"
or a rush to get this signed after it was -- after that
delay?

MR. WRENN: A sense of urgency from --

MR BEERS: Like a call and just like a late in
December or January saying, hey, we need to get this

report out by tomorrow. And you need to get it signed
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and get it out. Do you remember any of that --

MR. WRENN: I don't remember anybody calling
me specifically to say that. I know that Karen and
Jennifer and I were interested in getting this out the
door before the holidays, but --

MR BEERS: Okay. That was --

MR. WRENN: -- we didn't want to have to come
back to it.

MR BEERS: But --

MR. WRENN: But I don't recall a specific call
from anybody other than between Karen, Jennifer and I
about schedule at any time.

MR GREENE: Okay. I think the e-mails refer
back to some Friday evening, some Sunday evenings,
exchanges regarding this and reviews of it on the 19th
and 21st before it went to -- does Wrenn e-mail Higgins
back with the final HO report that was on a Sunday
evening at 8:587?

MR. WRENN: What day?

MR GREENE: That was 21st of January. So this
is right before the 22nd.

MR. WRENN: Okay.

MR. WRENN: Yes. So you send it her that
night Sunday evening.

MR. WRENN: Yes.
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MR GREENE: Is it common to work on Sundays?

MR. WRENN: No, it's not common, but I was --
like I said, we've been working on this for several
months. TIt's been a long process. We were ready to be
-- have the details. We had the application. We were
ready to have the document wrapped up and ready to go.

MR BEERS: Here is the e-mail on the Sunday
19th. It was to Brian -- from Karen to you and 19th.
This is Friday 9:26. It looks like you're working on
it for late Friday. Did anyone give you a deadline to
have it completed by that Monday?

MR. WRENN: No. We were just trying to get it
-- taken care of as quickly as possible.

MR BEERS: So I'd come back to January 29 at
9:26, where she i1s -- you're obviously working on it
getting it out --

MR. WRENN: January 19th --

MR. GREENE: 19th.

MR BEERS: 19th, excuse me, 19th.

MR. WRENN: Okay.

MR BEERS: So you worked at -- it looks 1like
you're working to get it out maybe for a Monday or
something -- I don't know, why Friday night at 9:26,
I'm not sure. But have you -- these were -- this is a

document that was submitted by the governor's office to
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the public back in December. So it's an e-mail from
Ken Eudy (phonetic) from the governor's office where he

outlines, kind of schedule what's going to happen with

ACP.

MR. WRENN: Okay.

MR BEERS: You notice on the 19th DEQ staff
begins process of making 401. That e-mail went out a

day before on the 18th, did you recall any
conversations with anyone about we need to get this out
per the request of the governor's office?

MR. WRENN: Again, nobody -- we didn't have
any directives from anybody as far schedule.

MR BEERS: Okay.

MR. WRENN: We were trying to get it out from
our standpoint of it had been a long drawn out process.
We had always set goals.

MR BEERS: So you're not familiar with this?

MR. WRENN: I'm not familiar with that, no.

MR BEERS: Okay.

MR. WRENN: What was the date of the --

MR BEERS: Of the schedule?

MR. WRENN: ©No, the hearing officer's report -
- the last received information request?

MR BEERS: Last received.

MR. WRENN: Uh-huh, the hearing officer.
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MR BEERS: That would have been the 18th
report.

MR. WRENN: So we were working close to having
a 30 --

MR BEERS: Right. You were working on that.

MR. WRENN: Yes. We had not -- yes, well we
weren’t in the situation where we had a 30 day problem
there as --

MR BEERS: No -- your --

MR. WRENN: (cross talk) I just wanted to make
sure.

MR BEERES: I'm just wonder why the -- it
looks 1like there is rough -- for Friday night at 9:20
to get this out. It looks like there was some kind of
deadline --

MR. GREENE: Deadline.

MR. WRENN: Right.

MR BEERS: Some kind of a deadline imposed on
somebody at your office to get this out.

MR. WRENN: I don't recall anybody providing a
deadline to us regarding this. This was, again,
something we have been working on. We were -- we had a
-— we've been working to get the additional information
for quite a while. We finally got it. We wanted to

get it out the door. We were working towards that
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effort.

MR GREENE: Okay. Anything?

MR. BEERS: No.

MR GREENE: I'll just -- did anyone ever
discuss with you the mitigation fund outside of the
DEQ? The mitigation fund -- the $57.8 million fund?
Were you aware that there was negotiations or separate
mitigation fund going on outside of DEQ?

MR. WRENN: I have no information on that. I
found out in the news that whenever the date broke.

MR GREENE: Right.

MR. BEERS: It was not something that you were
focused on as to how this can help with the impact --
the cumulative impact or anything like that?

MR. WRENN: No, I have no information about
the fund regarding -- like I said, other than when it -
- the day it came out I had no information there.

MR BEERS: Well, let's -- if you had known
about a fund that would provide mitigation fund for a
cumulative impacts, would that be something you would
consider in your report?

MR. WRENN: That's speculative.

MR BEERS: Well, it is speculative, but it was
-- 1f you had access to -- maybe would that -- if

that's information that would have been helpful in the
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report in anyway? I mean, it is speculative --

MR. WRENN: Yes, that would be new territory.
We would have to sit down and talk about how that would
be incorporated into the process. I don't -- I can't
recall of any situation before where I've dealt with
that.

MR BEERS: Well, clearly you -- the applicant
didn't mention it to you.

MR. WRENN: Right.

MR BEERS: Right. So it was never brought up
to your attention?

MR. WRENN: Correct.

MR BEERS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Well we're at our time
limit. So at 3:41 -- first of all, thank you for your
time. We're going to discontinue the interview and I
want to cut the recorders off.

MR. WRENN: Okay.
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January 22, 2018

MEMORANDUM Sl

To: Linda Culpepper
Interim Director, Division of Water Resources

’ / . :
From: Brian Wrenn, Ecosystems Branch Supervisor )}é/

. .. i i /
Division of Water Resources, Water Sciences Sectlor}///

Subject:  Hearing Officer’s Report and Recommendations
Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Individual 401 Water Quality Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties

| served as the Hearing Officer for the subject Public Hearings held at the Fayetteville Technical
Community College in Fayetteville, NC on July 18, 2017 and at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC on July 20, 2017. The public hearings were held under the authority of Title 15A
NCAC 02H .0504. The purpose of these public hearings was to receive comment on the Division
of Water Resources’ 401 Water Quality Certification (401 WQC) and buffer authorization
certificates application (Appendix A) submitted by Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP). A 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates are needed to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties.

In addition to listening to oral comments at the public hearings, | have reviewed all written
comments received prior, during and after the public comment period. In preparation of this
report, | have considered all of the public comments, the public record, discussions with Division
of Water Resources (DWR) staff related to the rules, and their review of the applications for the
project.

The report has been prepared using the following outline:
l. Site History / Background
. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing Summary
11l July 20, 2017 Public Hearing Summary

V. Comments
V. Recommendations
VL. Summary

VIl.  Appendices

I. History / Background

On May 9, 2017, Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP) submitted an application for a 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates. ACP had previously applied to DWR on October 23,
2015. DWR requested additional information on November 18, 2015. The requested
information was not provided, therefore DWR returned the application on August 31, 2016.

ACP is proposing to construct and operate an approximately 605-mile-long interstate natural
gas transmission pipeline system including laterals through West Virginia, Virginia and North





Carolina. In North Carolina, ACP is proposing to construct one compressor station and install
approximately 186-miles-of transmission pipeline-and-appurtenances;including 3 metering———
and regulating stations, 11 valve sites and 4 pig launchers/receivers, through Northampton
Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberiand and Robeson Counties. T

ACP is proposing over 300 crossings of streams and open waters, temporarily impacting over
35,000 linear feet and permanently impacting over 700 linear feet of stream. ACP is also
proposing crossing-wetlands, temporarily impacting over 450 acres and--permanently
impacting less than one acre of wetlands. ACP will impact protected riparian buffers within
the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River basins, impacting over 655,000 square feet of zone 1 and
over 459,000 square feet of zone 2 protected riparian buffer.

DWR requested and received additional information several times throughout the application
review process:

Date Action

June 27, 2017

Reg. for Add Info (1)

July 12, 2017

Add Info Received (1)

September 14, 2017

Req. for Add Info (2)

September 22, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 2, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 13, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 26, 2017

Req. for Add Info (3)

November 4, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 15, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 28, 2017

Req. for Add Info (4)

November 29, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 8, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 14, 2017

Req. Correction to (4)

December 20, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

January 17, 2018

Add Info Received

January 18, 2018

Add Info Received

Under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H .0504, DWR held a public comment period from
June 16, 2017 until August 19, 2017 to accept public input on the application. The public
comment period included two public hearings described below.

In accordance with Title 15A NCAC 02H .0503, notice of the public hearings and availability of
the 401 WQC and riparian buffer authorization certificates application was published in The
Fayetteville Observer, the News & Observer, the Rocky Mount Telegram, the Roanoke-
Chowan News-Herald, the Robesonian and the Wilson Times on June 17, 2017, in the Daily
Herald and the Sampson Independent on June 18, 2017, and posted online and sent by mail
to the Water Quality Certification Mailing List on June 16, 2017 (Appendix B). A correction to
the public notice to correct a typo in the pipe diameter was posted online on June 19, sent to
the mailing list on June 20, and issued in the newspapers on June 21 and 22 (Appendix C).





The public comment period ended on August 19, 2017; however, since August 19" was a
Saturday, DWR accepted comments through Monday, August 21.-

July 18, 2017 Public Hearing

A public hearing was held July 18, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Fayetteville Technical Community
College in Fayetteville, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC
02H .0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC
application (Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline
through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred thirty-nine people attended the July 18 public hearing, including eight staff
members from the Department. A total of 131 individuals signed the attendance sign-in
sheets at the registration table (Appendices D and E). The hearing officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Forty-four individuals registered in advance of the hearing to provide comments, and two
additional individuals made comments for a total of 46 speakers. Speakers were given three
minutes for initial presentations. Additional time was allowed for speakers after everyone
that registered to speak was finished, which was used by three speakers. The list of speakers
is included (Appendix E).

The public hearing transcript, including oral comments, is attached to this report (Appendix
H). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment
period from local and state government agencies, individual citizens, and citizen groups
(Appendix J). Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed to the project and
approximately 1,370 were in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the
comments provided during the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both
hearings and the comment period, along with detailed responses that have a direct impact
on the certification decision making process are included in Sections IV and V below.

July 20, 2017 Public Hearing

A second public hearing was held July 20, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H
.0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC application
(Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred seventy-six people attended the July 20 public hearing, including eight staff

members from the Department. A total of 168 individuals signed the attendance sign in

sheets at the registration table (Appendices F and G). The Hearing Officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Sixty-five individuals registered in advance of the hearing to make comments. Speakers were





given three minutes for presentations and the hearing was held open an additional thirty
minutes to allow all speakers that-registered-to speak.The list-of speakers-is-included
(Appendix G).

The public heariﬁg transcri;:“)t; i'néludirig oralwconrﬁmén'icﬂs‘,r, is attached to this feport (Appendix

[). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment

period from local and state government agencies, citizens and citizen groups (Appendix J).

Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed-to-the project and approximately 1,370 were

in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the comments provided during
the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both hearings and the comment period,
along with detailed responses that have a direct impact on the certification decision making
process, are included in Sections IV and V below.

IV. General Comments

The following is a summary of the comments received during the July 18, 2017 and July 20,
2017 public hearings and emails and other written comments received by DWR during the
public comment period. Comments received outside of the public comment period were
made part of the public record. An overwhelming majority of the comments were in
opposition to the pipeline for a variety of reasons.

e Many comments received expressed concerns about the continued use of fossil fuels,
specifically fracked natural gas, and their negative impact on climate change. Many think
NC and the US should be moving toward the use of renewable energy sources.
Proponents of the project believe that natural gas is a “clean” fuel option to replace coal
and other fossil fuels.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

e Many comments received were skeptical of ACP’s promotion of the project as a job
creation opportunity and economic stimulator for local communities. Several pointed
out that ACP’s own job creation estimates are very low and that the economic benefits
to local communities are vague. Proponents of the project reiterated that the pipeline
would bring jobs and economic development to NC.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Department of Commerce.

* Many comments received expressed concerns about the cumulative impacts analysis
provided by ACP. Many believe that the analysis did not contain sufficient detail to
properly evaluate the cumulative impacts. Some comments indicated that the
temporary impacts from the project should be considered in the cumulative impact
analysis and that the sheer volume of temporary impacts should be calculated to equal
some level of permanent impacts.

Cumulative impacts are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps).





e Many comments received questioned the purpose and need of the project. Many
pointed to evidence that the growth of natural gas markets was estimated to be
negligible and questioned the need to build such a large and expensive pipeline. Many
noted that the market demand was generated through companies owned or affiliated
with Duke and Dominion power companies and that the need was self-serving rather
‘than one identified through public interest. Furthermore, several commenters stated
that the purpose of economic benefit was misleading as ACP’s own estimates predict
little permanent job growth as a result of the project. :

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC and the Corps.

¢ Many comments received expressed concerns about environmental justice issues
associated with pipeline’s construction and operation. Many believe that the pipeline will
have a disproportionate impact on low-income and minority communities. Many
commenters feel that ACP has not made significant efforts to coordinate with these
communities or to consider other routes that would reduce the impacts on these
communities. Specifically, several commenters mentioned ACP’s lack of coordination
with state-recognized tribes such as the Lumbee and Haliwa-Saponi. Furthermore, they
do not believe ACP has adequately addressed potential impacts to cultural resources
along the pipeline route.
Environmental Justice is addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to FERC.

e Several commenters expressed opposition to ACP’s use of eminent domain to obtain
right-of-way for the pipeline.
These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Attorney General’s Office.

e Several commenters raised concerns about Duke Power’s past record of non-compliance
with environmental regulations and permits.
Compliance Inspection recommendations are addressed in Section V below.

e Several commenters raised concerns about living within the “blast zone” of the pipeline
and questioned ACP’s liability response should an explosion occur. Others believe that
the pipeline is a safe and efficient way to transport natural gas.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC.

e Many comments received expressed concerns over ACP’s potential impacts to. water . .~

quality from erosion and sedimentation. Many commenters feel that ACP’s erosion and
sedimentation control plan is inadequate and lacks sufficient detail. Others believe that
trenching through streams and wetlands will have a negative effect on stream stability
and threaten wildlife. Concerns over blasting effects were also raised.

Water Quality is addressed in Section V below.





e Many comments received expressed concerns over impacts to wildlife, specifically
threatened and-endangered-species.—Many-felt-that the-construction-activities-could
destroy critical habitat and primary nursery areas for a variety of terrestrial and aquatic
species. Othersfeltthat the extensive coordination process with the US Fish and Wildlife
Service and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC) has adequately addressed any
potential impacts.

Aquatic species are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to NCWRC. === 0

e Many commenters believe that the 401 WQC application is incomplete. They pointed
to the lack of erosion and sedimentation control plans and site-specific water body
crossing details as evidence that necessary information was missing from the
application. In contrast, some commenters believe that the ACP project has gone
through an extensive regulatory review process.

The Division requested additional information multiple times as detailed in Section |
above.

e The overwhelming majority of comments received raised concerns over the degradation
of ground and surface waters as a result of the construction and operation of the
pipeline. Many commenters mentioned the large number of streams and wetlands that
would be crossed by the pipeline and raised red flags regarding the large amount of
temporary and permanent impacts. They connected these impacts with the degradation
of downstream uses including drinking water supply, aquatic life, primary and secondary
contact recreation, and fisheries. Furthermore, commenters spoke in detail of the loss
of wetlands through temporary impacts. Many felt the temporal and permanent
vegetation changes from temporary wetland impacts should be considered permanent
wetland impacts. Finally, many comments were made regarding potential impacts to
drinking water wells. A significant level of concern was present among the commenters
about impacts to wells from construction activities (mainly blasting activities) and
operation of the pipeline.

Degradation is addressed in Section V below.

V. Certification Specific Comments and Recommendations

Based on the review of public comments, the application, the North Carolina General Statutes
and Administrative Code, and discussions with DWR staff, | offer the following comments and
recommendations on the criteria for issuance of a 401 WQC pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H
.0506(b) and the issuance of Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basin Buffer Authorization
Certificates pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively.

15A NCAC 02H .0506(b)

(1) Has no practical alternative under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (f) of this Rule.
Paragraph (f) states: “A lack of practical alternatives may be shown by demonstrating
that, considering the potential for a reduction in size, configuration or density of the
proposed activity and all alternative designs the basic project purpose cannot be





practically accomplished in a manner which would avoid or result in less adverse
impact to surface waters or wetlands.”

The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and
Pennsylvania thrbugh Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina portion of the
proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. As part of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) analysis, ACP investigated
several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no build, alternative
energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives, FERC and ACP

found that the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next, ACP conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on the
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams and wetlands, known historical and cultural resources, and homes and businesses.
Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of seventeen major route
alternatives and thrity-seven minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion of the project
in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis included pre- and
post-application communication with DWR and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC)
on avoidance and minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and
minimization practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through

environmental commitments. A more detailed discussion of avoidance and minimization can
be found below.

Recommendation: None. The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no
practical alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impact
to surface waters or wetlands.

(2) Will minimize adverse impacts to the surface waters based on consideration of
existing topography, vegetation, fish and wildlife resources, and hydrological
conditions under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (g) of this Rule.

Paragraph (g) states: “Minimization of impacts may be demonstrated by showing that

the surface waters or wetlands are able to continue to support the existing uses after

project completion, or that the impacts are required due to:

(1) The spatial and dimensional requirements of the project; or

(2) The location of any existing structural or natural features that may dictate the
placement or configuration of the proposed project; or

(3) The purpose of the project and how the purpose relates to placement,
configuration or density.

The applicant has minimized impacts to surface waters and wetlands to the greatest extent
practical. The permanent impacts will be 766 linear feet of streams and 0.80 acres of
wetlands. The permanent impacts related to streams and wetlands will be a result of





upgrading and improving access roads constructed for installation and maintenance of the
pipeline, not from the pipeline itself. All crossings of major-rivers will-be conducted using
horizontal directional drilling (HDD) to avoid open trenching. The magnitude of the temporary
impacts is very high but within reason considering the size and scope of the project. The
applicant will use a narrower construction corridor when crossing wetlands and construction
techniques such as timber matting, temporary work bridges, and clean rock over piping to
minimize temporary impacts to streams and wetlands. Temporary impacts to streambanks

and wetland areas will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with native

plants. ACP will monitor any temporary impact areas in streams or wetlands to ensure there
is no permanent loss at these locations. The monitoring plan includes monitoring for a
minimum of two years for streams and three years for wetlands with stability, vegetation, and
hydrology requirements. Upon successful completion of the restoration and monitoring
activities, the stream and wetland impact areas will continue to support existing uses of
hydrology, vegetation, and aquatic and wildlife habitat.

The applicant has committed to a number of best management practices to avoid and
minimize impacts to streams and wetlands.

e Demarcation of wetland boundaries with flagging and signs prior to start of
construction

e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soil compaction

e Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation

e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and restoration

e Installing trench breakers or plugs at the boundaries of wetlands to prevent draining
of wetlands

e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies

e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area immediately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock

e Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs

e Prohibiting use of live concrete as a building material so that wet concrete does not
come in contact with surface waters

e Prohibiting storage of chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils
within 100 feet of surface waters

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements of the Construction Stormwater General
Permit No. NCG010000

e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings

e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan





ACP has completed formal consultation with US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on
threatened and endangered species along the corridor. In-an October 16, 2017 biological
opinion, USFWS did not identify any threatened and endangered species or sensitive habitat
in NC along the proposed corridor. ACP has also coordinated extensively with the NCWRC.
This coordination began with the alternatives analysis and site-specific routing of the pipeline.
ACP worked with NCWRC to avoid threatened and endangered species and sensitive habitats
and to develop relocation protocols for fish and mussels. ACP conducted pre-construction

surveys for fish and mussels in the Neuse River at the proposed crossing location. These

surveys found that the mussel population was much more abundant and diverse than
previously known. This survey and the continued coordination with NCWRC resulted in ACP’s
revised proposal to use HDD at the Neuse River instead of open trenching. ACP has also
developed a relocation plan for fish and mussels in coordination with NCWRC.

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that impacts to surface
waters and wetlands are required due to spatial considerations, natural features and the
purpose of the project. The 401 WQC should include requirements for monitoring of
temporary impact areas in accordance with the proposed restoration and monitoring plan.
The certification should also include reopener language in the event that temporarily
disturbed wetland areas do not return to wetland conditions as defined by the 1987 US Army
Corps of Engineers (Corps) Wetland Manual and confirmed by a Corps representative. The
reopener language should require a modification to the 401 WQC to account for the additional
permanent impacts and mitigation for all permanent wetland impacts should the permanent
impacts exceed 1.0 acre. Furthermore, the 401 WQC should be conditioned to comply with
any work moratoriums suggested by NCWRC for the proposed project as well as the fish and
mussel relocation plan.

(3) Does not result in the degradation of groundwaters or surface waters.

The main risk to surface and groundwater from the ACP project will be during construction
activities. These risks include sedimentation and turbidity in surface waters, breaches of
drilling fluids during HDD, and spills of petroleum products and hydraulic fluids from fueling
and equipment maintenance. In addition, some commenters raised concerns regarding
impacts to drinking water wells from trenching and blasting activities associated with the
pipeline installation and from possible contamination due to pipeline leaks during operation.

The applicant has committed to working in the dry for all stream and wetland crossings unless
site-specific conditions warrant working in wet conditions and the applicant obtains prior
written approval from DWR. Proper erosion and sedimentation control measures will be
required for the entire project in accordance with the Division of Energy, Mineral and Land
Resources (DEMLR) sedimentation and erosion control Certificate of Plan Approval. All
temporary fill placed in surface waters related to construction of the pipeline will be removed
once installation of the pipeline is completed at the crossing. The stream banks or wetlands
will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with a native seed mix to prevent
erosion. Only in areas where vegetative stabilization is not successful will hardened
stabilization (rip-rap, geogrid, etc.) techniques be used. No hardening will be placed below





the ordinary high water mark. Furthermore, the applicant has voluntarily agreed to meet the
requirements of the NPDES Construction Activities General-Permit-No.-NCG010000.

The applicant will store chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils and conduct
all equipment and vehicle fueling and maintenance at least 100 feet from surface waters and
200 feet from private drinking water wells. In situations where equipment must continue to
operate during fueling activities such as dewatering pumps near surface waters, secondary
containment structures will be used to prevent any spillage from reaching the surface waters.

The applicant has conducted a desktop survey to identify all known drinking water wells within
150 feet of the pipeline construction corridor. Almost 50 private drinking water wells were
located in NC. The applicant proposes to test each well prior to construction for a suite of
parameters including pH, total suspended solids, total dissofved solids, conductivity, alkalinity,
acidity, sulfates, oil/grease, phenolic, iron, manganese, aluminum, fecal coliform, copper,
lead, nickel, silver, thallium, zinc, chromium, arsenic, mercury, selenium, cyanide, calcium
magnesium, hardness, chlorides, antimony, cadmium, and beryllium as well as well yields.
These tests will provide a baseline of groundwater quality and quantity against which to
measure any construction-related impacts. In the event that blasting will occur within 500
feet of a drinking water well, the applicant proposes to conduct pre-blasting monitoring for
the parameters listed above. Should the applicant receive a complaint regarding damage to
well water quality or quantity, the applicant proposes to conduct post-construction well
testing of the same parameters to verify no adverse impacts have occurred. Furthermore, in
the event that adverse impacts do occur as a result of construction activity, ACP has
committed to providing temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or
well.

Operation of the pipeline is not expected to have adverse effects on surface waters and
groundwater. Any post-construction stormwater generated as a result of impervious surfaces
installed during construction are subject to state and local stormwater requirements. ACP has
committed to using sheetflow and existing stormwater conveyances and drainage ditches. No
curb and gutter stormwater management will be constructed. For impervious surfaces
constructed in areas with no state or local stormwater programs, these stormwater
management techniques will be protective of water quality.

Many commenters raised concerns about leaks from the pipeline impacting groundwater. The
pipeline will be transporting dry natural gas which is not soluble in water. Liquids contained
in the gas are removed at a natural gas processing plant prior to transport and at liquid
separators at compressor stations. Any remaining liquid will be de minimus and is not likely
to impact groundwater.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to violate water quality standards if the
conditions in the 401 Water Quality Certification are fully complied with by the applicant (or
its successor). The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require full compliance with the
following permits:
e (Certificate of Plan Approval No. Cumbe-2018-036, issued by DEMLR, Fayetteville
Regional Office
e NPDES Permit No. NCG010000 issued by DEMLR
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The 401 WQC should also be contingent on the issuance of a sedimentation and erosion
control Certificate-of Plan Approval issued by DEMLR, Raleigh-Regional Office and upon
issuance of appropriate state and local stormwater permits. FERC NEPA and 401 WQC
application documentation indicates that the applicant has agreed to conduct pre-
construction water quality testing for drinking water wells within 150 feet of the pipeline

construction -corridor-and within 500 feet of blasting activities.- -The-401 WQC should be

conditioned to require ACP to conduct pre- and post-construction testing of all wells within
150 feet of the construction corridor and within 500 feet of blasting activities regardless of
whether a complaint is received. Should post-construction testing indicate that well water
quality or quantity has been impacted by the construction, ACP should be required to provide
temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or well. An independent,
qualified groundwater specialist should determine whether an impact has occurred or not. .

The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require monthly ride-through inspections with
appropriate DWR and DEMLR staff to measure compliance with the respective certifications
and permits. The 401 WQC should also require a pre-construction meeting with the
construction contractors, ACP staff, and DWR and DEMLR staff to review the conditions and
requirements of the respective certifications and permits for clarity and understanding.

(4) Does not result in cumulative impacts, based upon past or reasonably anticipated
future impacts, that cause or will cause a violation of downstream water quality
standards.

Cumulative impacts are those impacts that would result from the incremental effects of the
project added to other past, present and reasonably foreseeable future activities (15A NCAC
01C .0103). This includes secondary impacts or impacts from future activities that occur as a
result of the proposed project. The proposed project for the most part will consist of
temporary water quality impacts from the installation of the pipeline. These impacts could
include sedimentation and temporary disturbance of aquatic and riparian habitat during
construction. Permanent impacts will occur in streams and wetlands from access road
improvements. The temporary and permanent impacts will be reduced through avoidance
and mitigation efforts, erosion and sedimentation control and stormwater best management
practices (BMPs), and spill prevention, control, and countermeasure practices. Any projects
occurring in similar locations to the proposed project will be subject to local, state, and federal
regulations that address stream and wetland impacts, stormwater management, and
watershed protection.

Almost 80% of the increased natural gas supply has been committed to natural gas power
plants. The remaining supply will be available for commercial, industrial and residential use.
However, only three distribution points or M&R stations will be constructed in NC. These M&R
stations will be located in Johnston, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. Secondary
development as a result of the pipeline is likely to be focused around these distribution points;
therefore, water quality impacts are most likely in proximity to these areas. The applicant
conducted a qualitative analysis of the potential secondary and cumulative impacts in these
three counties.
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In the qualitative analysis, the applicant completed an “indirect (secondary) and cumulative
effects screening-matrix” where a series of parameters -including scope--of -the -project, -
population growth, available land, water/sewer availability, natural gas availability, market

for development, public policy, and notable water resources were evaluated on their ability to
contribute to indirect and cumulative effects on water quality. Based on these ratings, areas

of potential growth and development were identified. These growth areas were thenm
compared in an action/no-action forecast where the differences in growth and development
between building the pipeline and not building the pipeline were determined. Areas that had
significant increases in growth and development from building the pipeline were mapped.

As discussed above, any new development projects will be subject to state and federal
regulations for impacts to streams and wetlands and erosion and sedimentation control.
However, stormwater management regulations are variable by location. Existing state and
local stormwater programs were overlain on the areas of potential growth identified in
action/no-action analysis to predict the net impact to water quality resulting from secondary
development.

The action/no-action analysis demonstrated that growth could significantly increase in
Johnston and Cumberland Counties if the pipeline is built. These areas have existing
infrastructure for water/sewer and transportation, are predicted to have population growth,
and have a number of shovel-ready development sites. Johnston and Cumberland Counties
are almost entirely covered by state and local stormwater programs and Johnston County is
subject to the Neuse River Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy. Any potential
water quality impacts due to growth in the area would be mitigated through these programs.

Most of Robeson County does not have state or local stormwater programs. Those that are
present are associated with High Quality Waters or Water Supply Watersheds and are limited
in area. However, the action/no-action analysis demonstrated that Robeson County is not
expected to have a significant increase in growth and development as a result of the pipeline.
According to ACP’s analysis, lacking infrastructure, population decline, and separation from
metropolitan areas has stunted growth in this area. Only one shovel-ready industrial site is
available in Robeson County, and it is located in the protected Water Supply Watershed and
would be subject to a local stormwater program. Water quality impacts from secondary
growth in this area would be minimal.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to result in cumulative impacts that violate
water quality standards, if the conditions in the 401 WQC are fully implemented by the
applicant (or its successor). The qualitative cumulative impacts analysis should be forwarded
to the NC Department of Commerce for informational purposes.

(5) Provides for protection of downstream water quality standards through the use of on-
site stormwater control measures. e

Post-construction stormwater is another potential water quality concern. The vast majority
of the proposed pipeline project will not result in new impervious surfaces. However, some
new impervious surfaces are proposed as part of the project. The impervious surfaces include
multiple improved access roads, eleven valve stations, a compressor station, three metering
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and regulating (M&R) stations, and multiple contractor yards. The access roads are existing

unpaved roads-that will be improved to allow construction and maintenance equipment-to

safely pass. Improvements will include minor widening and/or surface water crossing

upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The valve sites are needed to segment the

pipeline for safety, operation, and maintenance purposes. The compressor station will be
located in Northampton County, and the M&R stations will be- located in Johnston,

Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The applicant has indicated that stormwater will be

managed by using existing drainage ditches and swales for access roads. No curb and gutter

stormwater conveyances are proposed for the compressor or M&R stations, and stormwater

will be managed through existing drainage ditches and swales.

Stormwater management for these impervious surfaces will-be regulated through state
programs in Phase I communities or by local programs where applicable. Valve sites and
access roads in a small portion of Nash County and access roads, valve sites, and a contractor
yard in Cumberland County will be regulated through the state-implemented Phase Il
Stormwater Program. ACP will have to meet the requirements of SWG040000 — General
Permit To Construct A Linear Utility Line and Associated Incidental Built-Upon Area (SWG04)
or an individual state stormwater permit. SWG04 and individual state stormwater permits
require compliance with the conditions of the respective permits and with the provisions of
15A NCAC 02H .1000, Session Law 2006-246, and Session Law 2008-211 which ensure the
protection of downstream water quality standards through on-site stormwater control
measures. Any impervious surfaces built in areas covered by local stormwater programs will
have to meet the requirements of the local stormwater program. The applicant also proposes
to build impervious surfaces in areas where no state or local programs are applicable. Based
on the descriptions of stormwater best management practices proposed by the applicant,
stormwater is not expected to violate downstream water quality standards in these areas.

Recommendation: Session Law 2017-10 prohibits DWR from requiring on-site stormwater
management through a 401 WQC. As discussed above, the 401 WQC should be conditioned
to require compliance with all applicable state and local stormwater permits for construction
of a linear utility line and associated incidental built-upon area.

(6) Provides for replacement of existing uses through mitigation.

Both federal and state requirements allow for the purchase of in lieu fee credits to offset
unavoidable impacts to streams and wetlands. DWR requires mitigation [15A NCAC 02H
.0506(h)] at a 1:1 ratio for permanent perennial stream impacts above 300 linear feet and a
1:1 ratio for permanent wetland impacts above one acre. Perennial stream and wetland
impacts for this project will not exceed the respective mitigation thresholds, therefore, no
stream or wetland mitigation is required by DWR. Mitigation is required, however, by the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers for the wetland conversion impacts. Riparian buffer mitigation is
required for the uses identified in the Table of Uses of the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins
Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies [15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC
02B .0259(6), respectively] as “"ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION.” “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c),

13





respectively. Buffer mitigation is discussed below in the buffer authorization certificates
section. s o

Recommendation: No mitigation is required for stream or wetland impacts as a result of the
proposed project. The 401 WQC should be conditioned to include language requiring
mitigation should permanent impact changes occur that exceed mitigation thresholds.

Neuse and Tar-Pamlico Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy
The Neuse River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy and the Tar Pamhco
River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy have the exact same
requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively]. Furthermore,
the mitigation requirements for impacts to protected buffers are exactly the same for the
Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins [15A NCAC 02B .0242 and 15A NCAC 02B .0260
respectively] and both make reference to the buffer mitigation rules [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
For the purposes of this report, the buffer authorization certificates recommendations will
be combined in one discussion.

15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259
(5) DIFFUSE FLOW REQUIREMENT. Diffuse flow of runoff shall be maintained in the
riparian buffer by dispersing concentrated flow and reestablishing vegetation.

As discussed above in Section 5 of the 15A NCAC 02H .0506 discussion, the vast majority of
the proposed project will not result in new impervious surfaces that will create concentrated
stormwater flow. However, there will be improved temporary and permanent access roads,
and five valve sites constructed and maintained in the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins as
part of the project. The access roads are existing unpaved roads that will be improved to allow
construction and maintenance equipment to safely pass. Upgrades will include minor
widening and/or surface water crossing upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The
valve sites will consist of gravel pads around above-ground valves with gravel driveways.

Stormwater from these areas will be managed by sheetflow or by using existing roadside
ditches and swales. Sheetflow from the access roads meets the diffuse flow requirements
associated with the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Woaters
Management Strategies [15A NCAC 028 .0233(5) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(5), respectively].
ACP has committed to managing the existing roadside ditches and swales to minimize
sediment, nutrients, and other pollution prior to entering surface waters. The Table of Uses
for the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies
[15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(6), respectively] identifies use of existing
drainage ditches, roadside ditches, and stormwater outfalls provided they are managed to
minimize the sediment, nutrients, and other pollution that convey to waterbodies as
“EXEMPT” uses. “EXEMPT” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(a) and 15A NCAC 02B
.0259(7)(a), respectively.

The applicant proposes to locate the Smithfield M&R station in Johnston County which is
subject to the Neuse River Buffer Rules. This station is also subject to state stormwater
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permitting requirements as part of the Phase Il stormwater rules. Stormwater management
and diffuse flow-requirements will addressed through the Phase.il process. -

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
that diffuse flow conditions be maintained for all stormwater from impervious surfaces
flowing to or within the protected buffers in accordance with the diffuse flow requirements
stated above or other applicable buffer clarification memos.

(6) TABLE OF USES.
Non-electric utility lines:

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 2 — Allowable

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 1 — Allowable with Mitigation
Non-electric utility lines:

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 40 linear feet but equal to or less
than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer with a maintenance corridor greater than 10
feet in width - Allowable with Mitigation

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer —
Allowable with Mitigation

The proposed project is categorized as a non-electric utility line. The proposed project includes
perpendicular and non-perpendicular crossings of streams and other surface waters subject
to this rule. Due to the width of the maintenance corridor, 50 feet, all buffer impacts are
“ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses. “ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses are defined in
15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c), respectively.

Recommendation: None. The proposed project is "ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” under
the Table of Uses.

(8) DETERMINATION OF “NO PRACTICAL ALTERNATIVES.” Persons who wish to
undertake uses designated as allowable or allowable with mitigation shall submit a
request for a “no practical alternatives” determination to the Division or to the
delegated authority. The applicant shall certify that the criteria identified in Sub-ltem
(8)(a) of this Rule are met. The Division or the delegated local authority shall grant an
Authorization Certificate upon a “no practical alternatives” determination. The
procedure for making an Authorization Certificate shall be as follows:

(a) For any request for an Authorization Certificate, the Division or the delegated local
authority shall review the entire project and make a finding of fact as to whether
the following requirements have been met in support of a “no practical
alternatives” determination:

(i) The basic project purpose cannot be practically accomplished in a manner that
would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and
protect water quality. _

(ii) The use cannot practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or
redesigned to better minimize disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat,
and protect water quality.

(iii) Best management practices shall be used if necessary to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality.
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The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and

Pennsylvania through-Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina-portion of -the - —-— -

proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The proposed project will permanently impact
521,430 square feet and 594,070 square feet of protected riparian buffers in the Neuse River
Basin and the Tar-Pamlico River Basin, respectively. As partof the FERC NEPA analysis, ACP
investigated several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no
build, alternative energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives,
the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next ACP, conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on an
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams, wetlands, protected riparian buffers, known historical and cultural resources, and
homes and businesses. Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of
seventeen major route alternatives and 37 minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion
of the project in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis
included pre- and post-application communication with DWR and NCWRC on avoidance and
minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and minimization
practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through
environmental commitments.

The applicant has demonstrated that the basic project purpose cannot be practically
accomplished in a manner that would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life
and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has demonstrated that the use cannot
practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or redesigned to better minimize
disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has
proposed a number of best management practices in an effort to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality including but not limited to the
following:
e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soif compaction
o Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation
e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies
e (Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs
e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings
e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan
e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan
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e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing,-excavation, pipe installation, backfilling,-and restoration

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area :mmed.-ately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock o

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements ofiheLonstructronStormwater General
Permit No. NCGO10000

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no practical
alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to
protected buffers. The buffer authorization certificates should be conditioned to incorporate
the best management practices proposed by the applicant intended to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. Furthermore, the buffer
authorization certificates should require demarcation of protected buffer with flagging or
signs prior to the initiation of construction and limiting operation of construction equipment
in buffers to only that necessary for clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and
restoration

(10) Mitigation. Persons who wish to undertake uses designated as allowable with
mitigation shall meet the following requirements in order to proceed with their
proposed use.

(a) Obtain a determination of “no practical alternatives” to the proposed use
pursuant to Item (8) of this Rule.
(b) Obtain approval for a mitigation proposal pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0242 [.260].

15A NCAC 02B .0242 and .0260 have been repealed and replaced with 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

As discussed above, the applicant has demonstrated that there is no practical alternative that
can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to protected buffers.
Due to the fact that the maintenance corridor for the proposed pipeline will have a width of
greater than 10 feet, all of the buffer impacts are considered “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses and subject to the buffer mitigation requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
However, impacts to wetlands within the buffers are not subject to the buffer mitigation
requirements and are regulated under 15A NCAC 02H .0506(h) as discussed above in section
(6) of the 401 WQC application review process. The buffer mitigation totals reflect the
removal of wetland areas within the buffer.

The applicant has proposed to obtain all buffer mitigation credits through the in-lieu fee
program with the Division of Mitigation Services (DMS). A letter addressed to the applicant
from DMS dated May 4, 2017 and renewed on October 6, 2017, states that DMS is willing to
accept payment for the buffer mitigation credits for the proposed project. DMS will
administer the mitigation credits in accordance with the In-Lieu Fee program instrument
dated July 28, 2010 and 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
buffer mitigation in accordance with the table below:
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Compensatory River &
— Mitigation Sub-basin Number
Amount Required
301,168 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020102
318,868 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020101
245,612 (square feet) Neuse 03020203
486,344 (square feet) Neuse 03020201

Buffers

Environmental Justice

One of the most common topics of the commenters was environmental justice. As discussed
above in the General Comments Section, many comments received expressed concerns
about environmental justice issues associated with pipeline’s construction and operation.
FERC’s Final Environmental Impact Statement determined, “as a result of the project, no
disproportionately high and adverse impacts on environmental justice populations as a result
of air quality impacts, including impacts associated with the proposed Compressor Station 2,
would be expected as a result of ACP and SHP. Also, no disproportionately high and adverse
impacts on environmental justice populations as a result of other resources impacts would
be expected.” Many commenters disagreed with this determination and requested that the
401 WQC be denied based on the potential environmental justice impacts.

The Director evaluates a 401 WQC application based on five criteria including a no practical
alternatives analysis, minimization of adverse impacts to surface waters, an analysis of the
degradation of groundwaters or surface waters, a cumulative impacts analysis, and
replacement of existing uses through mitigation. Environmental justice is not included in the
criteria upon which the Director must evaluate the application. Although environmental
justice is not an evaluation criteria, the Department has been intimately engaged with the
stakeholders of North Carolina through the permitting process.

On March 23, 2017, the Department hosted a stakeholder meeting in Raleigh, NC to provide
information and receive feedback on the proposed pipeline project. Eight environmental
organizations, four government agencies, and a representative of the Commission of Indian
Affairs were in attendance.

On July 18 and 20, 2017, the Department hosted 401 WQC Application Public Hearings. This
was to allow the citizens of North Carolina to comment on the certification. Notification of
the public hearings was provided in accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .0506(d) and (e). In
addition, the Division of Water Resources provided notices of the hearings by mailing flyers
in both English and Spanish to community organizations, such as churches, government and
non-government organizations, libraries, etc.

On August 9, 2017, the Department participated in an Environmental Justice Forum hosted
by the Haliwa-Saponi Indian Tribe and the North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs. The
forum allowed an opportunity for tribal leaders, commission members, state and federal
regulators, and other stakeholders to discuss information on the proposed Atlantic Coast
Pipeline.
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VI.

Between August 15 and 17, 2017, the Department hosted three listening sessions along the
proposed pipeline route to-obtain-additional public feedback on-the project. In addition to
the Department, the 'NC'ljébértment of Commerce, NC f)épartniéhf of Natural and Cultural
Resources, and the US Army Corp of Engineers were present. -

On October 20 and 21, 2017, the Department participated in the North-Carolina
Environmental Justice Network’s Summit. This allowed for the Department to provide a
summary of the permitting status of the project.

In addition to the various stakeholder engagements listed above, the Department has been
transparent with citizens who requested to sign up for the email news feed on the project, as
well as meetings with the Commission of Indian Affairs. The Department has been thorough
in its review of the applications submitted for the proposed Atlantic Coast Pipeline.

Summary

Public comments concerning the two public hearings focused on several major issue areas,
including the degradation of water quality, cumulative impacts, environmental justice,
sedimentation and erosion control, the permitting process, impacts on wildlife including
threatened and endangered species, and ground and surface water supply protection. Due
to the number of public comments, many of which expressed concerns on the same issues,
each comment is not addressed individually. Only comments that have direct relevance to
the certification decision have been addressed in the recommendations (Section V).

As stated above, a thorough review of all public comments received and the project record
has been conducted, and additional insight has been obtained through discussions with DWR
staff. Based on all of this information, it is my recommendation that the 401 Water Quality
Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates be issued and subject to the conditions
included in the recommendations in Section V. It is further recommended that DWR include
any additional conditions necessary to ensure that the project will meet state water quality
standards.

Vil. Appendices (available on Laserfiche)

A. May 8, 2017 401 Water Quality Certification Application
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: 401 Application
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/547515/Row1.aspx

B. Notice of Public Hearings —June 16-18, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice 06_16_2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547528/Pagel.aspx

C. Correction to Notice of Public Hearings — June 19-22, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice Correction 06_19 2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547588/Pagel.aspx
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D. July 18, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_FayettevilleHearing -Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552613/Pagel.aspx

E. July 18, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18 Fayetteville Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552611/Pagel.aspx

F. July 20, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMtHearing_Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553245/Pagel.aspx

G. July 20, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553247/Pagel.aspx

H. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_Fayetteville Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557323/Pagel.aspx

I. July 20, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557322/Pagel.aspx

J.  Written comments received during the comment period, including at the public
hearings
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: Public Notice Comments

b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/548242/Rowl.aspx
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401 Application for Atlantic Coast Pipeline

Date

Action

May 9, 2017

Application Received

June 27, 2017

Req. for Add Info (1) /Notice of Hearing

July 12,2017

Add Info Received (1)

July 18, 2017

Public Hearing — Fayetteville

July 20, 2017

Public Hearing — Rocky Mount

August 19, 2017

Public Comment Period Ends

September 14, 2017

Req. for Add Info (2)

September 22, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

September 29, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 2, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 13, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 26, 2017

Req. for Add Info (3)

November 4, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 7, 2017

Phone call re Add Info Received

November 15, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

**Nov. 21, 2017**

Email requesting add info (4)

**Nov. XX, 2017**

Add Info Received (4)

**Dec. 13, 2017**

Provide HO Report and draft decision documents to Section Chief
for review

**Dec. 19, 2017**

Provide HO Report and draft decision documents to Director for
review

**Jan. 2, 2018**

Meet with Director for final decision

** indicate goal date not actual date **

11-20-17






. ”‘5’_4’ thecle NCGol

T -'rec:fufr!' mnm&{wmrﬁ e

: SRRNPSESE PSS, £ [ORT SO S oyl UGN PP SR

A5 Mig.w

2 ACP Gall
’mﬁﬁc o, ﬂn(

j;' s
uﬁ?,;,oﬂca. =i E:‘:"%c e A 5%” qm)c;om g DAT
o_c(.css (Dcrds & Svev&c\.mé o daso_pf: rtt,sq
_ bkl B (&&Jtu%x - .

T T s i

"mf)we. fHO Q@bﬁ: /Drmc'f olscstba.s ULD h&da_@ﬂ_ﬁbm%

o Gdoowt  fuos r&!e@g%;&eag;bn

Jle ol

al %ﬂc:\,%&“)f will 4

I

”— dowbe chack Smpact #'s+ pufferomte”

1” send 4D '5fvw(‘_)2/ gcsr (eJepd v
: L’> /\ﬂ-Q—é ppen woter im __.__ch'tl:S/ -
- WRCE- location Plaﬁ; v
‘f'ﬁm:ighod’f’ D :

medctfé,é MHMAS o a-dd. C/btf{‘w+ mofuﬁ)n

ngne-w —
T chedeall conds i oan

oA 2 add lpe T T

- ode dade fecd Hor o0 iwpadt iﬁle/ﬁ?:f"/

e ——— T i v B

/za/f?f

Ao edj ool pute ®sa emal e}






IR £ T3, % Mg o] Sec- Reaon, Sheda,linda, Ra. o

_Ta \ND!D_—E\% ¥e. cum,onelysis- DWR ALY TnoEs

R | I w_\(wﬁ_m&@_éaﬁ&___mmﬂi_ﬁ_ \ ’_"‘_\l_:’"‘, '{I\
& 5 oo
I « AAD Xecoonmperadodons WW ,,,,,

|

,Mf Thor ~Pec 2o 352245
| 4, Cpoets T izite
S . B \‘:""1’390‘1 W

A5 Gl wl Spearec [
m&hnﬂﬁm Switnfeld G170 16-I1. .
L L\ Spencer kg F that week ot work

— |- hasett 1mwed Yoy permit yer — showld be swon |
T e Seln nsy hoo stecked wonNe N L

— L Sprod O spread € conshuckinn m,z,.ofgf_ I

L espesdi T Uvedwn _






g"_?) Jony _=y's all
\ES’\&’G(}S sessolls = m%-—?ula?m hearings - NO B("Imr\
L woudd  puink follat Fhe ohhar a%mdeﬁ st
s yeeessan \\1 howe ey Haare - we wil Tnvite sthar agencien
m\Armn comments ot M}?aj Felloto supmit thems
J@W [ il aheck*}ﬁsu E sBoc KA chootd be e o ,5,ﬁ;w
lp 153l cnecle asoouk an&"l meﬂcmg odso IWQR““”‘W

RS H‘q Nkt H'W—i Penny | Sennifer Mudt, Kow Byloc”
”J'mm’;:r Kamn Eﬂm

"W"—é* @?(&Sen'h\'\ﬁﬂSﬁ JMT *\'b\ﬂxﬁ,*-}o NSO ?Mbm
pDominion »ill ke M., EPA. NCshie Pof. Emanuel
W Sarade will ?rmnf

C il SHE Wil cgb“‘lﬂ% W2 out

~ gend RnDLr’re,éar mm&ir\a W/ IB+ Pwon S-2Y.

8 -8 ?(Q’Mea}t\f\g_m. Rl | f-fep_;};%

H—'{-(‘\\oﬁl leo..&-ef‘ c»mmefﬂ&
P(’omae, DALV Ve %:F.(Dar‘m W@M@sﬁ’t w a.vmiatsfe

C’IHQS)CIDQS 'Ffom {ﬁbo& Verders





r‘(: xhﬁ.tﬁﬁ L;LITE w\%h ub\&Q& !:la.Sa-fZP @, St l/l;:fl,tcle /f;f
. L'P&on l' IO IAY ?(dmxmm/} q;\ __
"&u‘tv&,ﬁzm,m/l# o MR Mgua.gg; %,cwu s%wm

It C‘QH - seol

7o't alow. nodt ceqenen
__________ ,.55 w;g ?LWM oot ma)cf./h DULS

i \\ T : i
S w\ o:;skr ﬁw’ m;ﬁc ’g Fal m{%*&uil%,%?h%*
S g nm&r g-(:i}m [conshat thian  stord ___&fw__,;r}* anirte
- onacddne o Swdax ~ Ay ol prempt d’,@no NCEdl

- ___ Tl heot standerd 49&3&3‘*’ lld:hﬁg_dm M — Mﬂg/ o

S Cwkarme @ 2000 oDSsIn o
s e e Khemn Q'«Ete?%\bﬂ N.L&—}*- pmo\é-e, mkenaﬁr






3
.A.,;:E
3
i

—— ,&-gE_ e
T dd anle :&Qﬁg_ﬁmgﬁmﬁ’%\ s __encwechmont 0
"y __a%\i&m/qh Lancludia q cssing _ofher ukilities

L ew bosias it slt fnaot fogs uter pars,
- wdidity  cyrtorns

oY a-pprboe. phon wlymnm_P(\ijiimﬁ“
| d,&m,\,'é_".}_ms;is_o_-?ﬁt@,é e the whmle tal  —

TP bt elease il after 7. Wwig season
P aSereodn Mﬁjoff‘;}ha% <+ Quorterly
P oensite —*an0ilable on (eowopt

NN | N _H?QOLLQ—“&__QQ:L\L«P_&&%;@& Rle o thowo

e b osend nspection repocts Jo un.

- TS SELL Il hignlight a5 comments.

, ﬂ i _S_H&Qcmo\m Depst e
_ ) ,;Ef\n 6%6\4.5%-, ?msfrﬁ( ~H. 4 See- ﬂeﬂ@n;%mn,:[eff;;mﬂ o
_0aphone P syl Toha, Topyy BillDoy-Sally C., Hichae]

. _Abcczioskas o

TR gpdde-Katen
TPEMIR iy 0e Zpland gn—Phaoe wati| S ept.g@7

~heve wot (ee'd  state Sw._pemitogplication yel

: bau@n&l_»{ O gAML | comd oo ;u?elci dony
h ¢§k,._...6a.( Com andiddeed

Wdisapervoe, haie 1S doys B naw rediewy
LZ;J}' mice AdanAltan Nomnaa d TTORIERR






| ;

b

- Hﬁf% Pextmt,

2 ,,1‘,,,3, e

cl -3 M¥e v [DEQ @ AP o o
Sheila, ® i, Toly, Tulie, L,m&x Jm,g, Q__Cﬂ: :Tgna;?ex H,

"‘ ‘-HM e oftad we Know o ot seficient, Iekthem knowo Friday

TDEMLR -

Lo ot {gs?mgw %@mwwis }/@gferda)/ - o u)ea,karv‘wb
R T Ier ewlﬂé add'wfe espose.
c,m.ghxng 26 kot s o 1S af3od—0~‘1 clocke .

- DPcQ o s oo i Wt vl “’"“ﬁ

e wts Bw&}m" Saradn  fpotwerle ye  outreach {_i; orr

; Pl ke oo minol pecrit ,,,,7,#_,,7,_“,/,___ Stofeviates
f, e é(o\mbf o pblic. hwfaﬂg, ,,,,,, e Byt
?

ki ct- \ ij.u(rew
ph oy O \ R T PR —

. aA

‘“ lhor o FERC® dratied wuk gt sedl

@ PEC 's naxd wwitiag S Oct-19 S
&ula nat xpext  (oming vﬂ‘bfmﬁbw—\ _(@r’p pe,{mes
Lo nad iai\ﬂ& @gﬂﬂm AWOLRAEDD Mmoot

11
R
I
T

i - — -
e T S
1
N ey - =
E [
Pt
] L
I
1!
11
i
et i
Tt =
.
i





g —ntn e -'-'n-vdf‘“

2 Y-29 Mesting wi P
1l = Mok Majrﬂ"tﬁ&)%?&l@ﬂ Teichelly B
W‘E,‘,M_&Mgleﬂ Sheilo Holmast, Sony T Teanifer, kaxen

i P;LP@Q@Q last _submittal —}D;:La}/ | R
i Mark -7 41 meline-  whgdpens L0 ;i@gj}aff" R
TS‘(\@;\%L]{&ML‘ e d (eguest for  aupiu <

1. heatna. on _add infa L
. ﬁ;chmﬂﬂw questions ot this poiat s
f Lowent Hamudp prelwinany Comments )
| la> povide _:p;;,mp@%llc foc lotn _weMamds

it

bt cubmibted me

R o dai%hwrg dof't show sqmdo\fhon > Fo;(’]f‘S
........ @ te ed 3 S
S W wiW\em o;éhg,ﬁ___g\r_l_;ﬂ:\ﬁgmﬁ[.ﬁ,_..._m:g{z_&g;{gm._Qﬂ:‘s_g_mﬁa_g_gf .
VS j\,&g\ﬁm’ HHow ) o
- Ul'—ﬁ*whagr Awow’ —
L5t's ot thod i+ wasn'F Feasib e, \Fwasat
| ) - X eagg,f HDD = pyill 1’?&1' > 1 Fwot
| . 1 MC\\(\ f“xs;kﬁmc ‘96\4“\34/4..; rERC  diected
- M @J\'\JC\L\DL&’Yf Lomo\l {WWLQMAL - —hﬂ)al
B ‘ RYVIR sﬁﬁ,&\ LR HDTDS S
. Ii d‘-tﬁ will add inh re s’r&-b l hf mw\n{’bfmégr_ ______ o
I _,,,"._&\L;?/S:lnbﬂé ﬂbblﬁ[w@miﬂg&m - \fﬂ ¥ W V (U e0S
— oy & EL jp_pe,im(z,_coer decision R






"DEMLR-P hawe, mﬁ {ecmuEA i ploes _e=
| < " on_opplicatins = St o
T DPt@,. = howvt 5&& mizzp_wh\u,_\am o Nou. =

_m " hove covrmmumicoxrd o VA
T leHe.r Yo FERCHP ace poceeding  wl seadlis -

‘*‘y%hhjhhnﬁ _ciceuit dedsian ¥ ag...n,___

"'T‘\?l-{ ~Wen Tooglor # pap (€ Cacom W =¥ VI Tms gmse

_____ b

“nefnetn pask ol rouke - Mowgloe SoUtnTE 1T 3 pemw w

T e TS — T Keep T e
.~ BisCocHol of othes
- ,% “Yalk¥> VA

10-25" Wedldy pEQ - L

gyl

¥ Kmelam Mk A Sa%f' Do C- 'Bnaunu) Jzéi”ﬂ y
- Dennfes, Kaven PP\BM.”‘"Bnégﬁl"f“fbla&

-
=

"DP:& Upc\oc\a .
] ____L.an'}nce, =+ k@&nﬂa,
L'qm-}\ms w#&& —}a ﬂslo ncfbm Ohmm vi -y
7  (s2L woted &m_qcs-{%&oﬂ\ = =
\r\%kud«, U~ vy low ?’rk* ~ '-i'*l-' » coqcernh +
mwl{\a& fe (g oy WAcomsed ‘o aste [f; 19y ols
Le Moy el o take odd steps t ?r‘euw% ;:arrus=an-7

. net wim 560?6 »f 4ol v shewd @muﬁ-ﬁ Ak
- Soaeh > Fheutd e :






- \/‘PP\ r\%—%w:: gﬁc_ﬁ&é_ I&a& __nu,;’c:\n:lm I
| ~BAon" warma% owdd et

1 DE—HLJZ e
e '3 (wwed  E3SCPlans -rplm,,m Lasecfcha.

- MM\ shislo re Add T Juot esFpr
LZ_C& ﬂﬂé::}ﬁ Joy & . S

H -{ ’gng Ie.nnd:v.x.; re. Ldusi*&éé.gigﬁx_ L | N

AR appinag :,bz _show  locaXinn crg s prjects -
Do lo =9 Hal, shoXiva mar enlsking Seselnged okeo, N lmu.
hlq\mom_:‘ ~» pu"tmhdﬂ 5\4:&!;:}(;-? rcondd be

. LoD oy mshné,_ —proglams S
I —"P mc‘lms%md& parle P wonim opp®plod
G e teein -w st inckded otald. )
om . (o. » similar # cowe send sut Hpbw sewver st
ajrmM_MT_I-?S’mnjnL e P

T ::Y

, 44;2_0[5&.&@{5 —» wmetle detoil

o _PQL :;L&L)c},apﬂ\m&:? WLae M‘J:ifu.u.

L texistima - AiﬁJAak;\gm ,,,,,,,,,, . e






| T oup a:l‘f. L35 "le Qape . R
b s Swailo il Falle wim e EIJ%__

] 5@ ‘

;m » ac&A, wt{gb Je;lief.s mml: *w?c ‘JLr)iay N
— Lr_ Hoold  howe, Mnﬂ{a &qmai{dy &mf i
j A A puwtit H qgedher o oo yd oV :beJ[ -+

0 [:SMM What 'Hu_g[ submited pon ey h?
oM c0wdd pelidion o Yearis s %o idual

— “““““ . \f g Lw\r se,u& Q«Sa@mu@s —— .
A — ;_ S
;r WL'__,P %pof té ﬁf V\w.no? S B
%; e —_—
%;' l&f 'Dqﬂ' k.nh.u;_af ANy mc]:fcnb AL Pmbf‘»‘a_ s
WE_:TM e e oot o S B

:_l_\ 17 ’qu,n je,ﬂmfw(’ B

MlSS-Lr'tﬁ Sw La.;T-Er-b M,s«knmw-.wm ﬂgm" LQVM%

ﬁ b dis cuss Specdhie_oasopn wobjusl

‘ !' L sncude MMI“&.-..EELiB& ._ma,P
——waneckion = 4o dodysls






_-\<io.f_e:g_¥ Py e,nm%,{ _Tamsa M LQ.&CKQQ_,_ J)mg;s We.oAs o
L Bem  ghitidn, Sacob @smw%\,iaremﬂmwh,ﬁi'we Hh Htﬂ,
9?9-&'\&& Tachel, sty Budaeanan

ﬁj_ﬁiu e;mﬁsfj@ },us,d o Je,ﬁer —

c\@fa Brose WIDNR) 2

D s ———— 7 Li l feq Lui‘lrta_ o[ L;[f; 05 C:Lttlm er of }sze— N

SERP—— | Lrn-\_s?gtw\ condidivas  m new  nabonuwides S

o b Hencht 23 wab I sulfoce mine Ha mm R
aad +m:l\ COMMeNT WW%V\ Sw ix{m;

12. ]% CEQ-? CCLM wl -ﬁ(@:’ - see @A,me’re
*chcPt ced e surt . Mon - ysinine, _

Pa%c NEad ‘expan en s el Qabcg‘/w.b% ac:!ym’wga
=S sibsidien %v‘ﬂjj:) ofronct
mk&s’mw s e B PR






EXHIBIT




krpeterson

Rounded Exhibit Stamp





To: Bridgette R Morris-Mcl awhorn (bmorris@ncdenr.gov)

Subject: meeting with Linda
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 2:57:18 PM
Hi Bridgette-

"d like to go ahead and schedule time with Linda, Jennifer Burdette, Brian Wren and me to go
over the Atlantic Coast Pipeline Hearing Officer’s report and recommendation. We'll probably

need an hour and are looking for January 4" or 510,

Thanks-
Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor
Division of Water Resources

Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-8360 office

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604
1617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

I comresponderice to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Lay, =7

lased to third parties.






From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Rice, Sarah M
Subject: RE: ACP

Date: Friday, December 15, 2017 2:27:34 PM

Sarah,

Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss the ACP hearing officer’s report on Jan. 4" 1am finalizing
the HO’s report and hope to have a draft to Karen and Jennifer early next week (minus the
cumulative impacts evaluation — still waiting on info). Do you think you could have a EJ statement
completed next week? Thanks.

Brian Wrenn
919-743-8409 (office)
919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Rice, Sarah M
Sent: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 12:47 FM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP

Hi Brian,

Please let me know if | can assist with any EJ related questions for the hearing officers report.
Regards,

Sarah

919.707.8287

Get Qutlook for i0S





From: Doug Heyl

To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)
Subject: Date: Attachments:

Heyl, Douglas
FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office)
919.812.3415 (Mobile)
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Munger, Bridget

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM

To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018

ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018

DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.

DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.

DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification
issues are

*“Nothing Compares

resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.





DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a
Subject: Date: Attachments:

RE: ACP Well Testing
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png

Ok, I think | have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, | made one change to the
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other
than that. I've included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write-up as well. | think that covers it. I've saved the report with
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM

To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing

agreed
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L
To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer
Subject: a FW: ACP HO report

Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.





From:

To: Subject: Date:
Brian-

Higgins, Karen

Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM

Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. | don’t think Jennifer will review this today
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.

Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’'m not sure that it will
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401-
wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP HO report

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

| think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
OnlJan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)
Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607

Mailing Address:

1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1623





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a

Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report
Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM

Attachments:

FYI

ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,

Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.
Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607





From: To: Subject: Date:
Burdette, Jennifer a
Wrenn, Brian L

RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM

Sorry for missing your call this morning. | was deep into the draft of the 401. Before | left, | just
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. | enjoyed and learned a lot working
with you.

Take care, Jennifer

Jennifer Burdette

401/Buffer Coordinator

Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality
919 807 6364 office

jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov

1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9" FIr Archdale Bldg — Room 942F) Email
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the

North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report

FYI
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen
Poupart, Jeff
Cc:

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM

Karen,
| accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. | looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?

I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on
this.

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L
Cc: Poupart, Jeff

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Brian-

Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. | made the edits to the HO report based on your
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. | used the HO report | sent
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those |
made today.

| also made the recommended changes to the draft 401.
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.

Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov





From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use
track changes so | can look at them easily.

Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Culpepper, Linda

Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen

Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report

Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. |
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Munger, Bridget

To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas

Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm

Please see attached.
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:

From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget"
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report

FYI

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office

karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM

To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast

Pipeline project. | am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!





Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Culpepper, Linda

Subject: draft 401 decision documents
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM

Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx

Linda-

Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’'m
working on the bullet points.

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office





Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP

Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount

Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Linda-

(none)
Not yet responded

Higgins, Karen
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff

We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents
if you had any questions. | gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification
and draft denial.

Thanks- Karen

127

Subject: Location:

Start:
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

(none) Accepted





Canceled: ACP Team Meeting
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse

Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free

Lucey, John D
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R
Culpepper, Linda

Cc:
Subject: ACP - word document

Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM
Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx
Bridgette-

| put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today — there are two places for Linda to sign. | will not be in the office
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I've attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?

Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits
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2/9/2018 Gmail - ACP Tick Tock

i g G . : : 2 :
M Gmaill Julia White
ACP Tick Tock

5 messages

Ken Eudy i Thu, Jan 18, 2018 at 12:31 PM
To:i Sadie Weiner il Julia White i Morgan Jackson <mjackson@nexusstrategies.com>

Gov is anxious to get a tick tock on this. Here’s a start. Can you fill it out? He especially wants to understand how we think
the word of the solar and mitigation agreements will get out. | put a placeholder statement in for discussion purposes only.

TIMING ACTIVITY OWNER

1-18 State Historic Preservation Officer signs PA agreement, returns it to FERC William
1-18/24 Gov makes stakeholder calls Morgan

1-19 Sr. staff reviews internal and external messaging, sends to gov  Julia

1-19 DEQ staff begins process of final 401 approval  Julia

1-19/1-22 Gov reviews messaging Sadie

1-23 Gov staff meets with DEQ to align communications Julia

1-23 Gov staff meets with Commerce to secure statements from economic dev leaders  Ken
1-23 Gov staff meets with Solar developers to nail down their messaging on queue agreement Ken
1-23/24  Sr. staff may tweak messages base on stakeholder feedback Sadie

1-25 Messaging finalized for gov, DEQ, Commerce, Solar, Democrats Sadie

1-25 pm Legislative liaison briefs caucus leaders Brad

1-26 am DEQ notifies ACP  Julia

1-26 am NCDP briefed Morgan

1-26 noon DEQ issues 401 permit Julia

1-26 Press office issues gov statement outlining carbon-offsetting measures Sadie

1-26 pm Local or regional stakeholder calls by IGR  Jordan

Ken Eudy
Ken Eudy
TSR
Morgan Jackson <mjackson@nexusstrategies.com> Thu, Jan 18, 2018 at 12:59 PM
To:| Ken Eudy i Sadie Weiner Julia White
: Julia White i

Reoriented stakeholder calls in timeline. But otherwise good.

Sent from Iphone

From: Ken Eudy

Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 12:32 PM

To:i Sadie Weiner i Julia White i Morgan Jackson
Subject: ACP Tick Tock

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=ef31eedecd&jsver=5L3RpKO0ut0l.en. &view=pt&g=acp&search=query&th=1611f277abcb26ch&simi=1610a53... 1/3
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Page 3
PROCEZEDTINGS

MR. GREENE: Today's date is October 4th,
2019. My name 1is Kevin Greene, and I'm with Eagle
Intel Services. And we've been contracted by the North
Carolina General Assembly Subcommittee on the ACP to
gather facts and report those facts back to the
committee. We are recording this interview today. And
I would like to have each person present to state your
name, position and that you acknowledge that we're
recording this interview. And I'll start with Tom.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Tom Beers, I'm an
investigator with Eagle Intel Services. And I
understand that this is being recorded today.

MR. LANE: Bill Lane from DEQ. I understand
this is being recorded.

MS. MUNGER: Bridget Munger with the
Department of Public Safety. I understand this 1is
being recorded.

MR. HARGROVE: Drew Hargrove with DEQ. I
understand it's being recorded.

MR. GREENE: Thank you all. And I believe Mr.
Lane would like to add something?

MR. LANE: Yes, thank you. We are starting
this interview at 1:35 p.m. By agreement of the

parties, this interview will take no more than an hour,






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 4
so we will be concluding this interview no later than
2:35. Again, by agreement of the parties the questions
to be asked will be related to Ms. Munger's official
duties related to the 401 Water Quality Certification
for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline and not other -- any
other projects that she's worked on or anything in her
personal life. Okay.

MR. GREENE: Thank you very much. We'll start
by just if you would just give us a brief background of
your time with DEQ, when you started and the position
that you served.

MS. MUNGER: I started with DEQ in August of
2006 as a communications specialist III with the
Division of Soil and Water Conservation. That division
was later moved out of the agency. Before that
happened, I accepted a position with the Division of
Water Quality moving over as a federally funded storm-
water outreach and education coordinator for the state.
And that would have been February 1st, 2008, when I
switched jobs there.

What followed was wvarious reorgs, not
particularly official reorgs, but within the
communications shop for the department. And eventually
I ended up as PIO for two divisions, the Division of

Energy, Mineral and Land Resources; as well as the
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Division of Water Resources. And eventually I became
the deputy communications director for the department.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And during the timeframe
of primarily 2017 and early 2018, what position did you
have at that time?

MS. MUNGER: A deputy communications director.
That promotion came about midpoint of that, but I'd
already assumed the duties. I was working as the lead
for both of those very busy divisions.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Yeah, I believe we found
that out. And can you give us an idea of what you did
in those -- in that position as deputy communications
director?

MS. MUNGER: FEach part of the work would be
public information requests; taking in requests; doing
the research; working with subject matter experts
permitting staff to respond to those. We get a very
high volume of those at DEQ; responding to media
inquiries; writing press releases; website content,
maintaining that sort of thing. Developing outreach
materials, education outreach materials, PowerPoints.
And just serving as a general communication consultant
for staff, when they're writing reports, that sort of
thing.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And can you give us a
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hierarchy of who you answer to or did you supervise any
employees? So two questions there.

MS. MUNGER: And so in that position, you sort
of serve two masters. You answer to the directors that
you're serving as a PIO, but you also report to a
communications director at the department level, or to
a deputy communications director, then a communications
director.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So in 2017, within the
Division of Water Resources, who was your immediate
boss or supervisor?

MS. MUNGER: Honestly I believe it was Linda
Culpepper. There was a transition in leadership and
I'm not sure what the date was.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And then you said you also
had someone else that you would answer to beyond that?

MS. MUNGER: Yes, at the department level.

MR. GREENE: The department. And who would
that be?

MS. MUNGER: Doug Heyl headed up
communications. And after he arrived, within a matter
of a few months, Megan Thorpe came onboard to serve as
a communications director. He served as communications
director/deputy secretary for public affairs, then

Megan Thorpe came onboard and took over the premier






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 7
communications director role.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. And we'll
start with your role as it pertains to specifically the
Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. Can you just give us
a brief summary of that role and your duties and
responsibilities and what may have taken place during
that time period of the permitting process,
specifically as it relates to the Division of Water
Resources?

MS. MUNGER: So my role involved assisting
with placing public notices to a degree when a draft
permit might be ready for review. And honestly, I
don't remember the details of that. But typically it
would be a public notice being posted, announcing a
public comment period, attending public hearings in
case media showed up. Our staff don't prefer -- they
really don't want to talk on camera, so we run
interference for them. So, yeah, I'd be there for
media inquiries. And of course, if reporters were to
call about the project, direct them in the right place,
or if I have the information, answer it. And for some
of the community meetings.

I also worked, got information from cultural
resources, that particular project carried across

different programs. And so for example, we had fact
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sheets that talked about they crossed Indian burial
grounds over there. So the fact sheets for information
on the project.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And how closely did you
work for those people making the decision for the
permit?

MS. MUNGER: I didn't work closely with those
people.

MR. GREENE: Would they reach out to you
regarding, like, obviously the public hearings? 1Is
that something that was your function to arrange those
public hearings?

MS. MUNGER: With that particular program, they
were pretty self-sufficient in terms of public
hearings. They had lot of experience. And I don't
recall if I actually set up the public hearings over
the years. Honestly, I set up a lot of public..

MR. GREENE: Sure.

MS. MUNGER: Those still stand out to me.

MR. GREENE: I am sure. Was there anything
within the ACP permitting process that stood out to you
that was a duty that you had that you recall that was
significant or a contribution to..

MS. MUNGER: I would say, as with any big

project, Jjust making sure that the public in the public
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comment period, the inquiries, people got all the
information that they're looking for, we’re public
servants. And that's who we work for.

MR. GREENE: All right. So you dealt a lot
with the media, requests for information. And I guess
interviews. Do they -- do they want to interview
people?

MS. MUNGER: I don't remember. I mean, some
reporters call for interviews, some call for, you know,
background information. I know that on occasion I'd
get a call from reporters asking if a permit had been
issued. And I would tell them I would check, you know,
to try to find out the status and I let them know.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall any specific
instances where there were topics that reporters would
ask routinely about on the ACP?

MS. MUNGER: There was a lot of interest in
the project. $So if you were a county reporter, and the
pipeline was going to impact your county, you might
want to know if an erosion and sediment control plan
was approved. So they would call and ask that. The
pivotal permit was the water permit, has that been
issued. And I would confirm whether - where we were in
the process, and let them know.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you attend any of the
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staff meetings when they were discussing the project?

MS. MUNGER: TIf I did, it -- no, I don't think
so. I don't recall being in one of those meetings. So
I mean, no, I don't think -- you mean permitting staff.

I..

MR. GREENE: Correct. Yes ma'am. Or
department staff discussing the Atlantic Coast
Pipeline?

MS. MUNGER: In PIO meetings, I might talk
about when I would draft a press release communications
step. But that would be a round robin setting where we
go by division. And these were not communications
meetings called to talk about the Atlantic Coast
Pipeline.

MR. GREENE: Okay. I'm going to show you,
since it involves press, this is an e-mail that was
pulled off the public server for the files regarding,
and it's an e-mail dated October 24, 2017. And I think
it's a response to Elizabeth Ouzts that you may have
given regarding the Atlantic Coast Pipeline. So this -
- if you'd just kind of review that and basically just
summarize what that request is and what the response
was.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. What is the question?

MR. GREENE: Can you summarize what the
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question was, what they were seeking, and your response
and what you may have provided?

MS. MUNGER: It looks like she's looking for
data on 401 certifications that had been applied for
historically, and whether or not they were approved.
That's what I would take from this. And my responses
are referring her to a very large online database that
is Laserfiche where the 401 unit stores all their
program files.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Was there a denials
spreadsheet?

MS. MUNGER: Excuse me, it's a public --
publicly accessible database.

MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. MUNGER: That's important.

MR. GREENE: We're familiar with it.

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. GREENE: Was she -- was there a denial
spreadsheet provided?

MS. MUNGER: I don't recall. I don't recall
if there was a denial spreadsheet. I would refer -- I
would typically refer someone, a reporter, anyone to a
project file on Laserfiche that would be labeled by the
project number. And I -- quite frankly, it wasn't my

job to go in and dig out all that information.
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MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. MUNGER: 1It's -- this was a convenience to
be able to say here's the file. For want of a paper
file review, just easier for the requester.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. I think I see.
And I think she was asking here -- she'd interviewed a
former North Carolina DEQ regulator who said outright
denials of major 401ls is pretty unusual. Do you know
who she talked to?

MS. MUNGER: I don't.

MR. LANE: Can she see the emails?

MR. GREENE: Yes, I'm sorry.

MS. MUNGER: No, I don't know who she talked
to.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall speaking or
communicating with this particular person?

MS. MUNGER: Not this particular exchange. I
know who Elizabeth Ouzts is-, but I don't remember that
exchange.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And is she with a paper or
magazine or what's her position?

MS. MUNGER: At that point, I think she was
with Southeast Energy News -- no, or something energy
news, some sort of publication that focused on energy.

MR. GREENE: Okay.
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I think she was freelancer.

Okay. I figured as far as that

MS. MUNGER: Yeah.

MR. GREENE: -- she probably was. I couldn’t
figure that out. Thank you. What were some of the
major -- she contacted you about that and I've kind of

alluded to this question, but was there one particular

topic that most of the press wanted to know about

during the ACP process?

MS.

MR.

MS.

MR.

MS.

that, so.

MR.

MUNGER:

GREENE:

MUNGER:

GREENE:

MUNGER:

GREENE:

No.
No?
No.
Okay.

No, I mean, I don't really recall

Okay. Do you remember -- do you

recall anything being unusual regarding the ACP

permitting process that you would have to respond to?

MS.

MR.

MS.

MR.

MUNGER:

GREENE:

MUNGER:

GREENE:

No. Unusual? No.
Okay. Everything was normal?
Yes.

Okay. And you said you weren't

sure if you actually set up the hearings, the public

hearings or not.

Do you remember there being a
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listening session for environmental justice?

MS. MUNGER: Yes. Yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you set that..

MS. MUNGER: I did set this up, yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. What do you recall about
that particular session? And do you recall when it
took place?

MS. MUNGER: What do I recall about them?

MR. GREENE: How it came to be, what initiated
it?

MS. MUNGER: I think in large part it was
because many of the public comments we received and
many of just the contact we got from community
organizers indicated they wanted more information.

They were concerned about the impacts of the project to
their communities. And they wanted to be heard. And
we thought it was very important that they be able to
have that chance. So we decided to go further than was
required under I guess I don't know, administrative,
whatever the rules are that apply there. And hold
these listening sessions. So that's what we did.

MR. GREENE: Okay. What -- can you define
environmental justice, what that 1is?

MS. MUNGER: I doubt that I would give the

textbook or legal definition that perhaps you or my
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friends here are familiar with. What it means to me is
a mindfulness in terms of permitting, the location of
industrial facilities, any of the impacts associated
with it; being very mindful of their location in a
community making sure that there's not a wvulnerable or
at-risk population that is impacted inordinately --
inordinately if I've said that correctly. That's maybe
the Cliffs Notes, the..

MR. GREENE: Okay. Sounds good to me. Thank
you.

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. GREENE: And was that standard, or was
that a normal practice in major projects?

MS. MUNGER: Was what a more major?

MR. GREENE: To have the public listening
sessions regarding environmental justice?

MS. MUNGER: ©No, it was not a standard
practice. In this particular instance, we decided to
do it because there were requests for it. And as I
said before, I take the public service part of this
very seriously, and try to be responsive.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. BEERS: You said we requested. Who at DEQ
would have actually made that request for you to do

that?
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MS. MUNGER: I don't recall.

MR. BEERS: Would you have taken that on your
own initiative to do that or would it be someone above
you in command that would have said let's do this?

MS. MUNGER: I think in the case of these that
I in part suggested that we should do it.

MR. BEERS: Was there any pushback because
it's not a requirement for the permit? Was it -- do
you remember any discussions to that extent?

MS. MUNGER: No, that was -- no, no, there was
support for doing these listening sessions.

MR. BEERS: For across the board at the review
process?

MS. MUNGER: Yes.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. MUNGER: Yes, there was absolute goal of
transparency in this project and that included the best
public engagement that we could achieve. And that was
-- that's what we were trying to do.

MR. BEERS Do you believe those efforts to be
that transparent delayed the review process of the 401
permit in any way?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: Were you involved in each time

there was a notice of request for additional
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information to the applicant?

MS. MUNGER: I'm not..

MR. GREENE: Would that be published in any
way?

MS. MUNGER: I’m speaking as though I still
work here. I was not involved in that part of the
process, no.

MR. GREENE: Okay. When decisions were made
specifically 401 water permit or certification, it was
your duty to do a public press release on that?

MS. MUNGER: We didn't always do press
releases on each development in the permitting process.
In fact, I don't really recall when we did the actual
press releases. I know that was done at the end of
that. That's what I recall, that one. But -- can you
repeat the question again? I could have checked there.

MR. GREENE: Yeah, they were okay. You just
said there was a press release involved at the end of
that. When you say end of that, is it 401 permit?

MS. MUNGER: Yeah, at the end of that
particular permitting process, correct.

MR. GREENE: Were you involved in that
particular press release?

MS. MUNGER: Yes. Yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay.
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MS. MUNGER: It was my division.

MR. GREENE: It was your division. Were you
involved in it in this capacity working with the
governor's office and their press, or their PIO --

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: -- in doing a release?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Who would have reviewed
the press release in the -- within the department?

MS. MUNGER: Again, without remembering the
today specifics of then, it would have been a subject
matter expert. Maybe the program supervisor for
accuracy, a standard procedure. I am not an engineer.
So a subject matter expert and it's typical just to --
for a director to be able to see any press release
going out a division director. That's why they're the
director. And then it would be given to the department
communications office for review, some of your top
communications director reviews.

MR. GREENE: And at that time would be Doug
Heyl?

MS. MUNGER: Honestly I don't know if Megan
was onboard with DEQ at that point or not. So if Megan
was here, it would have gone to Megan.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And if she wasn't, who was
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prior to her?

MS. MUNGER: There was an Acting
Communications Director, Jamie Kritzer. But -- Jamie
was gone by then. Jamie was gone by then.

MR. GREENE: Jamie Kritzer?

MS. MUNGER: Yeah. Yeah. He was gone by
then.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. LANE: And spelling is K-r-i-t-z-e-r.

MR. GREENE: Kritzer. Thank you. Were you
ever present during any meetings, whether it was with
staff or the division or the department where they were
expressing any concerns over the permitting process
itself?

MS. MUNGER: Concerns about the process?

MR. GREENE: The process?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: Do you know when the 401 was I
guess certified or when it was given?

MS. MUNGER: Approved?

MR. GREENE: Approved?

MS. MUNGER: Honestly I don't remember the

exact date. I know it was I believe the end of
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January. But I don't recall the exact date. Sorry.
MR. GREENE: All right. Prior to that, when
did you have any knowledge about when it was expected
to be approved?
MS. MUNGER: Well, in any sort of substantial

permit you might hear in a casual comment that it will

be finished by -- we expect it to be ready by such and
such date. But no, I don't remember specific
references to when it was going to be or -- no. It

would be ready when it was ready was my take on this.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Were you ready to prepare
or have you had -- did you have a draft press release
prior to the issuance?

MS. MUNGER: I don't recall if I had a draft,
but the nature of my job is to be ready to knock out a
press release whenever it's needed fast.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you want to go over?

MR. BEERS: Yeah. So are you familiar with
the hearing officer's report that's required in certain

MS. MUNGER: I know what one 1is.

MR. BEERS: -- 401 certifications?

MS. MUNGER: Yes.

MR. BEERS: 1In this ACP, do you remember there

being a hearing officer's report that was approved up-?
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BEERS: This is actually one, I'll show

BEERS: Well, I'll tell you, no, there was

MUNGER: I'm sorry, did I know there was

BEERS: You do -- yeah.
MUNGER: Yes.

BEERS: Are you aware 1in this case there

MUNGER: Yes.
BEERS: -- because you were.
MUNGER: 1It's a requirement.

BEERS: Right. So that's the hearing

officer's report. And it's dated January 22nd I

believe. Do you understand the purpose of the hearing

officer's report and what it does and how it affects

the issuance of a 401 certification?

MS.

MR.

MS.

MR.

MUNGER: Do I understand the purpose?
BEERS: Do you understand -- yeah.
MUNGER: Yes.

BEERS: Okay. Can you describe that,

what's the purpose of that report, and how it affects

the..

MS.

MUNGER: "For an experienced and qualified
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individual who serves as the hearing officer to have
thorough knowledge front to back of a project from all
of our subject matter experts referencing research and
data and public comments and feedback. And everything

they have learned about a project to make a

recommendation -- a recommendation on whether or not an
approval or a permit should be issued." And they
summarize this again to -- speaking to transparency.

"This summarizes everything that's happened in this
process for any member of the public to be able to
review if they have questions. And it's prepared for
the director of the appropriate division."

MR. BEERS: Okay. Do you remember the review
process for this particular hearing officer's report?

MS. MUNGER: I was not involved in the review

process.

MR. BEERS: Not at all?

MS. MUNGER: I don't -- if I was I don't
remember.

MR. BEERS: Okay. I'm going to -- there is

some e-mails.

MS. MUNGER: I might have -- I might have done
like -- this is like reviewing a white paper if you're
a communications expert. You don't make substance

changes. You might fix dates so they were an
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Associated Press style. You don't do that kind of
editing. I might have looked at this for formatting or
something, but I don't really recall.

MR. BEERS: Okay. I'm just going to refer you
to an e-mail.

MS. MUNGER: I think right there, there.

MR. BEERS: Okay. There's the e-mail dated
January 5th. This is from Brian Wrenn back to you
indicating that you've had some communications about
this hearing officer's report.

SIRI: Sorry, I couldn't quite hear you.
Could you please repeat what you said?

MR. GREENE: For the record that was not Ms.
Munger.

MR. BEERS: That was Siri (phonetic) on my
phone.

MS. MUNGER: Yeah, that was not me.

MR. BEERS: Looks like January 4th.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. So this is going in the
other direction.

MR. BEERS: Exactly.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. Okay.

MR. BEERS: Yeah. This is this is Brian Wrenn
responding back to you.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. Yeah, let me start over so
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I can read it in the proper order. That was a little
confusing.

MR. BEERS: These are confusing how they're
printed off the website, but they're backwards.

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So you just read those e-
mails I think on January 4th and 5th, 2018.

MS. MUNGER: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: So can you describe the
communication with Brian Wrenn about the hearing
officer's report?

MS. MUNGER: In summary, it just sounds like
he is still working on it and fine-tuning it. And it's
going through a review process internally.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So how are you involved
with this process? Why is he going to -- why are you
asking to have it sent to you 1f that's in fact what
you did?

MS. MUNGER: There could be a number of
reasons why it'd be sent to me. Someone may have asked
for me -- asked for it, ask me for it.

MR. BEERS: Well, that is the question. Did
someone ask you to get that from Brian Wrenn, do you
recall that?

MS. MUNGER: I don't recall that. No, I
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don't. But when these -- I mean, when we review
documents, they -- there can be quite a few people that
are involved in that process. So I don't recall this

specific communications or who asked me for the copy.

Sorry.

MR. BEERS: There's another e-mail that may
refresh your recollection. So this e-mail above
January 5th at 9:17. It says "Brian Wrenn." He's

indicating that the secretary's office has to have it
reviewed. Do you recall that?

MS. MUNGER: I mean I can read what's here 1in
the e-mail.

MR. BEERS: Yeah, I'm asking for your
recollection.

MS. MUNGER: But I don't remember that
instance.

MR. BEERS: You don't recall if the
secretary's office asked you to get this report?

MS. MUNGER: No, in fact, I mean, I don't know
if he's the one who's first sharing that there. So I -
- no, I don't, I'm sorry.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So in this e-mail, Brian
Wrenn does in fact, as he said he was going to you send
it to Jeff Poupart, is that his -- that's -- do you

know who that is?
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MS. MUNGER: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: And CCed you, the hearing
officer's report?

MS. MUNGER: This one going backwards too.
Let me just get my bearings here. 12/19, 4:15, okay.
It is two -- the same e-mail here.

MR. BEERS: Yeah, it's -- I think the way your
-- the website stores and it's from multiple people, so
they all have this duplicates involved.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. The very last one doesn't
clearly show who is to and who is from.

MR. BEERS: Which one..

MS. MUNGER: If that's..

MR. BEERS: What this is -- they're not all
presented.

MS. MUNGER: Yeah.

MR. BEERS: So one of them is -- this 1is the
one I'm talking about. You got -- you received this
from Brian Wrenn. He CCed you this hearing officer's
report.

MS. MUNGER: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: Right? I just want to know 1f you
recall why -- who asked you to get it and what you did

with it? And what's the reason for you to get the

report?
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MS. MUNGER: And so again, he's courtesy
copying me there. So that's not unusual to courtesy
copy communications specialist or anybody else. You
may think we'd be interested in a document. But also,
so you're asking me again, can you just -- are you

again ask me if someone in particular requested it from

me?

MR. BEERS: Yes, exactly.

MS. MUNGER: No. I didn't -- I don't recall
that.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Here's -- this is a little
later in time. But it's the next time we see you e-
mailing anything related to this. And here you're

sending this hearing officer's report out.

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: So it looks 1like you at least had
a copy of it for some time now.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. Someone here for a review.
Is this the same thread I'm looking at?

MR. BEERS: No.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. Okay.

MR. BEERS: No, but here you are sending on
the 22nd. Can you read that e-mail to see..

MS. MUNGER: Okay. I'm trying to figure out.

I want to start —-- over here.
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MR. BEERS: Yeah, let's make sure —--

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: -- we're in the right one.

MS. MUNGER: And I particularly want it in the
correct order.

MR. BEERS: The one from you.

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: And there is an attachment, the
hearing officer's report.

MS. MUNGER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: And who is it being sent to?

MS. MUNGER: Sent to Karen Higgins.

MR. BEERS: From —-- to?

MS. MUNGER: Oh, I'm sorry.

MR. BEERS: I'm sorry. I don't want to --
Jjust a -- I'm sorry.

MS. MUNGER: You're making me nervous, coming
across the table.

MR. BEERS: I'm trying to direct you to..

MS. MUNGER: That is -- it's an e-mail to
Sheila Holman and Doug Heyl.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Can you tell me why you
were sending it to them?

MS. MUNGER: So that they would have a copy of

it.
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MR. BEERS: Just for -- just the copy, or was
there a request to -- from them to get this?

MS. MUNGER: There may have been a request. I
don't remember the incidence of them of making a
request. I don't remember if someone else asked me to
send 1it.

MR. BEERS: Yeah, I was just wondering if you
remember this, this -- why you were reviewing this
document and what you did, what you recalled about
this?

MS. MUNGER: And so again I think I mentioned
before, it's not unusual for a hearing officer's report
for any project to be reviewed. Not everyone who
becomes an engineer or an environmental specialist is a
particularly talented writer, some are better than
others. It's not out of the ordinary for that to be
the case, just to take a look at it. A lot of times we
don't have time to do it. But I don't recall someone
asking me to do this particular thing to take this
action. I'm not saying it didn't happen because
clearly it did. But I would be dishonest if I told you
I recalled that.

MR. BEERS: Okay. You don't recall even
getting it at this time. Actually you're looking it --

MS. MUNGER: I see the e-mail.
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MR. BEERS: -- it says it happened and you
still recall it.

MS. MUNGER: Okay. And it makes sense. You
know, it's in the course of work. But I..

MR. BEERS: Do you recall a conversation with
Brian Wrenn where you said the secretary's office wants
to review this hearing officer's report?

MS. MUNGER: No, I don't recall the
conversation. I'm sorry. I just -- I don't.

MR. GREENE: And backing up to that particular
e-mail, 1t's being sent to Holman, is that correct?

MS. MUNGER: Sheila Holman, yes.

MR. GREENE: And what's her position?

MS. MUNGER: She was assistant secretary --
assistant secretary for the environment for the
Department.

MR. GREENE: For the department?

MS. MUNGER: She still is I think, yeah.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And also it's been sent to
Doug --

MS. MUNGER: Doug Heyl.

MR. GREENE: -- Heyl who was working for the
department as a PIO also?

MS. MUNGER: ©No. Doug, no. Doug was the

deputy secretary for Public Affairs.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. Okay. And so in Holman's
role, she would be supervising the permitting process
overall?

MS. MUNGER: That's my understanding.

MR. GREENE: Okay. I just want to clarify
that. So if she wanted it, I mean would it not go
through channels instead of going outside of PIO to
her?

MS. MUNGER: ©Not necessarily, no.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. MUNGER: 1It's entirely possible for a
project that she would ask for it.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. MUNGER: There's not a checklist that has
to follow a procedure.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Did you have
communications with the governor's office, Public
Affairs, officers, individuals regarding the ACP?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: No?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: When the press release was
written for the 401 permit, I believe is 1/26
(phonetic), that was your press release or did the

governor's office have input?
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MS. MUNGER: I probably would have done the
first draft because it's my programs. But again, press
releases are collaborative. I had no authority to
draft a press release in a vacuum on anything.

MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. MUNGER: 1It's a collaboration. So..

MR. GREENE: And who would you collaborate
with?

MS. MUNGER: As I mentioned before that
subject matter experts, division director to review to
make sure you don't have something wrong. Make sure
there's no typos or bad dates. And then it goes up the
communications, you know, to whoever is involved in the
project.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Were you aware of a
mitigation fund being negotiated by the governor's
office for the ACP partnership?

MS. MUNGER: There's a mitigation fund.

That's what -- I don't know a lot about that.

MR. BEERS: The separate fund -- apart from
the 401 permitting process, 1it's separate funds.

MS. MUNGER: And so I remember hearing a
little bit about that, but I didn't really understand
what that was about. And so it was in the course of a

PIO meeting, so.
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MR. BEERS: Where did you hear that, from what
source?

MS. MUNGER: Honestly I'm not sure who it was.
It might have been Doug.

MR. BEERS: Did you get inquiries from the
press regarding that issue?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. BEERS: No?

MS. MUNGER: Huh-uh.

MR. BEERS: When you first heard about it, was
this during the course of the review of the 401 permit
application?

MS. MUNGER: I don't think so, no. I don't
think so. I don't know the specific dates, but as -- I
mean, as the hearing report was being finalized,
following the regulations and the rules and the laws
that are laid out in the books, the determination was
made. And so I don't know why the two would be
involved, if I understand your question.

MR. BEERS: Well, I just want to know if you
knew about this mitigation fund. There's a memorandum
of understanding that was signed by ACP partners and
the governor's office. And i1t was announced right
around the same time (cross talk).

MS. MUNGER: I remember when it was announced.
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I do remember when it was announced. And I remember
discussion about how Virginia had done something
similar there. And -- but I don't know details of it
and I wasn't privy to discussions about it.

MR. BEERS: You weren't included in any prior
meetings? Prior to announcement, you weren't included
in any discussions about how this would actually affect
environmental mitigation or how the press might be
interested in this 1ssue as 1t relates to the ACP?

MR. LANE: Maybe you could break that down a
little bit. Do you..

MR. BEERS: Well, I just wanted -- you weren't
involved in any discussions about this prior, is that
correct?

MS. MUNGER: I don't think so, no.

MR. BEERS: You don't recall?

MS. MUNGER: They don't stand out. No, I
don't think so.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Where did you learn that
Virginia had the same fund?

MS. MUNGER: I think there was media coverage
of it.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So it wasn't a PIO meeting
in where you guys noticed that?

MS. MUNGER: Oh, no, there was media coverage
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of that.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. MUNGER: I mean, we —-- they were dealing
with the same project, so.

MR. GREENE: Right. So you didn't have a
briefing after the fact as to how to handle questions
regarding the fund?

MS. MUNGER: No.

MR. GREENE: Did you have..

MS. MUNGER: ©No, I don't think so. ©No, I
don't, no.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you have a -- after
the 401 permit was issued, did you have a briefing as
to what questions may arise?

MS. MUNGER: We may have had talking points on
the permit, which again is typical because anything
controversial, you prepare talking points to be able to
answer questions. I recall that somewhat. It was not
a very large document, it was Jjust a few key points
about the issuance.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So with this -- you know,
you weren't present during a meeting when people
associated with the ACP talked about potential uses of
this fund during the negotiation of the fund?

MS. MUNGER: I don't recall that.
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MR. BEERS: You say you don't recall that?

MS. MUNGER: To be honest, I forgot -- I don't
have to dementia but (phonetic).

MR. BEERS: Yeah.

MS. MUNGER: I hadn't even thought about my
meetings, where I had attended, where the
representatives were there until you just said it. So,
no, I don't recall that.

MR. BEERS: Okay. I think -- anything else?

I don’t know if this is going to be anything of
importance. All done. That's all the questions I
have. You've got..

MR.GREENE: Did anyone ever express any
concerns that to you, within the department or outside
the department, that the permitting process was
dragging or being slowed? Or that there were barriers
being created?

MS. MUNGER: No. No.

MR. GREENE: Did you ever have any discussions
with anyone regarding how long the process is taking or
was taking at that time?

MS. MUNGER: Not in that context. There were
-- I got reporter questions about the process, for
example, when do you think it'll be finished? But no,

not conversations as to -- as though..
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And how would you follow up on

That it’s still under review.
Okay.

That would be a standard. For

any permit that's come, the talking point is still --

again, it's ready when it's ready.

MR. GREENE:

Okay. Anything unusual that you

can think of regarding the ACP process that was out of

the norm?

MS. MUNGER:

MR. GREENE:

MS. MUNGER:

MR. GREENE:

SPEAKER:

MS. MUNGER:

MR. GREENE:

MS. MUNGER:

MR. GREENE:

the recorders off.

No.
Okay.
No.

Okay. I think we're done.

(Inaudible) .

Okay. I get to have lunch now.
It's —-
Oh. Yeah.

-- 2:19 and we're going to turn
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From: Munger, Bridget

To: Elizabeth Ouzts

Cc: Munger, Bridget (bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov)

Subject: RE: [External] Re: Atlantic Coast Pipeline Project Update: Oct. 24, 2017
Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 4:18:00 PM

Hi Elizabeth,

Because of the Neuse Nutrient Strategy and associated buffer protection rules, the erosion and sediment
control plans that were submitted for the northern segment of the proposed pipeline (DEQ’s Raleigh
Regional Office) cannot be approved without a buffer authorization. If granted, the buffer authorization will
be issued at the same time as the required state 401 water quality certification. Erosion and sediment
control plans cannot be approved without the required buffer authorization and/or the required state 401
certification. For any project, without the required buffer and/or 401 water quality documents, the erosion
and sediment control plans would be disapproved.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality

919-807-6363 office
919-207-7786 mobile
bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov

1612 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-1612

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Elizabeth Ouzts [mailto:elizouzts@icloud.com]

Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 10:42 AM

To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>

Subject: [External] Re: Atlantic Coast Pipeline Project Update: Oct. 24, 2017

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
verify that the attachment and content are safe. Send all suspicious email as an attachment to

report.spam@nc.gov.

Thanks for this update. Isn’t it a foregone conclusion that you all will have to reject this again b/c
Atlantic Coast Pipeline doesn’t yet have its 401 cert? Or is there a chance you would approve them
both at the same time, or approve them with conditions?

Best
E

On Oct 24, 2017, at 6:07 PM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Atlantic Coast Pipeline Update
Oct. 24, 2017

Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC submitted new erosion and sediment control plans for the
proposed route for the North Carolina segment of the pipeline on Oct. 23. When a project
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submits erosion and sediment control plans for a second time, the state Sedimentation
Control Act requires DEQ to review and make a decision to either deny or approve the new
plans within 15 days of receipt. Therefore, the deadline for review of the newly submitted
plans is Tuesday, Nov. 7. The new plans are available online at the links below:

e Fayetteville Region Sediment and Erosion Control Plan Submittal 2
e Raleigh Region Sediment and Erosion Control Plan Submittal 2

More Information
Information on the pipeline project’s environmental review process is regularly updated on

the DEQ website:https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-land-resources/acp.

Please feel free to share this update with other interested parties who may wish to have
more information on the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality

919-807-6363 office
919-207-7786 mobile
bridget.munger@ncdenr.qgov

1612 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-1612

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

Elizabeth Ouzts

Southeast Energy News
elizouzts@icloud.com
(919) 672-9803 / @envirouzts
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January 22, 2018

MEMORANDUM Sl

To: Linda Culpepper
Interim Director, Division of Water Resources

’ / . :
From: Brian Wrenn, Ecosystems Branch Supervisor )}é/

. .. i i /
Division of Water Resources, Water Sciences Sectlor}///

Subject:  Hearing Officer’s Report and Recommendations
Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Individual 401 Water Quality Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties

| served as the Hearing Officer for the subject Public Hearings held at the Fayetteville Technical
Community College in Fayetteville, NC on July 18, 2017 and at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC on July 20, 2017. The public hearings were held under the authority of Title 15A
NCAC 02H .0504. The purpose of these public hearings was to receive comment on the Division
of Water Resources’ 401 Water Quality Certification (401 WQC) and buffer authorization
certificates application (Appendix A) submitted by Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP). A 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates are needed to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties.

In addition to listening to oral comments at the public hearings, | have reviewed all written
comments received prior, during and after the public comment period. In preparation of this
report, | have considered all of the public comments, the public record, discussions with Division
of Water Resources (DWR) staff related to the rules, and their review of the applications for the
project.

The report has been prepared using the following outline:
l. Site History / Background
. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing Summary
11l July 20, 2017 Public Hearing Summary

V. Comments
V. Recommendations
VL. Summary

VIl.  Appendices

I. History / Background

On May 9, 2017, Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP) submitted an application for a 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates. ACP had previously applied to DWR on October 23,
2015. DWR requested additional information on November 18, 2015. The requested
information was not provided, therefore DWR returned the application on August 31, 2016.

ACP is proposing to construct and operate an approximately 605-mile-long interstate natural
gas transmission pipeline system including laterals through West Virginia, Virginia and North





Carolina. In North Carolina, ACP is proposing to construct one compressor station and install
approximately 186-miles-of transmission pipeline-and-appurtenances;including 3 metering———
and regulating stations, 11 valve sites and 4 pig launchers/receivers, through Northampton
Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberiand and Robeson Counties. T

ACP is proposing over 300 crossings of streams and open waters, temporarily impacting over
35,000 linear feet and permanently impacting over 700 linear feet of stream. ACP is also
proposing crossing-wetlands, temporarily impacting over 450 acres and--permanently
impacting less than one acre of wetlands. ACP will impact protected riparian buffers within
the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River basins, impacting over 655,000 square feet of zone 1 and
over 459,000 square feet of zone 2 protected riparian buffer.

DWR requested and received additional information several times throughout the application
review process:

Date Action

June 27, 2017

Reg. for Add Info (1)

July 12, 2017

Add Info Received (1)

September 14, 2017

Req. for Add Info (2)

September 22, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 2, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 13, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 26, 2017

Req. for Add Info (3)

November 4, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 15, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 28, 2017

Req. for Add Info (4)

November 29, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 8, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 14, 2017

Req. Correction to (4)

December 20, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

January 17, 2018

Add Info Received

January 18, 2018

Add Info Received

Under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H .0504, DWR held a public comment period from
June 16, 2017 until August 19, 2017 to accept public input on the application. The public
comment period included two public hearings described below.

In accordance with Title 15A NCAC 02H .0503, notice of the public hearings and availability of
the 401 WQC and riparian buffer authorization certificates application was published in The
Fayetteville Observer, the News & Observer, the Rocky Mount Telegram, the Roanoke-
Chowan News-Herald, the Robesonian and the Wilson Times on June 17, 2017, in the Daily
Herald and the Sampson Independent on June 18, 2017, and posted online and sent by mail
to the Water Quality Certification Mailing List on June 16, 2017 (Appendix B). A correction to
the public notice to correct a typo in the pipe diameter was posted online on June 19, sent to
the mailing list on June 20, and issued in the newspapers on June 21 and 22 (Appendix C).





The public comment period ended on August 19, 2017; however, since August 19" was a
Saturday, DWR accepted comments through Monday, August 21.-

July 18, 2017 Public Hearing

A public hearing was held July 18, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Fayetteville Technical Community
College in Fayetteville, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC
02H .0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC
application (Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline
through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred thirty-nine people attended the July 18 public hearing, including eight staff
members from the Department. A total of 131 individuals signed the attendance sign-in
sheets at the registration table (Appendices D and E). The hearing officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Forty-four individuals registered in advance of the hearing to provide comments, and two
additional individuals made comments for a total of 46 speakers. Speakers were given three
minutes for initial presentations. Additional time was allowed for speakers after everyone
that registered to speak was finished, which was used by three speakers. The list of speakers
is included (Appendix E).

The public hearing transcript, including oral comments, is attached to this report (Appendix
H). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment
period from local and state government agencies, individual citizens, and citizen groups
(Appendix J). Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed to the project and
approximately 1,370 were in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the
comments provided during the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both
hearings and the comment period, along with detailed responses that have a direct impact
on the certification decision making process are included in Sections IV and V below.

July 20, 2017 Public Hearing

A second public hearing was held July 20, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H
.0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC application
(Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred seventy-six people attended the July 20 public hearing, including eight staff

members from the Department. A total of 168 individuals signed the attendance sign in

sheets at the registration table (Appendices F and G). The Hearing Officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Sixty-five individuals registered in advance of the hearing to make comments. Speakers were





given three minutes for presentations and the hearing was held open an additional thirty
minutes to allow all speakers that-registered-to speak.The list-of speakers-is-included
(Appendix G).

The public heariﬁg transcri;:“)t; i'néludirig oralwconrﬁmén'icﬂs‘,r, is attached to this feport (Appendix

[). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment

period from local and state government agencies, citizens and citizen groups (Appendix J).

Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed-to-the project and approximately 1,370 were

in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the comments provided during
the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both hearings and the comment period,
along with detailed responses that have a direct impact on the certification decision making
process, are included in Sections IV and V below.

IV. General Comments

The following is a summary of the comments received during the July 18, 2017 and July 20,
2017 public hearings and emails and other written comments received by DWR during the
public comment period. Comments received outside of the public comment period were
made part of the public record. An overwhelming majority of the comments were in
opposition to the pipeline for a variety of reasons.

e Many comments received expressed concerns about the continued use of fossil fuels,
specifically fracked natural gas, and their negative impact on climate change. Many think
NC and the US should be moving toward the use of renewable energy sources.
Proponents of the project believe that natural gas is a “clean” fuel option to replace coal
and other fossil fuels.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

e Many comments received were skeptical of ACP’s promotion of the project as a job
creation opportunity and economic stimulator for local communities. Several pointed
out that ACP’s own job creation estimates are very low and that the economic benefits
to local communities are vague. Proponents of the project reiterated that the pipeline
would bring jobs and economic development to NC.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Department of Commerce.

* Many comments received expressed concerns about the cumulative impacts analysis
provided by ACP. Many believe that the analysis did not contain sufficient detail to
properly evaluate the cumulative impacts. Some comments indicated that the
temporary impacts from the project should be considered in the cumulative impact
analysis and that the sheer volume of temporary impacts should be calculated to equal
some level of permanent impacts.

Cumulative impacts are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps).





e Many comments received questioned the purpose and need of the project. Many
pointed to evidence that the growth of natural gas markets was estimated to be
negligible and questioned the need to build such a large and expensive pipeline. Many
noted that the market demand was generated through companies owned or affiliated
with Duke and Dominion power companies and that the need was self-serving rather
‘than one identified through public interest. Furthermore, several commenters stated
that the purpose of economic benefit was misleading as ACP’s own estimates predict
little permanent job growth as a result of the project. :

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC and the Corps.

¢ Many comments received expressed concerns about environmental justice issues
associated with pipeline’s construction and operation. Many believe that the pipeline will
have a disproportionate impact on low-income and minority communities. Many
commenters feel that ACP has not made significant efforts to coordinate with these
communities or to consider other routes that would reduce the impacts on these
communities. Specifically, several commenters mentioned ACP’s lack of coordination
with state-recognized tribes such as the Lumbee and Haliwa-Saponi. Furthermore, they
do not believe ACP has adequately addressed potential impacts to cultural resources
along the pipeline route.
Environmental Justice is addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to FERC.

e Several commenters expressed opposition to ACP’s use of eminent domain to obtain
right-of-way for the pipeline.
These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Attorney General’s Office.

e Several commenters raised concerns about Duke Power’s past record of non-compliance
with environmental regulations and permits.
Compliance Inspection recommendations are addressed in Section V below.

e Several commenters raised concerns about living within the “blast zone” of the pipeline
and questioned ACP’s liability response should an explosion occur. Others believe that
the pipeline is a safe and efficient way to transport natural gas.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC.

e Many comments received expressed concerns over ACP’s potential impacts to. water . .~

quality from erosion and sedimentation. Many commenters feel that ACP’s erosion and
sedimentation control plan is inadequate and lacks sufficient detail. Others believe that
trenching through streams and wetlands will have a negative effect on stream stability
and threaten wildlife. Concerns over blasting effects were also raised.

Water Quality is addressed in Section V below.





e Many comments received expressed concerns over impacts to wildlife, specifically
threatened and-endangered-species.—Many-felt-that the-construction-activities-could
destroy critical habitat and primary nursery areas for a variety of terrestrial and aquatic
species. Othersfeltthat the extensive coordination process with the US Fish and Wildlife
Service and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC) has adequately addressed any
potential impacts.

Aquatic species are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to NCWRC. === 0

e Many commenters believe that the 401 WQC application is incomplete. They pointed
to the lack of erosion and sedimentation control plans and site-specific water body
crossing details as evidence that necessary information was missing from the
application. In contrast, some commenters believe that the ACP project has gone
through an extensive regulatory review process.

The Division requested additional information multiple times as detailed in Section |
above.

e The overwhelming majority of comments received raised concerns over the degradation
of ground and surface waters as a result of the construction and operation of the
pipeline. Many commenters mentioned the large number of streams and wetlands that
would be crossed by the pipeline and raised red flags regarding the large amount of
temporary and permanent impacts. They connected these impacts with the degradation
of downstream uses including drinking water supply, aquatic life, primary and secondary
contact recreation, and fisheries. Furthermore, commenters spoke in detail of the loss
of wetlands through temporary impacts. Many felt the temporal and permanent
vegetation changes from temporary wetland impacts should be considered permanent
wetland impacts. Finally, many comments were made regarding potential impacts to
drinking water wells. A significant level of concern was present among the commenters
about impacts to wells from construction activities (mainly blasting activities) and
operation of the pipeline.

Degradation is addressed in Section V below.

V. Certification Specific Comments and Recommendations

Based on the review of public comments, the application, the North Carolina General Statutes
and Administrative Code, and discussions with DWR staff, | offer the following comments and
recommendations on the criteria for issuance of a 401 WQC pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H
.0506(b) and the issuance of Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basin Buffer Authorization
Certificates pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively.

15A NCAC 02H .0506(b)

(1) Has no practical alternative under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (f) of this Rule.
Paragraph (f) states: “A lack of practical alternatives may be shown by demonstrating
that, considering the potential for a reduction in size, configuration or density of the
proposed activity and all alternative designs the basic project purpose cannot be





practically accomplished in a manner which would avoid or result in less adverse
impact to surface waters or wetlands.”

The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and
Pennsylvania thrbugh Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina portion of the
proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. As part of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) analysis, ACP investigated
several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no build, alternative
energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives, FERC and ACP

found that the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next, ACP conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on the
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams and wetlands, known historical and cultural resources, and homes and businesses.
Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of seventeen major route
alternatives and thrity-seven minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion of the project
in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis included pre- and
post-application communication with DWR and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC)
on avoidance and minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and
minimization practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through

environmental commitments. A more detailed discussion of avoidance and minimization can
be found below.

Recommendation: None. The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no
practical alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impact
to surface waters or wetlands.

(2) Will minimize adverse impacts to the surface waters based on consideration of
existing topography, vegetation, fish and wildlife resources, and hydrological
conditions under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (g) of this Rule.

Paragraph (g) states: “Minimization of impacts may be demonstrated by showing that

the surface waters or wetlands are able to continue to support the existing uses after

project completion, or that the impacts are required due to:

(1) The spatial and dimensional requirements of the project; or

(2) The location of any existing structural or natural features that may dictate the
placement or configuration of the proposed project; or

(3) The purpose of the project and how the purpose relates to placement,
configuration or density.

The applicant has minimized impacts to surface waters and wetlands to the greatest extent
practical. The permanent impacts will be 766 linear feet of streams and 0.80 acres of
wetlands. The permanent impacts related to streams and wetlands will be a result of





upgrading and improving access roads constructed for installation and maintenance of the
pipeline, not from the pipeline itself. All crossings of major-rivers will-be conducted using
horizontal directional drilling (HDD) to avoid open trenching. The magnitude of the temporary
impacts is very high but within reason considering the size and scope of the project. The
applicant will use a narrower construction corridor when crossing wetlands and construction
techniques such as timber matting, temporary work bridges, and clean rock over piping to
minimize temporary impacts to streams and wetlands. Temporary impacts to streambanks

and wetland areas will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with native

plants. ACP will monitor any temporary impact areas in streams or wetlands to ensure there
is no permanent loss at these locations. The monitoring plan includes monitoring for a
minimum of two years for streams and three years for wetlands with stability, vegetation, and
hydrology requirements. Upon successful completion of the restoration and monitoring
activities, the stream and wetland impact areas will continue to support existing uses of
hydrology, vegetation, and aquatic and wildlife habitat.

The applicant has committed to a number of best management practices to avoid and
minimize impacts to streams and wetlands.

e Demarcation of wetland boundaries with flagging and signs prior to start of
construction

e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soil compaction

e Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation

e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and restoration

e Installing trench breakers or plugs at the boundaries of wetlands to prevent draining
of wetlands

e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies

e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area immediately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock

e Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs

e Prohibiting use of live concrete as a building material so that wet concrete does not
come in contact with surface waters

e Prohibiting storage of chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils
within 100 feet of surface waters

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements of the Construction Stormwater General
Permit No. NCG010000

e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings

e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan





ACP has completed formal consultation with US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on
threatened and endangered species along the corridor. In-an October 16, 2017 biological
opinion, USFWS did not identify any threatened and endangered species or sensitive habitat
in NC along the proposed corridor. ACP has also coordinated extensively with the NCWRC.
This coordination began with the alternatives analysis and site-specific routing of the pipeline.
ACP worked with NCWRC to avoid threatened and endangered species and sensitive habitats
and to develop relocation protocols for fish and mussels. ACP conducted pre-construction

surveys for fish and mussels in the Neuse River at the proposed crossing location. These

surveys found that the mussel population was much more abundant and diverse than
previously known. This survey and the continued coordination with NCWRC resulted in ACP’s
revised proposal to use HDD at the Neuse River instead of open trenching. ACP has also
developed a relocation plan for fish and mussels in coordination with NCWRC.

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that impacts to surface
waters and wetlands are required due to spatial considerations, natural features and the
purpose of the project. The 401 WQC should include requirements for monitoring of
temporary impact areas in accordance with the proposed restoration and monitoring plan.
The certification should also include reopener language in the event that temporarily
disturbed wetland areas do not return to wetland conditions as defined by the 1987 US Army
Corps of Engineers (Corps) Wetland Manual and confirmed by a Corps representative. The
reopener language should require a modification to the 401 WQC to account for the additional
permanent impacts and mitigation for all permanent wetland impacts should the permanent
impacts exceed 1.0 acre. Furthermore, the 401 WQC should be conditioned to comply with
any work moratoriums suggested by NCWRC for the proposed project as well as the fish and
mussel relocation plan.

(3) Does not result in the degradation of groundwaters or surface waters.

The main risk to surface and groundwater from the ACP project will be during construction
activities. These risks include sedimentation and turbidity in surface waters, breaches of
drilling fluids during HDD, and spills of petroleum products and hydraulic fluids from fueling
and equipment maintenance. In addition, some commenters raised concerns regarding
impacts to drinking water wells from trenching and blasting activities associated with the
pipeline installation and from possible contamination due to pipeline leaks during operation.

The applicant has committed to working in the dry for all stream and wetland crossings unless
site-specific conditions warrant working in wet conditions and the applicant obtains prior
written approval from DWR. Proper erosion and sedimentation control measures will be
required for the entire project in accordance with the Division of Energy, Mineral and Land
Resources (DEMLR) sedimentation and erosion control Certificate of Plan Approval. All
temporary fill placed in surface waters related to construction of the pipeline will be removed
once installation of the pipeline is completed at the crossing. The stream banks or wetlands
will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with a native seed mix to prevent
erosion. Only in areas where vegetative stabilization is not successful will hardened
stabilization (rip-rap, geogrid, etc.) techniques be used. No hardening will be placed below





the ordinary high water mark. Furthermore, the applicant has voluntarily agreed to meet the
requirements of the NPDES Construction Activities General-Permit-No.-NCG010000.

The applicant will store chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils and conduct
all equipment and vehicle fueling and maintenance at least 100 feet from surface waters and
200 feet from private drinking water wells. In situations where equipment must continue to
operate during fueling activities such as dewatering pumps near surface waters, secondary
containment structures will be used to prevent any spillage from reaching the surface waters.

The applicant has conducted a desktop survey to identify all known drinking water wells within
150 feet of the pipeline construction corridor. Almost 50 private drinking water wells were
located in NC. The applicant proposes to test each well prior to construction for a suite of
parameters including pH, total suspended solids, total dissofved solids, conductivity, alkalinity,
acidity, sulfates, oil/grease, phenolic, iron, manganese, aluminum, fecal coliform, copper,
lead, nickel, silver, thallium, zinc, chromium, arsenic, mercury, selenium, cyanide, calcium
magnesium, hardness, chlorides, antimony, cadmium, and beryllium as well as well yields.
These tests will provide a baseline of groundwater quality and quantity against which to
measure any construction-related impacts. In the event that blasting will occur within 500
feet of a drinking water well, the applicant proposes to conduct pre-blasting monitoring for
the parameters listed above. Should the applicant receive a complaint regarding damage to
well water quality or quantity, the applicant proposes to conduct post-construction well
testing of the same parameters to verify no adverse impacts have occurred. Furthermore, in
the event that adverse impacts do occur as a result of construction activity, ACP has
committed to providing temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or
well.

Operation of the pipeline is not expected to have adverse effects on surface waters and
groundwater. Any post-construction stormwater generated as a result of impervious surfaces
installed during construction are subject to state and local stormwater requirements. ACP has
committed to using sheetflow and existing stormwater conveyances and drainage ditches. No
curb and gutter stormwater management will be constructed. For impervious surfaces
constructed in areas with no state or local stormwater programs, these stormwater
management techniques will be protective of water quality.

Many commenters raised concerns about leaks from the pipeline impacting groundwater. The
pipeline will be transporting dry natural gas which is not soluble in water. Liquids contained
in the gas are removed at a natural gas processing plant prior to transport and at liquid
separators at compressor stations. Any remaining liquid will be de minimus and is not likely
to impact groundwater.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to violate water quality standards if the
conditions in the 401 Water Quality Certification are fully complied with by the applicant (or
its successor). The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require full compliance with the
following permits:
e (Certificate of Plan Approval No. Cumbe-2018-036, issued by DEMLR, Fayetteville
Regional Office
e NPDES Permit No. NCG010000 issued by DEMLR
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The 401 WQC should also be contingent on the issuance of a sedimentation and erosion
control Certificate-of Plan Approval issued by DEMLR, Raleigh-Regional Office and upon
issuance of appropriate state and local stormwater permits. FERC NEPA and 401 WQC
application documentation indicates that the applicant has agreed to conduct pre-
construction water quality testing for drinking water wells within 150 feet of the pipeline

construction -corridor-and within 500 feet of blasting activities.- -The-401 WQC should be

conditioned to require ACP to conduct pre- and post-construction testing of all wells within
150 feet of the construction corridor and within 500 feet of blasting activities regardless of
whether a complaint is received. Should post-construction testing indicate that well water
quality or quantity has been impacted by the construction, ACP should be required to provide
temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or well. An independent,
qualified groundwater specialist should determine whether an impact has occurred or not. .

The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require monthly ride-through inspections with
appropriate DWR and DEMLR staff to measure compliance with the respective certifications
and permits. The 401 WQC should also require a pre-construction meeting with the
construction contractors, ACP staff, and DWR and DEMLR staff to review the conditions and
requirements of the respective certifications and permits for clarity and understanding.

(4) Does not result in cumulative impacts, based upon past or reasonably anticipated
future impacts, that cause or will cause a violation of downstream water quality
standards.

Cumulative impacts are those impacts that would result from the incremental effects of the
project added to other past, present and reasonably foreseeable future activities (15A NCAC
01C .0103). This includes secondary impacts or impacts from future activities that occur as a
result of the proposed project. The proposed project for the most part will consist of
temporary water quality impacts from the installation of the pipeline. These impacts could
include sedimentation and temporary disturbance of aquatic and riparian habitat during
construction. Permanent impacts will occur in streams and wetlands from access road
improvements. The temporary and permanent impacts will be reduced through avoidance
and mitigation efforts, erosion and sedimentation control and stormwater best management
practices (BMPs), and spill prevention, control, and countermeasure practices. Any projects
occurring in similar locations to the proposed project will be subject to local, state, and federal
regulations that address stream and wetland impacts, stormwater management, and
watershed protection.

Almost 80% of the increased natural gas supply has been committed to natural gas power
plants. The remaining supply will be available for commercial, industrial and residential use.
However, only three distribution points or M&R stations will be constructed in NC. These M&R
stations will be located in Johnston, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. Secondary
development as a result of the pipeline is likely to be focused around these distribution points;
therefore, water quality impacts are most likely in proximity to these areas. The applicant
conducted a qualitative analysis of the potential secondary and cumulative impacts in these
three counties.
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In the qualitative analysis, the applicant completed an “indirect (secondary) and cumulative
effects screening-matrix” where a series of parameters -including scope--of -the -project, -
population growth, available land, water/sewer availability, natural gas availability, market

for development, public policy, and notable water resources were evaluated on their ability to
contribute to indirect and cumulative effects on water quality. Based on these ratings, areas

of potential growth and development were identified. These growth areas were thenm
compared in an action/no-action forecast where the differences in growth and development
between building the pipeline and not building the pipeline were determined. Areas that had
significant increases in growth and development from building the pipeline were mapped.

As discussed above, any new development projects will be subject to state and federal
regulations for impacts to streams and wetlands and erosion and sedimentation control.
However, stormwater management regulations are variable by location. Existing state and
local stormwater programs were overlain on the areas of potential growth identified in
action/no-action analysis to predict the net impact to water quality resulting from secondary
development.

The action/no-action analysis demonstrated that growth could significantly increase in
Johnston and Cumberland Counties if the pipeline is built. These areas have existing
infrastructure for water/sewer and transportation, are predicted to have population growth,
and have a number of shovel-ready development sites. Johnston and Cumberland Counties
are almost entirely covered by state and local stormwater programs and Johnston County is
subject to the Neuse River Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy. Any potential
water quality impacts due to growth in the area would be mitigated through these programs.

Most of Robeson County does not have state or local stormwater programs. Those that are
present are associated with High Quality Waters or Water Supply Watersheds and are limited
in area. However, the action/no-action analysis demonstrated that Robeson County is not
expected to have a significant increase in growth and development as a result of the pipeline.
According to ACP’s analysis, lacking infrastructure, population decline, and separation from
metropolitan areas has stunted growth in this area. Only one shovel-ready industrial site is
available in Robeson County, and it is located in the protected Water Supply Watershed and
would be subject to a local stormwater program. Water quality impacts from secondary
growth in this area would be minimal.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to result in cumulative impacts that violate
water quality standards, if the conditions in the 401 WQC are fully implemented by the
applicant (or its successor). The qualitative cumulative impacts analysis should be forwarded
to the NC Department of Commerce for informational purposes.

(5) Provides for protection of downstream water quality standards through the use of on-
site stormwater control measures. e

Post-construction stormwater is another potential water quality concern. The vast majority
of the proposed pipeline project will not result in new impervious surfaces. However, some
new impervious surfaces are proposed as part of the project. The impervious surfaces include
multiple improved access roads, eleven valve stations, a compressor station, three metering

12





and regulating (M&R) stations, and multiple contractor yards. The access roads are existing

unpaved roads-that will be improved to allow construction and maintenance equipment-to

safely pass. Improvements will include minor widening and/or surface water crossing

upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The valve sites are needed to segment the

pipeline for safety, operation, and maintenance purposes. The compressor station will be
located in Northampton County, and the M&R stations will be- located in Johnston,

Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The applicant has indicated that stormwater will be

managed by using existing drainage ditches and swales for access roads. No curb and gutter

stormwater conveyances are proposed for the compressor or M&R stations, and stormwater

will be managed through existing drainage ditches and swales.

Stormwater management for these impervious surfaces will-be regulated through state
programs in Phase I communities or by local programs where applicable. Valve sites and
access roads in a small portion of Nash County and access roads, valve sites, and a contractor
yard in Cumberland County will be regulated through the state-implemented Phase Il
Stormwater Program. ACP will have to meet the requirements of SWG040000 — General
Permit To Construct A Linear Utility Line and Associated Incidental Built-Upon Area (SWG04)
or an individual state stormwater permit. SWG04 and individual state stormwater permits
require compliance with the conditions of the respective permits and with the provisions of
15A NCAC 02H .1000, Session Law 2006-246, and Session Law 2008-211 which ensure the
protection of downstream water quality standards through on-site stormwater control
measures. Any impervious surfaces built in areas covered by local stormwater programs will
have to meet the requirements of the local stormwater program. The applicant also proposes
to build impervious surfaces in areas where no state or local programs are applicable. Based
on the descriptions of stormwater best management practices proposed by the applicant,
stormwater is not expected to violate downstream water quality standards in these areas.

Recommendation: Session Law 2017-10 prohibits DWR from requiring on-site stormwater
management through a 401 WQC. As discussed above, the 401 WQC should be conditioned
to require compliance with all applicable state and local stormwater permits for construction
of a linear utility line and associated incidental built-upon area.

(6) Provides for replacement of existing uses through mitigation.

Both federal and state requirements allow for the purchase of in lieu fee credits to offset
unavoidable impacts to streams and wetlands. DWR requires mitigation [15A NCAC 02H
.0506(h)] at a 1:1 ratio for permanent perennial stream impacts above 300 linear feet and a
1:1 ratio for permanent wetland impacts above one acre. Perennial stream and wetland
impacts for this project will not exceed the respective mitigation thresholds, therefore, no
stream or wetland mitigation is required by DWR. Mitigation is required, however, by the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers for the wetland conversion impacts. Riparian buffer mitigation is
required for the uses identified in the Table of Uses of the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins
Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies [15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC
02B .0259(6), respectively] as “"ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION.” “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c),
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respectively. Buffer mitigation is discussed below in the buffer authorization certificates
section. s o

Recommendation: No mitigation is required for stream or wetland impacts as a result of the
proposed project. The 401 WQC should be conditioned to include language requiring
mitigation should permanent impact changes occur that exceed mitigation thresholds.

Neuse and Tar-Pamlico Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy
The Neuse River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy and the Tar Pamhco
River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy have the exact same
requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively]. Furthermore,
the mitigation requirements for impacts to protected buffers are exactly the same for the
Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins [15A NCAC 02B .0242 and 15A NCAC 02B .0260
respectively] and both make reference to the buffer mitigation rules [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
For the purposes of this report, the buffer authorization certificates recommendations will
be combined in one discussion.

15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259
(5) DIFFUSE FLOW REQUIREMENT. Diffuse flow of runoff shall be maintained in the
riparian buffer by dispersing concentrated flow and reestablishing vegetation.

As discussed above in Section 5 of the 15A NCAC 02H .0506 discussion, the vast majority of
the proposed project will not result in new impervious surfaces that will create concentrated
stormwater flow. However, there will be improved temporary and permanent access roads,
and five valve sites constructed and maintained in the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins as
part of the project. The access roads are existing unpaved roads that will be improved to allow
construction and maintenance equipment to safely pass. Upgrades will include minor
widening and/or surface water crossing upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The
valve sites will consist of gravel pads around above-ground valves with gravel driveways.

Stormwater from these areas will be managed by sheetflow or by using existing roadside
ditches and swales. Sheetflow from the access roads meets the diffuse flow requirements
associated with the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Woaters
Management Strategies [15A NCAC 028 .0233(5) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(5), respectively].
ACP has committed to managing the existing roadside ditches and swales to minimize
sediment, nutrients, and other pollution prior to entering surface waters. The Table of Uses
for the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies
[15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(6), respectively] identifies use of existing
drainage ditches, roadside ditches, and stormwater outfalls provided they are managed to
minimize the sediment, nutrients, and other pollution that convey to waterbodies as
“EXEMPT” uses. “EXEMPT” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(a) and 15A NCAC 02B
.0259(7)(a), respectively.

The applicant proposes to locate the Smithfield M&R station in Johnston County which is
subject to the Neuse River Buffer Rules. This station is also subject to state stormwater
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permitting requirements as part of the Phase Il stormwater rules. Stormwater management
and diffuse flow-requirements will addressed through the Phase.il process. -

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
that diffuse flow conditions be maintained for all stormwater from impervious surfaces
flowing to or within the protected buffers in accordance with the diffuse flow requirements
stated above or other applicable buffer clarification memos.

(6) TABLE OF USES.
Non-electric utility lines:

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 2 — Allowable

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 1 — Allowable with Mitigation
Non-electric utility lines:

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 40 linear feet but equal to or less
than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer with a maintenance corridor greater than 10
feet in width - Allowable with Mitigation

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer —
Allowable with Mitigation

The proposed project is categorized as a non-electric utility line. The proposed project includes
perpendicular and non-perpendicular crossings of streams and other surface waters subject
to this rule. Due to the width of the maintenance corridor, 50 feet, all buffer impacts are
“ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses. “ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses are defined in
15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c), respectively.

Recommendation: None. The proposed project is "ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” under
the Table of Uses.

(8) DETERMINATION OF “NO PRACTICAL ALTERNATIVES.” Persons who wish to
undertake uses designated as allowable or allowable with mitigation shall submit a
request for a “no practical alternatives” determination to the Division or to the
delegated authority. The applicant shall certify that the criteria identified in Sub-ltem
(8)(a) of this Rule are met. The Division or the delegated local authority shall grant an
Authorization Certificate upon a “no practical alternatives” determination. The
procedure for making an Authorization Certificate shall be as follows:

(a) For any request for an Authorization Certificate, the Division or the delegated local
authority shall review the entire project and make a finding of fact as to whether
the following requirements have been met in support of a “no practical
alternatives” determination:

(i) The basic project purpose cannot be practically accomplished in a manner that
would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and
protect water quality. _

(ii) The use cannot practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or
redesigned to better minimize disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat,
and protect water quality.

(iii) Best management practices shall be used if necessary to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality.

15





The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and

Pennsylvania through-Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina-portion of -the - —-— -

proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The proposed project will permanently impact
521,430 square feet and 594,070 square feet of protected riparian buffers in the Neuse River
Basin and the Tar-Pamlico River Basin, respectively. As partof the FERC NEPA analysis, ACP
investigated several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no
build, alternative energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives,
the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next ACP, conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on an
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams, wetlands, protected riparian buffers, known historical and cultural resources, and
homes and businesses. Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of
seventeen major route alternatives and 37 minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion
of the project in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis
included pre- and post-application communication with DWR and NCWRC on avoidance and
minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and minimization
practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through
environmental commitments.

The applicant has demonstrated that the basic project purpose cannot be practically
accomplished in a manner that would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life
and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has demonstrated that the use cannot
practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or redesigned to better minimize
disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has
proposed a number of best management practices in an effort to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality including but not limited to the
following:
e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soif compaction
o Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation
e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies
e (Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs
e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings
e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan
e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan
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e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing,-excavation, pipe installation, backfilling,-and restoration

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area :mmed.-ately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock o

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements ofiheLonstructronStormwater General
Permit No. NCGO10000

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no practical
alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to
protected buffers. The buffer authorization certificates should be conditioned to incorporate
the best management practices proposed by the applicant intended to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. Furthermore, the buffer
authorization certificates should require demarcation of protected buffer with flagging or
signs prior to the initiation of construction and limiting operation of construction equipment
in buffers to only that necessary for clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and
restoration

(10) Mitigation. Persons who wish to undertake uses designated as allowable with
mitigation shall meet the following requirements in order to proceed with their
proposed use.

(a) Obtain a determination of “no practical alternatives” to the proposed use
pursuant to Item (8) of this Rule.
(b) Obtain approval for a mitigation proposal pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0242 [.260].

15A NCAC 02B .0242 and .0260 have been repealed and replaced with 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

As discussed above, the applicant has demonstrated that there is no practical alternative that
can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to protected buffers.
Due to the fact that the maintenance corridor for the proposed pipeline will have a width of
greater than 10 feet, all of the buffer impacts are considered “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses and subject to the buffer mitigation requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
However, impacts to wetlands within the buffers are not subject to the buffer mitigation
requirements and are regulated under 15A NCAC 02H .0506(h) as discussed above in section
(6) of the 401 WQC application review process. The buffer mitigation totals reflect the
removal of wetland areas within the buffer.

The applicant has proposed to obtain all buffer mitigation credits through the in-lieu fee
program with the Division of Mitigation Services (DMS). A letter addressed to the applicant
from DMS dated May 4, 2017 and renewed on October 6, 2017, states that DMS is willing to
accept payment for the buffer mitigation credits for the proposed project. DMS will
administer the mitigation credits in accordance with the In-Lieu Fee program instrument
dated July 28, 2010 and 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
buffer mitigation in accordance with the table below:
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Compensatory River &
— Mitigation Sub-basin Number
Amount Required
301,168 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020102
318,868 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020101
245,612 (square feet) Neuse 03020203
486,344 (square feet) Neuse 03020201

Buffers

Environmental Justice

One of the most common topics of the commenters was environmental justice. As discussed
above in the General Comments Section, many comments received expressed concerns
about environmental justice issues associated with pipeline’s construction and operation.
FERC’s Final Environmental Impact Statement determined, “as a result of the project, no
disproportionately high and adverse impacts on environmental justice populations as a result
of air quality impacts, including impacts associated with the proposed Compressor Station 2,
would be expected as a result of ACP and SHP. Also, no disproportionately high and adverse
impacts on environmental justice populations as a result of other resources impacts would
be expected.” Many commenters disagreed with this determination and requested that the
401 WQC be denied based on the potential environmental justice impacts.

The Director evaluates a 401 WQC application based on five criteria including a no practical
alternatives analysis, minimization of adverse impacts to surface waters, an analysis of the
degradation of groundwaters or surface waters, a cumulative impacts analysis, and
replacement of existing uses through mitigation. Environmental justice is not included in the
criteria upon which the Director must evaluate the application. Although environmental
justice is not an evaluation criteria, the Department has been intimately engaged with the
stakeholders of North Carolina through the permitting process.

On March 23, 2017, the Department hosted a stakeholder meeting in Raleigh, NC to provide
information and receive feedback on the proposed pipeline project. Eight environmental
organizations, four government agencies, and a representative of the Commission of Indian
Affairs were in attendance.

On July 18 and 20, 2017, the Department hosted 401 WQC Application Public Hearings. This
was to allow the citizens of North Carolina to comment on the certification. Notification of
the public hearings was provided in accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .0506(d) and (e). In
addition, the Division of Water Resources provided notices of the hearings by mailing flyers
in both English and Spanish to community organizations, such as churches, government and
non-government organizations, libraries, etc.

On August 9, 2017, the Department participated in an Environmental Justice Forum hosted
by the Haliwa-Saponi Indian Tribe and the North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs. The
forum allowed an opportunity for tribal leaders, commission members, state and federal
regulators, and other stakeholders to discuss information on the proposed Atlantic Coast
Pipeline.
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VI.

Between August 15 and 17, 2017, the Department hosted three listening sessions along the
proposed pipeline route to-obtain-additional public feedback on-the project. In addition to
the Department, the 'NC'ljébértment of Commerce, NC f)épartniéhf of Natural and Cultural
Resources, and the US Army Corp of Engineers were present. -

On October 20 and 21, 2017, the Department participated in the North-Carolina
Environmental Justice Network’s Summit. This allowed for the Department to provide a
summary of the permitting status of the project.

In addition to the various stakeholder engagements listed above, the Department has been
transparent with citizens who requested to sign up for the email news feed on the project, as
well as meetings with the Commission of Indian Affairs. The Department has been thorough
in its review of the applications submitted for the proposed Atlantic Coast Pipeline.

Summary

Public comments concerning the two public hearings focused on several major issue areas,
including the degradation of water quality, cumulative impacts, environmental justice,
sedimentation and erosion control, the permitting process, impacts on wildlife including
threatened and endangered species, and ground and surface water supply protection. Due
to the number of public comments, many of which expressed concerns on the same issues,
each comment is not addressed individually. Only comments that have direct relevance to
the certification decision have been addressed in the recommendations (Section V).

As stated above, a thorough review of all public comments received and the project record
has been conducted, and additional insight has been obtained through discussions with DWR
staff. Based on all of this information, it is my recommendation that the 401 Water Quality
Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates be issued and subject to the conditions
included in the recommendations in Section V. It is further recommended that DWR include
any additional conditions necessary to ensure that the project will meet state water quality
standards.

Vil. Appendices (available on Laserfiche)

A. May 8, 2017 401 Water Quality Certification Application
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: 401 Application
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/547515/Row1.aspx

B. Notice of Public Hearings —June 16-18, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice 06_16_2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547528/Pagel.aspx

C. Correction to Notice of Public Hearings — June 19-22, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice Correction 06_19 2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547588/Pagel.aspx
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D. July 18, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_FayettevilleHearing -Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552613/Pagel.aspx

E. July 18, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18 Fayetteville Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552611/Pagel.aspx

F. July 20, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMtHearing_Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553245/Pagel.aspx

G. July 20, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553247/Pagel.aspx

H. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_Fayetteville Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557323/Pagel.aspx

I. July 20, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557322/Pagel.aspx

J.  Written comments received during the comment period, including at the public
hearings
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: Public Notice Comments

b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/548242/Rowl.aspx
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To: Bridgette R Morris-Mcl awhorn (bmorris@ncdenr.gov)

Subject: meeting with Linda
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 2:57:18 PM
Hi Bridgette-

"d like to go ahead and schedule time with Linda, Jennifer Burdette, Brian Wren and me to go
over the Atlantic Coast Pipeline Hearing Officer’s report and recommendation. We'll probably

need an hour and are looking for January 4" or 510,

Thanks-
Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor
Division of Water Resources

Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-8360 office

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604
1617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

I comresponderice to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Lay, =7

lased to third parties.






From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Rice, Sarah M
Subject: RE: ACP

Date: Friday, December 15, 2017 2:27:34 PM

Sarah,

Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss the ACP hearing officer’s report on Jan. 4" 1am finalizing
the HO’s report and hope to have a draft to Karen and Jennifer early next week (minus the
cumulative impacts evaluation — still waiting on info). Do you think you could have a EJ statement
completed next week? Thanks.

Brian Wrenn
919-743-8409 (office)
919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Rice, Sarah M
Sent: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 12:47 FM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP

Hi Brian,

Please let me know if | can assist with any EJ related questions for the hearing officers report.
Regards,

Sarah

919.707.8287

Get Qutlook for i0S





From: Doug Heyl

To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)
Subject: Date: Attachments:

Heyl, Douglas
FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office)
919.812.3415 (Mobile)
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Munger, Bridget

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM

To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018

ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018

DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.

DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.

DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification
issues are

*“Nothing Compares

resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.





DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a
Subject: Date: Attachments:

RE: ACP Well Testing
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png

Ok, I think | have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, | made one change to the
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other
than that. I've included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write-up as well. | think that covers it. I've saved the report with
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM

To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing

agreed
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L
To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer
Subject: a FW: ACP HO report

Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.





From:

To: Subject: Date:
Brian-

Higgins, Karen

Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM

Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. | don’t think Jennifer will review this today
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.

Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’'m not sure that it will
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401-
wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP HO report

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

| think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
OnlJan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)
Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607

Mailing Address:

1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1623





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a

Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report
Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM

Attachments:

FYI

ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,

Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.
Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607





From: To: Subject: Date:
Burdette, Jennifer a
Wrenn, Brian L

RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM

Sorry for missing your call this morning. | was deep into the draft of the 401. Before | left, | just
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. | enjoyed and learned a lot working
with you.

Take care, Jennifer

Jennifer Burdette

401/Buffer Coordinator

Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality
919 807 6364 office

jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov

1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9" FIr Archdale Bldg — Room 942F) Email
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the

North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report

FYI
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen
Poupart, Jeff
Cc:

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM

Karen,
| accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. | looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?

I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on
this.

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L
Cc: Poupart, Jeff

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Brian-

Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. | made the edits to the HO report based on your
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. | used the HO report | sent
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those |
made today.

| also made the recommended changes to the draft 401.
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.

Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov





From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use
track changes so | can look at them easily.

Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Culpepper, Linda

Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen

Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report

Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. |
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Munger, Bridget

To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas

Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm

Please see attached.
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:

From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget"
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report

FYI

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office

karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM

To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast

Pipeline project. | am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!





Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Culpepper, Linda

Subject: draft 401 decision documents
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM

Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx

Linda-

Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’'m
working on the bullet points.

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office





Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP

Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount

Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Linda-

(none)
Not yet responded

Higgins, Karen
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff

We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents
if you had any questions. | gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification
and draft denial.

Thanks- Karen

127

Subject: Location:

Start:
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

(none) Accepted
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From: Higgins, Karen

To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R
Culpepper, Linda

Cc:
Subject: ACP - word document

Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM
Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx
Bridgette-

| put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today — there are two places for Linda to sign. | will not be in the office
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I've attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?

Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits
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PROCEZEDTINGS

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Today's date
is October 4, 2019. My name is Kevin Greene. Our
company Eagle Intel Services is contracted with the
North Carolina General Assembly subcommittee on the ACP
for purpose of gathering and reporting information back
to the subcommittee. We are recording this interview.
I would like to have each person state their name,
their current position, and also acknowledge that you
understand it's being recorded. So I'll start with
Tom.

MR. BEERS: Tom Beers, I understand it's being
record.

MR. LANE: Bill Lane, DEQ. I understand it's
being recorded.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: And Jay Zimmerman. I
understand it's being recorded. I'm with the Division
of Water Resources.

MR. HARGROVE: Drew Hargrove. I'm with DEQ.

I understand it's being recorded.

MR. GREENE: Thank you, gentlemen. And I
believe Mr. Lane would have to like to add something.

MR. LANE: Yes, for the record these are the
terms of the interview that have been agreed upon by

the parties. This interview is beginning at 10:15 and
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will be concluded no later than 11:15. The questions
presented to Mr. Zimmerman will be related to his
official duties related to the 401 water quality
certification for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project.
They will not cover other projects or anything related
to his personal life. Thank you.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. And thank you Mr.
Zimmerman for being here.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: I have a few words just -- you
already stated your name, but would just please provide
a brief history of your employment with DEQ, when you
started and positions that you served in?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So I started with DEQ or the
predecessor department in July of 1987. I started as a
hydro geological technician until January of 1990, at
which point I was promoted to the regional supervisor
position or program supervisor. And I held that
position as supervisor for one of our field offices in
the Raleigh area. We have a Raleigh field office -
until September of 2012.

At which point, I was promoted to section
chief for the -- at the time, it was the aquifer
protection section. I held that position until March

of 2015, at which point I was promoted to division
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Page 5
director for the Division of Water Resources. In
November of 2017 I took on the role of the lead program
manager for coal ash, so I no longer was the division
director.

And then I think it was June of 2018. So less
than a year, I took over the position that I currently
have, which is section chief for the water quality
regional operation section.

MR. GREENE: Okay. You've worn a lot of hats
and been here a while.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Thank you.

MR. GREENE: I appreciate your service.

During 2000 -- well, let's just start. When did you
first become involved in the Atlantic Coast Pipeline
project?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I think it was early 2017. At
which point, we had a kickoff meeting with a number of
stakeholders that were interested in or concerned
about, you know, the pipeline.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And when you say
stakeholders, who are you referring to?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Most of the people were
environmental groups, some of the river keepers, other
state agencies. Our own staff, you know, that would be

involved in that project.






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 6

MR. GREENE: Okay. And that was early 20177
And you were at that point, division director?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And can you give me a
chain of command as to who worked under you and who you
answered to?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay. So I answered to Sheila
Holman, who was the assistant secretary for the
environment. I was responsible for all of the division
of water resource activities. So in the context of the
401 certification, my immediate subordinate was Jeff
Poupart, who was the section chief for the water
quality permitting section. And that's the section
under which the 401 certification staff are housed.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So just under you would
have been..

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Poupart.

MR. GREENE: Jeff Poupart and then above you
would have been Holman.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Holman. Yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. At -- you said, it was a
kickoff with the stakeholders in early 2017. When was
the application filed? Do you recall?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I do not.

MR. GREENE: I believe, we've got a timeline.
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I believe it was May of 2017. Let me show you a
document, but roughly, I think it was early May 2017.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. GREENE: Can you kind of go through the
process of how that evolves before the application and
then after the application is filed. What's the
process or steps that are normally taken?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: To be honest, I don't really
know. You know, I -- the 401 program is the program
that I've probably in all my career have had the least
involvement, almost no involvement. So I have -- I had
deferred to Jeff Poupart and then his immediate direct
report Karen Higgins to help steer us through that
process.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Do you know
what factors play into the 401 permitting process?

What has to be met for the applicant to receive a
certification or a certificate?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: In a general sense. I mean,
we have to ensure that at least that we're convinced
that the projects going to protect water resources in a
general sense. And the rules and regulations that
apply to that, that part of the program are geared
towards ensuring that that happens.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So the primary goal is to
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protect the water resources?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Protect water resources.

MR. GREENE: As a result of the project.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: Do you know what other factors
are —-- played into the decision for the certificate?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Outside of what's in the rules
and, you know, brief discussions I might have had with
Karen and or Jeff, no.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Can you refer back to —--
you initially got involved in the kickoff with the
stakeholders?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Right.

MR. GREENE: And can you go through what
actions or what roles you played and your authority,
what decisions were made during the timeframe, you were
in the division director's position?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Mainly since I was the senior
management member for the division, and I participated,
A, to learn a little bit about the process that was
really my first exposure to a big project. To make
sure that I understood from the division's perspective,
what concerns the general public had during that
kickoff meeting. I don't even recall that I spoke

other than just to introduce myself and welcome people






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 9
to the meeting. But that was really my main function
and then ultimately as the division director, once that
certification decision was made, whether it was to
approve it or deny it, then as the division director it
would be my responsibility to sign that certification.

MR. GREENE: I want to show you some notes
dated 5/25/2017. I believe, these were pulled off the
public site or the DEQ public staff or -- sorry, staff
files. 1Is that the meeting you would have been
referring to?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No. I think, it was prior to
this, probably some time in March or April.

MR. GREENE: Okay. This particular meeting,
do you recall it?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not specifically, we had a
number of meetings internally between staff, myself and
the department, during which time we were trying to
navigate the process and understand or make sure we
understood what all the pieces were that needed to be
considered as part of issuance of the 401. And so --
did you have a question about the highlighted section?

MR. GREENE: Yes, sir.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. GREENE: If you can read that. If you

don't mind, read it out loud.
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MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. GREENE: I can kind of see over there.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. GREENE: For the record.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay. It says cumulative
impact - how deficient and did we communicate
expectation? Did they look at other pipeline projects?

MR. GREENE: Okay. And I'll go back to this
meeting date, I believe, it's 5..

MR. ZIMMERMAN: 25, May 25 of 2017.

MR. GREENE: Do you recall who was
participating in that meeting?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not specifically, unless I --
sometimes I'll make a note in the margins of who might
have attended.

MR. GREENE: Uh-huh.

MR. Lane: Can I just clarify one thing, are
these your notes?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Yes. That looks like my
writing.

MR. Lane: Yeah. Thank you.

MR. GREENE: Very good. All right. And the
highlighted section that you just read.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: Can you explain what that note is
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about?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Well, I learned through this
process, that it's not simply -- the 401 certification,
not simply about water quality protection, that's a
major focus. But also cumulative impacts that might
come about as a result of -- say, growth, for example,
associated with a given project. And what impacts they
might have on water quality. And so that was sort of a
note to myself just kind of asking a question, you
know, was that -- is that something that's important?
Was it deficient? Have we communicated expectations
upfront? What the expectations are?

MR. GREENE: Do you know the answer to that
question whether you communicated them upfront?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Normally no, not specifically.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And so when we're talking
about communicated them upfront we are talking about to
the applicant, in this case, the ACP..

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Presumably, that's who we
would be communicating with. And it would be an
expectation of staff to make sure.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: That that communication
occurred.

MR. GREENE: Okay. That (inaudible) you know
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what document it is. And you stated that you are
learning the process of the 401 certification.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Correct.

MR. GREENE: Were you involved in any other
401 certification projects?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I was. One was the -- the
first one that I recall was back when I was a regional
supervisor was the former Tiger Woods golf course out
in the Western part of the state. And there were some
implications associated with filling in, you know, some
wetlands and some trout streams. So that was my first
experience in evaluating, you know, a 401 project. The
bulk of that evaluation actual heavy lifting the work
was performed by the 401 staff, not myself.

MR. GREENE: Okay. During this time, we're
talking 2017 as the division director. How many 401
applications were being reviewed at that time?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I would have no idea.

MR. GREENE: Do you have a ballpark idea of
would we be talking hundreds?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I don't know. You know, that
would be information I would have to get from a
database. That would -- that's something that as a
division director, I'm not -- at least me when I was

division director, I wasn't keeping tabs on how many
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applications we're receiving in a given month, year,
not just 401 program, but any program, you know, I let
the program staff manage that workload.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Would, was the
ACP 401 one of the larger projects at this time?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: As far as I know, because it
was one of -- the only one at the time that I was asked
to be involved in and to sit in on meetings.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Which isn't, you know, typical
for every project. So I presume that it was probably -
- using that as the metric was probably one of the
larger projects.

MR. GREENE: That was going to be my next
question. Why was there a need for these meetings?

And from what I can gather were these meetings held on
a weekly basis, do you recall?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I don't know, if they were
held every week and typically, if we schedule meetings
internally we'll have a regular schedule that everybody
can plan around. I'd have to look at my outlook
calendar to see, you know, what was actually scheduled
and when and with whom though.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And typically who attended

these meetings?
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MR. ZIMMERMAN: If it was with the department,
which a lot of them were. It would typically be
myself, Sheila Holman, might include somebody from the
office of general counsel, program staff, certainly.
Jeff Poupart and or Karen Higgins and sometimes both.

MR. GREENE: Okay. I've got. Again, this is
from the staff notes. And this is a meeting dated
September 8. 2017. And at the top it says ACP meeting.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: And as you said earlier, you put
-- who attended on the side over there on the margins.
So I'll let you just review that. Primarily, I'm
interested, if you can just read who was attending at
that point in time.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: This meeting September 8th of
2017. My notes indicate secretary -- and these are my
notes.

MR. GREENE: Thank you.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I can -- again from my
handwriting. Secretary Reagan, Deputy Secretary
Nicholson, Assistant Secretary Holman, Sheila Holman,
Jeff Poupart, Karen Higgins, Sarah Rice, Toby Vinson
(phonetic), Michael Abraczinskas—-- Michael Pjetraj
(phonetic) Jennifer Mundt (phonetic) and Bridget

Munger.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. And what were some of the

topics there initially at the top that are highlighted

that are

your notes? What, if you can read those?
MR. ZIMMERMAN: The highlighted notes are..

MR. GREENE: And those are my highlights.

They're not yours. I'll clarify that.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Right. Correct.

MR. GREENE: Are what is our role and what is

happening nationally? And what can we do to address

disproportionate impacts?

and what

meeting?

Jjust how

projects

And some

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay. And what is our role
is happening nationally? Is that something..

MR. GREENE: How was that brought up in the

MR. ZIMMERMAN: My general recollection was
does this project compare with what other
-- similar projects that might be going on.

general discussion about, well what are other

states doing what are they faced with?

MR. GREENE: Okay. And then the second

highlighted note there.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So what can we do to address

disproportionate impacts?

MR. GREENE: What does that mean,

disproportionate impacts?
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MR. ZIMMERMAN: Well, by this time there --
there had been some concern expressed about the impacts
of the pipeline to the surrounding communities. And
some of those impacted individuals or entities felt
that they were shouldering. I guess, for lack of a
better word, more of an impact than they felt was
appropriate.

And so this is sort of a note that, you know,
my attempt to summarize, well, is that an issue? And
if it is, 1s there anything we can do about it? 1Is it
outside the scope of the 401 permit? Not to say that
it might not be true, but we're constrained by what's
in the 401 regulations. That's what we're looking at.
So some of these things may or may not fall within the
scope of what those regulations allow us to do or
control.

MR. GREENE: In meetings such as this, and
which it was a topic were there varying opinions on
that?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not -- well, I'm sure there
are like any meeting that, I don't know, I've been to
many meetings, unless I'm sitting by myself, where I'm
in total agreement with what other people are saying.
I don't recall anything specifically. Nothing that

stands out where somebody, you know, said something
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that was significantly counter to what the rest of the
group might have felt.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Or expressed.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And looking at a lot of
these staff file notes. It seems like this cumulative
impact was a regularly discussed item. Do you recall
discussing them at the majority of the meetings?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not a majority. Initially,
you know, although I knew or I had heard that
cumulative impacts had to be considered, I didn't
necessarily know in what context. And for me, it was
really an exercise in trying to filter out what's a
true cumulative impact in the context of 401? And me
trying to understand that versus somebody alleging that
something's an impact and should be considered, that
maybe falls outside of the rules.

MR. GREENE: Right. And what was the
department's position at that time? How it relates?
Like you just said someone, was it outside the rules?
Do we need to really focus on this, at what cost or at
what time consumption I would say?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Well in, you know, in all of
the meetings that I sat in. The department, I guess,

staff or management wanted us to make sure that we were
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following the rules, you know, stick with the rules.
You know, to the extent that there might be something
that was a little bit of a gray area, then we'd want to
- they’d want to discuss that with us, or hear our
opinion. Let's say (cross talk).

MR. GREENE: What's a gray area?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I think only in the context
of, you know, and remember, there's a lot of discussion
about jobs. And does the pipeline really bring in the
number of jobs that that it's alleged to bring in. You
know, the amount of money that it would bring in, you
know, to the state and then there's some questions
people were -- the public in particular, and some of
the environment groups were questioning whether or not
that was real.

My communication with staff was -- we just
need to stick with the rules. If that something that
we would consider as part of a 401 then fine, let's
consider it. I don't know how it's considered. I
mean, I don't have the experience of other 401 permits.
So I don't know. But if it's something that falls
outside the scope of a traditional 401 certification.
And then, you know, people are entitled to their
opinion. But it may not be something we can really

address through that 401 certification process.
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MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So stick to the rules of how
this is to be determined, the certificate.

MR. GREENE: Right. Were there any people
above you that had a different viewpoint on how that
would be addressed?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: How -- what would be
addressed?

MR. GREENE: The cumulative impact and how
that factored into the permitting process or the depth
involved in determining 1it?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not to my recollection. I
think my -- in the meetings I was in -- it was repeated
a number of times to follow the rules. We need to be
consistent, you know, with what we've done in other
cases. And again, so I don't know what we've done in
other cases. ©So I don't have that as a benchmark
against which to compare this. But the general
communications that we'd received is, you know, we need
to be thorough, we need to follow the rules, and we
need to be consistent with what we've done 1n other
presumably other 401 cases. I defer to staff like
Karen Higgins, Jennifer Burdette and even to some
extent, Jeff as the section chief to make sure that

that we were doing just that.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. And they had been in those
positions or roles and had more of a knowledge base
regarding the 401 permitting process?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Absolutely.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Were the ACP meetings like
this, were there other projects that had these type
meetings during this time period?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Oh, no (cross talk).

MR. GREENE: On a weekly basis or on a regular
basis did you have other projects outside the ACP that
you would meet with say these individuals that you're
meeting with?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Other 401 project?

MR. GREENE: Yes, sir. Sorry.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I don't recall during my
tenure, which was about eight months. My -- to the
best of my recollection, my time was spent on the only
401 project that -- of any significance that I spent --
that I spent time on -- the only one that I spent time
on that I can recall was ACP.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Here is another note dated
September 29, 2017. And it's -- I believe, 1s that
your handwriting?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Yes. And I actually signed

this one at the top.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. And we started talking
about environmental groups.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: TIf you can read that?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: The highlighted section?

MR. GREENE: Yes, sir.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So it's dated September 29 of
2017. And it's the third bullet, environmental groups
have requested second public hearing, discussing with
Secretary Regan when possible.

MR. GREENE: Was that done?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I don't know. I mean, that
would be a question, you would have, you'd have to ask
Karen Higgins.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And so how much
interaction did your division have or that the 401
water or the water quality division have with
environmental groups-?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: You'd really have to ask
Karen, you know, I know that conversations occurred,
people had concerns that they would express. But as
far as the frequency and duration of whether or not
there were other meetings that maybe I didn't attend
that I don't really have a good feel for.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And the public hearings
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that you've referred to, that's what an opportunity for
the environmental groups and people that are affected
to come to these and express their concerns. Is that
the primary purpose of a public hearing?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Yes, that's correct.

MR. GREENE: And then can you explain as a
result, what takes place from those comments?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So if it's a true public
hearing versus a public meeting. And both are intended
to provide the public information. But a hearing is --
I would say more formal, and oftentimes a regulatory
requirement for certain types of permits. So for a
public hearing then the staff would collect the
information that was provided during the hearing, and
then determine how that information, how those comments
were germane to the issuance of the permit or the
certification. And then -- and make decisions about
those comments and whether or not any changes to the
certification or permit should be made to be responsive
to the comments. Were any comments outside of the
rules, something that the public might have been truly
concerned about? But again, like my last statement,
not something that wasn't necessarily consistent with
what we're required by rule to consider. So the staff

would have to sift through those comments. And
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incorporate any changes that they felt were appropriate
into the certification or permit prior to its issuance.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: That's a very general overview
of the process.

MR. GREENE: Well, that's good news. Good
explanation. Thank you. There was also -- I think,
was referred to as a listening session. That's not a
formal public hearing, 1is that correct in my
understanding?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: There was a listening session
that I would characterize more of a public meeting,
where we just want to hear what people think about a
project or something that is before the agency.

MR. GREENE: And what was the primary topic
for that meeting?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: It was the ACP pipeline.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Was that the one that
involved environmental justice?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: The one I'm thinking of, that
I recall was at a community college and off the top my
head I can't remember whether it was (inaudible).

That involved a number of staff that were there to
listen to the public. And then the public was invited.

It was after normal working hours. I think it started
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around, I don't know, maybe 6:00 or 7:00. And so the
purpose of that was, again, to hear what the public's
concerns were.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So during this process,
there's obviously a clock that starts when the
application is filed. And how's the timing of all this
affected by that? How's the timeframe? I believe its
60 days, unless there's otherwise information requests.
Can you explain the timing of the application process?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So typically, and I think to
the best of my knowledge, the 401 certification is the
same as how we handle other permits. The clock starts
once we receive a complete application. So presumably
once the application was received, the clock would
start, staff would begin their review of the document.
If there were deficiencies in that document, those
deficiencies are communicated to the applicant, and the
clock stops. And traditionally, it would start over at
60 days once we got that information, because it's 60
days from receipt of a complete application. So if
it's incomplete, you know, we don't pick up where we
left off. So it's not 60 days total. 1It's 60 days
from receipt of a complete application. And so it's
incumbent on the applicant to make sure the application

is complete if they want to ensure that it'll be issued
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say within 60 days.

MR. GREENE: And I suppose this is why it's
important in that note, we referred to that you
communicate the expectations to the applicant. So they
can include (cross talk) this notation?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: You are referring to something
specifically?

MR. GREENE: ©No, no, that one, sorry.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: The cumulative impact, how
deficient and did we communicate expectation that they
look at other pipeline projects. So, yes, so what I
typically would make sure that staff understood, and
they did understand, is that if we determine something
is deficient, you know, we're communicating to them
clearly what is needed to make that project complete.
And traditionally there's a lot of back and forth. I
mean, that's -- that is typical of virtually every
permit we issue as an agency. So I don't even know
that I can ever recall an application that came in that
was complete from the get-go.

MR. GREENE: So then you'd have these
additional information request. Do you know how many
were having additional information requests were
involved with the ACP during your tenure?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I do not.
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MR. GREENE: Do you recall reviewing the
additional information request?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I didn't specifically. I do
recall having some impromptu meetings where I'd stepped
into Karen's office, ask her if we got the information.
And that's my typical style, if I know something's
pending to go to staff and ask did we get it and how
did it look.

MR. GREENE: Who typically submits those to
the applicant?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Who would sign of on
them (phonetic) ?

MR. GREENE: Yes.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Typically it would -- the
letters are drafted by staff, reviewed by and then
signed by the supervisor of that program.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So at this point it would,
be who issuing those?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: It would likely be the staff
reviewer that I recall was Jennifer Burdette and her
supervisor was Karen Higgins. So either would have
been -- Karen signing the letter, although it may have
been Jennifer. But Karen or possibly even Jeff
Poupart.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Would it ever go above
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those?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I guess it could. You said
ever. I don't recall..

MR. GREENE: TI'm sorry, he does. In your
tenure did you ever see it go above those?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I recall. It's
possible. I just don't recall signing off on it, what
we would call an additional information letter.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Would it be common that
the director -- I'm sorry, the secretary's office asked
to be notified or review any of these request?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: That does occur. In my
experience, at least during my tenure as division
director with both administrations, the one prior to
this one and the current one, there's varying degrees
of involvement by the department, and things that they
indicate to me and then to by extension the staff that
they want to be aware of or be made aware of. And it
will either involve a brief conversation, maybe a
meeting or review of the document, that's not unusual.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And referring back to the
9/29 notes.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Yes.

MR. GREENE: The highlighted point down there

next to the bottom. You can read that.
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MR. ZIMMERMAN: The high -- the last bullet?

MR. GREENE: Yes sir.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Just the highlighted section
or the entire..

MR. GREENE: Just the highlighted be fine.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay. The highlighted section
is "expect to complete review by end of October."

MR. GREENE: And what are you referring to in
that note?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I probably have to read the
entire document --

MR. GREENE: Okay. (Cross talk).

MR. ZIMMERMAN: -- to get -- have the right
context.

MR. GREENE: Yes sir.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay. And what was the
question again?

MR. GREENE: If you can't -- I think it was
expected the information to receive, what was 1it,
October?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Says expect to complete review
by end of October.

MR. GREENE: And what would that be pertaining
to, the review?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So this meeting was to discuss
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some of the deficiencies that existed to-date. And one
of the previous bullets indicates most issues concern
lack of specificity, which is not unusual for
applications. Somebody will respond to something that
is in the application or in the rules in a generic
sense. And that doesn't necessarily tell us what we
need to know to make the decisions we need to make.
And so we were telling them that we still need more
information and it needs to be more specific. That
most of the issues we had with their application
involved the lack of specificity.

So we are constantly going back to the
applicant to get more information. They Jjust wouldn't
completely answer the question. And they indicated
that hope to get it to us by mid-October. And if at
all possible, we would try and complete it by the end
of October, our review.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So you left in November?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: November 1st of 2017. So
through October.

MR. GREENE: So through October. And at that
time, it was still not complete?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: That is correct.

MR. GREENE: Do you know at what stage it was

at or you -- did you anticipate it being completed at
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any other time outside of obviously that note?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I don't know when it was
completed. I started working full-time in other
responsibilities that the department really wanted me
to focus on.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So I don't -- beyond --

MR. GREENE: Well, I guess --

MR. ZIMMERMAN: -- about late October-
November.

MR. GREENE: -- T guess your last day as the
division director, did you have -- was there discussion

regarding the anticipated completion date?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I recall
specifically. There was discussion and concerns
expressed, and probably is reflected in my notes about,
you know, windows of time that they had to start
conducting certain phases of the project. But which is
not -- again, not unusual for applicants if there are
things whether it's related to weather or other things
that they kind of want to make sure we're aware of.
From my perspective, that's fine, but we need to have a
complete application, that's what drives the process.

Outside of that, not to sound ugly, I don't

really care, you know, if it's getting close to winter
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or through some window that we're going to miss if we
don't issue the permit. 1It's about issuing the permit
or certification consistent with the rules, consistent
with our guidance, and consistent with past
certifications. To me that's what drives our
decisions, and not much else.

MR. GREENE: How often would you say you met
with the secretary's office, I mean, within the
secretary's office regarding the project?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay. Could you clarify
secretary's office? I mean you're talking assistant
secretary Holman or the secretary himself?

MR. GREENE: Assistant secretary and the
secretary himself, both.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Well, just about every meeting
if it involved the department in an environmental issue
such as this pipeline here specifically, would have
likely involved Sheila -- Sheila Holman is our
assistant secretary -- and depending upon the purpose
of the meeting, myself and then some program staff,
Jeff Poupart, Karen Higgins more than likely. There
were a couple meetings that the secretary was involved
in, higher level meetings, but those typically then
would involve typically more staff than just me and

Jeff. It might involve other divisions as well and
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people within the department that might have a role in
helping us formulate, you know, decisions.

MR. GREENE: Okay. This is an e-mail coming
from Chief Deputy Secretary Nicholson.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. GREENE: And if you could just -- it is --
the portion that's highlighted, it's not highlighted on
there, but it's darkened.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Right.

MR. GREENE: Could you just review that e-mail
briefly? Then I'll ask you some -- couple of
questions. Basically my question first is what is
being asked for you to do?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: The question?

MR. GREENE: Yes sir.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: The question specifically says
"From each of your respective divisions what is our
drop dead/response requirements on ACP? I'm trying to
determine how much time we might have to make some
internal adjustments related to ACP, and what our
counterparts in other departments are doing/thinking
that might impact our thought process." So the
qgquestion again?

MR. GREENE: Well, then the question will be

did you have any further discussion with Deputy
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Nicholson or anyone else regarding that question?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I may have. Traditionally Mr.
Nicholson would send a request for information. I
would communicate to staff, get that information, and
then pass it along to management. And there may or may
not be a follow-up meeting or conversation.

MR. GREENE: So what's your interpretation of
what he was asking for?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Based on what I'm reading
here, it appears to be sort of chronology of events,
you know, when did things come in, you know, what major
milestones. Typically to me, a major milestone in the
context of a certification or permit would be when did
we send add info letters, when did we get a response,
things of that nature to help understand, you know, in
other words the drop dead deadline, which I'm going to
presume he means the statutory deadline or the
regulatory deadline for issuance, where are we in that
process.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And you had requested that
information and we've got some follow-up e-mails and
you did get it, but we're not going to go into that.
One other thing, how did -- in your position, I'm
trying to determine how much time we would have to make

some internal adjustments related to ACP, do you know
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what the reference to that statement is?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not specifically. I don't
recall Secretary Nicholson -- or Deputy Secretary
Nicholson discussing those with me. You'd have to talk
to him because I don't really know, you know, what that
means.

MR. GREENE: Right. Okay. This was September
6, and I think like I said you did receive that
information. It was a table. I don't know if we have
that particular table, but..

MR. BEERS: Which ones 1s that?

MR. GREENE: We don't really need to go into
that, I don't think. At that point in time, do you
recall when you thought it was going to -- what the
drop dead date was going to be?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No, not at that particular
time. Again, you know, Karen is very good, very
thorough and very sensitive to the deadlines. We don't
want something to go statutory.

MR. GREENE: Right.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: And so I just really relied on
her to ensure that we would meet deadlines and we could
defend any request that we made which would then stop,
you know, the clock so to speak.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Were you familiar with the
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draft denial letter?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I recall. A draft
denial letter?

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No.

MR. GREENE: Did you ever see a draft denial
letter in your position during the tenure of the
division director?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I can recall.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So you do not recall ever
seeing or have seen one issued during that timeframe?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Specific to ACP?

MR. GREENE: Specific to any project.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: I may have seen a denial
letter for a 401 certification, but I can't tell you,
you know, what timeframe -- I mean over that 2-1/2-plus
years that I was director, I believe I'd signed denials
before, permit denials. I don't remember if any were
401 certifications. They may have. I don't know.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Were there any concerns in
your position as the division director as to the time
it was taking to issue or deny this permit?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Any concerns that I had with
respect? No.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did anyone outside your
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division express any concerns about the time it was
taking?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I recall. Are you —--
may I ask a clarifying question?

MR. GREENE: Sure.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: When you ask anyone outside of
our division, are you talking about other divisions or
you're talking about the general public?

MR. GREENE: Well, within the administration,
how's that?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. GREENE: In the administration.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I recall.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Would you recall anyone
ever saying that the department was trying to put up
barriers regarding the permitting process?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No, I don't recall anything
like that, no comments.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And did -- at this point
in time you went through I think you said the end of
October as the division director. Did your change in
positions have anything -- position have anything to do
with the 401 process for the ACP?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I'm aware of, not

that has been communicated to me. I was spending about
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75 percent of my time on coal ash related duties. And
we had a lot of projects or milestones that had to be
met. And what was expressed to me is they wanted some
of the folks 100 percent on coal ash duty. So a
manager, senior level manager to focus on coal ash.
And so I was asked to handle the coal ash program.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you object to that?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: ©No. Matter of fact I think I
said -- I think I expressed in an e-mail that I'd do
anything I could to support the department.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you have..

MR. BEERS: Yeah. So I just want to follow up

on that. So you said the -- not that you're aware of -
- is it -- did you think there's a possibility that
could happen that they -- you were removed from that

position because of your work with the ACP permitting
process or that you were following the rules and could
have been moved because of that?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not that I'm aware of. You
know, I, you know, in that capacity you kind of work at
the pleasure of the administration. It was an
appointed position. I was appointed by the previous
administration. When there's a change in
administration, some of the division directors were I

guess asked to move on. I was not. And at some point,
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you know, I guess there's an assessment by the
administration to decide what they want to do, the
direction they want the program to go.

The way 1t was explained to me 1is they needed
somebody to focus 100 percent on coal ash because
there are lot of timelines that had to be met, some
statutory requirements that had to be met, and they
wanted somebody to focus on 100 percent of their time
on those activities. And so I was asked -- I was told
they're going to make a change in the division. And
they really wanted me to focus all my energies on coal
ash.

MR. BEERS: Had you pushed back in any way to
redirect your efforts to follow just the rules to
anyone above you prior to being removed from your
position?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: When you say push back --

MR. BEERS: Well..

MR. ZIMMERMAN: -- what are you talking about?

MR. BEERS: Someone may have suggested that
you do things a different way that may have been
slightly outside of the rules of the 401 permit, and
you were adhering to the rules strictly. Do you
remember having any conversations with anyone about

your position of following the rules and someone
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superior to you?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No.

MR. BEERS: In any shape or even similar to
that?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No. The -- you know, the
comments that I had heard is we need to make sure we
follow the rules. And you know, my nature is that's
what I'm going to do in particular if the rules are
clear, you know. When they aren't, we have discussions
within the division, sometimes with a department to
figure out, well, what is this -- what does a
particular rule mean. You know, what’s our policy that
we use to implement it. And I may agree or disagree
with that. But at the end of the day, you know, I'm
going to follow the rules. And to me, it's just that
simple.

MR. BEERS: Do you remember any discussions
where there was a difference of opinion on how this --
of how a certain rule applied?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Not specifically. There were
discussions, you know, with the applicant, you know,
where they may have felt that they provided the
information we needed and we weren't satisfied with the
information they provided. And I would defer to the

staff, you know, to Karen Higgins in particular and
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Jennifer. You know, they've reviewed a lot of 401
certifications. They are the subject matter experts.
And I was comfortable that both Karen and Jennifer were
following the rules and weren't treating the ACP
applicant or applicants, the involved individuals any
differently than they would any other applicants.

MR. BEERS: I'm just going down the little

timeline. This is the hearing officer's report.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. BEERS: You may have seen one of these
before. This -- and here's the -- basically a timeline
of the application -- I guess the additional request

for information.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. BEERS: And when it was received. Look at
this timeline, it looks like this number 2, additional
information requests on September 14th. Looks like
you're receiving information on October 13 and that --
and that kind of fits the timeline of when you believe
something was going to be reviewed, going to be
complete by the end of October. They sent the
submission of that additional information, do you
remember?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: So in the earlier notes that

I'd taken where there was an expectation that we would
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issue certification by the end of October. Again, you
know, my recollection of that meeting was we
consistently were not getting the information that we
wanted. And you know, 1f that information is provided,
you know, do we think we can issue it by the end of
October. You know, there's an expectation. And so,
well, yeah, if we get everything we ask for, that's not
unreasonable. It really depends on the staff workload.

MR. BEERS: Right.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: If we don't because we have
other projects, then, you know, that's the way it is.

MR. BEERS: So it looks like the last
information request came in October 13th related to
this information request number 2. And then on the
26th another request for information went out.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Okay.

MR. BEERS: Do you recall any conversations
about this request being put out there at the end of
October right before you were taken from the division
or your position?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No. No, I don't.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Do you recall at the end of
October having any understanding that the permit could
have been issued at that time while you were still in

your position?
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MR. ZIMMERMAN: Well, when I was in my
position, in the conversations I had with Karen, there
was a level of frustration by her and Jennifer that,
you know, we would ask for something, we would have a
meeting, we would explain our needs, and we'd get the
information in, and it might answer part of what we
asked for, and not all of it. So there's this constant
back and forth where we didn't get the information we
needed. Maybe there'd be a subsequent meeting, you
know, where somebody would explain -- we would explain
in greater level of detail again what we want to -- and
that's really, I think that was my sense. And up until
the point I left, I didn't have any information or
knowledge to suggest that it was imminent, issuance was
imminent, it was still in the here we go again stage.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Do you -- at the point when
you left, do you recall the -- what the primary
information that was needed or need to be clarified,
what those issues were pertaining to?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: My recollection was we still
had some questions related to the cumulative impact.
We had some questions that I believe I recall a meeting
to talk about the drilling activities, when they're
going to drill under a stream and the mud that would be

generated as a result of that drilling process. So you
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have to advance the borehole; you fill it with mud to
stabilize it; you put in a pipe, and you've got to
evacuate that mud, that drilling mud and to ensure it
wasn't getting into surface waters or it didn't get
spilled.

So towards the end of my tenure, the
conversations we were having revolved around how
they're going to handle the drilling activities, and
making sure that any cumulative impact were thoroughly
vetted and considered.

MR. GREENE: So cumulative impact seems to be
ongoing, it was at the beginning of those notes and
ongoing. So is that something that was on a regular
basis discussed, you just weren't receiving the
information from the applicant or..

MR. ZIMMERMAN: No, I think it was just the
difference of opinion which again isn’t atypical, you
know, with the applicant whether we're talking a 401
applicant or any other applicant for any other permits.
Sometimes there's a difference of opinion with respect
to what is needed. And we hold meetings to discuss
that. And you know, at some point, as an agency, we
have to draw the line and say this is what we need, and
if we don't get it, then we will not issue a permit or

certification. I don't recall that we ever had that
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kind of a conversation with the pipeline people. But
again, it was Jjust this back and forth of discussing
what we needed and why we needed it and then them
agreeing to provide it in some fashion. And then we
would get the information and it wouldn't quite answer
the question, and then we would send another letter.
So there's a lot of that throughout the whole process.

MR. LANE: We're at 2 minutes.

MR. GREENE: Yes sir. Thank you. And I can't
recall if I asked these questions. If I did, I
apologize. Did you ever have any contact with the
governor's office or people working in the governor's
office regarding the ACP?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: Me personally?

MR. GREENE: Yes sir. As director?

MR. ZIMMERMAN: As director, not that I did.
I was never called to the governor's office or never
met with the governor, any of his staff --

MR. GREENE: Staff.

MR. ZIMMERMAN: -- specifically. There may
have been somebody there that I didn't know in one of
our bigger meetings. But I don't recall that.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Was it ever relayed down
to you that there was -- the governor was involved in

the permitting process?
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ZIMMERMAN : No, that was not --
GREENE: Did you ever..
ZIMMERMAN: -- communicated to me.

GREENE: Okay. And anything else with 20

seconds to go?

MR.

BEERS: This is the last question. Did

anyone at any time above you, either Sheila Holman or

anyone above,

give you direction as to make additional

information requests that you didn't agree with?

MR.

MR.
time.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.
I'm going to

stop.

ZIMMERMAN: No.

GREENE: We certainly appreciate your

Z IMMERMAN : Thank you.

GREENE: We appreciate --

ZIMMERMAN : Sure.

GREENE: -- all you do for the state. And

-- the time is 11:15, and I'm going to
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From: Zimmerman, lay

Sent: Wednesday, September 06, 2017 7:07 AM
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@
Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff,
Subject: Fw: ACP
Importance: High

icdenr.gov>

Karen,

[ realize Jennifer is out, but can you pull something together with help from Brian if needed.
Note the major milestones such as receipt of app, public hearings, add info requests, etc., as well
as anticipated timeline going forward. 1'd like this by COB tomorrow, so that [ have time to
review.

Thanks

Jay

From: Nicholson, John A.

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2017 12:44:09 PM

To: Zimmerman, Jay; Abraczinskas, Michael; Davis, Tracy Cc: Holman, Sheila
Subject: ACP

Gents,
I have a question for you and then a request.

Question: From each of your respective Division’s what is our “drop dead” / response requirement on
ACP? | am trying to determine how much time we might have to make some internal adjustments
related to ACP and what our counterparts in other Departments are doing/thinking that might impact
our thought process.

Request: Can each of you please give me a timeline on when your respective Division’s started working

on the ACP and the major milestones you have worked on as it has moved through the decision-making
process.

| need something NLT noon on Friday (8 Sep). Let me know if you have any questions. Thanks
lohn

John A. Nicholson

Chief Deputy Secretary
North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 707-8624 office
john.nicholson@ncdenr.gov

217 West Jones Street 1601 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699
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January 22, 2018

MEMORANDUM Sl

To: Linda Culpepper
Interim Director, Division of Water Resources

’ / . :
From: Brian Wrenn, Ecosystems Branch Supervisor )}é/

. .. i i /
Division of Water Resources, Water Sciences Sectlor}///

Subject:  Hearing Officer’s Report and Recommendations
Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Individual 401 Water Quality Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties

| served as the Hearing Officer for the subject Public Hearings held at the Fayetteville Technical
Community College in Fayetteville, NC on July 18, 2017 and at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC on July 20, 2017. The public hearings were held under the authority of Title 15A
NCAC 02H .0504. The purpose of these public hearings was to receive comment on the Division
of Water Resources’ 401 Water Quality Certification (401 WQC) and buffer authorization
certificates application (Appendix A) submitted by Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP). A 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates are needed to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties.

In addition to listening to oral comments at the public hearings, | have reviewed all written
comments received prior, during and after the public comment period. In preparation of this
report, | have considered all of the public comments, the public record, discussions with Division
of Water Resources (DWR) staff related to the rules, and their review of the applications for the
project.

The report has been prepared using the following outline:
l. Site History / Background
. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing Summary
11l July 20, 2017 Public Hearing Summary

V. Comments
V. Recommendations
VL. Summary

VIl.  Appendices

I. History / Background

On May 9, 2017, Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP) submitted an application for a 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates. ACP had previously applied to DWR on October 23,
2015. DWR requested additional information on November 18, 2015. The requested
information was not provided, therefore DWR returned the application on August 31, 2016.

ACP is proposing to construct and operate an approximately 605-mile-long interstate natural
gas transmission pipeline system including laterals through West Virginia, Virginia and North





Carolina. In North Carolina, ACP is proposing to construct one compressor station and install
approximately 186-miles-of transmission pipeline-and-appurtenances;including 3 metering———
and regulating stations, 11 valve sites and 4 pig launchers/receivers, through Northampton
Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberiand and Robeson Counties. T

ACP is proposing over 300 crossings of streams and open waters, temporarily impacting over
35,000 linear feet and permanently impacting over 700 linear feet of stream. ACP is also
proposing crossing-wetlands, temporarily impacting over 450 acres and--permanently
impacting less than one acre of wetlands. ACP will impact protected riparian buffers within
the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River basins, impacting over 655,000 square feet of zone 1 and
over 459,000 square feet of zone 2 protected riparian buffer.

DWR requested and received additional information several times throughout the application
review process:

Date Action

June 27, 2017

Reg. for Add Info (1)

July 12, 2017

Add Info Received (1)

September 14, 2017

Req. for Add Info (2)

September 22, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 2, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 13, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 26, 2017

Req. for Add Info (3)

November 4, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 15, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 28, 2017

Req. for Add Info (4)

November 29, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 8, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 14, 2017

Req. Correction to (4)

December 20, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

January 17, 2018

Add Info Received

January 18, 2018

Add Info Received

Under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H .0504, DWR held a public comment period from
June 16, 2017 until August 19, 2017 to accept public input on the application. The public
comment period included two public hearings described below.

In accordance with Title 15A NCAC 02H .0503, notice of the public hearings and availability of
the 401 WQC and riparian buffer authorization certificates application was published in The
Fayetteville Observer, the News & Observer, the Rocky Mount Telegram, the Roanoke-
Chowan News-Herald, the Robesonian and the Wilson Times on June 17, 2017, in the Daily
Herald and the Sampson Independent on June 18, 2017, and posted online and sent by mail
to the Water Quality Certification Mailing List on June 16, 2017 (Appendix B). A correction to
the public notice to correct a typo in the pipe diameter was posted online on June 19, sent to
the mailing list on June 20, and issued in the newspapers on June 21 and 22 (Appendix C).





The public comment period ended on August 19, 2017; however, since August 19" was a
Saturday, DWR accepted comments through Monday, August 21.-

July 18, 2017 Public Hearing

A public hearing was held July 18, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Fayetteville Technical Community
College in Fayetteville, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC
02H .0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC
application (Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline
through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred thirty-nine people attended the July 18 public hearing, including eight staff
members from the Department. A total of 131 individuals signed the attendance sign-in
sheets at the registration table (Appendices D and E). The hearing officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Forty-four individuals registered in advance of the hearing to provide comments, and two
additional individuals made comments for a total of 46 speakers. Speakers were given three
minutes for initial presentations. Additional time was allowed for speakers after everyone
that registered to speak was finished, which was used by three speakers. The list of speakers
is included (Appendix E).

The public hearing transcript, including oral comments, is attached to this report (Appendix
H). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment
period from local and state government agencies, individual citizens, and citizen groups
(Appendix J). Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed to the project and
approximately 1,370 were in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the
comments provided during the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both
hearings and the comment period, along with detailed responses that have a direct impact
on the certification decision making process are included in Sections IV and V below.

July 20, 2017 Public Hearing

A second public hearing was held July 20, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H
.0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC application
(Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred seventy-six people attended the July 20 public hearing, including eight staff

members from the Department. A total of 168 individuals signed the attendance sign in

sheets at the registration table (Appendices F and G). The Hearing Officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Sixty-five individuals registered in advance of the hearing to make comments. Speakers were





given three minutes for presentations and the hearing was held open an additional thirty
minutes to allow all speakers that-registered-to speak.The list-of speakers-is-included
(Appendix G).

The public heariﬁg transcri;:“)t; i'néludirig oralwconrﬁmén'icﬂs‘,r, is attached to this feport (Appendix

[). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment

period from local and state government agencies, citizens and citizen groups (Appendix J).

Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed-to-the project and approximately 1,370 were

in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the comments provided during
the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both hearings and the comment period,
along with detailed responses that have a direct impact on the certification decision making
process, are included in Sections IV and V below.

IV. General Comments

The following is a summary of the comments received during the July 18, 2017 and July 20,
2017 public hearings and emails and other written comments received by DWR during the
public comment period. Comments received outside of the public comment period were
made part of the public record. An overwhelming majority of the comments were in
opposition to the pipeline for a variety of reasons.

e Many comments received expressed concerns about the continued use of fossil fuels,
specifically fracked natural gas, and their negative impact on climate change. Many think
NC and the US should be moving toward the use of renewable energy sources.
Proponents of the project believe that natural gas is a “clean” fuel option to replace coal
and other fossil fuels.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

e Many comments received were skeptical of ACP’s promotion of the project as a job
creation opportunity and economic stimulator for local communities. Several pointed
out that ACP’s own job creation estimates are very low and that the economic benefits
to local communities are vague. Proponents of the project reiterated that the pipeline
would bring jobs and economic development to NC.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Department of Commerce.

* Many comments received expressed concerns about the cumulative impacts analysis
provided by ACP. Many believe that the analysis did not contain sufficient detail to
properly evaluate the cumulative impacts. Some comments indicated that the
temporary impacts from the project should be considered in the cumulative impact
analysis and that the sheer volume of temporary impacts should be calculated to equal
some level of permanent impacts.

Cumulative impacts are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps).





e Many comments received questioned the purpose and need of the project. Many
pointed to evidence that the growth of natural gas markets was estimated to be
negligible and questioned the need to build such a large and expensive pipeline. Many
noted that the market demand was generated through companies owned or affiliated
with Duke and Dominion power companies and that the need was self-serving rather
‘than one identified through public interest. Furthermore, several commenters stated
that the purpose of economic benefit was misleading as ACP’s own estimates predict
little permanent job growth as a result of the project. :

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC and the Corps.

¢ Many comments received expressed concerns about environmental justice issues
associated with pipeline’s construction and operation. Many believe that the pipeline will
have a disproportionate impact on low-income and minority communities. Many
commenters feel that ACP has not made significant efforts to coordinate with these
communities or to consider other routes that would reduce the impacts on these
communities. Specifically, several commenters mentioned ACP’s lack of coordination
with state-recognized tribes such as the Lumbee and Haliwa-Saponi. Furthermore, they
do not believe ACP has adequately addressed potential impacts to cultural resources
along the pipeline route.
Environmental Justice is addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to FERC.

e Several commenters expressed opposition to ACP’s use of eminent domain to obtain
right-of-way for the pipeline.
These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Attorney General’s Office.

e Several commenters raised concerns about Duke Power’s past record of non-compliance
with environmental regulations and permits.
Compliance Inspection recommendations are addressed in Section V below.

e Several commenters raised concerns about living within the “blast zone” of the pipeline
and questioned ACP’s liability response should an explosion occur. Others believe that
the pipeline is a safe and efficient way to transport natural gas.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC.

e Many comments received expressed concerns over ACP’s potential impacts to. water . .~

quality from erosion and sedimentation. Many commenters feel that ACP’s erosion and
sedimentation control plan is inadequate and lacks sufficient detail. Others believe that
trenching through streams and wetlands will have a negative effect on stream stability
and threaten wildlife. Concerns over blasting effects were also raised.

Water Quality is addressed in Section V below.





e Many comments received expressed concerns over impacts to wildlife, specifically
threatened and-endangered-species.—Many-felt-that the-construction-activities-could
destroy critical habitat and primary nursery areas for a variety of terrestrial and aquatic
species. Othersfeltthat the extensive coordination process with the US Fish and Wildlife
Service and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC) has adequately addressed any
potential impacts.

Aquatic species are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to NCWRC. === 0

e Many commenters believe that the 401 WQC application is incomplete. They pointed
to the lack of erosion and sedimentation control plans and site-specific water body
crossing details as evidence that necessary information was missing from the
application. In contrast, some commenters believe that the ACP project has gone
through an extensive regulatory review process.

The Division requested additional information multiple times as detailed in Section |
above.

e The overwhelming majority of comments received raised concerns over the degradation
of ground and surface waters as a result of the construction and operation of the
pipeline. Many commenters mentioned the large number of streams and wetlands that
would be crossed by the pipeline and raised red flags regarding the large amount of
temporary and permanent impacts. They connected these impacts with the degradation
of downstream uses including drinking water supply, aquatic life, primary and secondary
contact recreation, and fisheries. Furthermore, commenters spoke in detail of the loss
of wetlands through temporary impacts. Many felt the temporal and permanent
vegetation changes from temporary wetland impacts should be considered permanent
wetland impacts. Finally, many comments were made regarding potential impacts to
drinking water wells. A significant level of concern was present among the commenters
about impacts to wells from construction activities (mainly blasting activities) and
operation of the pipeline.

Degradation is addressed in Section V below.

V. Certification Specific Comments and Recommendations

Based on the review of public comments, the application, the North Carolina General Statutes
and Administrative Code, and discussions with DWR staff, | offer the following comments and
recommendations on the criteria for issuance of a 401 WQC pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H
.0506(b) and the issuance of Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basin Buffer Authorization
Certificates pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively.

15A NCAC 02H .0506(b)

(1) Has no practical alternative under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (f) of this Rule.
Paragraph (f) states: “A lack of practical alternatives may be shown by demonstrating
that, considering the potential for a reduction in size, configuration or density of the
proposed activity and all alternative designs the basic project purpose cannot be





practically accomplished in a manner which would avoid or result in less adverse
impact to surface waters or wetlands.”

The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and
Pennsylvania thrbugh Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina portion of the
proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. As part of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) analysis, ACP investigated
several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no build, alternative
energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives, FERC and ACP

found that the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next, ACP conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on the
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams and wetlands, known historical and cultural resources, and homes and businesses.
Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of seventeen major route
alternatives and thrity-seven minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion of the project
in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis included pre- and
post-application communication with DWR and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC)
on avoidance and minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and
minimization practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through

environmental commitments. A more detailed discussion of avoidance and minimization can
be found below.

Recommendation: None. The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no
practical alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impact
to surface waters or wetlands.

(2) Will minimize adverse impacts to the surface waters based on consideration of
existing topography, vegetation, fish and wildlife resources, and hydrological
conditions under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (g) of this Rule.

Paragraph (g) states: “Minimization of impacts may be demonstrated by showing that

the surface waters or wetlands are able to continue to support the existing uses after

project completion, or that the impacts are required due to:

(1) The spatial and dimensional requirements of the project; or

(2) The location of any existing structural or natural features that may dictate the
placement or configuration of the proposed project; or

(3) The purpose of the project and how the purpose relates to placement,
configuration or density.

The applicant has minimized impacts to surface waters and wetlands to the greatest extent
practical. The permanent impacts will be 766 linear feet of streams and 0.80 acres of
wetlands. The permanent impacts related to streams and wetlands will be a result of





upgrading and improving access roads constructed for installation and maintenance of the
pipeline, not from the pipeline itself. All crossings of major-rivers will-be conducted using
horizontal directional drilling (HDD) to avoid open trenching. The magnitude of the temporary
impacts is very high but within reason considering the size and scope of the project. The
applicant will use a narrower construction corridor when crossing wetlands and construction
techniques such as timber matting, temporary work bridges, and clean rock over piping to
minimize temporary impacts to streams and wetlands. Temporary impacts to streambanks

and wetland areas will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with native

plants. ACP will monitor any temporary impact areas in streams or wetlands to ensure there
is no permanent loss at these locations. The monitoring plan includes monitoring for a
minimum of two years for streams and three years for wetlands with stability, vegetation, and
hydrology requirements. Upon successful completion of the restoration and monitoring
activities, the stream and wetland impact areas will continue to support existing uses of
hydrology, vegetation, and aquatic and wildlife habitat.

The applicant has committed to a number of best management practices to avoid and
minimize impacts to streams and wetlands.

e Demarcation of wetland boundaries with flagging and signs prior to start of
construction

e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soil compaction

e Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation

e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and restoration

e Installing trench breakers or plugs at the boundaries of wetlands to prevent draining
of wetlands

e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies

e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area immediately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock

e Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs

e Prohibiting use of live concrete as a building material so that wet concrete does not
come in contact with surface waters

e Prohibiting storage of chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils
within 100 feet of surface waters

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements of the Construction Stormwater General
Permit No. NCG010000

e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings

e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan





ACP has completed formal consultation with US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on
threatened and endangered species along the corridor. In-an October 16, 2017 biological
opinion, USFWS did not identify any threatened and endangered species or sensitive habitat
in NC along the proposed corridor. ACP has also coordinated extensively with the NCWRC.
This coordination began with the alternatives analysis and site-specific routing of the pipeline.
ACP worked with NCWRC to avoid threatened and endangered species and sensitive habitats
and to develop relocation protocols for fish and mussels. ACP conducted pre-construction

surveys for fish and mussels in the Neuse River at the proposed crossing location. These

surveys found that the mussel population was much more abundant and diverse than
previously known. This survey and the continued coordination with NCWRC resulted in ACP’s
revised proposal to use HDD at the Neuse River instead of open trenching. ACP has also
developed a relocation plan for fish and mussels in coordination with NCWRC.

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that impacts to surface
waters and wetlands are required due to spatial considerations, natural features and the
purpose of the project. The 401 WQC should include requirements for monitoring of
temporary impact areas in accordance with the proposed restoration and monitoring plan.
The certification should also include reopener language in the event that temporarily
disturbed wetland areas do not return to wetland conditions as defined by the 1987 US Army
Corps of Engineers (Corps) Wetland Manual and confirmed by a Corps representative. The
reopener language should require a modification to the 401 WQC to account for the additional
permanent impacts and mitigation for all permanent wetland impacts should the permanent
impacts exceed 1.0 acre. Furthermore, the 401 WQC should be conditioned to comply with
any work moratoriums suggested by NCWRC for the proposed project as well as the fish and
mussel relocation plan.

(3) Does not result in the degradation of groundwaters or surface waters.

The main risk to surface and groundwater from the ACP project will be during construction
activities. These risks include sedimentation and turbidity in surface waters, breaches of
drilling fluids during HDD, and spills of petroleum products and hydraulic fluids from fueling
and equipment maintenance. In addition, some commenters raised concerns regarding
impacts to drinking water wells from trenching and blasting activities associated with the
pipeline installation and from possible contamination due to pipeline leaks during operation.

The applicant has committed to working in the dry for all stream and wetland crossings unless
site-specific conditions warrant working in wet conditions and the applicant obtains prior
written approval from DWR. Proper erosion and sedimentation control measures will be
required for the entire project in accordance with the Division of Energy, Mineral and Land
Resources (DEMLR) sedimentation and erosion control Certificate of Plan Approval. All
temporary fill placed in surface waters related to construction of the pipeline will be removed
once installation of the pipeline is completed at the crossing. The stream banks or wetlands
will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with a native seed mix to prevent
erosion. Only in areas where vegetative stabilization is not successful will hardened
stabilization (rip-rap, geogrid, etc.) techniques be used. No hardening will be placed below





the ordinary high water mark. Furthermore, the applicant has voluntarily agreed to meet the
requirements of the NPDES Construction Activities General-Permit-No.-NCG010000.

The applicant will store chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils and conduct
all equipment and vehicle fueling and maintenance at least 100 feet from surface waters and
200 feet from private drinking water wells. In situations where equipment must continue to
operate during fueling activities such as dewatering pumps near surface waters, secondary
containment structures will be used to prevent any spillage from reaching the surface waters.

The applicant has conducted a desktop survey to identify all known drinking water wells within
150 feet of the pipeline construction corridor. Almost 50 private drinking water wells were
located in NC. The applicant proposes to test each well prior to construction for a suite of
parameters including pH, total suspended solids, total dissofved solids, conductivity, alkalinity,
acidity, sulfates, oil/grease, phenolic, iron, manganese, aluminum, fecal coliform, copper,
lead, nickel, silver, thallium, zinc, chromium, arsenic, mercury, selenium, cyanide, calcium
magnesium, hardness, chlorides, antimony, cadmium, and beryllium as well as well yields.
These tests will provide a baseline of groundwater quality and quantity against which to
measure any construction-related impacts. In the event that blasting will occur within 500
feet of a drinking water well, the applicant proposes to conduct pre-blasting monitoring for
the parameters listed above. Should the applicant receive a complaint regarding damage to
well water quality or quantity, the applicant proposes to conduct post-construction well
testing of the same parameters to verify no adverse impacts have occurred. Furthermore, in
the event that adverse impacts do occur as a result of construction activity, ACP has
committed to providing temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or
well.

Operation of the pipeline is not expected to have adverse effects on surface waters and
groundwater. Any post-construction stormwater generated as a result of impervious surfaces
installed during construction are subject to state and local stormwater requirements. ACP has
committed to using sheetflow and existing stormwater conveyances and drainage ditches. No
curb and gutter stormwater management will be constructed. For impervious surfaces
constructed in areas with no state or local stormwater programs, these stormwater
management techniques will be protective of water quality.

Many commenters raised concerns about leaks from the pipeline impacting groundwater. The
pipeline will be transporting dry natural gas which is not soluble in water. Liquids contained
in the gas are removed at a natural gas processing plant prior to transport and at liquid
separators at compressor stations. Any remaining liquid will be de minimus and is not likely
to impact groundwater.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to violate water quality standards if the
conditions in the 401 Water Quality Certification are fully complied with by the applicant (or
its successor). The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require full compliance with the
following permits:
e (Certificate of Plan Approval No. Cumbe-2018-036, issued by DEMLR, Fayetteville
Regional Office
e NPDES Permit No. NCG010000 issued by DEMLR
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The 401 WQC should also be contingent on the issuance of a sedimentation and erosion
control Certificate-of Plan Approval issued by DEMLR, Raleigh-Regional Office and upon
issuance of appropriate state and local stormwater permits. FERC NEPA and 401 WQC
application documentation indicates that the applicant has agreed to conduct pre-
construction water quality testing for drinking water wells within 150 feet of the pipeline

construction -corridor-and within 500 feet of blasting activities.- -The-401 WQC should be

conditioned to require ACP to conduct pre- and post-construction testing of all wells within
150 feet of the construction corridor and within 500 feet of blasting activities regardless of
whether a complaint is received. Should post-construction testing indicate that well water
quality or quantity has been impacted by the construction, ACP should be required to provide
temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or well. An independent,
qualified groundwater specialist should determine whether an impact has occurred or not. .

The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require monthly ride-through inspections with
appropriate DWR and DEMLR staff to measure compliance with the respective certifications
and permits. The 401 WQC should also require a pre-construction meeting with the
construction contractors, ACP staff, and DWR and DEMLR staff to review the conditions and
requirements of the respective certifications and permits for clarity and understanding.

(4) Does not result in cumulative impacts, based upon past or reasonably anticipated
future impacts, that cause or will cause a violation of downstream water quality
standards.

Cumulative impacts are those impacts that would result from the incremental effects of the
project added to other past, present and reasonably foreseeable future activities (15A NCAC
01C .0103). This includes secondary impacts or impacts from future activities that occur as a
result of the proposed project. The proposed project for the most part will consist of
temporary water quality impacts from the installation of the pipeline. These impacts could
include sedimentation and temporary disturbance of aquatic and riparian habitat during
construction. Permanent impacts will occur in streams and wetlands from access road
improvements. The temporary and permanent impacts will be reduced through avoidance
and mitigation efforts, erosion and sedimentation control and stormwater best management
practices (BMPs), and spill prevention, control, and countermeasure practices. Any projects
occurring in similar locations to the proposed project will be subject to local, state, and federal
regulations that address stream and wetland impacts, stormwater management, and
watershed protection.

Almost 80% of the increased natural gas supply has been committed to natural gas power
plants. The remaining supply will be available for commercial, industrial and residential use.
However, only three distribution points or M&R stations will be constructed in NC. These M&R
stations will be located in Johnston, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. Secondary
development as a result of the pipeline is likely to be focused around these distribution points;
therefore, water quality impacts are most likely in proximity to these areas. The applicant
conducted a qualitative analysis of the potential secondary and cumulative impacts in these
three counties.
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In the qualitative analysis, the applicant completed an “indirect (secondary) and cumulative
effects screening-matrix” where a series of parameters -including scope--of -the -project, -
population growth, available land, water/sewer availability, natural gas availability, market

for development, public policy, and notable water resources were evaluated on their ability to
contribute to indirect and cumulative effects on water quality. Based on these ratings, areas

of potential growth and development were identified. These growth areas were thenm
compared in an action/no-action forecast where the differences in growth and development
between building the pipeline and not building the pipeline were determined. Areas that had
significant increases in growth and development from building the pipeline were mapped.

As discussed above, any new development projects will be subject to state and federal
regulations for impacts to streams and wetlands and erosion and sedimentation control.
However, stormwater management regulations are variable by location. Existing state and
local stormwater programs were overlain on the areas of potential growth identified in
action/no-action analysis to predict the net impact to water quality resulting from secondary
development.

The action/no-action analysis demonstrated that growth could significantly increase in
Johnston and Cumberland Counties if the pipeline is built. These areas have existing
infrastructure for water/sewer and transportation, are predicted to have population growth,
and have a number of shovel-ready development sites. Johnston and Cumberland Counties
are almost entirely covered by state and local stormwater programs and Johnston County is
subject to the Neuse River Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy. Any potential
water quality impacts due to growth in the area would be mitigated through these programs.

Most of Robeson County does not have state or local stormwater programs. Those that are
present are associated with High Quality Waters or Water Supply Watersheds and are limited
in area. However, the action/no-action analysis demonstrated that Robeson County is not
expected to have a significant increase in growth and development as a result of the pipeline.
According to ACP’s analysis, lacking infrastructure, population decline, and separation from
metropolitan areas has stunted growth in this area. Only one shovel-ready industrial site is
available in Robeson County, and it is located in the protected Water Supply Watershed and
would be subject to a local stormwater program. Water quality impacts from secondary
growth in this area would be minimal.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to result in cumulative impacts that violate
water quality standards, if the conditions in the 401 WQC are fully implemented by the
applicant (or its successor). The qualitative cumulative impacts analysis should be forwarded
to the NC Department of Commerce for informational purposes.

(5) Provides for protection of downstream water quality standards through the use of on-
site stormwater control measures. e

Post-construction stormwater is another potential water quality concern. The vast majority
of the proposed pipeline project will not result in new impervious surfaces. However, some
new impervious surfaces are proposed as part of the project. The impervious surfaces include
multiple improved access roads, eleven valve stations, a compressor station, three metering
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and regulating (M&R) stations, and multiple contractor yards. The access roads are existing

unpaved roads-that will be improved to allow construction and maintenance equipment-to

safely pass. Improvements will include minor widening and/or surface water crossing

upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The valve sites are needed to segment the

pipeline for safety, operation, and maintenance purposes. The compressor station will be
located in Northampton County, and the M&R stations will be- located in Johnston,

Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The applicant has indicated that stormwater will be

managed by using existing drainage ditches and swales for access roads. No curb and gutter

stormwater conveyances are proposed for the compressor or M&R stations, and stormwater

will be managed through existing drainage ditches and swales.

Stormwater management for these impervious surfaces will-be regulated through state
programs in Phase I communities or by local programs where applicable. Valve sites and
access roads in a small portion of Nash County and access roads, valve sites, and a contractor
yard in Cumberland County will be regulated through the state-implemented Phase Il
Stormwater Program. ACP will have to meet the requirements of SWG040000 — General
Permit To Construct A Linear Utility Line and Associated Incidental Built-Upon Area (SWG04)
or an individual state stormwater permit. SWG04 and individual state stormwater permits
require compliance with the conditions of the respective permits and with the provisions of
15A NCAC 02H .1000, Session Law 2006-246, and Session Law 2008-211 which ensure the
protection of downstream water quality standards through on-site stormwater control
measures. Any impervious surfaces built in areas covered by local stormwater programs will
have to meet the requirements of the local stormwater program. The applicant also proposes
to build impervious surfaces in areas where no state or local programs are applicable. Based
on the descriptions of stormwater best management practices proposed by the applicant,
stormwater is not expected to violate downstream water quality standards in these areas.

Recommendation: Session Law 2017-10 prohibits DWR from requiring on-site stormwater
management through a 401 WQC. As discussed above, the 401 WQC should be conditioned
to require compliance with all applicable state and local stormwater permits for construction
of a linear utility line and associated incidental built-upon area.

(6) Provides for replacement of existing uses through mitigation.

Both federal and state requirements allow for the purchase of in lieu fee credits to offset
unavoidable impacts to streams and wetlands. DWR requires mitigation [15A NCAC 02H
.0506(h)] at a 1:1 ratio for permanent perennial stream impacts above 300 linear feet and a
1:1 ratio for permanent wetland impacts above one acre. Perennial stream and wetland
impacts for this project will not exceed the respective mitigation thresholds, therefore, no
stream or wetland mitigation is required by DWR. Mitigation is required, however, by the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers for the wetland conversion impacts. Riparian buffer mitigation is
required for the uses identified in the Table of Uses of the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins
Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies [15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC
02B .0259(6), respectively] as “"ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION.” “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c),
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respectively. Buffer mitigation is discussed below in the buffer authorization certificates
section. s o

Recommendation: No mitigation is required for stream or wetland impacts as a result of the
proposed project. The 401 WQC should be conditioned to include language requiring
mitigation should permanent impact changes occur that exceed mitigation thresholds.

Neuse and Tar-Pamlico Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy
The Neuse River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy and the Tar Pamhco
River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy have the exact same
requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively]. Furthermore,
the mitigation requirements for impacts to protected buffers are exactly the same for the
Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins [15A NCAC 02B .0242 and 15A NCAC 02B .0260
respectively] and both make reference to the buffer mitigation rules [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
For the purposes of this report, the buffer authorization certificates recommendations will
be combined in one discussion.

15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259
(5) DIFFUSE FLOW REQUIREMENT. Diffuse flow of runoff shall be maintained in the
riparian buffer by dispersing concentrated flow and reestablishing vegetation.

As discussed above in Section 5 of the 15A NCAC 02H .0506 discussion, the vast majority of
the proposed project will not result in new impervious surfaces that will create concentrated
stormwater flow. However, there will be improved temporary and permanent access roads,
and five valve sites constructed and maintained in the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins as
part of the project. The access roads are existing unpaved roads that will be improved to allow
construction and maintenance equipment to safely pass. Upgrades will include minor
widening and/or surface water crossing upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The
valve sites will consist of gravel pads around above-ground valves with gravel driveways.

Stormwater from these areas will be managed by sheetflow or by using existing roadside
ditches and swales. Sheetflow from the access roads meets the diffuse flow requirements
associated with the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Woaters
Management Strategies [15A NCAC 028 .0233(5) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(5), respectively].
ACP has committed to managing the existing roadside ditches and swales to minimize
sediment, nutrients, and other pollution prior to entering surface waters. The Table of Uses
for the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies
[15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(6), respectively] identifies use of existing
drainage ditches, roadside ditches, and stormwater outfalls provided they are managed to
minimize the sediment, nutrients, and other pollution that convey to waterbodies as
“EXEMPT” uses. “EXEMPT” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(a) and 15A NCAC 02B
.0259(7)(a), respectively.

The applicant proposes to locate the Smithfield M&R station in Johnston County which is
subject to the Neuse River Buffer Rules. This station is also subject to state stormwater
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permitting requirements as part of the Phase Il stormwater rules. Stormwater management
and diffuse flow-requirements will addressed through the Phase.il process. -

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
that diffuse flow conditions be maintained for all stormwater from impervious surfaces
flowing to or within the protected buffers in accordance with the diffuse flow requirements
stated above or other applicable buffer clarification memos.

(6) TABLE OF USES.
Non-electric utility lines:

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 2 — Allowable

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 1 — Allowable with Mitigation
Non-electric utility lines:

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 40 linear feet but equal to or less
than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer with a maintenance corridor greater than 10
feet in width - Allowable with Mitigation

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer —
Allowable with Mitigation

The proposed project is categorized as a non-electric utility line. The proposed project includes
perpendicular and non-perpendicular crossings of streams and other surface waters subject
to this rule. Due to the width of the maintenance corridor, 50 feet, all buffer impacts are
“ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses. “ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses are defined in
15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c), respectively.

Recommendation: None. The proposed project is "ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” under
the Table of Uses.

(8) DETERMINATION OF “NO PRACTICAL ALTERNATIVES.” Persons who wish to
undertake uses designated as allowable or allowable with mitigation shall submit a
request for a “no practical alternatives” determination to the Division or to the
delegated authority. The applicant shall certify that the criteria identified in Sub-ltem
(8)(a) of this Rule are met. The Division or the delegated local authority shall grant an
Authorization Certificate upon a “no practical alternatives” determination. The
procedure for making an Authorization Certificate shall be as follows:

(a) For any request for an Authorization Certificate, the Division or the delegated local
authority shall review the entire project and make a finding of fact as to whether
the following requirements have been met in support of a “no practical
alternatives” determination:

(i) The basic project purpose cannot be practically accomplished in a manner that
would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and
protect water quality. _

(ii) The use cannot practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or
redesigned to better minimize disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat,
and protect water quality.

(iii) Best management practices shall be used if necessary to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality.
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The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and

Pennsylvania through-Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina-portion of -the - —-— -

proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The proposed project will permanently impact
521,430 square feet and 594,070 square feet of protected riparian buffers in the Neuse River
Basin and the Tar-Pamlico River Basin, respectively. As partof the FERC NEPA analysis, ACP
investigated several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no
build, alternative energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives,
the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next ACP, conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on an
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams, wetlands, protected riparian buffers, known historical and cultural resources, and
homes and businesses. Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of
seventeen major route alternatives and 37 minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion
of the project in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis
included pre- and post-application communication with DWR and NCWRC on avoidance and
minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and minimization
practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through
environmental commitments.

The applicant has demonstrated that the basic project purpose cannot be practically
accomplished in a manner that would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life
and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has demonstrated that the use cannot
practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or redesigned to better minimize
disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has
proposed a number of best management practices in an effort to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality including but not limited to the
following:
e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soif compaction
o Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation
e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies
e (Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs
e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings
e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan
e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan
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e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing,-excavation, pipe installation, backfilling,-and restoration

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area :mmed.-ately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock o

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements ofiheLonstructronStormwater General
Permit No. NCGO10000

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no practical
alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to
protected buffers. The buffer authorization certificates should be conditioned to incorporate
the best management practices proposed by the applicant intended to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. Furthermore, the buffer
authorization certificates should require demarcation of protected buffer with flagging or
signs prior to the initiation of construction and limiting operation of construction equipment
in buffers to only that necessary for clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and
restoration

(10) Mitigation. Persons who wish to undertake uses designated as allowable with
mitigation shall meet the following requirements in order to proceed with their
proposed use.

(a) Obtain a determination of “no practical alternatives” to the proposed use
pursuant to Item (8) of this Rule.
(b) Obtain approval for a mitigation proposal pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0242 [.260].

15A NCAC 02B .0242 and .0260 have been repealed and replaced with 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

As discussed above, the applicant has demonstrated that there is no practical alternative that
can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to protected buffers.
Due to the fact that the maintenance corridor for the proposed pipeline will have a width of
greater than 10 feet, all of the buffer impacts are considered “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses and subject to the buffer mitigation requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
However, impacts to wetlands within the buffers are not subject to the buffer mitigation
requirements and are regulated under 15A NCAC 02H .0506(h) as discussed above in section
(6) of the 401 WQC application review process. The buffer mitigation totals reflect the
removal of wetland areas within the buffer.

The applicant has proposed to obtain all buffer mitigation credits through the in-lieu fee
program with the Division of Mitigation Services (DMS). A letter addressed to the applicant
from DMS dated May 4, 2017 and renewed on October 6, 2017, states that DMS is willing to
accept payment for the buffer mitigation credits for the proposed project. DMS will
administer the mitigation credits in accordance with the In-Lieu Fee program instrument
dated July 28, 2010 and 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
buffer mitigation in accordance with the table below:
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Compensatory River &
— Mitigation Sub-basin Number
Amount Required
301,168 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020102
318,868 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020101
245,612 (square feet) Neuse 03020203
486,344 (square feet) Neuse 03020201

Buffers

Environmental Justice

One of the most common topics of the commenters was environmental justice. As discussed
above in the General Comments Section, many comments received expressed concerns
about environmental justice issues associated with pipeline’s construction and operation.
FERC’s Final Environmental Impact Statement determined, “as a result of the project, no
disproportionately high and adverse impacts on environmental justice populations as a result
of air quality impacts, including impacts associated with the proposed Compressor Station 2,
would be expected as a result of ACP and SHP. Also, no disproportionately high and adverse
impacts on environmental justice populations as a result of other resources impacts would
be expected.” Many commenters disagreed with this determination and requested that the
401 WQC be denied based on the potential environmental justice impacts.

The Director evaluates a 401 WQC application based on five criteria including a no practical
alternatives analysis, minimization of adverse impacts to surface waters, an analysis of the
degradation of groundwaters or surface waters, a cumulative impacts analysis, and
replacement of existing uses through mitigation. Environmental justice is not included in the
criteria upon which the Director must evaluate the application. Although environmental
justice is not an evaluation criteria, the Department has been intimately engaged with the
stakeholders of North Carolina through the permitting process.

On March 23, 2017, the Department hosted a stakeholder meeting in Raleigh, NC to provide
information and receive feedback on the proposed pipeline project. Eight environmental
organizations, four government agencies, and a representative of the Commission of Indian
Affairs were in attendance.

On July 18 and 20, 2017, the Department hosted 401 WQC Application Public Hearings. This
was to allow the citizens of North Carolina to comment on the certification. Notification of
the public hearings was provided in accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .0506(d) and (e). In
addition, the Division of Water Resources provided notices of the hearings by mailing flyers
in both English and Spanish to community organizations, such as churches, government and
non-government organizations, libraries, etc.

On August 9, 2017, the Department participated in an Environmental Justice Forum hosted
by the Haliwa-Saponi Indian Tribe and the North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs. The
forum allowed an opportunity for tribal leaders, commission members, state and federal
regulators, and other stakeholders to discuss information on the proposed Atlantic Coast
Pipeline.
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VI.

Between August 15 and 17, 2017, the Department hosted three listening sessions along the
proposed pipeline route to-obtain-additional public feedback on-the project. In addition to
the Department, the 'NC'ljébértment of Commerce, NC f)épartniéhf of Natural and Cultural
Resources, and the US Army Corp of Engineers were present. -

On October 20 and 21, 2017, the Department participated in the North-Carolina
Environmental Justice Network’s Summit. This allowed for the Department to provide a
summary of the permitting status of the project.

In addition to the various stakeholder engagements listed above, the Department has been
transparent with citizens who requested to sign up for the email news feed on the project, as
well as meetings with the Commission of Indian Affairs. The Department has been thorough
in its review of the applications submitted for the proposed Atlantic Coast Pipeline.

Summary

Public comments concerning the two public hearings focused on several major issue areas,
including the degradation of water quality, cumulative impacts, environmental justice,
sedimentation and erosion control, the permitting process, impacts on wildlife including
threatened and endangered species, and ground and surface water supply protection. Due
to the number of public comments, many of which expressed concerns on the same issues,
each comment is not addressed individually. Only comments that have direct relevance to
the certification decision have been addressed in the recommendations (Section V).

As stated above, a thorough review of all public comments received and the project record
has been conducted, and additional insight has been obtained through discussions with DWR
staff. Based on all of this information, it is my recommendation that the 401 Water Quality
Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates be issued and subject to the conditions
included in the recommendations in Section V. It is further recommended that DWR include
any additional conditions necessary to ensure that the project will meet state water quality
standards.

Vil. Appendices (available on Laserfiche)

A. May 8, 2017 401 Water Quality Certification Application
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: 401 Application
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/547515/Row1.aspx

B. Notice of Public Hearings —June 16-18, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice 06_16_2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547528/Pagel.aspx

C. Correction to Notice of Public Hearings — June 19-22, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice Correction 06_19 2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547588/Pagel.aspx
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D. July 18, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_FayettevilleHearing -Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552613/Pagel.aspx

E. July 18, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18 Fayetteville Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552611/Pagel.aspx

F. July 20, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMtHearing_Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553245/Pagel.aspx

G. July 20, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553247/Pagel.aspx

H. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_Fayetteville Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557323/Pagel.aspx

I. July 20, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557322/Pagel.aspx

J.  Written comments received during the comment period, including at the public
hearings
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: Public Notice Comments

b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/548242/Rowl.aspx
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Page 3
PROCEEDTINGS

MR. GREENE: Okay. Today's date is October 4,
2019. My name is Kevin Greene. Our company, Eagle
Intel Services is contracted with the North Carolina
General Assembly Subcommittee on the ACP for the
purpose of gathering and reporting information back to
the committee. We're recording this interview. I
would like to have each person present to state their
name, position and also to acknowledge that you
understand that this interview is being recorded. So
I'll start with my partner.

MR. BEERS: Tom Beers. Yes, I know it's being
recorded.

MR. LANE: Bill Lane, DEQ.

MS. BURDETTE: Jennifer Burdette. I
understand this is being recorded.

MR. HARGROVE: Drew Hargrove, DEQ.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. And Mr. Lane, would
you like to add something?

MR. LANE: Yes, thank you. This is Bill Lane,
General Counsel for DEQ. I'd like to clarify that this
interview will end -- we are starting at 9:02 a.m. it
will end no later than 10:00 a.m. It is being recorded
by audio by both parties. The questions in this

interview will be related to the witnesses' official
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Page 4
duties related to the 401 Water Quality Certification
for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. So there will
not be questions about the witnesses' work on other
projects or the witnesses' personal life.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you all.
We appreciate your time. We'll just start out. You've
already stated your name, Ms. Burdette, but, would you
give us a brief history of your employment with DEQ
just when you started and your positions that you had?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, I started, I believe in
2013 as the 401 and Buffer Coordinator for the 401 and
Buffer Permitting, maybe unit at that time, but
probably changed to branch while I was there.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: And I resigned to go to private
employment, maybe February of 2018, I believe the 1st,
February of 2018.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Thank you. So during
2017, all of 2017 and then just probably one or two
months into 2018, your official position was -- or your
official title was?

MS. BURDETTE: The 401 Buffer Coordinator.

MR. GREENE: 401 Buffer Coordinator. Thank
you. And in that position, what was your chain of

command? What department -- I'm assuming this is the
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Page 5
water quality, but can you give us a brief of what your
chain of command was?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, my supervisor was Karen
Higgins. And there were some changes as far as her
supervisor, but towards the end it was Jeff Poupart,
who was Chief of the -- I want to say chief of -- I
know there's so many different departments, I get
confused sometimes. But that was my chain.

Mr. GREENE: A lot of chiefs in the (cross
talk) .

MS. BURDETTE: It was Karen Higgins and then
Jeff Poupart was her superior.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you manage anyone?

MS. BURDETTE: ©No, I did not manage --

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: -- when I was here.

MR. GREENE: All right. And so Mr. Poupart
and Ms. Higgins, and you said there was a change, was
that Mr. Zimmerman?

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah, let's see. Okay, so then
above, Jeff would have been the director. And it's
been a while since I've been here. They changed a lot.
So, oh, wow, is his name escaping me, Tom Reeder
(phonetic) .

MR. GREENE: Okay.
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MS. BURDETTE: It was when I first got here,
then it was Jay Zimmerman after that.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Thank you.

MS. BURDETTE: Sorry, I don't remember those
names so well.

MR. GREENE: Well, we'll just go ahead and
start, what was your involvement? I guess your —-- your
duties with the ACP permitting process. Can you kind
of just give us a little bit of background on what you
did and describe what you did and how you did it?

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah, being the 401 Buffer
Coordinator in the central office I usually handled
individual permits. Those are the permits that are
elevated, not the routine nationwide permits for minor
projects. So I handled all the individual permits and
the buffer variances with the -- with the Environmental
Management Committee commission presenting those. When
this project first began, it was thought that it would
be an individual permit, because it was such a large
project. But the Corps of Engineers decided to process
it as a nationwide crossing several regions, it stayed
in my -- as my responsibility being in the central
office because it crossed those multiple regional
office territories.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. So an
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Page 7/
individual permit, 1s their differences and can you
explain those?

MS. BURDETTE: Sure. So the individual permit
refers to the Clean Water Act Section 404 Permitting.
And they, for those —-- those Section 404 permits are
divided, there's two, there's a few types, but the main
ones that they -- they deal with are nationwide permits
for very minor activities with impacts that are below a
threshold for what they consider gets elevated to a
Individual Permit. And the Corps of Engineers decides
which permit method they will use to permit a project.
And then the 401 certifies that permitting process that
the Corps now chooses to go through. That individual
permit process is a more rigorous review.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And are there different
standards within the states? I mean, you have the
Corps of Engineers, do they have their standards and do
the states have their regulatory standards? Or is it
all the same?

MS. BURDETTE: I'm not sure I follow you.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Help me out a little bit.

MR. GREENE: So the Corps of Engineers, they
make the decision as to what's going to be an

individual permit.
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MS. BURDETTE: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: And then as an individual permit,
the state has certain regulations for that 401 permit.

MS. BURDETTE: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: So do those vary across state
lines?

MS. BURDETTE: Don't -- I mean, I'm sure they
do. They're -- all the states are different.

MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. BURDETTE: You know, as far as how they
handle the 401 --

MR. GREENE: But North Carolina has their set
of I don't know what you call it, regulations or --

MS. BURDETTE: Sure, rules and rules.

MR. GREENE: -- that rules that you would
follow?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: All right. And you've already
kind of touched on it, how it works. But kind of go
through the 401 certification process. What has to be
done? We're aware, we'll get into some of this other
stuff like the hearing officers report. But just kind
of give us a general background of specifically
regarding the ACP permit, 401 permit, what had to be

done?
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MS. BURDETTE: Well, we review the project to
make sure it meets the six criteria that are listed in
the rule for issuance of a water quality certification.
Those are well; practical alternatives, minimizing and
avoiding impacts, mitigation, degradation of surface
water and groundwater, cumulative and secondary
impacts, How many did I just list? There are six,
like I'm missing one.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Oh, storm water controls,
that's it -- very good, storm water controls are on
site storm water for post construction, storm water
treatment.

MR. GREENE: So is there a first step in
starting all this, it seems like a lot of stuff to do-?
What would you normally start with?

MS. BURDETTE: Well, we start with reviewing
the application for its completeness. Did we have all
the information that we need to review the project to -
- to apply those six criteria that I listed. There's
also -- well, it's a -- there are also public notice
requirements, 1t was decided to process this as an
individual permit. So that requires a public notice.
And reviewing the project and getting that public input

as part of that review process.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. And how i1s the public
notice and their input? How's that affect what you
were doing?

MS. BURDETTE: So we conducted two public
hearings. And we collected comments from the public
and of course, comments during the public hearing, and
then comment, written comments that were submitted
during that comment period. We reviewed all those
comments, categorized them as to whether they were
duplicate, you know, the different issues that were
brought up. And then we considered all those comments
in reviewing those six criteria in our review.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So that the application,
do you recall when the application was first submitted
in this -- in the ACP 40172

MS. BURDETTE: I don't really recall the date.
I'm sorry.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Prior to the
application process, were you involved in the ACP
project, prior to them filing a formal application?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes. So applicants have the
ability to ask for what they call pre-application
consultation. And so we had meetings with the Corps of
Engineers, me as a representative of the Division of

Water Resources, and meetings at the Corps of Engineers
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office, just being introduced to the project, general
questions about the project, and just some, some
familiarity with -- with how (phonetic) FERC (phonetic)
you know, their projects are processed and guidance for
how to comply with our roles.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you know, when that
began?

MS. BURDETTE: I base that on the project
number that is given, those are based on the year in
which they were started, and that was 2014.

MR. GREENE: 2014. So between 2014, and I
think the application was filed in May of 2017. Does
that sound right to you? We can go back and look, but

MS. BURDETTE: I -- it was, it was later on, I
remember that.

MR. GREENE: Right. So during that whole
process, 1is —-- you called it 1like a pre-application
type screening, or --

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah. So there's a lot of
information they need to collect, in order to apply for
a permit. They need to delineate the surface waters
and wetlands. And in there, we also have that
overlapping program of the riparian buffer rules. And

so they came to talk to us back in 2014, I believe,
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before they had completed all of their fieldwork and
assessments of natural resources. And you know, they
delineate, then they meet with the Corps of Engineers,
and the Corps of Engineers verifies that their
delineation is accurate. And then an overlapping step
is the riparian buffer rules that each stream that is -
- that is applicable to the buffer rules has to be
verified that it's subject or not subject. So that
took quite a bit of time. So a lot of that time period
was them completing their fieldwork, and those
verification process of the -- of their accuracy of
their delineations and subjectivity.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So I guess, I'm trying to
understand it is -- so they're trying to get the
information to put in the application for review, so
they're working with you to do that, or they're working
with DEQ in this case, the Water Quality Division to do
that up front.

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: That makes sense.

MS. BURDETTE: They basically come to find out
what, you know, what is subject and --

MR. GREENE: Right.
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MR. GREENE: So do they have an understanding,

I think you mentioned those six, those six crit
that you look at. Do they have an understandin
each and every one of those at that point in ti

MS. BURDETTE: I don't recall whether

discussed each of those criteria at that time.

eria
g of
me?

we

MR. GREENE: Okay. And this is kind of -- as

a general question. But, have you had experien
dealing with similar projects of this size?

MS. BURDETTE: While at DWR, no.

MR. GREENE: Okay. I'm assuming this
kind of the most significant or largest project
guess, how would you categorize this project?
you categorize it by size, you categorize it by
work that has to be done?

MS. BURDETTE: From geographic extent,
definitely a large project.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Okay. That makes
And this project, compared to others that you w
on, what were some of the variances or what wer
of the things that may have differed from other

projects?

ce

was the
, I
As would

the

it was

sense.

orked

e some

MS. BURDETTE: Well, it's linear nature. A

lot of linear projects, are more transportation
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projects that are in a different group, than the group
I was in. There's a separate transportation unit that
handles those. So most of my experience was from a
single footprint project more than a linear project.

MR. GREENE: Like roadways and stuff would be
linear?

MS. BURDETTE: Roadways and utility lines.

And lots of utility lines, although they're linear,
they don't cover the same geographic extent. So they
would have been handled in the -- in the regional
office, as opposed to the central office, because they
were nationwide permits that were of a small scale.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And because this, the
magnitude of this project, were there different methods
of approvals? Were there different strategies as how
to deal with it than other projects?

MS. BURDETTE: As an individual permit, it --
it had the additional, the six criteria applies to both
general certifications and individual permits. The
difference being the public involvement, the public
hearings and the public comment would be the
difference.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And so when you had those
public hearings, and you get the comments, then those

have to be addressed within the permitting process?
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MS. BURDETTE: Yes, the hearing officer's
report addresses those.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And who was the hearing
officer in this -- in the ACP project?

MS. BURDETTE: Brian Wrenn.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And you -- did you work
closely with Brian Wrenn?

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah.

MR. GREENE: How does that relationship in
your position and the hearing officer, how does that, I
guess you say, how does that mesh?

MS. BURDETTE: Well, we participated in the
public hearings. He was the hearing officer. I
presented just a background overview of the project.
When it came to reviewing the project, we did consult
as far as meeting those six criteria and how each
comment related to the six criteria required for
reviewing the projects. Provided information that was
-- that was also, you know, provided for the permit
application to make sure that Brian had all the
information regarding the application.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall how many
public comments you had?

MS. BURDETTE: No I don't, actually.

MR. GREENE: Do you recall what the primary
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concerns or comments were or positive or negative for
the pipeline?

MS. BURDETTE: One comment was about the
necessity of the project for energy policy was probably
an overarching one we received.

MR. GREENE: What energy policy, what did you
(cross talk)

MS. BURDETTE: Oh, as in the public, not
believing that North Carolina should invest in this
infrastructure or allow this investment in
infrastructure and in fossil fuels.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall any other
comments?

MS. BURDETTE: Oh, yeah. Water quality
concerns about the extent of the project, the number of
crossings, the amount of impacts -- I mean stream
crossings and wetland crossings that is. Safety was
another issue that came up. Water, groundwater wells,
people being concerned about their wells being affected
by construction of the project. Issues with sediment
erosion control, you know, degradation of downstream
water quality from construction of the project. And
operations too.

MR. GREENE: Were there concerns by these

public hearings about the cumulative and secondary
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impacts?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: And can you kind of summarize
what those concerns were?

MS. BURDETTE: That the project would, that
not just the construction of the project itself, but
the -- constructing the project, it would result in
additional development that would have an impact on
water quality.

MR. GREENE: And how did you address that, as
one of those issues, how do you make a determination or
what's the criteria to make a determination on the
cumulative impact?

MS. BURDETTE: So the cumulative impact is
tied to additional development that would have an
impact on water quality. And we have a guidance policy
that we used at the time to evaluate that. We went
with a gqualitative review.

MR. GREENE: Can you explain that a little
bit?

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah. So I mean, from —-- I
mean, I only remember, it's a -- I haven't looked at
this in a long time. But looked at, I asked them to
provide an analysis of what they anticipated from

secondary development resulting from the project. We
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learned that the project, through the process that
transmission line, not anybody can tap into a
transmission line, anywhere along the line. So we
focused on the metering stations, there were three
metering stations that were here in North Carolina, as
that's where development could actually have access to
the, to the new gas that was being provided. And we
asked for them to out -- and provide an analysis of
that.

MR. GREENE: They being the ACP partners?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, the ACP, the applicant to,
to look through and predict what type of development
they expected. And then through back and forth, to
then relate that development to whether it would impact
water quality or not. And that related to, you know,
were there already storm water controls in place for —--
that would protect water quality from that additional
development. And then also looking at 303D streams,
streams that are impaired, quality impaired to make
sure that that those were protected.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So you focused around the
metering stations primarily for the impact. And those
were, do you recall where those were?

MS. BURDETTE: Was it Johnston, Cumberland,

and Robeson.
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MR. GREENE: Thank you. What about the
environmental justice? How did that play into the
permitting process?

MS. BURDETTE: Because it wasn't part of the
six criteria, we looked to the department to assist us
with the environmental justice aspect. And we did
participate in some public meetings, what we called
listening sessions. I can't honestly remember if I
went to them or not, I went to -- I went to some, it
blurs, I can't remember. But that wasn't within our
six criteria that that we reviewed, that I remember.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And you look to the
department regarding that, so it's not within the six
criteria, but it's necessary?

MS. BURDETTE: It was certainly, from an
overall standpoint, considered. And we -- I do
remember, our department assisting with outreach,
sending, basically sending notices to -- everywhere
along the pipeline, about the public hearings.
Reaching out more than our usual advertisements for a
public hearing, but actually sending notices to
churches and post offices and basically any community
center that was along the pipeline to make sure people
understood we were having these meetings and had the

opportunity to speak.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. Can you define
environmental justice?

MS. BURDETTE: Sure. That projects aren't
sited in areas where there are minority, economically
minority or, or culturally minority people who -- that
the project isn't located on the property. That is --
all right, I am stammering -- that is --

MR. GREENE: Yeah. Take your time. That's
fine.

MS. BURDETTE: That is -- where there's a
preponderance of those populations, and that those
folks are considered.

MR. GREENE: Okay. As you said, it's not a
requirement for the Department, correct, the
environmental justice. Or was the department did they
make that a requirement? In any way to make this a
condition?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't know.

MR. GREENE: No.

MS. BURDETTE: I mean, I -- to be honest, I
did, I did not, I was much more peripherally involved
with that aspect than reviewing the project from a very
technical standpoint over the six criteria.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So vyou can't speak to

that how the department's policies were put into play
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with this permit?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't remember. I mean, I'm
sure it was discussed and I'm sure it was around when
it was discussed. But it wasn't my primary
responsibility. So I don't recall -- other than those
listening sessions and outreach.

MR. GREENE: Who was —-- whose primary
responsibility was that?

MS. BURDETTE: The department I believed.

MR. GREENE: Was there a single individual
assigned for that duty?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't recall, other than the
Public Information Officer being involved, Bridget
Munger, but I don't, I can't tell you whether that was
her responsibility, or whether she was just a point
person I remember.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you know how much time
you spent on environmental justice?

MS. BURDETTE: Myself, it was mostly -- I did
attend one meeting with the -- all right, I'm going to
-- try not to butcher their name, Halo Wasapony
(phonetic), 1is that right. Did I get that right?
Tribe. They hosted a meeting and an information session
and I attended that one. And I can't remember, I don't

believe I attended the listening sessions. I don't
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remember.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Thank you.

MS. BURDETTE: I mean, I did the public
hearing. So, I -- I don't think there were follow up
listening sessions, and I don't believe I participated
in it. But I may have, I can't -- I do not remember.

MR. GREENE: And kind of backing up a little
bit the process, the timing of it, the process to
complete or to deny the certification.

MS. BURDETTE: Uh-huh.

MR. GREENE: Can you give us a brief
background on that?

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah. So when an applicant
submits an application, we have a 60 day time clock for
reviewing that application. And unless we find that
there's additional information needed for the project
to review the application. And whenever we asked for
additional information, it, it, it resets that clock.
Well, that clock doesn't reset until the applicant
provides the additional information that was requested.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And in this case, you had
multiple requests for additional information.

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: Do you recall how many?

MS. BURDETTE: ©Not exactly, but I estimate
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three or four felt like it was but there was quite a
bit of back and forth where there was addendums to
additional information provided that makes a little --

MR. GREENE: All right. And do you -- do you
recall what those requests involved like for each one?

MS. BURDETTE: I remember the later ones more
than I remember the early ones.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: I remember one issue being
their proposal or their plans for completing the
crossings in the dry. And you know, that would be
pumping the water around as they completed these
crossings that we had quite a bit of back and forth
about that. Also about minimizing the impact to well -
- you know can you adjust the alignment this direction
or that direction to have less wetland impact, or
less, you know, fewer stream crossings. That was one.
And then we also had a -- one of -- one of our
additional informations was after the public comment
period where we went through and basically anything we
hadn't asked about before that the public brought up,
we made sure to ask the applicant to address those
comments that were of public concern, I don't know.
And then, of course, I believe the last one was more

about the, that secondary and cumulative impact
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analysis.

MR. GREENE: ©Now , do they have an
understanding of -- they obviously have an
understanding of what's required during the process.

So is it something that in the first information
requests, you were trying to gather information or
gather questions that needed to be answered and combine
it all in one request? Or do you, and would you
intentionally have different requests for different I
guess, questions of like cumulative impact, or the Dry
Creek (phonetic) stuff? Would you categorize it? Or
would it all be like -- you could do it one request?

MR. LANE: Can you clarify that just a little.
That was a long question.

MR. GREENE: I'm sorry.

MR. LANE: Maybe break it down.

MR. GREENE: To clarify it. Could everything,
every request for additional information be put in one
request?

MS. BURDETTE: ©Not always. Sometimes the
information the applicant provides you have additional
questions. And the, that we would, you know, when we
get additional information would lead to further
questions. I can't say that once in a while you would

-- you would add something that you may have seen but -






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 25
- or may have been in there, but you didn't notice
before and you go ahead and ask about it.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you participate in the
weekly staff meetings?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: And when did they start in the
process?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't remember.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And what were the --

MS. BURDETTE: And I frankly didn’t remember
they were weekly either. Sorry.

MR. GREENE: Okay. That's okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Let me just correct that. I
mean, I knew we -- I knew we had them regularly, but I
couldn't remember that, it's they were what, you know
whether it was weekly or not.

MR. GREENE: Right. Was that normal or was
that something that was a little bit different from
other permitting projects that you worked on?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, that was an additional
part of the process.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: But for the size of the project
and the number of department -- or excuse me divisions

that were involved in the -- this project.
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MR. GREENE: And, I believe there is at one
point the secretary's office asked you to -- or asked
each department to notify them prior to sending
communications to the applicant, do you recall that?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't remember. I mean in
general, no. I mean I don't remember specifically like
when that was required, when it wasn't or I know
towards the end we were coordinating more but I don't
remember the process other than Jeff Poupart signing
those letters and it going up that chain of command.

MR. GREENE: Who would normally sign them?

MS. BURDETTE: Karen Higgins usually signs
most of the..

MR. GREENE: Requests for additional
information?

MS. BURDETTE: Right.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And you Jjust mentioned the
coordination of the departments more towards the end,
what do you mean by that?

MS. BURDETTE: Just that we would have those
meetings and they would ask where you are in your
process, you know. Are you —-- do you need more
information for your review? Have you asked for it?
Have you got it back it, you know, and a lot of that

too was also coordination with those public meetings --
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the planning and set up for those public meetings.

MR. GREENE: Did you ever meet with anyone --
did you ever meet with the secretary or someone in the
secretary's office regarding the ACP?

MS. BURDETTE: Tell me who is -- who would
that be? I know I just forgot my division director's
name.

MR. GREENE: Yeah. Secretary Reagan,
Assistant Secretary Nicholson I believe at that time.

MS. BURDETTE: He was part of —-- I recall him
being part of some that one listening session we had.
Sheila Holman, I can't remember what she -- what her
title was.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Was she in the secretary's
office? No, I don't know. I'm sorry, I don't
remember.

MR. GREENE: Was she like assistant director
of the division or something?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, that sounds familiar.

MR. GREENE: Okay. I'm not 100 percent sure
of that.

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah I mean these were, these
were meetings with a lot of folks gathered around the

table that were part of it and who led them? Maybe it
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was Sheila? I don't remember. I mean I know Sheila
was there, Sheila Holman.

MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. BURDETTE: But I don't recall whether she
led them or..

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: She did towards the end I do
remember but..

MR. GREENE: What about the governor's office?
Do you have any contact regarding the ACP, regarding
anyone inside the governor's office?

MS. BURDETTE: Not that I know of. I mean,
not unless I misunderstood somebody's position.

MR. GREENE: All right. Did you -- were you
aware that a draft denial letter was prepared?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: Can you tell us a little bit
about why and when that was prepared?

MS. BURDETTE: So the hearing officer's report
is prepared and in order to not -- the decision is
ultimately the division director's decision. And as
support for that, and I believe Karen Higgins wrote the
draft denial, we provide both a denial and an approval
for the division director to make their decision based

on reviewing the hearing officer's report as to whether
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they chose to.

MR. GREENE: 1Is that a normal practice?

MS. BURDETTE: It is with individual projects
that have a public hearing and a hearing officer's
report.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you know when that was
prepared?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't remember.

MR. BEERS: Okay. The draft denial, there's a
copy in the public documents, there's really no -- if
you look at this. Have you seen the draft denial?

MS. BURDETTE: I'm sure I have before.

MR. BEERS: Okay. There's really no
information that's for the reasoning for denying the
permit. So and I've just handed her a copy to look at.
So the question I have, the hearing officer's report 1is
pretty detailed. It explains all the criteria that's
been reviewed and analyzed. Do you have any reason to
believe that this permit could possibly be denied at
the point that this denial letter was given? Do you
personally believe that it could have happened?

MR. LANE: Professionally.

MR. BEERS: Professionally, from your
experience with these permits and all the information

that has gone into this. 1Is it -- even a chance that
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the permit would be denied?

MR. LANE: If you know. I'm sorry. Are you
done reviewing the letter?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. BEERS: This is just to show you that
there is really no information..

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah.

MR. BEERS: There is no cause for a denial put
into the letter.

MR. LANE: Remember, she's here to present
facts.

MR. BEERS: Absolutely.

MR. LANE: And not beliefs or opinions.

MR. BEERS: All right. 1In your professional
opinion, was there a need for a draft denial letter at
the time that the hearing officer's report was
submitted?

MS. BURDETTE: My review determined that the
project met the six criteria for the issuance of a 401.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So according to the rules
of the permit then a permit would have been granted
based on supplying the correct information?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. BEERS: So I guess you could conclude that

they wouldn't have denied that the permit based on what
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you've just said.

MS. BURDETTE: Well, you know how rules are.
Everybody interprets it.

MR. BEERS: I'm just asking you for the --
what is the real need for this letter if they'd met all
the criteria and you know it was going to be granted?

MS. BURDETTE: My understanding of that was --
that it wasn't our ultimate decision.

MR. BEERS: Whose ultimate decision was it?

MS. BURDETTE: The director.

MR. BEERS: Which would be?

MS. BURDETTE: Jay Zimmerman, Jay Zimmerman.
Is Jay still around?

MR. GREENE: I think at that time it was Ms.
Culpepper (cross talk).

MS. BURDETTE: I'm sorry they change and
(cross talk) yes I am probably confusing. Maybe it was
Linda at that time. I -- we -- they change those guys
a bit but that role is the director of the Division of
Water Resources.

MR. BEERS: So could she have denied the
permit just without even though all the criteria had
been met, according to the rules?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't know. I mean.

MR. BEERS: You didn't have a discussion with
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anyone about this denial letter?

MS. BURDETTE: Other than what I've already
told you that it's prepared routinely when these
projects have hearing officer's report because the
ultimate decision isn't at staff level but at the
director level.

MR. BEERS: So you have personally seen these
drafted in other cases?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. BEERS: In your professional experience.
Okay. So this is a routine document that's always put
up.

MS. BURDETTE: 1It's -- to not be presumptive.

MR. BEERS: Right. So just another question.
There is no one that basically instructed you or Ms.
Higgins to prepare this out of the ordinary?

MS. BURDETTE: No.

MR. GREENE: Okay. How many of those have you
seen roughly?

MS. BURDETTE: I can think of two besides the
Atlantic Coast Pipeline.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. BEERS: And were those -- on those two was
it, was it before one certification issued?

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah. Yes and I don't
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remember.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: I wasn't involved in one
project that I was aware that there was a denial letter
that -- I wasn't processing that project. So..

MR. BEERS: How many 401 permits have you been
involved with in the course of your career?

MS. BURDETTE: Gosh, I don't know. I mean I
don't have an estimate of that.

MR. BEERS: So more than the three or the
three denial letters that you've seen.

MS. BURDETTE: I mean, it was easily -- wait a
minute I'm sorry.

MR. BEERS: So I guess the question.

MS. BURDETTE: (cross talk) Clarify that one
more time for me to make sure I understood.

MR. BEERS: Okay. You've been involved with
numerous 401 permits?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. BEERS: To the point where you don't
remember exactly how many.

MS. BURDETTE: Yes. Those are the more
individual certifications that are..

MR. BEERS: Right.

MS. BURDETTE: That don't require public
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hearing level --

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: -- projects and don't have
those hearing officer reports and that aspect of the
review.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So how many have you been
involved with actually had that type of review, hearing
officer's report?

MS. BURDETTE: Two.

MR. BEERS: Two? And they were the ones that
you saw the draft denial letters placed so that's
routine for those types of 401 permits?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes. When there's a public
hearing, vyes.

MR. GREENE: All right okay. Want to talk a
little bit about the final few weeks of the process and
when the hearing officer's report was submitted, I
believe you had a chance to review it and do you recall
what date you received the hearing officer's report?

MS. BURDETTE: ©No, I don't.

MR. GREENE: Okay. We'wve reviewed several of
the e-mails that were provided via the public record
and it said. This is on January 4, Brian Wrenn
completes. Brian Wrenn is the hearing officer.

MS. BURDETTE: Uh-huh.
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MR. GREENE: (Inaudible) his report he sends
it to Higgins and Burdette, it's on January 4. And did
you review those that hearing officer's report at that
particular time?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't specifically remember
but I should have.

MR. GREENE: Okay. That's fine. Let's go
back to December. Or let's just add this question, at
what time did you think a decision would be made on the
401 permit?

MS. BURDETTE: When we received all the
information and had completed our review of the six
criteria.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you know when that
would have been?

MS. BURDETTE: I mean I don't remember.

MR. GREENE: Here are some of your notes T
want to show you from 1/3 and it's got the dates at the
bottom, I've just highlighted those and this is all
coming from the staff files that are made for public
records. Are those your notes?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, they are.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And at the bottom down
there, where it says -- I just think -- received, add

information, received or something with those dates,
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would that be what you're referring to is when you
received the information?

MS. BURDETTE: They would have been what I had
received by the time, of course, this was written in
January.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Were there other requests
made outside of that?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, I believe that this --
that there were additional requests for information or
request to supplement additional information or provide
addend (phonetic) information we'd already received.

MR. GREENE: We've heard the term true-up.
What is that?

MS. BURDETTE: What's that again?

MR. GREENE: True-up, to finalize the numbers?

MS. BURDETTE: Oh, I have not heard true-up
myself.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So you're not familiar
with that term?

MS. BURDETTE: Not that term. No.

MR. GREENE: What would you call -- I guess
verification of their figures -- maybe just a request
for verification.

MS. BURDETTE: Yes. Right, vyes.

MR. GREENE: Before the final.
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MS. BURDETTE: Well, sometimes when projects
are very large and there are a lot of different impacts
and, you know, we're talking about numbers of, you
know, adding up a lot of individual numbers, we will
commonly —-- not commonly. Usually it's only in that
circumstance where you have, you know, one or two
impacts we don't need somebody to tell us we have the
right number. But when you have such -- so many
different impacts we have before sent it to the
applicant and said, is this is what you thought your
total numbers were going to be? Just to reduce errors
and mistakes as far as tallying and accounting of those
individual impacts.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you have direct
conversations with the applicant's representatives?

MS. BURDETTE: I didn't. I believe Karen took
care of that.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you know Spencer
Trichell?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: And what was his position?

MS. BURDETTE: He worked for Dominion at the
end. In the beginning, he worked for, I believe, a
consultant and he went to work for Dominion after that.

MR. GREENE: Okay did -- what was his position
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relating to your duties and the 401 processing?

MS. BURDETTE: He was the primary point of
contact with Dominion about the application and the
additional information requests.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And your phone log was
also provided as public record and there's multiple
calls from him.

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. GREENE: And to him and so forth. So do
you recall that you were talking to him on a regular
basis? How would you categorize the contact and the
context of those calls?

MS. BURDETTE: I would say more maybe sporadic

that it depended on, you know, the -- it was on a --
well, it was on a regular basis. I talked to him
plenty, you know, back and forth. It was usually some

question or clarification of what, you know, what
specifically were we asking for, what do we mean, what
-- whether guidance as to what data or what
documentation we needed specifically to fulfill, you
know, our application requirements. Those kinds of
general.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall sending him
an e-mail?

MS. BURDETTE: Okay.
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MR. GREENE: Do you have those e-mails?

MR. BEERS: Yes, which ones?

MR. GREENE: The last one. That's 1it. Is it

the one to Trichell. No. There was a request for

information..

MR. BEERS: Oh you're talking about the true-

up ones?

MR. GREENE: Correct. Sorry.

MS. BURDETTE: That's fine.

MR. GREENE: The case generated a lot of

documents.

MS. BURDETTE: Oh my gosh. And then that e-

mail chain.

MR. GREENE: Yes and we certainly appreciate

all the work.

MR. BEERS: Yeah.

MR. GREENE: It was Higgins, doing those.

Okay. This timeline, you want to do it?

MR. BEERS: Yeah, so let's see. Just coming

back to the permitting process. There's a series of e-

mails between all DEQ I think they are almost internal

between Higgins,

yourself, Wrenn. And the first ones

starts off and -- we don't have a lot of time but it

starts off on December 14th. And this is an e-mail
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from Karen Higgins to Bridgette I think it's
Culpepper's assistant. She's trying to schedule a
meeting with you, yourself, Mr. Wrenn to go over a
hearing officer's report, trying to schedule for
January 4th. So it looks 1like you are getting ready to
approve the 401 permit.

MR. LANE: Can we get copies of these.

MR. GREENE: We can give copies when we are
done. Just want to put it back in the right file.

MS. BURDETTE: Do I need to look through all
of these or?

MR. BEERS: You don't have to -- I can just --
I can just go over this. We're running out of time so
I'm going to just go through. So on the 14th this e-
mail is sent out to, it looks like they tried to set up
a meeting with the director to basically go over the
hearing officer's report which would be the pretty much
the end of the permitting process, correct? Getting
towards the end.

MS. BURDETTE: Sure. Fair.

MR. BEERS: So it looks like it's got all your
information and that's on December 14th. And then it
moves on to, let's see..

MR. GREENE: I think we mentioned the January

4 that you got, received the hearing officer's report?
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MR. Beers: So I think you got all your
information. You're expecting to get this information.
It looks like from Dominion by -- I don't know at some
point -- I don't know at some point. According to the
documents you got everything you needed by December
20th. And you were looking to move forward probably to
review the permit.

MS. BURDETTE: I don't believe we had
everything we needed by December 20th.

MR. Beers: Well, everything dated that you
asked them for, for the first -- the 20th -- according
to the hearing officer's report, that was the last
receipt of information. And then January 3rd you are
reviewing the hearing officer's report. And January
4th looks like you're getting ready to meet with Ms.
Culpepper to go over the -- and then somehow the e-
mails looks like you're going to actually do it on next
Monday the 8th to actually meet with Culpepper to talk
about this. So I guess the question, you're moving
forward, you have it in the process and then it looks
like through the e-mails that Bridget Munger makes a
request from Brian Wrenn to instead of sending the
report to Culpepper to send it to her to the director's
office. Do you recall any conversation about why?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't recall that.
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MR. BEERS: It would go around the secretary's
office instead of the normal process.

MS. BURDETTE: I don't recall the finalization
of the hearing officer's report. I mean, I..

MR. BEERS: So okay.

MR. GREENE: And you were still in your
position in January. You said you think you left in
February?

MS. BURDETTE: I think I left the 1lst of
February.

MR. GREENE: So do you recall the issuance of
the 401 certification?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes, I do.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And I think it was
officially signed on the 26th.

MS. BURDETTE: Okay.

MR. GREENE: Of January. During this time
period, what normally takes place? Once the hearing
officer's report is received and reviewed, how long
does it normally take before the permit is issued?

MS. BURDETTE: Well, it depends on workload
and what all else is going on at the time. I did go
back and review just those last few additional
information that was sent. And you know we don't wait

to begin working on drafts or anything till the very,
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very end. Those issues and items there is a lot of
standard conditions that go in there that are very
routine, and so you know, we were working on the letter
but that didn't mean we didn't have some additional
information that we hadn't quite received and got
enough what we felt was enough of a documentation and
answer about and if I -- which I believe is a
cumulative impact analysis I feel like it was the last
thing.

MR. GREENE: It was.

MS. BURDETTE: It was the last piece that we
felt like we didn't gquite have everything we needed to
say 1t met that criteria.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. BEERS: Okay Can I follow up on that? That
last request I think was made November 28. I can show
you this document.

MS. BURDETTE: Okay.

MR. BEERS: But that's what it shows in the
documents but..

MS. BURDETTE: Sure.

MR. BEERS: In Ms. Higgins' note she has a
rough timeline of when she thinks this is at that point
in time at December -- this is November 20th. She

looks 1like anticipating that when she believes the
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permits will be issued and the hearing officer's report
will be complete. But that actually gets extended
because another request goes out on November 28th. Do
you recall conversations from Ms. Higgins or why that,
you know, from that point it looks like things were
rolling on fast. Why did this extra information
request go out on the 28th because at that point in
time it looks like you were planning on moving forward
with the hearing officer's report?

MS. BURDETTE: I think this was just planning
and...

MR. BEERS: Right. But was there some -- so
the additional request on the 28 for the cumulative
impact that's the last one, who is -- who decided to
make that request?

MS. BURDETTE: Karen and I both looked over
that particular criteria of the permit.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: And based on public comments
and -- I will say that we with our individual projects
we —-— I didn't have as much experience with the
secondary and cumulative impact analysis. And we
looked into it and felt like we didn't really have the
information we needed to say for sure that it would not

have a secondary and cumulative impact without
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additional information from the applicant. And we
wanted to be very sure that we met our obligation to
make sure the project met the rules.

MR. BEERS: So that was -- you and Karen made
that decision?

MS. BURDETTE: We consulted with Brian Wrenn
on that. Brian Wrenn had more transportation
experience.

MR. BEERS: So the three of you consulted
together? It wasn’t someone above in the secretary's
office, director's office who said, "Hey, go look into
this."

MS. BURDETTE: No, that was Karen and I.

MR. BEERS: That was your (cross talk).

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah, leaning on Brian because
he had more transportation experience 1in linear
projects. And more secondary and cumulative impact
analysis experience.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Based on his previous history.

MR. GREENE: And I think here's a 11/28 note
from yours and you're talking about a disconnect
between the benefit claimed in the ICE. ICE what does
ICE stand for?

MS. BURDETTE: What is it? Cumulative —-- it's
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part of the -- yeah.

MR. BEERS: Part of what you're talking about.
Yes.

MS. BURDETTE: Yeah part of cumulative impact
analysis. I can't remember what those letters stand
for exactly.

MR. Lane: Can she take a look at what you are
looking at--

MR. BEERS: Yeah. And I believe we've got the
ST, I'm assuming those were the initials that you made
for Spencer Trichell.

MS. BURDETTE: Okay. Let me see here. Okay
this was a --

MR. BEERS: And I believe it says —-- he says
it's speculative or what does it say there?

MS. BURDETTE: Oh yeah Spencer, ST, says very
speculative.

MR. BEERS: And then what's under that?

MS. BURDETTE: I replied that it should be
speculative. And that's the -- referring to the
analysis. You know you are speculating on what might
happen. It's not known. I believe they provided a lot
of -- for their first response to the cumulative impact
analysis was they provided a lot of known projects, you

know, on the books as far as in planning and those
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kinds of things. And they thought that was enough and
we said well no, your analysis needs to include a more
robust analysis —-- a more robust evaluation of what you
expect development wise from this project.

MR. GREENE: Who was they?

MS. BURDETTE: Well, the applicant you know
believed they had provided what they needed.

MR. BEERS: Right.

MS. BURDETTE: And we were explaining that
they needed to elaborate on that.

MR. BEERS: And that's between you, Wrenn and
Higgins felt that it was necessary to elaborate on
that?

MS. BURDETTE: Yes.

MR. BEERS: Were there any other factors or
any other individuals that were encouraging to do that?

MS. BURDETTE: No, not that I remember. This
was a checking our boxes and making sure we had

completely reviewed everything and had all the data we

needed.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MR. LANE: You've got two minutes.

MR. BEERS: Yes sir, thank you. Were you ever
-- did you ever have —-- express any or did you have

concerns that the project permitting process was
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dragging or taking longer than it should?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't remember. I mean it
did take a long time. I don't remember other than
just..

MR. BEERS: Did you ever hear anyone say that
the Departments or the Department is putting up
barriers?

MS. BURDETTE: Not that I remember.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. BURDETTE: Other than all applicants you
know sort of gripe about how long -- I mean that --

MR. BEERS: Within the department, not the
applicant itself but that the department was putting up
barriers for the permitting process.

MS. BURDETTE: No, not that I remember.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Did you ever have any
conversations with anyone regarding concerns that it
was taking a long time?

MS. BURDETTE: I don't remember. I mean other
than, you know, just status, where are you, or what's
next, I mean sorry the applicant is all I remember of
them of course being anxious to get through the process
but I don't remember the department being --

MR. BEERS: Were you aware of a mitigation

fund outside of DEQ?
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MS. BURDETTE: I did not hear anything about
that until I left, through the news.

MR. BEERS: Okay. I think -- do you have
anything further?

MR. GREENE: No. I think we're --

MR. BEERS: We're right on the button here and
we certainly appreciate your time.

MR. GREENE: Yes, thank you very much.

MS. BURDETTE: You're welcome.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. And the current time
is 9 -- 10 o'clock on the dot and I'm going to turn the
recorders off.

MR. BEERS: Yeah, we'll figure out getting
copies.

MR. LANE: Yeah, we'll reorganize them and use
whatever you can. These are all public documents.

MR. BEERS: Yeah, I understand that's fine.

MR. GREENE: We do appreciate your time.

Thank you very, very much.

MS. BURDETTE: Oh, you're welcome.
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ROY COOPER

Governor

MICHAEL S. REGAN

Secretary

LINDA CULPEPPER

Water Resources
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY Interim Director

January XX, 2018

DWR # 14-0957 v2

Northampton, Halifax, Nash,
Wilson, Johnston, Sampson,
Cumberland and Robeson Counties

CERTIFIED MAIL: XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Attn: Ms. Leslie Hartz
707 E. Main Street, 19" Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Subject: DENIAL OF 401 WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND TAR-PAMLICO/NEUSE RIPARIAN
BUFFER AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATES
Atlantic Coast Pipeline
USACE Action ID. No. SAW-2014-01558

Dear Ms. Hartz:

On May 9, 2017, the Division of Water Resources (Division) received your application requesting a 401
Water Quality Certification and Tar-Pamlico and Neuse Riparian Buffer Authorization Certificates from
the Division for the subject project. Pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H .0506, a certification shall be issued
when the Director determines that water quality standards are met. Pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0233
(8) and .0259 (8), a Buffer Authorization Certificate shall be granted when the Division determines there
is no practical alternative. The project has not met the following requirements:

e Rule Citation
“Rule text...”
Explanation...

In accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .0507(e), 15A NCAC 02B .0233(8), and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(8), your
application for a 401 Water Quality Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates are hereby
denied.

This decision can be contested as provided in General Statute 150B by filing a written petition for an
administrative hearing to the Office of Administrative Hearings (hereby known as OAH) within sixty (60)
calendar days.

State of North Carolina | Environmental Quality | Water Resources
1617 Mail Service Center | Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1617
919 807 6300





Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
DWR# 14-0957 v2

Denial

Page 2 of 2

A petition form may be obtained from the OAH at http://www.ncoah.com/ or by calling the OAH Clerk’s
Office at (919) 431-3000 for information. A petition is considered filed when the original and one (1)
copy along with any applicable OAH filing fee is received in the OAH during normal office hours (Monday
through Friday between 8:00am and 5:00pm, excluding official state holidays).

The petition may be faxed to the OAH at (919) 431-3100, provided the original and one copy of the
petition along with any applicable OAH filing fee is received by the OAH within five (5) business days
following the faxed transmission.

Mailing address for the OAH:

If sending via US Postal Service: If sending via service (UPS, FedEx, etc):
Office of Administrative Hearings
6714 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, NC 27699-6714

1601 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-1601

Water Act and 15A NCAC 02H
. Please be aware that you have
use/Tar-Pamllco Riparian Buffer
thin waters of the state may be a violation of
Contact Karen Higgins at 919-807-6360 or

North Caroli
karen.hig

Linda Culpepper, Interim Director
Division of Water Resources

cc: Richard Gangle, Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (via richard.b.gangle@dom.com)
Spencer Trichell, Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (via spencer.trichell@dom.com)
USACE Raleigh Regulatory Field Office
. USACE Wilmington Regulatory Field Office
Todd Bowers, EPA (via bowers.todd@epa.gov)
DWR 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch file

Filename: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx
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To: Bridgette R Morris-Mcl awhorn (bmorris@ncdenr.gov)

Subject: meeting with Linda
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 2:57:18 PM
Hi Bridgette-

"d like to go ahead and schedule time with Linda, Jennifer Burdette, Brian Wren and me to go
over the Atlantic Coast Pipeline Hearing Officer’s report and recommendation. We'll probably

need an hour and are looking for January 4" or 510,

Thanks-
Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor
Division of Water Resources

Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-8360 office

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604
1617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

I comresponderice to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Lay, =7

lased to third parties.






From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Rice, Sarah M
Subject: RE: ACP

Date: Friday, December 15, 2017 2:27:34 PM

Sarah,

Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss the ACP hearing officer’s report on Jan. 4" 1am finalizing
the HO’s report and hope to have a draft to Karen and Jennifer early next week (minus the
cumulative impacts evaluation — still waiting on info). Do you think you could have a EJ statement
completed next week? Thanks.

Brian Wrenn
919-743-8409 (office)
919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Rice, Sarah M
Sent: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 12:47 FM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP

Hi Brian,

Please let me know if | can assist with any EJ related questions for the hearing officers report.
Regards,

Sarah

919.707.8287

Get Qutlook for i0S





From: Doug Heyl

To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)
Subject: Date: Attachments:

Heyl, Douglas
FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office)
919.812.3415 (Mobile)
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Munger, Bridget

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM

To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018

ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018

DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.

DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.

DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification
issues are

*“Nothing Compares

resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.





DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a
Subject: Date: Attachments:

RE: ACP Well Testing
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png

Ok, I think | have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, | made one change to the
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other
than that. I've included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write-up as well. | think that covers it. I've saved the report with
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM

To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing

agreed
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L
To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer
Subject: a FW: ACP HO report

Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.





From:

To: Subject: Date:
Brian-

Higgins, Karen

Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM

Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. | don’t think Jennifer will review this today
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.

Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’'m not sure that it will
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401-
wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP HO report

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

| think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
OnlJan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)
Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607

Mailing Address:

1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1623





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a

Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report
Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM

Attachments:

FYI

ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,

Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.
Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607





From: To: Subject: Date:
Burdette, Jennifer a
Wrenn, Brian L

RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM

Sorry for missing your call this morning. | was deep into the draft of the 401. Before | left, | just
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. | enjoyed and learned a lot working
with you.

Take care, Jennifer

Jennifer Burdette

401/Buffer Coordinator

Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality
919 807 6364 office

jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov

1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9" FIr Archdale Bldg — Room 942F) Email
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the

North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report

FYI
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen
Poupart, Jeff
Cc:

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM

Karen,
| accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. | looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?

I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on
this.

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L
Cc: Poupart, Jeff

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Brian-

Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. | made the edits to the HO report based on your
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. | used the HO report | sent
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those |
made today.

| also made the recommended changes to the draft 401.
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.

Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov





From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use
track changes so | can look at them easily.

Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Culpepper, Linda

Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen

Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report

Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. |
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Munger, Bridget

To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas

Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm

Please see attached.
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:

From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget"
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report

FYI

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office

karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM

To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast

Pipeline project. | am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!





Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Culpepper, Linda

Subject: draft 401 decision documents
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM

Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx

Linda-

Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’'m
working on the bullet points.

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office





Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP

Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount

Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Linda-

(none)
Not yet responded

Higgins, Karen
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff

We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents
if you had any questions. | gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification
and draft denial.

Thanks- Karen

127

Subject: Location:

Start:
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

(none) Accepted





Canceled: ACP Team Meeting
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse

Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free

Lucey, John D
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R
Culpepper, Linda

Cc:
Subject: ACP - word document

Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM
Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx
Bridgette-

| put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today — there are two places for Linda to sign. | will not be in the office
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I've attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?

Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits
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A PPEARANTCE

KAREN HIGGINS

Interviewee
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Fagle Intel Services LLC
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Fagle Intel Services LLC
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North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality
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Page 3
PROCEZEDTINGS

MR. GREENE: I'm going to turn the recorders
on.

MS. HIGGINS: Sorry.

MR. Lane: No, I'm just -- wherever you want.
On the floor next to you.

MS. HIGGINS: That takes care of it.

MR. GREENE: Yeah, exactly. Okay. All right.
Today's date is October 4, 2019. My name 1s Kevin
Greene. My company 1s Eagle Intel Services. And we've
been contracted by the North Carolina General Assembly
Subcommittee on the ACP for the purpose of gathering
and reporting information back to the subcommittee. We
are recording this interview. I would like to have
each person present to state their names, their
position and that you acknowledge that we are recording
this interview. I'll start with Tom.

MR. BEERS: My name is Tom Beers. I'm a
investigator with Eagle Intel Services and I understand
this is being recorded.

MR. LANE: Bill Lane from DEQ. I understand
this is being recorded.

MS. HIGGINS: Karen Higgins, division of Water
Resources. I understand this is being recorded.

MR. HARGROVE: Drew Hargrove, DEQ. I
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Page
understand this is being recorded.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. And I believe Mr.
Lane, would you like to add something?

MR. LANE: Yes. So this interview is
beginning at 11:30 -- 11:31. I will -- based upon
agreement of the parties, it will last no longer than
an hour, so we will conclude no later than 12:31. Also
by agreement of the parties the questions that will be
presented today will deal with Ms. Higgins' official
duties related to the 401 water quality certification
for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline. There won't be any
questions related to her other projects or to anything
in her personal life. Thank you.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. And thank you for
being here. You've already stated your name. Would
Jjust -- would you give just a brief history of your
employment within the department or within government?

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So as of August 2019 I
became the water planning section chief within the
division of Water Resources. Prior to that I was the
401 & Buffer Permitting Branch supervisor. I took that
position in I think May of 2011. Prior to that I was a
training coordinator within the division and an
environmental specialist with the division. I started

working for the state in August of 2005.
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Page 5

MR. GREENE: So the position that you were in
beginning of 2011 through 2019 was -- what was that
position one more time?

MS. HIGGINS: My current position?

MR. GREENE: 1Is it -- that's the current
position?

MS. HIGGINS: My current position, yes. So I
changed positions in August of 2019 and I'm now the
Water Planning Section chief.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. During 2017-
2018, during the ACP permitting process, what was your
position at that time?

MS. HIGGINS: My position at the time was the
401 & Buffer Permitting Branch supervisor.

MR. GREENE: And who did you supervise?

MS. HIGGINS: So I have eight staff. Do you
want me to..

MR. GREENE: Who was involved in the ACP
permitting process that you supervised?

MS. HIGGINS: So the primary staff that I
supervised was Jennifer Burdette. She was the
environmental specialist.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And then the authorities
above you, what was the chain of command above you?

MS. HIGGINS: So when I was 401 branch
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Page 6
supervisor, my direct supervisor is Jeff Poupart. He
is the section chief.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And above him?

MS. HIGGINS: Above him is Jim Gregson, the
deputy director.

MR. GREENE: Was he deputy director in 201772

MS. HIGGINS: I don't remember.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And can you explain your
involvement with specifically the ACP, Atlantic Coast
Pipeline permitting process?

MS. HIGGINS: So we were —-- we recelved an
application requesting issuance of a 401 water quality
certification and buffer authorization. And those
tasks on that application was reviewed by my staff and
myself to recommend a decision.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall when you
received that application?

MS. HIGGINS: It was in May of -- I forget the
year, but it was in May of..

MR. GREENE: 2017. It really kind of reminds
of that, 2017. Did you have -- prior to receiving the
application, did you have contact or discussions with
the applicant?

MS. HIGGINS: I did not have any discussions

with the applicant prior to May.
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MR. GREENE: Are you aware that other people

within that division had conversations with the
applicant?

MS. HIGGINS: Are you asking about --

MR. GREENE: Prior?

MS. HIGGINS: -- my division?

MR. GREENE: Yes.

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And what were those
regarding?

MS. HIGGINS: That was regarding the 401

application and buffer process.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you know when that

began, when those conversations began or that process

began?

MS. HIGGINS: I don't have a date.

MR. GREENE: All right. And what would be

your role or involvement in the process, the 401
permitting process specifically with the ACP?

MS. HIGGINS: So my job is to support my

staff, help respond to questions that they may have.

If we sent requests for additional information, T

be the one asked to sign that letter and inform

may

management if there are questions that require their

decision.
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Page 8

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you recall how many
requests for additional information they received, the
applicant received or that you requested?

MS. HIGGINS: Without looking at it, I don't
remember the specific number.

MR. GREENE: Okay. We'll get into that in
just a few minutes. At that particular time, were you
dealing with other 401 applicants outside of the ACP?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. GREENE: Do you have any idea how many?

MS. HIGGINS: No.

MR. GREENE: Would it be tens, hundreds?

MS. HIGGINS: I mean, without reviewing our
database, I don't want to speculate.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Were there any projects
similar to the ACP that you were having to deal with?

MS. HIGGINS: Can you clarify?

MR. GREENE: Yes.

MS. HIGGINS: Similar in what way?

MR. GREENE: Okay. Let's break it down into
how would you categorize the ACP 401 permitting process
compared to every other ones you receive within your
division?

MS. HIGGINS: It was a large project to

review.
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MR. GREENE: Did you have other large
projects?

MS. HIGGINS: Again, I mean, I don't remember
every project we had in-house to review. We did --
have any -- did we have any at the exact scale of ACP,
no.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Had you ever worked on or
supervised individuals working on a permitting project
at the scale of the ACP?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes, I have worked on similarly
scaled projects.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And roughly how many?

MS. HIGGINS: It would be a guess, so I --
several. I couldn't really give a number.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Okay. Were those before
or after the ACP?

MS. HIGGINS: Again, I don't -- before, yes.
After, I'd have to review our files.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So you were experienced in
dealing with large projects such as the ACP prior to
the ACP permitting project?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes. Yes, I was.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And of those did the ACP
project permitting differ from any -- in any way the

procedures differ than those that you'd previously been
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dealing with at the same magnitude?

MS. HIGGINS: They did not differ.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did those projects receive
the same type of scrutiny as the ACP?

MS. HIGGINS: So I mean, I'm giving a broad
general answer without --

MR. GREENE: I understand.

MS. HIGGINS: -- getting into the details, but
we scrutinize every project thoroughly.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And what are some of the
factors that you consider in issuing a permit?

MS. HIGGINS: So the 401 rules spell out six
criteria that we have to evaluate to issue our
decision. So we follow those six criteria.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And for the ACP project,
out of those six criteria, were there any ones that you
had more difficulty, or it was I guess more difficult
to receive the information or to get the information
from the applicant?

MS. HIGGINS: Sorry, I'm just going through
the six to see. So I would say there were two factors
that were relatively straightforward to receive the
information from the applicant. The rest were not as
straightforward.

MR. GREENE: And what would you say the most
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significant one was?

MS. HIGGINS: I don't think I could pick one
specifically.

MR. GREENE: Okay. What of those four factors
are we talking about -- well, name those four factors.

MS. HIGGINS: Oh, this is a test.

MR. GREENE: I'm sorry.

MS. HIGGINS: So I don't have the rules in
front of me.

MR. GREENE: What about cumulative impact?

MS. HIGGINS: So that -- the -- that was one
of the four. That is one of the criteria.

MR. GREENE: Okay. During the 401 processing,
was there anything out of the norm of how you proceeded
with the permitting process, how you would normally
proceed with the process?

MS. HIGGINS: There was nothing out of the
norm.

MR. GREENE: Okay. At any time were you asked
to have staff meetings on a regular basis?

MS. HIGGINS: With my -- is the question was I
asked to have meetings with my staff or with who do you
mean?

MR. GREENE: With other divisions coming

together, I'm assuming other divisions on a regular
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basis?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. GREENE: We have notes that there's
meetings on it seems like a weekly basis. Do you

recall that?

MS. HIGGINS: I do recall the weekly meetings,
yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And can you give us a
brief summary of what those entailed and who
participated?

MS. HIGGINS: So without having a list of
attendees, the -- my understanding the intent of those
meetings was to provide updates on our status of our
application review to management so they were aware of
what we were doing.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Was that a common practice
with the other large-scale applications that you'd
previously processed?

MS. HIGGINS: I did not have weekly meetings
with previous projects.

MR. GREENE: Okay. How often did you
communicate with the secretary's office regarding the
ACP project permitting process?

MS. HIGGINS: I mean, I don't have a record of

every communication in front of me, so I'm not sure I
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could answer that accurately.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And you previously stated
that I believe the application was submitted in May of
-—- we determined '1l7, it is '17°?

MS. HIGGINS: I believe you.

MR. GREENE: So thank you.

MS. HIGGINS: 2017.

MR. GREENE: At that point in time, there were
numerous requests for additional informations. Was
there a point during 2017 that you thought the permit
was going to be issued or could have been issued?

MS. HIGGINS: With -- can you clarify?

MR. GREENE: Well, we'll get into -- we'll get
into that --

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: -- a little bit more. In fact
let's just go to kind of a little timeline of events
that took place. There were four requests for
additional information that we have seen the letters.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: And do you want to go over

MR. BEERS-- I can -- I'm going to show you,

this is a copy of the hearing officer's report.
Are you familiar with these with the process,

right, the..
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MS. HIGGINS: Yes, I'm familiar with the
hearing officer's report.

MR. BEERS: And who was the hearing officer?

MS. HIGGINS: Brian Wrenn.

MR. BEERS: And did he work kind of under vyou,
with you, how did that relationship as hearing officer,
what is that relationship?

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So the hearing officer is
often not within the decision-making chain so that we
have an independent entity to hear public comments and
provide recommendation to the department.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: So Brian does not work for me
and never has.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Thank you.

MR. BEERS: This 1s the final approved hearing
officer's report. It's dated January 22nd signed by
Brian Wrenn. I think this is from the files from DEQ.
Second page there's a -- basically a table that shows
dates of additional information requested and received.
So I assume that's all the information that was
requested, the dates when you asked for information to
supplement the application and then the dates you
received that?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.
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MR. BEERS: And how is that usually requested,
the additional information?

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So additional information
is requested -- for this particular project we issued
letters. We sent e-mails and then if we had a meeting
or a phone call with the applicant and there were
questions raised, they may have provided additional
information in response to questions at meetings.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So is there official
request that's followed up by letter than just other
supplemental more informal receipts and requests? Or
is it all formalized through a letter or documentation
somehow?

MS. HIGGINS: It's primarily formalized
through a letter. If in the process we have Jjust a
quick question, we may have e-mailed the applicant for
a small point to clarify and they may have responded
via e-mail.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Okay. So going with that
timeline, this is a schedule of timing events that was
from your notes from the ACP or section of the DEQ
webpage.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. BEERS: I'm just going to show it you,

then I'm going to ask for it back so I can ask a couple






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 16
of questions.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Well, so on the hearing
officer's report we see November 15th. On that date I
think there's request number 11/15, additional info
number three (phonetic) received related to request
number 3. So there was a request number 3 on October
26. It looks like the final additional information
received on November 15th. So in your notes it look --
this is dated 11/20, so 5 days after that receipt of
information. You have a timeline that kind of breaks
down when you received that final information. And it
looks 1like you plan on getting the additional
information and you're actually making some plans for
issuing the hearing officer's report and working
towards the final permit. Do you recall that timeframe
when you were -- it looks like you had an understanding
that the review was nearing completion and you're
working towards a permit at that timeframe?

MS. HIGGINS: I'm sorry, can you ask your
question again?

MR. BEERS: Yeah.

MS. HIGGINS: I was reading and listening.

MR. BEERS: Yeah, I understand.

MS. HIGGINS: I'm sorry, I apologize.
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MR. BEERS: Yeah. I have had a chance to look
at all this stuff ahead of time. I understand it's
been a while. So that's -- that was your notes. It
looks like it's kind of a draft anticipated schedule of
what may occur with the permit process. It looks like
there's some projected dates of when the hearing
officer's report could be submitted.

MS. HIGGINS: Yes. It was a projected..

MR. BEERS: Projected, right, projected. So -
- and that date -- that's dated 11/20.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. BEERS: And it's after that final
information was received. I guess the question is at
that point in time did you have an understanding that
you had received all the information that you would
need at that time and were you trying to work towards
the scheduling of the permit approval?

MS. HIGGINS: So I mean, I don't remember on
October 20th what I had reviewed or not. We --

MR. BEERS: November 20.

MS. HIGGINS: -- I'm sorry, November. Thank
you. November 20th. We did not have adequate
information to complete our review, so we asked for
more information and that protracted the schedule that

we thought we would be able to meet.
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MR. BEERS: So you hadn't finished your review
of the additional information received at that time?

MS. HIGGINS: I don't know if we had reviewed
all of it on this date. It was 5 days after according
to this. I don't know if there was a weekend or not,
so I don't know if we had completed our review at that
time.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So I guess the question 1is,
it looks like you're projecting out an approval
process, but you don't recall if you had -- actually
had the understanding that this permit they had
satisfied all of the requirements at this point, you
don't recall because you asked for more information?

MS. HIGGINS: We asked for more information
because they didn't sufficiently respond to our
request. I cannot recall on October -- I keeping
saying that, November 20th, if we had reviewed all of
the information provided.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Okay. Let's move on to the
next -- I think the next request for information was
November 28th, is that the next one?

MS. HIGGINS: That 1s the next one on this
table, yes.

MR. BEERS: So do you recall -- and that was -

- is that the final request for information at that






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 19
point?

MS. HIGGINS: It was the final letter.

MR. BEERS: The final official request written
-- in a written letter?

MS. HIGGINS: 1In a written letter, vyes.

MR. BEERS: Here it is, yeah. So this --
that's the written letter on November 20th asking for
that information. I know it's a long letter, we don't
have a lot of time. So --

MS. HIGGINS: Sure.

MR. BEERS: -- it looks 1like it's looking for
cumulative impacts information, does that ring a bell?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: It does ring a bell.

MR. BEER: Okay. So could you explain that
final request, why that was made?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes. So we had several
iterations of the analysis submitted to us by ACP.
FEach iteration got a little closer to answering our
question, but it was either not sufficient or not
correct and so we kept having to ask for additional
information so that we could say they have completed
the process. So the version that we received prior to

this letter did not sufficiently resolve the question
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about cumulative impacts. We had remaining questions
and that's what this letter details.

MR. BEERS: Unanswered questions that they
didn't supply in their previous answers up until T
guess November 15th?

MS. HIGGINS: Correct.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Well, whose decision was it
to prepare that letter and send it out?

MS. HIGGINS: So Jennifer was the primary
reviewer. She and I met and we also discussed with
Brian as the hearing officer as to whether the three of
us had sufficient information to recommend a decision
to the director and we did not.

MR. BEERS: And that was the decision made by
the three of you speaking?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. BEERS: It was -- 1t didn't come from
anywhere above you telling you to do this, it was your
decision, the three of you?

MS. HIGGINS: It was our decision.

MR. BEERS: And some of this is based on
information from the hearing officer's public comments,
is that what Brian Wrenn was 1involved with this because
he is involved in that aspect?

MS. HIGGINS: Correct. So as in the hearing
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officer's report, so I'm going to flip to later in the
report, Brian provides -- I'm trying to get the V&A
(phonetic), so this Section 5 where Brian talks about
the criteria with which to make a decision and a
recommendation as to whether it's met. As we discussed
previously, one of those is cumulative impacts. And
so, you know, Brian made a conclusion in his report and
recommendation based on the information in the
application and throughout the hearing process. So
that's why he was involved.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Okay. So moving to later
dates..

MS. HIGGINS: Do you want this back?

MR. BEERS: Yeah, I'll take that back so I
don't lose it all.

SPEAKER: And he will lose 1it.

MR. BEERS: Yeah.

MS. HIGGINS: Oh, sorry, didn't know if you
still needed the table.

MR. BEERS: I know, I might need it again.
I'll just keep it here and I'll just play..

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. BEERS: So there's some e-maills that we
pulled from the DEQ website. 1It's your -- you could

have a -- I'll tell you what, you can look at these
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reports. Because we are rushed for time, you can scan
these. I have a little summary that I can talk to you
about these, that first e-mail is December 14th, looks
like you're attempting to schedule a meeting with Linda
Culpepper who I think was the division -- it's like
division chief?

MS. HIGGINS: Director --

MR. BEERS: Director --

MS. HIGGINS: -- or acting director.

MR. BEERS: -- acting director. And you're
looking to try to schedule a meeting to speak with her
about the hearing officer's report and you're trying to
set that up for January 4th or 5th. So I guess at that
time you're anticipating -- at least on 12/14 you're
anticipating that you're going to get what you need?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. BEERS: You're anticipating that, but you
haven't got it yet?

MS. HIGGINS: Anytime we send a request for
additional information, we anticipate a full and
complete response from the applicant. Whether we get
it is up to the applicant.

MR. BEERS: Because that's what they're
supposed to do, right? Okay. So that's on the 14th.

So there you're trying to I guess get this on the






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 23
schedule to work to get this approved and you're
scheduling that. Moving through some of those e-mails,
there's a January 3rd. It looks like you and I think

Ms. Burdette are reviewing the hearing officer's

report.

MR. GREENE: January 4th.

MR. BEERS: January 4th with Brian Wrenn.
Your -- this communication..

MR. LANE: I think that's -- hold on. Let’s
slow down. Just be clear we're looking -- all looking

at the same page.

MR. BEERS: Okay. I have a summary, so if
she's going to -- I can pull those up.

MR. LANE: Yeah. Yeah, let’s do that.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So here's the e-mail from
Brian Wrenn. It looks like he has incorporated some of
your changes into the hearing officer's report.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. BEERS: Okay. And it looks like you're
getting ready for this meeting that was set up with Ms.
Culpepper to review the hearing officer's report.
There's some e-mail that -- where Bridget Munger 1is
communicating with Mr. Wrenn where he agrees to send
her the hearing officer's report to her rather than go

directly to Ms. Culpepper. Do you recall the hearing
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officer's report going to the secretary's office rather
than to the division director?

MS. HIGGINS: I was not copied on these
messages and I don't recall if I was aware that there
was an exchange between Brian and Bridget.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Is it normal for the
secretary's office to review hearing officer's report
rather than the division director?

MR. LANE: Let's clarify we're not talking
about -- this is not an e-mail to the secretary's
office. This is an e-mail to Bridget Munger.

MR. BEERS: No. I think there's a -- well, if
she doesn't recall that was -- those e-mails at that
timeframe.

MS. HIGGINS: Well, I was not -—-

MR. BEERS: Yeah.

MS. HIGGINS: -- part of this e- mail
exchange.

MR. BEERS: You weren't part of that exchange.
Did you -- so the question I have, would it be a normal
-- who normally approves the hearing officer's report,
signs and sends it on?

MS. HIGGINS: The hearing officer's report
comes from the hearing officer. I don't know if I

would phrase it that there's an approval of it. It's a
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working draft and becomes final by the hearing officer.
It's not uncommon to get review and feedback from
others.

MR. BEERS: So when you set up the meeting
back in December to try to meet with Linda Culpepper to
review the hearing officer's report, is that normal for
you to review this report with the director?

MS. HIGGINS: So the e-mail was anticipating
that we would have a final report with a recommendation
for the director. It's common that we sit down with
the director and review the final report. So this was
not to review and the director to modify a draft
report. The intent was to review the final report and
go over any questions that she may have after reviewing
the report.

MR. GREENE: And I guess his question, 1is it
common for the report to go to the secretary's office
prior to that review with the director?

MS. HIGGINS: So..

MR. LANE: Again, this doesn't -- this is an
e-mail to Bridget Munger, it was not to the secretary's
office.

MR. BEERS: Right. You can answer that -- 1is
that common?

MR. LANE: Yeah, you can answer the question.
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I'm just clarifying that the e-mail..

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So this -- I am aware
that it has happened on previous 401 applications. I
can't speak to hearing officer's reports and other
programs. The 401 program is not the only program
within DWR that has hearing officer's reports. So I
can't speak to the other programs --

MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. HIGGINS: -- but I'm aware of other 401
hearing officer reports that were reviewed by
individuals within -- outside of the division of Water
Resources or Water Quality at the time.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So just read that top --
that top e-mail there. That's the one that..

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: So that's yours -- you had
communicated with that e-mail, correct?

MS. HIGGINS: I was.

MR. GREENE: And what does it reflect?

MS. HIGGINS: So the e-mail states someone is
home with a sick child and out of school due to snow.
The secretary's office wants to review the HO report
prior to sending to Linda. I told Bridget we would
send a copy to them when we send it to Jeff. I am

doing another read-through right now, when do you think
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you can finish your review? The message is from Brian
to myself and to Jennifer.

MR. BEERS: So what did you understand from
that e-mail?

MS. HIGGINS: I don't recall this e-mail, you
know. So I -- not -- I don't -- if I said anything I'd
be speculating on my memory.

MR. BEERS: Right. So, well, what is the body
-- what is -- do you -- his message to you that you
believe that to be true what he'd told you that he's --
the secretary's office is going to review 1it?

MS. HIGGINS: I mean, I can't speak for Brian
as to, you know, whether --

MR. BEERS: Right.

MS. HIGGINS: -- someone communicated that to
him or not.

MR. BEERS: Right. But that is -- that's --
if that is truly an e-mail that he sent to you to tell
you that the secretary's office wants to review it, in
your experience is that a normal process for the 401
hearing officer's reports?

MS. HIGGINS: It doesn't happen with every
one, but it certainly has happened on previous ones.

So we don't have that many hearing officer's reports in

401 land, so it's hard to speak in broad generalities
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about what's normal when it's a very small handful of
projects. So I -- that's why I'm being a bit reluctant
to speak in broad generalities when the sample size is
so small.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Okay. So for your
recollection at that time you don't recall this being a
big thing that you -- it was something that you
remember today that this happening --

MS. HIGGINS: I..

MR. GREENE: -- or conversation like why are
they doing this? This is out of the ordinary, do you
recall why they're..

MS. HIGGINS: I do not remember being alarmed
or any sort of red flags being raised --

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: -- by this.

MR. BEERS: That's in?

MR. GREENE: This is just the follow up.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: Your follow-up, and I'll show you

this in just a second I want to - read it -- this is a
e-mail. “Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in
yellow (inaudible) .” "I don't think Jennifer reviewed

this today, so please go ahead and send to Jeff and

others. Since the department is reviewing the
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documents before going to Linda, I'm sure that it will
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to
reschedule for later in the week? We could try to try
for after the EMC (phonetic) on Thursday maybe 3:30 or
Friday." And this is an e-mail dated January 5th --
Friday, January, 11:37.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: So at that point you're trying to
still schedule to meet with Linda Culpepper and for her
to review the hearing officer's report?

MS. HIGGINS: For her to review the final.

MR. GREENE: The final?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. GREENE: The final. And once she reviews
the final, what typically happens?

MS. HIGGINS: So the hearing officer's report
has a recommendation and the director can agree with
the recommendation from the hearing officer's report or
not. Staff may or may not have a different
recommendation than the hearing officer. We present
all that to the director. The director considers 1t
and they ultimately make the final decision.

MR. GREENE: Whether a permit will be issued
or not?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.
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MR. BEERS: Okay. In your experience there
was hearing officer's report submitted at that final
stage with all the effort that went into working on the
hearing officer's report, is it typical for that to be
approved or it's sometimes denied at that point, the
director?

MS. HIGGINS: Do you mean is the
recommendation denied or is the project denied?

MR. BEERS: The project denied, would it be
denied?

MS. HIGGINS: I have been involved in a 401
review where at that stage the director determined to
deny the project.

MR. BEERS: Which one was that, do you recall?

MS. HIGGINS: I do. It was the Alcoa 401
certification associlated with their FERC license.

MR. BEERS: Did -- was that similar
circumstances as to this -- was there any other
circumstances that may have been involved with that
that would differ from this one? Like do you recall
the reason for that denial?

MS. HIGGINS: I do. I remember the reason for
the denial. It was related to the department of
administration filing a lawsuit about ownership of the

riverbed. That was not related to the ACP. That was
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MR. BEERS: Right.

MS. HIGGINS: -- point of gquestion in this
particular project review.

MR. BEERS: So in this particular project did
you have any expectations that this would not have been
approved?

MS. HIGGINS: We did not expect it to not be
approved. Our recommendation was to approve. And at
no point were we told something different.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Had this been delivered to
the director rather than going first another layer of
review, how long would it take for that permit to be

issued after it was reviewed by the director typically?

MS. HIGGINS: It -- I don't know that I could
give you a definitive date. It's usually a short
amount of time. The clock is very tight and so we're

usually recommending it to the director with not a lot
of time before we run out of the clock. So it's
usually a shorter window.
MR. BEERS: Like within a week or -- you mean
a short window like you're talking weeks, months, days?
MS. HIGGINS: Oh, I mean the ones I'm thinking
of a couple days to probably not more than a week.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So a few days, an average
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that you expect it, wouldn’t have been weeks typically?
So I'm -- we're just talking about --

MS. HIGGINS: Sure.

MR. GREENE: -- what you would expect.

MS. HIGGINS: Right. So I can't think of any
examples where it was several weeks.

MR. BEERS: Okay. In this case there was
another layer of review. Rather than anticipating
going to Culpepper for review, it went to secretary's

office for another layer of review. The permit in this

case was issued January 26th. So that was 20 --
roughly 20 days later. Is that extended that -- well,
let me ask you a different question. Do you know what

came of the review from the secretary's office? Were
you informed what they found from that review with the
report?

MS. HIGGINS: So I..

MR. GREENE: Can I interject right here?

MR. BEERES: Yeah.

MS. HIGGINS: I was..

MR. GREENE: Hold on.

MS. HIGGINS: I just -- I would..

MR. GREENE: TI'll show you a document.

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So I wouldn't quite agree

with your characterization of the review steps, but I
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don't recall whether I saw any edits from the -- from
Bridget to Brian. I don't recall if I saw that or not.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Let me ask the question
then, i1f it was going to this -- Mr. Brian's words in
his e-mail that the secretary's office, would Bridget
have been the person to review the document or would
there be someone else at the secretary's office that
would actually -- looking at the document for accuracy
or what would they be looking at?

MS. HIGGINS: You would have to ask the
secretary's office who reviewed it. I -- someone spoke
to Brian, which is why he made the statement. That was
not conveyed to me, so I can't speak for who in the
secretary's office may or may not have looked at that.

MR. GREENE: So you don't know how he was
notified or..

MS. HIGGINS: I do not.

MR. BEERS: Okay. And you don't know the
result of that review with the secretary, if it was
reviewed or who reviewed it, you weren't informed of
that?

MS. HIGGINS: So what I can say 1s that I
don't remember seeing like a track changes or redlined
version of edits from the secretary's office. I can

say that the hearing officer's recommendation was not






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 34
changed.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall meeting with
the secretary regarding this?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes. I've met with the
secretary and others on those, yes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall a -- this is
your -- I'll let you identify them, but these were
taken off the staff files. Are these your notes?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes, those look like my notes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And what -- I have
actually highlighted that top thing. And I believe
there's a date up there 1/127

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. GREENE: And if you can Jjust read what
your notes state there?

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So it says it's a meeting
with Secretary Regan, with Sheila, Linda and Brian.
Questions regarding -- do you just want me to read the
highlighted..

MR. GREENE: Yes ma'am.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay. Sorry. Questions
regarding cumulative analysis, what info does commerce
have? Send the summary of conclusions. And then it
says "Hearing officer recommendations."

MR. GREENE: Can you add a little more context
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to what that meeting was about in reference to your
notes there?

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So as I stated
previously, meetings —-- the weekly meetings as well as
this meeting was to provide a status update on where we
were on the review of the application and responses to
additional information requests we had sent.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And so is this regarding -
- what issues were being addressed this time?

MS. HIGGINS: So I -- we provided an update to
the secretary that some of the challenges we felt as
staff we were having with the applicant was trying to
reconcile the information they were portraying in the
cumulative impacts analysis that there wouldn't be any
with their website and commercials we were hearing on
the radio about all the economic development that was
going to result from this project. So we were reading
information that there was going to be all this
economic development and then they were telling us
there was nothing foreseeable happening. And so we
were having a challenge kind of reconciling those two
pieces of information coming from the applicant. And
so that's what we talked about at the meeting.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So this would have been

after you reviewed the hearing officer's report I
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believe we got the 4th or 5th, whatever timeframe that
was. And then you met on the 12th. So as —-- per your
review of the hearing officer report with Brian --
well, Brian's, you know, the report, were those
concerns addressed to him, Brian, prior to meeting with
the secretary?

MS. HIGGINS: The concerns about the
information from the applicant --

MR. GREENE: Yes. And the --

MS. HIGGINS: -- is that your question?

MR. GREENE: -- impact, yes ma'am.

MS. HIGGINS: Okay. Yes, Brian was involved
in all the discussions we were having with the
applicant. He was -- I don't -- I shouldn't say that.
I can't remember if he was at every single phone call
and meeting, but he was certainly involved in the broad
discussion about cumulative -- the cumulative impact
analysis and the information contained therein.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So when you reviewed his
work product I believe on the 5th and you were looking
to set up a meeting with Culpepper, what changed in
between that timeframe that now this -- it's —-- this
was becoming an issue, the impact has become --
cumulative impact is becoming an issue?

MS. HIGGINS: It did not become an issue
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between the 5th and the 12th. It had been an issue
throughout the entire application review.

MR. GREENE: Okay. In your review of the
hearing officer's report, did you make recommendations
that we needed more information on that?

MS. HIGGINS: No. It was in response -- the
add info request came from that review of information
in the application. At the same time we were reviewing
the application, Brian was also working on the hearing
officer's report and putting that information together.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. BEERS: The hearing officer's report was
complete with all those answers presumably in the
report. This is after it's been sent to the
secretary's office for review that you're having this
discussion about these impacts. Were -- was someone at
the secretary's office asking to revisit the hearing

officer's report, make edits to it, is this what the

purpose...
MS. HIGGINS: No. The purpose of the meeting

was not -- it was information seeking, status update

from staff. It was not providing directions on how we

were to proceed with review.
MR. BEERS: There was no request to go compare

any documents or to reconcile what the ACP commercials
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were saying versus what you were finding? They didn't
-- was there a request to do that at that point?

MS. HIGGINS: There was not a request from
Secretary Regan or Sheila to do that at this meeting,
no.

MR. BEERS: That was basically you giving them
the status of what's going on?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes.

MR. BEERS: Okay. That meeting?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes. It was us explaining where
we were at in the process and what the back and forth
was with the applicant.

MR. BEERS: At that meeting do you recall
getting information that the hearing officer's report
is approved and that they're moving towards the permit?

MS. HIGGINS: That was not -- I have no
recollection of that being discussed at the meeting.
Based on my notes, we discussed the questions we had
had on the cumulative impact analysis and provided an
update on that to the secretary. And then we discussed
the recommendations that Brian was going to put forth
in the hearing officer's report.

MR. BEERS: Which he already did put in,
right?

MS. HIGGINS: He had -- it was a discussion of
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what are the recommendations. So if you read the
hearing officer's report, it provides recommendations
on if 401 is 1ssued how it should be conditioned. And
so that's the subject that we discussed, were some of
those details of recommendations that Brian had
regarding if it was issued, how it should be
conditioned.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MR. GREENE: Did the secretary's office ask
you to contact commerce and get additional information
from commerce? Go ahead.

MS. HIGGINS: They did not ask us to contact
commerce.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And going back to -- and
this is your notes from the 4th, "We've got to give the
HO report decisions to Linda on Monday. Bridget will
talk with Doug (phonetic) about news release decision."
So what is that pertaining to, the news release
decision?

MS. HIGGINS: So the department, when there is
a decision that has a lot of public interest, they may
issue a news release regarding the decision so that the
public is aware.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So on the 4th it was -- it

appears it's apparent that everyone is ready to move
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forward with a decision?

MS. HIGGINS: I mean, we were always working
towards moving a decision —-- moving towards a decision.

MR. GREENE: Right.

MS. HIGGINS: And you know, we worked through
the month of January to get to a decision as we had
since May of 2017.

MR. GREENE: Right. I understand. And so you
worked on Sundays and weekends per these e-mails?

MS. HIGGINS: I did.

MR. GREENE: Especially up towards the end.

It was a lot of time invested on that. So I guess my
question though, were you anticipating the permit to be
issued in the imminent -- and I say imminent, within a
normal timeframe of 1 or 2 weeks at that point in time,
January 4th?

MS. HIGGINS: I was not.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Then why were we talking
about notifying for the press release?

MS. HIGGINS: Again, it's not uncommon that we
work on multiple steps so that we're ready.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: So when we're working towards
getting to that final decision and that hearing

officer's report, another step could be the news
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release --

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: -- and so we go ahead and start
working on that because everybody has a lot of things
going on and the sooner we get started, the more likely
we are to be ready.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Are you familiar with the
draft denial letter?

MS. HIGGINS: I am.

MR. GREENE: And can you give us a little

background on why that was prepared and did you prepare

that?

MS. HIGGINS: I did prepare that.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And when did you prepare
that?

MS. HIGGINS: I prepared it -- I think I first
drafted it sometime in January. I have to look at the

file to see the date that it was..

MR. GREENE: I think we actually have --

MR. BEERS: January 1lst.

MR. GREENE: -- January lst. This one 1s in
the file.

MR. LANE: Can you show that to her?

MR. GREENE: Yeah. Let's see. This a print

from the webpage that shows it.
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MS. HIGGINS: Okay. So can you ask your
question again, I'm sorry?

MR. GREENE: Okay. Well, we'll start out, can
you give us a little background as to why you drafted
that?

MR. BEERS: This is the actual-- that's just
the print from the webpage from the date --

MR. GREENE: Yeah.

SPEAKER: —-- 1it's the -- that's the date that
has no date -- the draft with no date on it.

MS. HIGGINS: Sure. So as I stated
previously, when there is a public hearing we provide a
hearing officer's recommendation and staff
recommendation to the director for the director to
consider, but the director makes the ultimate decision.
So the director could choose to issue or deny. If —--
in this particular case our recommendation, both the
hearing officer and staff, was to issue the project, if
the director didn't go along with our recommendation
and elected to deny it, this was prepared just so we
had, you know, the address, the project number ready
and then the director would fill in the reasons for
denial based on whatever their conclusions were.

MR. GREENE: Would that be something that the

director would seek information from the people who
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gather the information from the applicant?

MS. HIGGINS: They could, but if they have --
so for this particular project we didn't have -- staff
did not have any reasons to recommend denial. So --
and we weren't asked to fill in this letter, so I can't
speak to whether Linda would have asked us to fill it
out or if she would have filled it out.

MR. GREENE: Were you asked to prepare the
letter?

MS. HIGGINS: No, I was not.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And why —-- you do that on
a normal regular basis when you have a public hearing,
is that what -- the way I understand it?

MS. HIGGINS: Right. So we had done this
previously on projects that had a public hearing where
we presented it to the director.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Can you tell us how many?

MR. BEERS: Every project has a public hearing
to draft a letter, that's -- is that fair to say?

MS. HIGGINS: I would not say that, no. So

this was something that we did based on discussions

during a previous project and so that was -- it was
sort of the -- it may have been the first time we had
done that, I'm not sure. And as I said we don't have a

lot of public hearings on 401 applications. There's
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not a large sample size to speak in broad generalities.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: But we had done this before and
so that's why I recommended having this so it was clear
that the director discretion to make the final
decision.

MR. GREENE: 1Is that a document that you would
normally prepare when you're ready to present
everything to the director?

MS. HIGGINS: Yes, it was given to her at the
same time as the draft 401 certification and the
hearing officer's report.

MR. BEERS: So just to be clear, when the
hearing officer's report was reviewed by the
secretary's office, you weren’t aware of what -- who
reviewed it i1f it was reviewed, but you realized there
was —-- they didn't make any edits to that document as
far as you know, to the final?

MS. HIGGINS: ©No, I believe what I said was I
don't know whether they made recommendations. The
recommendation from the hearing officer to issue the
401 was not modified. That was from the original draft
I saw that Brian was preparing the hearing officer's
report to the final -- throughout the entire process,

the final recommendation was to i1ssue.
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MR. BEERS: So it was never modified by the
secretary's office?

MS. HIGGINS: Not that I'm aware.

MR. BEERS: That you would -- you could
compare the two documents and see 1f there were changes
in there? There were none?

MS. HIGGINS: I never saw a version --

MR. BEERS: You didn't see that? Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: -- from -- of (inaudible) edits.

MR. BEERS: Okay. And they didn't involve you
in discussions to go back and edit? Of course, that
didn't happen. You didn't have any discussions with it
about that review process?

MS. HIGGINS: I do not recall having any
discussions with anyone in the secretary's office about
that, no.

MR. LANE: Two minutes.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Thank you.

MR. GREENE: Two minute warning.

MR. GREENE: All right. We'll just wrap up
the end process of how everything shook out because it
appears everything appeared towards -- we have e-mails
going back and forth on the weekend of the 21st; 19th
is a Friday. The 21st there is a e-mail at 8:50 p.m.

On Sunday evening Wrenn e-mails Higgins back with final
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HO report, ask questions about final permit. Do you
recall working and answering stuff on the weekends of
the 21st, 22nd?

MS. HIGGINS: I mean, I recall working on the
project. I don't have specific dates without looking.

MR. GREENE: Okay. What was the reason for
the sense of urgency at that point in time?

MS. HIGGINS: I don't know if it was a sense
of urgency. It's not uncommon that I work on nights
and weekends.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And then I believe you
sent Culpepper electronic copy on the 23rd with the ACP
permit and denial letter. Do you recall doing that?

MS. HIGGINS: So again I don't have anything
in front of me. My recollection is Brian e-mailed
Linda the hearing officer's report.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. HIGGINS: And we -- I provided the 401
certification we were recommending and then the blank
denial template.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Have you ever —-- were you
made aware that there was a mitigation fund being
negotiated between governor's office and the ACP
partners related to the ACP?

MS. HIGGINS: I was not.
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MR. BEERS: You never were made aware of that?

MS. HIGGINS: Not during the review of the
application, no.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Did you find out after the
fact?

MS. HIGGINS: So I was actually on vacation
the day the final 401 was issued and I read a article
and that was the first I was aware of whatever the fund
is.

MR. GREENE: Okay. No discussion between the
governor's office regarding that and your department
for mitigation purposes?

MS. HIGGINS: They -- no one discussed it with
me.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you have any other
discussions with any of the governor's staff regarding
the ACP permit?

MS. HIGGINS: No, I've never discussed it with
the governor's office or their staff.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Well, we appreciate it,
but our time is up. So I'm going to officially stop

this at 12:31 and 50 seconds.
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January 22, 2018

MEMORANDUM Sl

To: Linda Culpepper
Interim Director, Division of Water Resources

’ / . :
From: Brian Wrenn, Ecosystems Branch Supervisor )}é/

. .. i i /
Division of Water Resources, Water Sciences Sectlor}///

Subject:  Hearing Officer’s Report and Recommendations
Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Individual 401 Water Quality Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties

| served as the Hearing Officer for the subject Public Hearings held at the Fayetteville Technical
Community College in Fayetteville, NC on July 18, 2017 and at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC on July 20, 2017. The public hearings were held under the authority of Title 15A
NCAC 02H .0504. The purpose of these public hearings was to receive comment on the Division
of Water Resources’ 401 Water Quality Certification (401 WQC) and buffer authorization
certificates application (Appendix A) submitted by Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP). A 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates are needed to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties.

In addition to listening to oral comments at the public hearings, | have reviewed all written
comments received prior, during and after the public comment period. In preparation of this
report, | have considered all of the public comments, the public record, discussions with Division
of Water Resources (DWR) staff related to the rules, and their review of the applications for the
project.

The report has been prepared using the following outline:
l. Site History / Background
. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing Summary
11l July 20, 2017 Public Hearing Summary

V. Comments
V. Recommendations
VL. Summary

VIl.  Appendices

I. History / Background

On May 9, 2017, Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (ACP) submitted an application for a 401 WQC
and buffer authorization certificates. ACP had previously applied to DWR on October 23,
2015. DWR requested additional information on November 18, 2015. The requested
information was not provided, therefore DWR returned the application on August 31, 2016.

ACP is proposing to construct and operate an approximately 605-mile-long interstate natural
gas transmission pipeline system including laterals through West Virginia, Virginia and North





Carolina. In North Carolina, ACP is proposing to construct one compressor station and install
approximately 186-miles-of transmission pipeline-and-appurtenances;including 3 metering———
and regulating stations, 11 valve sites and 4 pig launchers/receivers, through Northampton
Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberiand and Robeson Counties. T

ACP is proposing over 300 crossings of streams and open waters, temporarily impacting over
35,000 linear feet and permanently impacting over 700 linear feet of stream. ACP is also
proposing crossing-wetlands, temporarily impacting over 450 acres and--permanently
impacting less than one acre of wetlands. ACP will impact protected riparian buffers within
the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River basins, impacting over 655,000 square feet of zone 1 and
over 459,000 square feet of zone 2 protected riparian buffer.

DWR requested and received additional information several times throughout the application
review process:

Date Action

June 27, 2017

Reg. for Add Info (1)

July 12, 2017

Add Info Received (1)

September 14, 2017

Req. for Add Info (2)

September 22, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 2, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 13, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 26, 2017

Req. for Add Info (3)

November 4, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 15, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 28, 2017

Req. for Add Info (4)

November 29, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 8, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

December 14, 2017

Req. Correction to (4)

December 20, 2017

Add Info Received (4)

January 17, 2018

Add Info Received

January 18, 2018

Add Info Received

Under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H .0504, DWR held a public comment period from
June 16, 2017 until August 19, 2017 to accept public input on the application. The public
comment period included two public hearings described below.

In accordance with Title 15A NCAC 02H .0503, notice of the public hearings and availability of
the 401 WQC and riparian buffer authorization certificates application was published in The
Fayetteville Observer, the News & Observer, the Rocky Mount Telegram, the Roanoke-
Chowan News-Herald, the Robesonian and the Wilson Times on June 17, 2017, in the Daily
Herald and the Sampson Independent on June 18, 2017, and posted online and sent by mail
to the Water Quality Certification Mailing List on June 16, 2017 (Appendix B). A correction to
the public notice to correct a typo in the pipe diameter was posted online on June 19, sent to
the mailing list on June 20, and issued in the newspapers on June 21 and 22 (Appendix C).





The public comment period ended on August 19, 2017; however, since August 19" was a
Saturday, DWR accepted comments through Monday, August 21.-

July 18, 2017 Public Hearing

A public hearing was held July 18, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Fayetteville Technical Community
College in Fayetteville, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC
02H .0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC
application (Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline
through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred thirty-nine people attended the July 18 public hearing, including eight staff
members from the Department. A total of 131 individuals signed the attendance sign-in
sheets at the registration table (Appendices D and E). The hearing officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Forty-four individuals registered in advance of the hearing to provide comments, and two
additional individuals made comments for a total of 46 speakers. Speakers were given three
minutes for initial presentations. Additional time was allowed for speakers after everyone
that registered to speak was finished, which was used by three speakers. The list of speakers
is included (Appendix E).

The public hearing transcript, including oral comments, is attached to this report (Appendix
H). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment
period from local and state government agencies, individual citizens, and citizen groups
(Appendix J). Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed to the project and
approximately 1,370 were in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the
comments provided during the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both
hearings and the comment period, along with detailed responses that have a direct impact
on the certification decision making process are included in Sections IV and V below.

July 20, 2017 Public Hearing

A second public hearing was held July 20, 2017, at 6 p.m. at the Nash Community College in
Rocky Mount, NC. The public hearing was held under the authority of Title 15A NCAC 02H
.0504. This was a public hearing to receive public comment for the DWR 401 WQC application
(Appendix A) submitted by ACP in order to construct a natural gas pipeline through
Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson
Counties.

One hundred seventy-six people attended the July 20 public hearing, including eight staff

members from the Department. A total of 168 individuals signed the attendance sign in

sheets at the registration table (Appendices F and G). The Hearing Officer provided opening
remarks and Jennifer Burdette, DWR, presented background information on the 401 WQC
process and the proposed application before the hearing was opened for public comment.
Sixty-five individuals registered in advance of the hearing to make comments. Speakers were





given three minutes for presentations and the hearing was held open an additional thirty
minutes to allow all speakers that-registered-to speak.The list-of speakers-is-included
(Appendix G).

The public heariﬁg transcri;:“)t; i'néludirig oralwconrﬁmén'icﬂs‘,r, is attached to this feport (Appendix

[). DWR also received approximately 9,600 written comments during the public comment

period from local and state government agencies, citizens and citizen groups (Appendix J).

Approximately 8,220 comments were opposed-to-the project and approximately 1,370 were

in favor. Some of the comments were written transcripts of the comments provided during
the public hearings. A summary of the comments for both hearings and the comment period,
along with detailed responses that have a direct impact on the certification decision making
process, are included in Sections IV and V below.

IV. General Comments

The following is a summary of the comments received during the July 18, 2017 and July 20,
2017 public hearings and emails and other written comments received by DWR during the
public comment period. Comments received outside of the public comment period were
made part of the public record. An overwhelming majority of the comments were in
opposition to the pipeline for a variety of reasons.

e Many comments received expressed concerns about the continued use of fossil fuels,
specifically fracked natural gas, and their negative impact on climate change. Many think
NC and the US should be moving toward the use of renewable energy sources.
Proponents of the project believe that natural gas is a “clean” fuel option to replace coal
and other fossil fuels.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

e Many comments received were skeptical of ACP’s promotion of the project as a job
creation opportunity and economic stimulator for local communities. Several pointed
out that ACP’s own job creation estimates are very low and that the economic benefits
to local communities are vague. Proponents of the project reiterated that the pipeline
would bring jobs and economic development to NC.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Department of Commerce.

* Many comments received expressed concerns about the cumulative impacts analysis
provided by ACP. Many believe that the analysis did not contain sufficient detail to
properly evaluate the cumulative impacts. Some comments indicated that the
temporary impacts from the project should be considered in the cumulative impact
analysis and that the sheer volume of temporary impacts should be calculated to equal
some level of permanent impacts.

Cumulative impacts are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps).





e Many comments received questioned the purpose and need of the project. Many
pointed to evidence that the growth of natural gas markets was estimated to be
negligible and questioned the need to build such a large and expensive pipeline. Many
noted that the market demand was generated through companies owned or affiliated
with Duke and Dominion power companies and that the need was self-serving rather
‘than one identified through public interest. Furthermore, several commenters stated
that the purpose of economic benefit was misleading as ACP’s own estimates predict
little permanent job growth as a result of the project. :

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC and the Corps.

¢ Many comments received expressed concerns about environmental justice issues
associated with pipeline’s construction and operation. Many believe that the pipeline will
have a disproportionate impact on low-income and minority communities. Many
commenters feel that ACP has not made significant efforts to coordinate with these
communities or to consider other routes that would reduce the impacts on these
communities. Specifically, several commenters mentioned ACP’s lack of coordination
with state-recognized tribes such as the Lumbee and Haliwa-Saponi. Furthermore, they
do not believe ACP has adequately addressed potential impacts to cultural resources
along the pipeline route.
Environmental Justice is addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to FERC.

e Several commenters expressed opposition to ACP’s use of eminent domain to obtain
right-of-way for the pipeline.
These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to the NC Attorney General’s Office.

e Several commenters raised concerns about Duke Power’s past record of non-compliance
with environmental regulations and permits.
Compliance Inspection recommendations are addressed in Section V below.

e Several commenters raised concerns about living within the “blast zone” of the pipeline
and questioned ACP’s liability response should an explosion occur. Others believe that
the pipeline is a safe and efficient way to transport natural gas.

These comments are outside of the evaluation criteria established in N.C.
Administrative Codes for the 401 WQC and Buffer Authorization Certificates review
and should be directed to FERC.

e Many comments received expressed concerns over ACP’s potential impacts to. water . .~

quality from erosion and sedimentation. Many commenters feel that ACP’s erosion and
sedimentation control plan is inadequate and lacks sufficient detail. Others believe that
trenching through streams and wetlands will have a negative effect on stream stability
and threaten wildlife. Concerns over blasting effects were also raised.

Water Quality is addressed in Section V below.





e Many comments received expressed concerns over impacts to wildlife, specifically
threatened and-endangered-species.—Many-felt-that the-construction-activities-could
destroy critical habitat and primary nursery areas for a variety of terrestrial and aquatic
species. Othersfeltthat the extensive coordination process with the US Fish and Wildlife
Service and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC) has adequately addressed any
potential impacts.

Aquatic species are addressed in Section V below. Further comments should be
directed to NCWRC. === 0

e Many commenters believe that the 401 WQC application is incomplete. They pointed
to the lack of erosion and sedimentation control plans and site-specific water body
crossing details as evidence that necessary information was missing from the
application. In contrast, some commenters believe that the ACP project has gone
through an extensive regulatory review process.

The Division requested additional information multiple times as detailed in Section |
above.

e The overwhelming majority of comments received raised concerns over the degradation
of ground and surface waters as a result of the construction and operation of the
pipeline. Many commenters mentioned the large number of streams and wetlands that
would be crossed by the pipeline and raised red flags regarding the large amount of
temporary and permanent impacts. They connected these impacts with the degradation
of downstream uses including drinking water supply, aquatic life, primary and secondary
contact recreation, and fisheries. Furthermore, commenters spoke in detail of the loss
of wetlands through temporary impacts. Many felt the temporal and permanent
vegetation changes from temporary wetland impacts should be considered permanent
wetland impacts. Finally, many comments were made regarding potential impacts to
drinking water wells. A significant level of concern was present among the commenters
about impacts to wells from construction activities (mainly blasting activities) and
operation of the pipeline.

Degradation is addressed in Section V below.

V. Certification Specific Comments and Recommendations

Based on the review of public comments, the application, the North Carolina General Statutes
and Administrative Code, and discussions with DWR staff, | offer the following comments and
recommendations on the criteria for issuance of a 401 WQC pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H
.0506(b) and the issuance of Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basin Buffer Authorization
Certificates pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively.

15A NCAC 02H .0506(b)

(1) Has no practical alternative under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (f) of this Rule.
Paragraph (f) states: “A lack of practical alternatives may be shown by demonstrating
that, considering the potential for a reduction in size, configuration or density of the
proposed activity and all alternative designs the basic project purpose cannot be





practically accomplished in a manner which would avoid or result in less adverse
impact to surface waters or wetlands.”

The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and
Pennsylvania thrbugh Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina portion of the
proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. As part of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) analysis, ACP investigated
several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no build, alternative
energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives, FERC and ACP

found that the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next, ACP conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on the
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams and wetlands, known historical and cultural resources, and homes and businesses.
Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of seventeen major route
alternatives and thrity-seven minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion of the project
in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis included pre- and
post-application communication with DWR and NC Wildlife Resources Commission (NCWRC)
on avoidance and minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and
minimization practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through

environmental commitments. A more detailed discussion of avoidance and minimization can
be found below.

Recommendation: None. The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no
practical alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impact
to surface waters or wetlands.

(2) Will minimize adverse impacts to the surface waters based on consideration of
existing topography, vegetation, fish and wildlife resources, and hydrological
conditions under the criteria outlined in Paragraph (g) of this Rule.

Paragraph (g) states: “Minimization of impacts may be demonstrated by showing that

the surface waters or wetlands are able to continue to support the existing uses after

project completion, or that the impacts are required due to:

(1) The spatial and dimensional requirements of the project; or

(2) The location of any existing structural or natural features that may dictate the
placement or configuration of the proposed project; or

(3) The purpose of the project and how the purpose relates to placement,
configuration or density.

The applicant has minimized impacts to surface waters and wetlands to the greatest extent
practical. The permanent impacts will be 766 linear feet of streams and 0.80 acres of
wetlands. The permanent impacts related to streams and wetlands will be a result of





upgrading and improving access roads constructed for installation and maintenance of the
pipeline, not from the pipeline itself. All crossings of major-rivers will-be conducted using
horizontal directional drilling (HDD) to avoid open trenching. The magnitude of the temporary
impacts is very high but within reason considering the size and scope of the project. The
applicant will use a narrower construction corridor when crossing wetlands and construction
techniques such as timber matting, temporary work bridges, and clean rock over piping to
minimize temporary impacts to streams and wetlands. Temporary impacts to streambanks

and wetland areas will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with native

plants. ACP will monitor any temporary impact areas in streams or wetlands to ensure there
is no permanent loss at these locations. The monitoring plan includes monitoring for a
minimum of two years for streams and three years for wetlands with stability, vegetation, and
hydrology requirements. Upon successful completion of the restoration and monitoring
activities, the stream and wetland impact areas will continue to support existing uses of
hydrology, vegetation, and aquatic and wildlife habitat.

The applicant has committed to a number of best management practices to avoid and
minimize impacts to streams and wetlands.

e Demarcation of wetland boundaries with flagging and signs prior to start of
construction

e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soil compaction

e Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation

e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and restoration

e Installing trench breakers or plugs at the boundaries of wetlands to prevent draining
of wetlands

e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies

e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area immediately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock

e Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs

e Prohibiting use of live concrete as a building material so that wet concrete does not
come in contact with surface waters

e Prohibiting storage of chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils
within 100 feet of surface waters

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements of the Construction Stormwater General
Permit No. NCG010000

e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings

e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan





ACP has completed formal consultation with US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on
threatened and endangered species along the corridor. In-an October 16, 2017 biological
opinion, USFWS did not identify any threatened and endangered species or sensitive habitat
in NC along the proposed corridor. ACP has also coordinated extensively with the NCWRC.
This coordination began with the alternatives analysis and site-specific routing of the pipeline.
ACP worked with NCWRC to avoid threatened and endangered species and sensitive habitats
and to develop relocation protocols for fish and mussels. ACP conducted pre-construction

surveys for fish and mussels in the Neuse River at the proposed crossing location. These

surveys found that the mussel population was much more abundant and diverse than
previously known. This survey and the continued coordination with NCWRC resulted in ACP’s
revised proposal to use HDD at the Neuse River instead of open trenching. ACP has also
developed a relocation plan for fish and mussels in coordination with NCWRC.

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that impacts to surface
waters and wetlands are required due to spatial considerations, natural features and the
purpose of the project. The 401 WQC should include requirements for monitoring of
temporary impact areas in accordance with the proposed restoration and monitoring plan.
The certification should also include reopener language in the event that temporarily
disturbed wetland areas do not return to wetland conditions as defined by the 1987 US Army
Corps of Engineers (Corps) Wetland Manual and confirmed by a Corps representative. The
reopener language should require a modification to the 401 WQC to account for the additional
permanent impacts and mitigation for all permanent wetland impacts should the permanent
impacts exceed 1.0 acre. Furthermore, the 401 WQC should be conditioned to comply with
any work moratoriums suggested by NCWRC for the proposed project as well as the fish and
mussel relocation plan.

(3) Does not result in the degradation of groundwaters or surface waters.

The main risk to surface and groundwater from the ACP project will be during construction
activities. These risks include sedimentation and turbidity in surface waters, breaches of
drilling fluids during HDD, and spills of petroleum products and hydraulic fluids from fueling
and equipment maintenance. In addition, some commenters raised concerns regarding
impacts to drinking water wells from trenching and blasting activities associated with the
pipeline installation and from possible contamination due to pipeline leaks during operation.

The applicant has committed to working in the dry for all stream and wetland crossings unless
site-specific conditions warrant working in wet conditions and the applicant obtains prior
written approval from DWR. Proper erosion and sedimentation control measures will be
required for the entire project in accordance with the Division of Energy, Mineral and Land
Resources (DEMLR) sedimentation and erosion control Certificate of Plan Approval. All
temporary fill placed in surface waters related to construction of the pipeline will be removed
once installation of the pipeline is completed at the crossing. The stream banks or wetlands
will be restored to the original contours and revegetated with a native seed mix to prevent
erosion. Only in areas where vegetative stabilization is not successful will hardened
stabilization (rip-rap, geogrid, etc.) techniques be used. No hardening will be placed below





the ordinary high water mark. Furthermore, the applicant has voluntarily agreed to meet the
requirements of the NPDES Construction Activities General-Permit-No.-NCG010000.

The applicant will store chemicals, fuels, hazardous materials, and lubricating oils and conduct
all equipment and vehicle fueling and maintenance at least 100 feet from surface waters and
200 feet from private drinking water wells. In situations where equipment must continue to
operate during fueling activities such as dewatering pumps near surface waters, secondary
containment structures will be used to prevent any spillage from reaching the surface waters.

The applicant has conducted a desktop survey to identify all known drinking water wells within
150 feet of the pipeline construction corridor. Almost 50 private drinking water wells were
located in NC. The applicant proposes to test each well prior to construction for a suite of
parameters including pH, total suspended solids, total dissofved solids, conductivity, alkalinity,
acidity, sulfates, oil/grease, phenolic, iron, manganese, aluminum, fecal coliform, copper,
lead, nickel, silver, thallium, zinc, chromium, arsenic, mercury, selenium, cyanide, calcium
magnesium, hardness, chlorides, antimony, cadmium, and beryllium as well as well yields.
These tests will provide a baseline of groundwater quality and quantity against which to
measure any construction-related impacts. In the event that blasting will occur within 500
feet of a drinking water well, the applicant proposes to conduct pre-blasting monitoring for
the parameters listed above. Should the applicant receive a complaint regarding damage to
well water quality or quantity, the applicant proposes to conduct post-construction well
testing of the same parameters to verify no adverse impacts have occurred. Furthermore, in
the event that adverse impacts do occur as a result of construction activity, ACP has
committed to providing temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or
well.

Operation of the pipeline is not expected to have adverse effects on surface waters and
groundwater. Any post-construction stormwater generated as a result of impervious surfaces
installed during construction are subject to state and local stormwater requirements. ACP has
committed to using sheetflow and existing stormwater conveyances and drainage ditches. No
curb and gutter stormwater management will be constructed. For impervious surfaces
constructed in areas with no state or local stormwater programs, these stormwater
management techniques will be protective of water quality.

Many commenters raised concerns about leaks from the pipeline impacting groundwater. The
pipeline will be transporting dry natural gas which is not soluble in water. Liquids contained
in the gas are removed at a natural gas processing plant prior to transport and at liquid
separators at compressor stations. Any remaining liquid will be de minimus and is not likely
to impact groundwater.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to violate water quality standards if the
conditions in the 401 Water Quality Certification are fully complied with by the applicant (or
its successor). The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require full compliance with the
following permits:
e (Certificate of Plan Approval No. Cumbe-2018-036, issued by DEMLR, Fayetteville
Regional Office
e NPDES Permit No. NCG010000 issued by DEMLR
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The 401 WQC should also be contingent on the issuance of a sedimentation and erosion
control Certificate-of Plan Approval issued by DEMLR, Raleigh-Regional Office and upon
issuance of appropriate state and local stormwater permits. FERC NEPA and 401 WQC
application documentation indicates that the applicant has agreed to conduct pre-
construction water quality testing for drinking water wells within 150 feet of the pipeline

construction -corridor-and within 500 feet of blasting activities.- -The-401 WQC should be

conditioned to require ACP to conduct pre- and post-construction testing of all wells within
150 feet of the construction corridor and within 500 feet of blasting activities regardless of
whether a complaint is received. Should post-construction testing indicate that well water
quality or quantity has been impacted by the construction, ACP should be required to provide
temporary water supplies, and/or a new water treatment system or well. An independent,
qualified groundwater specialist should determine whether an impact has occurred or not. .

The 401 WQC should be conditioned to require monthly ride-through inspections with
appropriate DWR and DEMLR staff to measure compliance with the respective certifications
and permits. The 401 WQC should also require a pre-construction meeting with the
construction contractors, ACP staff, and DWR and DEMLR staff to review the conditions and
requirements of the respective certifications and permits for clarity and understanding.

(4) Does not result in cumulative impacts, based upon past or reasonably anticipated
future impacts, that cause or will cause a violation of downstream water quality
standards.

Cumulative impacts are those impacts that would result from the incremental effects of the
project added to other past, present and reasonably foreseeable future activities (15A NCAC
01C .0103). This includes secondary impacts or impacts from future activities that occur as a
result of the proposed project. The proposed project for the most part will consist of
temporary water quality impacts from the installation of the pipeline. These impacts could
include sedimentation and temporary disturbance of aquatic and riparian habitat during
construction. Permanent impacts will occur in streams and wetlands from access road
improvements. The temporary and permanent impacts will be reduced through avoidance
and mitigation efforts, erosion and sedimentation control and stormwater best management
practices (BMPs), and spill prevention, control, and countermeasure practices. Any projects
occurring in similar locations to the proposed project will be subject to local, state, and federal
regulations that address stream and wetland impacts, stormwater management, and
watershed protection.

Almost 80% of the increased natural gas supply has been committed to natural gas power
plants. The remaining supply will be available for commercial, industrial and residential use.
However, only three distribution points or M&R stations will be constructed in NC. These M&R
stations will be located in Johnston, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. Secondary
development as a result of the pipeline is likely to be focused around these distribution points;
therefore, water quality impacts are most likely in proximity to these areas. The applicant
conducted a qualitative analysis of the potential secondary and cumulative impacts in these
three counties.
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In the qualitative analysis, the applicant completed an “indirect (secondary) and cumulative
effects screening-matrix” where a series of parameters -including scope--of -the -project, -
population growth, available land, water/sewer availability, natural gas availability, market

for development, public policy, and notable water resources were evaluated on their ability to
contribute to indirect and cumulative effects on water quality. Based on these ratings, areas

of potential growth and development were identified. These growth areas were thenm
compared in an action/no-action forecast where the differences in growth and development
between building the pipeline and not building the pipeline were determined. Areas that had
significant increases in growth and development from building the pipeline were mapped.

As discussed above, any new development projects will be subject to state and federal
regulations for impacts to streams and wetlands and erosion and sedimentation control.
However, stormwater management regulations are variable by location. Existing state and
local stormwater programs were overlain on the areas of potential growth identified in
action/no-action analysis to predict the net impact to water quality resulting from secondary
development.

The action/no-action analysis demonstrated that growth could significantly increase in
Johnston and Cumberland Counties if the pipeline is built. These areas have existing
infrastructure for water/sewer and transportation, are predicted to have population growth,
and have a number of shovel-ready development sites. Johnston and Cumberland Counties
are almost entirely covered by state and local stormwater programs and Johnston County is
subject to the Neuse River Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy. Any potential
water quality impacts due to growth in the area would be mitigated through these programs.

Most of Robeson County does not have state or local stormwater programs. Those that are
present are associated with High Quality Waters or Water Supply Watersheds and are limited
in area. However, the action/no-action analysis demonstrated that Robeson County is not
expected to have a significant increase in growth and development as a result of the pipeline.
According to ACP’s analysis, lacking infrastructure, population decline, and separation from
metropolitan areas has stunted growth in this area. Only one shovel-ready industrial site is
available in Robeson County, and it is located in the protected Water Supply Watershed and
would be subject to a local stormwater program. Water quality impacts from secondary
growth in this area would be minimal.

Recommendation: The project is not expected to result in cumulative impacts that violate
water quality standards, if the conditions in the 401 WQC are fully implemented by the
applicant (or its successor). The qualitative cumulative impacts analysis should be forwarded
to the NC Department of Commerce for informational purposes.

(5) Provides for protection of downstream water quality standards through the use of on-
site stormwater control measures. e

Post-construction stormwater is another potential water quality concern. The vast majority
of the proposed pipeline project will not result in new impervious surfaces. However, some
new impervious surfaces are proposed as part of the project. The impervious surfaces include
multiple improved access roads, eleven valve stations, a compressor station, three metering
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and regulating (M&R) stations, and multiple contractor yards. The access roads are existing

unpaved roads-that will be improved to allow construction and maintenance equipment-to

safely pass. Improvements will include minor widening and/or surface water crossing

upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The valve sites are needed to segment the

pipeline for safety, operation, and maintenance purposes. The compressor station will be
located in Northampton County, and the M&R stations will be- located in Johnston,

Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The applicant has indicated that stormwater will be

managed by using existing drainage ditches and swales for access roads. No curb and gutter

stormwater conveyances are proposed for the compressor or M&R stations, and stormwater

will be managed through existing drainage ditches and swales.

Stormwater management for these impervious surfaces will-be regulated through state
programs in Phase I communities or by local programs where applicable. Valve sites and
access roads in a small portion of Nash County and access roads, valve sites, and a contractor
yard in Cumberland County will be regulated through the state-implemented Phase Il
Stormwater Program. ACP will have to meet the requirements of SWG040000 — General
Permit To Construct A Linear Utility Line and Associated Incidental Built-Upon Area (SWG04)
or an individual state stormwater permit. SWG04 and individual state stormwater permits
require compliance with the conditions of the respective permits and with the provisions of
15A NCAC 02H .1000, Session Law 2006-246, and Session Law 2008-211 which ensure the
protection of downstream water quality standards through on-site stormwater control
measures. Any impervious surfaces built in areas covered by local stormwater programs will
have to meet the requirements of the local stormwater program. The applicant also proposes
to build impervious surfaces in areas where no state or local programs are applicable. Based
on the descriptions of stormwater best management practices proposed by the applicant,
stormwater is not expected to violate downstream water quality standards in these areas.

Recommendation: Session Law 2017-10 prohibits DWR from requiring on-site stormwater
management through a 401 WQC. As discussed above, the 401 WQC should be conditioned
to require compliance with all applicable state and local stormwater permits for construction
of a linear utility line and associated incidental built-upon area.

(6) Provides for replacement of existing uses through mitigation.

Both federal and state requirements allow for the purchase of in lieu fee credits to offset
unavoidable impacts to streams and wetlands. DWR requires mitigation [15A NCAC 02H
.0506(h)] at a 1:1 ratio for permanent perennial stream impacts above 300 linear feet and a
1:1 ratio for permanent wetland impacts above one acre. Perennial stream and wetland
impacts for this project will not exceed the respective mitigation thresholds, therefore, no
stream or wetland mitigation is required by DWR. Mitigation is required, however, by the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers for the wetland conversion impacts. Riparian buffer mitigation is
required for the uses identified in the Table of Uses of the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins
Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies [15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC
02B .0259(6), respectively] as “"ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION.” “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c),

13





respectively. Buffer mitigation is discussed below in the buffer authorization certificates
section. s o

Recommendation: No mitigation is required for stream or wetland impacts as a result of the
proposed project. The 401 WQC should be conditioned to include language requiring
mitigation should permanent impact changes occur that exceed mitigation thresholds.

Neuse and Tar-Pamlico Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy
The Neuse River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy and the Tar Pamhco
River Basin Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategy have the exact same
requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259, respectively]. Furthermore,
the mitigation requirements for impacts to protected buffers are exactly the same for the
Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins [15A NCAC 02B .0242 and 15A NCAC 02B .0260
respectively] and both make reference to the buffer mitigation rules [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
For the purposes of this report, the buffer authorization certificates recommendations will
be combined in one discussion.

15A NCAC 02B .0233 and 15A NCAC 02B .0259
(5) DIFFUSE FLOW REQUIREMENT. Diffuse flow of runoff shall be maintained in the
riparian buffer by dispersing concentrated flow and reestablishing vegetation.

As discussed above in Section 5 of the 15A NCAC 02H .0506 discussion, the vast majority of
the proposed project will not result in new impervious surfaces that will create concentrated
stormwater flow. However, there will be improved temporary and permanent access roads,
and five valve sites constructed and maintained in the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins as
part of the project. The access roads are existing unpaved roads that will be improved to allow
construction and maintenance equipment to safely pass. Upgrades will include minor
widening and/or surface water crossing upgrades (e.g., minor pipe/culvert extensions). The
valve sites will consist of gravel pads around above-ground valves with gravel driveways.

Stormwater from these areas will be managed by sheetflow or by using existing roadside
ditches and swales. Sheetflow from the access roads meets the diffuse flow requirements
associated with the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Woaters
Management Strategies [15A NCAC 028 .0233(5) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(5), respectively].
ACP has committed to managing the existing roadside ditches and swales to minimize
sediment, nutrients, and other pollution prior to entering surface waters. The Table of Uses
for the Neuse and Tar-Pamlico River Basins Nutrient Sensitive Waters Management Strategies
[15A NCAC 02B .0233(6) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(6), respectively] identifies use of existing
drainage ditches, roadside ditches, and stormwater outfalls provided they are managed to
minimize the sediment, nutrients, and other pollution that convey to waterbodies as
“EXEMPT” uses. “EXEMPT” uses are defined in 15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(a) and 15A NCAC 02B
.0259(7)(a), respectively.

The applicant proposes to locate the Smithfield M&R station in Johnston County which is
subject to the Neuse River Buffer Rules. This station is also subject to state stormwater
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permitting requirements as part of the Phase Il stormwater rules. Stormwater management
and diffuse flow-requirements will addressed through the Phase.il process. -

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
that diffuse flow conditions be maintained for all stormwater from impervious surfaces
flowing to or within the protected buffers in accordance with the diffuse flow requirements
stated above or other applicable buffer clarification memos.

(6) TABLE OF USES.
Non-electric utility lines:

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 2 — Allowable

e Impacts other than perpendicular crossings in Zone 1 — Allowable with Mitigation
Non-electric utility lines:

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 40 linear feet but equal to or less
than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer with a maintenance corridor greater than 10
feet in width - Allowable with Mitigation

e Perpendicular crossings that disturb greater than 150 linear feet of riparian buffer —
Allowable with Mitigation

The proposed project is categorized as a non-electric utility line. The proposed project includes
perpendicular and non-perpendicular crossings of streams and other surface waters subject
to this rule. Due to the width of the maintenance corridor, 50 feet, all buffer impacts are
“ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses. “ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” uses are defined in
15A NCAC 02B .0233(7)(c) and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(7)(c), respectively.

Recommendation: None. The proposed project is "ALLOWABLE WITH MITIGATION” under
the Table of Uses.

(8) DETERMINATION OF “NO PRACTICAL ALTERNATIVES.” Persons who wish to
undertake uses designated as allowable or allowable with mitigation shall submit a
request for a “no practical alternatives” determination to the Division or to the
delegated authority. The applicant shall certify that the criteria identified in Sub-ltem
(8)(a) of this Rule are met. The Division or the delegated local authority shall grant an
Authorization Certificate upon a “no practical alternatives” determination. The
procedure for making an Authorization Certificate shall be as follows:

(a) For any request for an Authorization Certificate, the Division or the delegated local
authority shall review the entire project and make a finding of fact as to whether
the following requirements have been met in support of a “no practical
alternatives” determination:

(i) The basic project purpose cannot be practically accomplished in a manner that
would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and
protect water quality. _

(ii) The use cannot practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or
redesigned to better minimize disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat,
and protect water quality.

(iii) Best management practices shall be used if necessary to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality.
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The project proposes to construct a pipeline to transport natural gas from West Virginia and

Pennsylvania through-Virginia and North Carolina. The North Carolina-portion of -the - —-— -

proposed route will be constructed through Northampton, Halifax, Nash, Wilson, Johnston,
Sampson, Cumberland, and Robeson Counties. The proposed project will permanently impact
521,430 square feet and 594,070 square feet of protected riparian buffers in the Neuse River
Basin and the Tar-Pamlico River Basin, respectively. As partof the FERC NEPA analysis, ACP
investigated several alternatives to meet the purpose and need of the project including no
build, alternative energy, energy conservation, and system alternatives. Of these alternatives,
the build alternative best met the purpose and need of the project.

Next ACP, conducted an extensive alternatives analysis on potential route locations including
collocation of the ACP with existing pipelines as well as Eastern and Western route
alternatives. Ultimately, ACP chose the Eastern route as the best option based on an
evaluation of a variety of criteria such as project length and human and natural resources.
ACP continued to refine the Eastern alternative balancing a variety of human and natural
environmental resources such as public lands, roads, conservation easements, forested lands,
streams, wetlands, protected riparian buffers, known historical and cultural resources, and
homes and businesses. Development of the proposed pipeline route included the analysis of
seventeen major route alternatives and 37 minor adjustments in the North Carolina portion
of the project in an effort to avoid and minimize impacts to these resources. This analysis
included pre- and post-application communication with DWR and NCWRC on avoidance and
minimization opportunities. ACP has continued to refine the avoidance and minimization
practices in response to additional information requests from DWR and through
environmental commitments.

The applicant has demonstrated that the basic project purpose cannot be practically
accomplished in a manner that would better minimize the disturbance, preserve aquatic life
and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has demonstrated that the use cannot
practically be reduced in size or density, reconfigured or redesigned to better minimize
disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. The applicant has
proposed a number of best management practices in an effort to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality including but not limited to the
following:
e Use of temporary work bridges, matting and pads to reduce the risk of soif compaction
o Trench backfilling using native material to prevent soil contamination and to
accelerate revegetation
e Pump-out activities in the work area will be routed through an energy
dissipation/sediment filtration device prior to discharging to waterbodies
e (Coating for concrete-coated pipe will be conducted at least 100 feet from surface
waters and springs
e Use of horizontal directional drilling for all major river crossings
e Implementation of a Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure plan and a
Horizontal Directional Drill Drilling Fluid Monitoring, Operations, and Contingency
plan
e Use of a project-specific invasive plant species management plan
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e Limiting operation of construction equipment in wetlands to only that necessary for
clearing,-excavation, pipe installation, backfilling,-and restoration

e Stump removal, grading, and excavation will be limited to the area :mmed.-ately over
the trench line to maintain native seed and rootstock o

e Voluntarily implementing the requirements ofiheLonstructronStormwater General
Permit No. NCGO10000

Recommendation: The applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that there is no practical
alternative that can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to
protected buffers. The buffer authorization certificates should be conditioned to incorporate
the best management practices proposed by the applicant intended to minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality. Furthermore, the buffer
authorization certificates should require demarcation of protected buffer with flagging or
signs prior to the initiation of construction and limiting operation of construction equipment
in buffers to only that necessary for clearing, excavation, pipe installation, backfilling, and
restoration

(10) Mitigation. Persons who wish to undertake uses designated as allowable with
mitigation shall meet the following requirements in order to proceed with their
proposed use.

(a) Obtain a determination of “no practical alternatives” to the proposed use
pursuant to Item (8) of this Rule.
(b) Obtain approval for a mitigation proposal pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0242 [.260].

15A NCAC 02B .0242 and .0260 have been repealed and replaced with 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

As discussed above, the applicant has demonstrated that there is no practical alternative that
can accomplish the project’s basic purpose with less adverse impacts to protected buffers.
Due to the fact that the maintenance corridor for the proposed pipeline will have a width of
greater than 10 feet, all of the buffer impacts are considered “ALLOWABLE WITH
MITIGATION” uses and subject to the buffer mitigation requirements [15A NCAC 02B .0295].
However, impacts to wetlands within the buffers are not subject to the buffer mitigation
requirements and are regulated under 15A NCAC 02H .0506(h) as discussed above in section
(6) of the 401 WQC application review process. The buffer mitigation totals reflect the
removal of wetland areas within the buffer.

The applicant has proposed to obtain all buffer mitigation credits through the in-lieu fee
program with the Division of Mitigation Services (DMS). A letter addressed to the applicant
from DMS dated May 4, 2017 and renewed on October 6, 2017, states that DMS is willing to
accept payment for the buffer mitigation credits for the proposed project. DMS will
administer the mitigation credits in accordance with the In-Lieu Fee program instrument
dated July 28, 2010 and 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

Recommendation: The buffer authorization certificates should include conditions requiring
buffer mitigation in accordance with the table below:
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Compensatory River &
— Mitigation Sub-basin Number
Amount Required
301,168 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020102
318,868 (square feet) Tar-Pamlico 03020101
245,612 (square feet) Neuse 03020203
486,344 (square feet) Neuse 03020201

Buffers

Environmental Justice

One of the most common topics of the commenters was environmental justice. As discussed
above in the General Comments Section, many comments received expressed concerns
about environmental justice issues associated with pipeline’s construction and operation.
FERC’s Final Environmental Impact Statement determined, “as a result of the project, no
disproportionately high and adverse impacts on environmental justice populations as a result
of air quality impacts, including impacts associated with the proposed Compressor Station 2,
would be expected as a result of ACP and SHP. Also, no disproportionately high and adverse
impacts on environmental justice populations as a result of other resources impacts would
be expected.” Many commenters disagreed with this determination and requested that the
401 WQC be denied based on the potential environmental justice impacts.

The Director evaluates a 401 WQC application based on five criteria including a no practical
alternatives analysis, minimization of adverse impacts to surface waters, an analysis of the
degradation of groundwaters or surface waters, a cumulative impacts analysis, and
replacement of existing uses through mitigation. Environmental justice is not included in the
criteria upon which the Director must evaluate the application. Although environmental
justice is not an evaluation criteria, the Department has been intimately engaged with the
stakeholders of North Carolina through the permitting process.

On March 23, 2017, the Department hosted a stakeholder meeting in Raleigh, NC to provide
information and receive feedback on the proposed pipeline project. Eight environmental
organizations, four government agencies, and a representative of the Commission of Indian
Affairs were in attendance.

On July 18 and 20, 2017, the Department hosted 401 WQC Application Public Hearings. This
was to allow the citizens of North Carolina to comment on the certification. Notification of
the public hearings was provided in accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .0506(d) and (e). In
addition, the Division of Water Resources provided notices of the hearings by mailing flyers
in both English and Spanish to community organizations, such as churches, government and
non-government organizations, libraries, etc.

On August 9, 2017, the Department participated in an Environmental Justice Forum hosted
by the Haliwa-Saponi Indian Tribe and the North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs. The
forum allowed an opportunity for tribal leaders, commission members, state and federal
regulators, and other stakeholders to discuss information on the proposed Atlantic Coast
Pipeline.
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VI.

Between August 15 and 17, 2017, the Department hosted three listening sessions along the
proposed pipeline route to-obtain-additional public feedback on-the project. In addition to
the Department, the 'NC'ljébértment of Commerce, NC f)épartniéhf of Natural and Cultural
Resources, and the US Army Corp of Engineers were present. -

On October 20 and 21, 2017, the Department participated in the North-Carolina
Environmental Justice Network’s Summit. This allowed for the Department to provide a
summary of the permitting status of the project.

In addition to the various stakeholder engagements listed above, the Department has been
transparent with citizens who requested to sign up for the email news feed on the project, as
well as meetings with the Commission of Indian Affairs. The Department has been thorough
in its review of the applications submitted for the proposed Atlantic Coast Pipeline.

Summary

Public comments concerning the two public hearings focused on several major issue areas,
including the degradation of water quality, cumulative impacts, environmental justice,
sedimentation and erosion control, the permitting process, impacts on wildlife including
threatened and endangered species, and ground and surface water supply protection. Due
to the number of public comments, many of which expressed concerns on the same issues,
each comment is not addressed individually. Only comments that have direct relevance to
the certification decision have been addressed in the recommendations (Section V).

As stated above, a thorough review of all public comments received and the project record
has been conducted, and additional insight has been obtained through discussions with DWR
staff. Based on all of this information, it is my recommendation that the 401 Water Quality
Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates be issued and subject to the conditions
included in the recommendations in Section V. It is further recommended that DWR include
any additional conditions necessary to ensure that the project will meet state water quality
standards.

Vil. Appendices (available on Laserfiche)

A. May 8, 2017 401 Water Quality Certification Application
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: 401 Application
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/547515/Row1.aspx

B. Notice of Public Hearings —June 16-18, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice 06_16_2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547528/Pagel.aspx

C. Correction to Notice of Public Hearings — June 19-22, 2017
a. Laserfiche Filename: Listserve Public Notice Correction 06_19 2017
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/547588/Pagel.aspx

19





D. July 18, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_FayettevilleHearing -Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552613/Pagel.aspx

E. July 18, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18 Fayetteville Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/552611/Pagel.aspx

F. July 20, 2017 Non-speaker sign-in sheets
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMtHearing_Non-SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553245/Pagel.aspx

G. July 20, 2017 Speaker list
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_SpeakerSigninSheets
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/553247/Pagel.aspx

H. July 18, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July18_Fayetteville Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557323/Pagel.aspx

I. July 20, 2017 Public Hearing transcript, including oral comments
a. Laserfiche Filename: ACP_July20_RockyMt Hearing_Transcripts
b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/doc/557322/Pagel.aspx

J.  Written comments received during the comment period, including at the public
hearings
a. Laserfiche Folder Name: Public Notice Comments

b. Laserfiche link:
http://edocs.deg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/548242/Rowl.aspx
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401 Application for Atlantic Coast Pipeline

Date

Action

May 9, 2017

Application Received

June 27, 2017

Req. for Add Info (1) /Notice of Hearing

July 12,2017

Add Info Received (1)

July 18, 2017

Public Hearing — Fayetteville

July 20, 2017

Public Hearing — Rocky Mount

August 19, 2017

Public Comment Period Ends

September 14, 2017

Req. for Add Info (2)

September 22, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

September 29, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 2, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 13, 2017

Add Info Received (2)

October 26, 2017

Req. for Add Info (3)

November 4, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

November 7, 2017

Phone call re Add Info Received

November 15, 2017

Add Info Received (3)

**Nov. 21, 2017**

Email requesting add info (4)

**Nov. XX, 2017**

Add Info Received (4)

**Dec. 13, 2017**

Provide HO Report and draft decision documents to Section Chief
for review

**Dec. 19, 2017**

Provide HO Report and draft decision documents to Director for
review

**Jan. 2, 2018**

Meet with Director for final decision

** indicate goal date not actual date **

11-20-17
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ROY COOPER

Governor

MICHAEL S. REGAN

Secretary

LINDA CULPEPPER

Water Resources
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY Interim Director

November 28, 2017

DWR Project #14-0957 v2
Northampton, Halifax, Nash,
Wilson, Johnston, Sampson,

Cumberland and Robeson Counties

Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Attn: Ms. Leslie Hartz

707 E. Main Street, 19th Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

Subject: REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Atlantic Coast Pipeline

Dear Ms. Hartz:

On May 8, 2017, the Division of Water Resources (Division) received your application dated
May 3, 2017, requesting an Individual Water Quality Certification / Buffer Authorization from
the Division for the subject project. Additional information was requested by the Division on
June 27, 2017 and received on July 12, 2017. Two public hearings were held on July 18 and 20,
2017 in Fayetteville and Rocky Mount, respectively, with a public comment period from June 16
—August 19, 2017, to receive public comments on the proposed project. Comments received
are available for review at the following link:
http://edocs.deqg.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/548242/Row1.aspx.

Based on the comments received, additional information was requested by the Division on
September 14, 2017 and responses were received on September 22 and 29, 2017. Department
of Environmental Quality, Division and Atlantic Coast Pipeline (ACP) representatives met on
September 29, 2017 to discuss the additional information that was received by the Division on
September 22, 2017. On October 16, 2017, the Division received follow-up information from
that meeting. The Division requested additional information again on October 26, 2017 and
received a response on November 4, 2017. The Division had a conference call with ACP on
November 7, 2017 to discuss the additional information that was received by the Division on
November 4, 2017 and received follow-up information on November 15, 2017.

The Division has determined that the following additional information is necessary to continue
to process your application [15A NCAC 02H .0502(c), 15A NCAC 02B .0233(8) and .0259 (8)]:

State of North Carolina | Environmental Quality | Water Resources
1617 Mail Service Center | Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1617
919 807 6300






Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
DWR Project # 14-0957 v2
Request for Add Info 11-28-17
Page 2 of 3

1. In our conference call, Division staff explained that ACP’s Indirect and Cumulative Effects
(ICE) Screening lacked an analysis of the project’s potential to stimulate economic
development and its potential impact on water quality. Staff suggested maps of
available water and sewer infrastructure overlaid with the pipeline route, water
resources, and existing developed areas and roadway infrastructure would be helpful to
identify areas with potential to experience project-induced growth (within the County,
not County-wide). Once these areas are identified, a more detailed discussion of the
potential for each specific area to experience project-induced growth must be provided.

a. Although ACP provided the mapping suggested by staff, there was no analysis of
the information provided in the maps, specific areas were not identified, a
detailed analysis of each area’s potential for project-induced growth was not
completed, nor was there a detailed discussion of the regulatory framework that
may be in place or needed to protect water quality. Please include each of these
in your analysis.

b. Excerpts below from Guidance for Assessing Indirect and Cumulative Impacts of
Transportation Projects in North Carolina Volume II* explain the analysis should
include comparing forecasts of future conditions with and without the proposed
project along with an explanation of the underlying system of logic used in the
analysis.

Analyzing induced growth is an exercise in creating and comparing
forecasts of future conditions. At least two forecasts are necessary:
e qa Base or No-Action Forecast which describes future conditions in the
absence of the project or plan; and
e an Action Forecast describing conditions in a future point in time
following implementation of the project alternative or plan...

The key in forecasting is an underlying system of logic that can produce
reproducible and relatively consistent results regardless of the forecaster.
It should be noted that forecasting is not the exact determination and
prediction of the future, but the logical extrapolation of likely effects that
will occur from known associations among different critical parts of the
system. (from page 1V-4)

c. The analysis should include a specific discussion of industries that need
additional natural gas capacity to operate in North Carolina.

d. There should be a clear connection in the discussion to support the conclusion
statements.

! Guidance for Assessing Indirect and Cumulative Impacts of Transportation Projects in North Carolina Volume II:
Practitioner’s Handbook. 2001. The Louis Berger Group, Inc.
https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/Environmental/Compliance%20Guides%20and%20Procedures/Volume%200
2%20Assessment%20Guidance%20Practitioners%20Handbook.pdf






Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
DWR Project # 14-0957 v2
Request for Add Info 11-28-17
Page 3 of 3

2. In addition to the more robust analysis of ICE, please also provide more details
regarding the terminus of the project in the ICE document. On page 12 of the ICE, ACP
states that there is no commitment to potential customers or reasonably foreseeable
plans to extend the ACP beyond the current terminus. Include an explanation of the
factor(s) that led to proposed terminus of the project.

Pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H .0502(e) / 15A NCAC 02B .0233 / 15A NCAC 02B .0259, the applicant
shall furnish all the above requested information for the proper consideration of the
application. Please respond in writing within 30 days by sending one copy of all the above
requested information to the 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch, 1617 Mail Service Center,

Raleigh, NC 27699-1617.

Please be aware that you have no authorization under the Section 401 of the Clean Water Act
or the Neuse or Tar-Pamlico Buffer Rules for this activity and any work done within waters of
the state or protected riparian buffers may be a violation of North Carolina General Statutes
and Administrative Code.

Contact me at 919-807-6360 or karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov or Jennifer Burdette at 919-807-
6364 or jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Karen Higgins, Supervisor
401 & Buffer Permitting Branch

cc: Richard Gangle, Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (via richard.b.gangle@dom.com)
Spencer Trichell, Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (via spencer.trichell@dom.com)
USACE Raleigh Regulatory Field Office
DWR 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch file

Filename: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_AddInfo4
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To: Bridgette R Morris-Mcl awhorn (bmorris@ncdenr.gov)

Subject: meeting with Linda
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 2:57:18 PM
Hi Bridgette-

"d like to go ahead and schedule time with Linda, Jennifer Burdette, Brian Wren and me to go
over the Atlantic Coast Pipeline Hearing Officer’s report and recommendation. We'll probably

need an hour and are looking for January 4" or 510,

Thanks-
Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor
Division of Water Resources

Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-8360 office

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604
1617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

I comresponderice to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Lay, =7

lased to third parties.






From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Rice, Sarah M
Subject: RE: ACP

Date: Friday, December 15, 2017 2:27:34 PM

Sarah,

Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss the ACP hearing officer’s report on Jan. 4" 1am finalizing
the HO’s report and hope to have a draft to Karen and Jennifer early next week (minus the
cumulative impacts evaluation — still waiting on info). Do you think you could have a EJ statement
completed next week? Thanks.

Brian Wrenn
919-743-8409 (office)
919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Rice, Sarah M
Sent: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 12:47 FM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP

Hi Brian,

Please let me know if | can assist with any EJ related questions for the hearing officers report.
Regards,

Sarah

919.707.8287

Get Qutlook for i0S





From: Doug Heyl

To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)
Subject: Date: Attachments:

Heyl, Douglas
FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office)
919.812.3415 (Mobile)
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Munger, Bridget

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM

To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018

ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018

DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.

DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.

DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification
issues are

*“Nothing Compares

resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.





DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a
Subject: Date: Attachments:

RE: ACP Well Testing
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png

Ok, I think | have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, | made one change to the
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other
than that. I've included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write-up as well. | think that covers it. I've saved the report with
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM

To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing

agreed
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L
To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer
Subject: a FW: ACP HO report

Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.





From:

To: Subject: Date:
Brian-

Higgins, Karen

Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM

Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. | don’t think Jennifer will review this today
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.

Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’'m not sure that it will
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401-
wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP HO report

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

| think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
OnlJan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)
Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607

Mailing Address:

1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1623





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a

Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report
Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM

Attachments:

FYI

ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,

Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.
Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607





From: To: Subject: Date:
Burdette, Jennifer a
Wrenn, Brian L

RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM

Sorry for missing your call this morning. | was deep into the draft of the 401. Before | left, | just
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. | enjoyed and learned a lot working
with you.

Take care, Jennifer

Jennifer Burdette

401/Buffer Coordinator

Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality
919 807 6364 office

jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov

1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9" FIr Archdale Bldg — Room 942F) Email
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the

North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report

FYI
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen
Poupart, Jeff
Cc:

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM

Karen,
| accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. | looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?

I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on
this.

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L
Cc: Poupart, Jeff

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Brian-

Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. | made the edits to the HO report based on your
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. | used the HO report | sent
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those |
made today.

| also made the recommended changes to the draft 401.
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.

Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov





From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use
track changes so | can look at them easily.

Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Culpepper, Linda

Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen

Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report

Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. |
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Munger, Bridget

To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas

Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm

Please see attached.
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:

From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget"
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report

FYI

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office

karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM

To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast

Pipeline project. | am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!





Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Culpepper, Linda

Subject: draft 401 decision documents
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM

Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx

Linda-

Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’'m
working on the bullet points.

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office





Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP

Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount

Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Linda-

(none)
Not yet responded

Higgins, Karen
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff

We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents
if you had any questions. | gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification
and draft denial.

Thanks- Karen

127

Subject: Location:

Start:
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

(none) Accepted





Canceled: ACP Team Meeting
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse

Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free

Lucey, John D
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R
Culpepper, Linda

Cc:
Subject: ACP - word document

Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM
Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx
Bridgette-

| put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today — there are two places for Linda to sign. | will not be in the office
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I've attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?

Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits
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ROY COOPER

Governor

MICHAEL S. REGAN

Secretary

LINDA CULPEPPER

Water Resources
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY Interim Director

January XX, 2018

DWR # 14-0957 v2

Northampton, Halifax, Nash,
Wilson, Johnston, Sampson,
Cumberland and Robeson Counties

CERTIFIED MAIL: XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
Attn: Ms. Leslie Hartz
707 E. Main Street, 19" Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Subject: DENIAL OF 401 WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND TAR-PAMLICO/NEUSE RIPARIAN
BUFFER AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATES
Atlantic Coast Pipeline
USACE Action ID. No. SAW-2014-01558

Dear Ms. Hartz:

On May 9, 2017, the Division of Water Resources (Division) received your application requesting a 401
Water Quality Certification and Tar-Pamlico and Neuse Riparian Buffer Authorization Certificates from
the Division for the subject project. Pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H .0506, a certification shall be issued
when the Director determines that water quality standards are met. Pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B .0233
(8) and .0259 (8), a Buffer Authorization Certificate shall be granted when the Division determines there
is no practical alternative. The project has not met the following requirements:

e Rule Citation
“Rule text...”
Explanation...

In accordance with 15A NCAC 02H .0507(e), 15A NCAC 02B .0233(8), and 15A NCAC 02B .0259(8), your
application for a 401 Water Quality Certification and Buffer Authorization Certificates are hereby
denied.

This decision can be contested as provided in General Statute 150B by filing a written petition for an
administrative hearing to the Office of Administrative Hearings (hereby known as OAH) within sixty (60)
calendar days.

State of North Carolina | Environmental Quality | Water Resources
1617 Mail Service Center | Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1617
919 807 6300





Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC
DWR# 14-0957 v2

Denial

Page 2 of 2

A petition form may be obtained from the OAH at http://www.ncoah.com/ or by calling the OAH Clerk’s
Office at (919) 431-3000 for information. A petition is considered filed when the original and one (1)
copy along with any applicable OAH filing fee is received in the OAH during normal office hours (Monday
through Friday between 8:00am and 5:00pm, excluding official state holidays).

The petition may be faxed to the OAH at (919) 431-3100, provided the original and one copy of the
petition along with any applicable OAH filing fee is received by the OAH within five (5) business days
following the faxed transmission.

Mailing address for the OAH:

If sending via US Postal Service: If sending via service (UPS, FedEx, etc):
Office of Administrative Hearings
6714 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, NC 27699-6714

1601 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-1601

Water Act and 15A NCAC 02H
. Please be aware that you have
use/Tar-Pamllco Riparian Buffer
thin waters of the state may be a violation of
Contact Karen Higgins at 919-807-6360 or

North Caroli
karen.hig

Linda Culpepper, Interim Director
Division of Water Resources
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PROCEZEDTINGS

MR. GREENE: All right. Today's date 1is
October 4, 2019. My name is Kevin Greene. I am with
Fagle Intel Services. We've been contracted by the
North Carolina General Assembly subcommittee on the ACP
to gather facts and report those facts and information
back to them. We're here today to interview you. And
this interview is being recorded. And I would like for
each individual present to state your name, position
and acknowledge that you are aware that it's being
recorded. And I'll start with Tom.

MR. BEERS: I'm Tom Beers. I'm an
investigator with Eagle Intel Services, and I
understand this is being recorded.

MR. LANE: Bill Lane, DEQ. I understand it's
being recorded.

MS. CULPEPPER: Linda Culpepper, DEQ, Division
of Water Resources Director. And I understand that
this is being recorded.

MR. HARGROVE: Drew Hargrove with DEQ. And I
understand this is being recorded.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. And I believe Mr.
Lane would like to add something.

MR. LANE: Yes, just a couple of notes. Based

on an agreement of the parties, this agreement will
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last no long -- I'm sorry, this interview will last no
longer than an hour. We're beginning at 3:57. So
we'll finish no later than 4:57.

And the only questions to be presented to Ms.
Culpepper will be those related to the 401 water
quality certification for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline,
not other projects that she works on or anything in her
personal life. Thank you.

MR. GREENE: Understood. And thank you.

Thank you for being here. You've already stated your
name. Can you Jjust give us a brief background of your
employment history with DEQ?

MS. CULPEPPER: Began employment in November
of 1988 in the Division of Water -- excuse me, the
Division of Waste Management, and transitioned over to
the Division of Water Resources in early 2016 and had
been employed since then.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. And in the
same position, 2016 to current?

MS. CULPEPPER: I came into the Division of
Water Resources as a deputy director and then interim
director and then director.

MR. GREENE: Okay. During 2017, primarily
through 2017 and the beginning of January or the all of

January, what was your official position?






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 5

MS. CULPEPPER: Deputy director transitioning
into -- excuse me, interim director transitioning into
director.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Which, same duties and
responsibilities for those positions?

MS. CULPEPPER: Essentially.

MR. GREENE: And what would that be?

MS. CULPEPPER: As the director?

MR. GREENE: Yes, ma'am.

MS. CULPEPPER: Policy and implementation of
all of our statutes, rules, responsibilities.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And did you have the
ultimate authority over 401 water permits?

MS. CULPEPPER: The 401 permits are in our
permitting section, led by Jeff Poupart, who's the
section chief. He reports to the deputy director which
is Jim Gregson.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: And then Jim Gregson reports
to me.

MR. GREENE: All right. During this time
period, 2017, was Jim Gregson the deputy director at
that time?

MS. CULPEPPER: I would have to go back and

look at the time when he became deputy director.
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MR. GREENE: Okay. And the chain of command,
who do you answer to?

MS. CULPEPPER: Sheila Holman.

MR. GREENE: Sheila Holman. And then Holman
answers to the secretary?

MS. CULPEPPER: I assume it's the secretary.

MR. GREENE: Okay. What primarily was your
involvement with the Atlantic Coast Pipeline permitting
process?

MS. CULPEPPER: Once they had the basic
outline of the permit, and I participated in division
or department conversations on the permit, and
meetings, I attended at least one of the listening
sessions, I believe it's down in Robeson County when we
were engaged in public stakeholder..

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. And were you
involved in the daily activities or how much
information was usually relayed to you regarding the
process?

MS. CULPEPPER: Typically it was in the
meetings.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And these meetings
occurred how often?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not recall how often.

MR. GREENE: Okay. On a regular basis or as
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MS. CULPEPPER: Yes, they were on a regular
basis.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And who i1s normally
present during these meetings?

MS. CULPEPPER: The permitting staff from the
401 and..

MR. GREENE: Which are? Those people would
be?

MS. CULPEPPER: Honestly, I cannot recall if
Jeff Poupart himself was there. Karen Higgins at the
time was the branch head.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Anyone else? The hearing
officer..

MS. CULPEPPER: At that point in time, when
the hearing officer was engaged in the process and
Brian Wrenn, he works on our water sciences section.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. And were there
other meetings within the department that you would
come together and discuss the ACP permitting not just
on the 4017

MS. CULPEPPER: Honestly I don't recall what -
- when I was at the meetings I was focused on the 401
component of the permit, so.

MR. GREENE: Right. But I guess my question
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would be were there other divisions present during
these meetings?

MS. CULPEPPER: There were other divisions,
right. They were involved in permitting.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And you were an interim or
preparing to be director since 2016. Were you involved
in the pre-application process for the ACP?

MS. CULPEPPER: And when I came in in 2016 I
was the deputy director, and this permitting function
reported to the director, Jay Zimmerman.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay. So this permitting
program has never been a direct report to me. But I am
responsible as the division director for all of their
work.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And in your position
capacity, obviously you'wve been involved with a lot of
projects. How would you rate the ACP projects,
specifically the 401 water permitting process compared
to others on a scale basis or information basis?

MS. CULPEPPER: I'd have to ask some clarity.
Technically, complexity or -- I don' (cross talk) -- TI..

MR. GREENE: How would you -- how -- 1is there
any way that you would categorize projects? Or are

they categorized?
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MS. CULPEPPER: Not in my mind. I don't
approach it that way.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Did this
particular project -- were there any anomalies or
abnormal things going on in the process, the permitting
process that was unusual or different from others?

MS. CULPEPPER: I had not gone through very
many 401 processes before, so I don't have a benchmark
for you to, you know, to describe.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Just want to
go through just a couple of things briefly and then
we'll get into more specifics. But we pulled off the
DEQ website where your -- the staff files are located.
And I pulled just a few documents here from yours. I'm
going to show you -- not yours, this is yours.
Particular document we like -- just want to flip
through that to see if those appear to be your notes.
Sorry.

MS. CULPEPPER: That's okay. I assume you it
wants to go on this page. They look to be my
handwriting and my notes.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall making those
notes?

MS. CULPEPPER: I would have to look at each

one, if you want me to respond to each page, but..
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MR. GREENE: Okay. And we -- I will ask just
a couple of questions regarding each one. There are
some blank spaces on these. Is that a redaction or

were they submitted that way?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not recall. I can see
that there are --

MR. GREENE: As you can see, yeah, there's..

MS. CULPEPPER: -- some other topics spliced
in here -- or put -- copied in here. So I don't (cross
talk) recall.

MR. GREENE: Would -- how would those notes be
entered into the public file? Right. Would you do it
-- would you actually redact that like it is? Or would
someone else do that?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. If I can just
view that.

MS. CULPEPPER: Sure.

MR. GREENE: Thank you. All right. Here is a
note. And I've got it highlighted. If you can just
review that particular note and read it into the
record, i1f you would.

MS. CULPEPPER: I am having trouble reading my
writing.

MR. GREENE: You're like me.
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MS. CULPEPPER: Looks like Wednesday, December

20th. Cannot read the word. It looks like adding

cumulative impact. The next line 1is, "Meeting with."
And I do not -- I can't read that. Next words are
hearing officer report, Thursday. "Final

recommendation next week," is the final line that's
highlighted.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you have any
recollection of making that note and more specifics
regarding that?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not.

MR. GREENE: Okay. What would be -- how would
-- what would be your inference as to what that means?

MS. CULPEPPER: Directly Wednesday the 20th,
it looks like there's additional information or
something related to cumulative impact.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And cumulative impact 1is a
-- tell me what cumulative impact is, if you would
please.

MS. CULPEPPER: The total impacts of a
project, looking at the totality.

MR. GREENE: And is that part of the 401
process for the permitting?

MS. CULPEPPER: Right.

MR. GREENE: Okay.
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MS. CULPEPPER: The second line is hearing
officer report, Thursday.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And I don't even know what
day the 20th is, but I'm assuming it would be talking
about a upcoming Thursday. So probably next Thursday
after the 20th, and I did apologize for not looking at
calendar, but that's -- you are expecting to see it at
that point in time?

MS. CULPEPPER: My notes seem to indicate,
"Hearing officer report Thursday." I don't know 1f I
was anticipating seeing that or if there was going to
be a discussion on it, I don't know from these notes.

MR. Lane: Okay. Is there a date on these
notes? I don't see a date.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

MR. GREENE: No, just the reference to the
December 20th.

MS. CULPEPPER: And which says it's Wednesday.
I can read that writing.

MR. GREENE: Oh, okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: Wednesday the 20th.

MR. GREENE: Yes, we were trying to figure
that out, what the..

MS. CULPEPPER: But I don't know if Thursday

means the next day or..
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MR. GREENE: Right, or the following. That
may be Christmas..

MS. CULPEPPER: Do not know.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Thank you. I actually
kind of go forward while we're -- this. Okay. If you
can just look at the next one that's highlighted.

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay.

MR. GREENE: And what does it say?

MS. CULPEPPER: "Brian, cumulative impacts,
sufficient response," is the first line. The second
line, "Send draft to Karen and Jennifer to review."

The third line is, "Comments done tomorrow. " The
fourth line, "Meet Monday."

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you recall when
those notes were made?

MS. CULPEPPER: No, sir. I don't see anything
on the sheet that would indicate.

MR. GREENE: Would that indicate that your --
the review of the hearing officer's report was going to
be complete or completed or what..

MS. CULPEPPER: It does not reference the
hearing officer report.

MR. GREENE: Oh, I'm sorry. I think there was
a reference to Brian. What was that reference?

MS. CULPEPPER: "Cumulative impact, sufficient
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response."

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you know what that
was 1in response to?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't. I know we were doing
add info requests.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And I believe we do have
the fourth ad info request, and that specifically was
talking about the cumulative impact, and that was a
request on that. So would that indicate that that was
received?

MS. CULPEPPER: I cannot tell from the notes.

MR. BEERS: Okay. When you made those notes,
what information were you making these notes from? Was
someone telling you this information? Or is this -- do
you...

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't -- from reading the
notes, I don't have that context.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Let's see. Then there's -
- it appears to be a meeting on January 19th. And if
you can Jjust look at that and kind of review that page.
And first of all, who was present during that meeting,
according to these notes?

MS. CULPEPPER: According to the notes, I
typically will document names, so Geoff Gisler

(phonetic), Gudrun Thompson, David Neal (phonetic),
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Secretary Regan, Sheila Holman, Bill Lane, Doug Heyl
are listed.
MR. GREENE: Okay. And the date on that 1is..

MS. CULPEPPER: January 19, 2018.

MR. GREENE: All right. And if you -- now you
briefly reviewed it a few minutes ago. What seems to
be -- what's the meeting about?

MS. CULPEPPER: So there's information
regarding the ACP. There's information regarding our
community EJ or engagement conference. And we're
looking at economic development with the Department of
Commerce in the rural area. So there seems to be a
variety of topics.

MR. GREENE: Would any of those pertain to the
401 permit?

MS. CULPEPPER: I have a header listing on
line 4, one update on ACP, and then I have some notes
regarding SELC and Geoff Gisler.

MR. GREENE: Are they within the water
resource department? I'm not familiar with who they
are. What are their positions?

MS. CULPEPPER: I'm listing SELC. I do —-
Gudrun Thompson, I do not know. That point of contact
for sure I have a head notes with it for utility/FERC

(phonetic). David Neal, I have a notation signaling
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air and environmental Jjustice as EJ.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you recall that
meeting on the 19th?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not recall 1t
specifically, no.

MR. GREENE: And I believe the permit was
issued on the 26th of January. So then a week, one
week prior to that. 1Is there any discussion as to when
the permit was going to be issued at that point in
time? The 401 specifically.

MS. CULPEPPER: Let me look through it again.
I did not see it at my first look through. I do not
see any indication on timing of permit. What I see are
notes regarding comments made by other participants in
the meeting.

MR. GREENE: And when you say other
participants, are those from other divisions?

MS. CULPEPPER: The ones that I have read out
loud their names.

MR. GREENE: Right. And what division are
they? Because I -- I think you made reference to SLE
or something.

MS. CULPEPPER: Southern Environmental Law
Center, SELC.

MR. GREENE: Okay.
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MS. CULPEPPER: Geoff Gisler, Gudrun Thompson,
David Neal, those are not DEQ employees.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you know why they
were present?

MS. CULPEPPER: I apologize. I do not recall
this meeting specifically.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Okay.

MR. BEERS: Thank you. I'm Jjust going to show
you —-- these are some e-mails that came from the DEQ
website as well.

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: I'll let you start. You can
become familiar with those. And they're mostly
December, January.

MR. LANE: Oh, I see. Do you need them back?

MR. BEERS: Yeah, well, I'll just -- this

first page. It looks like December 14th Karen Higgins

reaches out to Bridgette (phonetic). 1Is that your
assistant?

MS. CULPEPPER: Those -- we have separate
parts. That's -- I apologize.

MR. BEERS: Okay. Yeah, there is up here.
MS. CULPEPPER: Bridgette Morris-McLawhorn
(phonetic) was our administrative secretary.

MR. BEERS: $So it looks like she's trying to
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schedule a meeting to review the HO report, the hearing
officer's report, is that..

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: Do you recall that? Of course

not...

MS. CULPEPPER: I apologize.

MR. BEERS: Yeah. So I mean that's what it
looks like. I mean it's..

MS. CULPEPPER: It appears she was setting up
the meeting.

MR. BEERS: So then in the next e-mail Brian
Wrenn is going to e-mail to Sarah Rice saying that she
-- that Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss ACP
hearing officer on January 4th. And I'm finalizing the
HO report, hearing officer's report, I think that
means. "And I hope to have a draft to Karen Higgins
and Jennifer early next week."

So she's looking to get some Environmental
Justice statement in this. But it looks like they're
going forward trying to finalize this hearing officer's
report to give this to you to review on January 4th.
Do you recall that?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall the timing but..

MR. BEERS: Okay. Just consistent with what

you would recollect in the overall process?
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MS. CULPEPPER: It's consistent with the
permitting process.

MR. BEERS: Okay. So that was 1in December
they set this up. Moving onto January 3rd, you saw
these e-mails, where they're -- it looks like Brian
Wrenn, Karen Higgins are basically finalizing this
hearing officer's report. Does that reflect what that
e-mail -- those e-mails are in January 3rd? They look
like they're making edits to get ready to review with
you. That's what it looks like to me.

MS. CULPEPPER: They look..

MR. LANE: Just note that Ms. Culpepper is not
copied on any -- these are not sent -- none of these e-
mails were sent to her.

MR. BEERS: Right.

MR. LANE: So she's reading other people's e-
mails.

MR. BEERS: Correct. And I'm just trying to
put the timeline to refresh her memory of how this
final review process went.

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: So January 4th there's an e-mail
chain, Brian Wrenn and Bridget Munger. And it looks
like she's made a request to Brian Wrenn to get the

hearing officer's report. Do you recall that before
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You reviewed 1it.

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall their exchanges
between each other that (cross talk).

MR. BEERS: Do you recall rather than you
review this hearing officer's report it was going to be
reviewed by the secretary's office before you got to
review it? Do you recall that?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall it. I do see
in these e-mails there's a reference to that.

MR. BEERS: So does that refresh your
recollection, the date you were going to review this
report before you?

MS. CULPEPPER: I apologize. 1It's been long
enough ago. I don't have recall on that.

MR. LANE: Again, Ms. Culpepper did not send
or receive any of these e-mails.

MR. BEEERS: Right. And I didn't say that.
I'm just asking if she remembers that how -- if she
knew the secretary's office reviewed the hearing
officer's report prior to you.

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not recall.

MR. BEERS: Do you remember when you first got
a copy to review?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall a date, no. I

apologize.
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MR. BEERS: Do you recall any conversation
with someone from the secretary's office about
reviewing the hearing officer's report?

MS. CULPEPPER: We would -- during our
periodic meetings we would discuss timing for when we
thought we would have the hearing officer's report
ready. So that was a point of discussion.

MR. BEERS: So do you recall the secretary's
office from where you reviewed this? You don't recall?

MS. CULPEPPER: I apologize. I do not recall.

MR. BEERS: 1In any of your meetings do you
recall any conversations about the secretary's office
being involved with the approval of the 401 permit?

MS. CULPEPPER: We would go over items to
understand how close are we, do we have enough
information and what our technical review on that, if
we're moving towards a issuance or a denial. So those
were points of conversation.

MR. BEERS: This is the first -- it looks to
me that January 22nd, that's the first e-mail where I
see you got a copy of the hearing officer's report.

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay. Thank you.

MR. BEERS: Do you recall that day, getting it
that day? That's the date it was signed.

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall.
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MR. BEERS: Okay, you don't. Okay. You don't
recall any -- going from having a meeting to review the
hearing officer's report and then finding out you're
not going to review it until the 22nd, you don't recall
that big gap in time and any conversation that would
have taken place, why you're not going to look at this
anymore.

MS. CULPEPPER: We were going through
different technical points for the permit, so there
were some time in there where we were looking at do we
have enough information. So I recall that there were
those iterations. And there were some gaps in time
gathering information with the staff working on the
project.

MR. BEERS: Do you recall any changes that
were made to the hearing officer's report from the 4th

until the 22nd? I'm just asking if you recall. This

is a big -- it's quite a gap in time before something
that's -- was going to happen on the 4th. And then
that's when you were first going to review it. And

then the 22nd is the first time you see it. I just
wonder 1f you recollect any conversation about that.

MS. CULPEPPER: Yeah, and I've shared. What I
recall is..

MR. BEERS: Yeah, okay. I'm just -- I'm
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trying to..

MS. CULPEPPER: What I recall is just our
technical issues going through it to make sure dot all
the T -- or dot all the Is, cross the Ts.

MR. BEERS: Who at the secretary's office
would have asked for that to see that report? Who
would have been the person to ask for that? In your
experience working there, would it have been, in just
the secretary's office who is going to review it, who
they were..

MR. LANE: That's speculation in this case.

MR. BEERS: Well, in your experience working
with the secretary's office, who has the expertise to
look at something like this? Anyone?

MS. CULPEPPER: I really don't have a lot of
history working on these. This 1s one of the earlier
ones 1n my capacilty as the director to even look at.

MR. BEERS: Okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: So I -- I don't have that
frame of reference for you, but..

MR. BEERS: Right. Okay.

MR. GREENE: And going back to this timeframe,
because from your notes on that Wednesday the 20th and
then the -- we were saying hearing officer report on

Thursday. So that's, you know, a month away, of course
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there is holidays in there too. And so did you ever
question what's going on where is the hearing officer's
report?

MS. CULPEPPER: We have these periodic
meetings to hear those questions that were being asked.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And so were you apprised
of the steps that were being taken as to this person is
going to review it. At this point in time this person
is going to review it. Were you aware of how it's
going to progress?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall the logistics
of those review processes or —-- I don't know. I
apologize.

MR. GREENE: And once everything was submitted
to you —-- 22nd?

MR. BEERS: Yeah, the 22nd.

MS. CULPEPPER: Yes, it was 1n again the 22nd.

MR. GREENE: 22nd. Do you recall what was
provided to you on the 22nd?

MS. CULPEPPER: The attachment indicates ACP
hearing officer's report 01222018., as a PDF file.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: So I assume that's what was
attached.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And with that attachment
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you have the hearing officer's report. When everything
typically comes to you for your review, what's in the
package? Report goes out the doors saying here's your
permit.

MS. CULPEPPER: So the ones that I see are
very limited number 401ls. They're the ones that have
had a public hearing or if there's a denial then the
director is the signatore on that. So there's very few
of those. So for this, I assume that I got the hearing
officer's report which went through the public comment
and the listening sessions that we had associated with
the application.

MR. GREENE: And when you reviewed it -- I'm
assuming you reviewed the hearing officer's report, did
you have any questions or concerns at that time?

MS. CULPEPPER: I cannot recall. I had
questions. And I cannot recall a distinction between
the actual permit and the hearing officer's report.

But I recall asking questions. I would assume probably
both documents. I typically have questions or -- but I
can't recall specifics of what questions did I ask and

in which the permit itself or of the hearing officer's

report.

MR. GREENE: So you have -- you had both

documents there at that point in time?
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MS. CULPEPPER: I cannot tell you that.

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't have recollection on
when I actually had the permit.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you see the draft
denial letter?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do recall seeing the draft
denial letter. They had presented it together at the
same day with -- my recollection is it's presented at
the same day with the approval letter.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And do you recall what date
that was?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not recall.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And have you -- how many
other times have you seen a draft denial letter
presented with the permit and the hearing officer's
report?

MS. CULPEPPER: I believe this is the first
one that I had seen, the first 401. And I believe that
was the first time I had seen the denial and the
approval for a 401.

MR. GREENE: The recommendation.

MS. CULPEPPER: And when I asked staff about
it, they indicated that they had had a procedure in the

past, that that's what they did to prepare. At one
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point they had prepared one and not the other and they
just made -- there was a recommendation to move forward
with both when they came to the director's office that
would have both documents.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall the draft
denial letter, the contents of it?

MS. CULPEPPER: Not the content of it. I
remember seeing it though with the approval letter. I
have permitting experience in the other division,
that's..

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you have something?

MR. BEERS: No, it looks 1like the -- on the
25th it looks like you got, someone dropped off to
Bridgette in your office the hardcopy of those --

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay.

MR. BEERS: -- those documents. That was on
the 25th.

MR. CULPEPPER: Okay. Okay, thank you.

MR. BEERS: Which is a Thursday, maybe that
corresponds to the note.

MR. GREENE: December.

MR. BEERS: That was December?

MR. GREENE: That was December.

MR. BEERS: That was another -- another one

was undated. So do you recall what happened at that
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point when everything was dropped off?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall dates or..

MR. BEERS: Right.

MS. CULPEPPER: I assume I receive those, but..

MR. GREENE: So it was issued on the 26th and
what's the procedures of how that's done?

MS. CULPEPPER: We do a final review. What I
do recall on the day I signed and you're indicating it
was the 26th..

MR. GREENE: Yes.

MS. CULPEPPER: Okay. On the day I signed it
there was one lingering edit that I had wanted made.
And I don't recall what that edit was. But I remember
asking staff to make that edit. But I apologize. I do
not remember what 1t was.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And obviously it wasn't
significant to the issuance of the permit, was 1t?

MS. CULPEPPER: I have no idea what it..

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MS. CULPEPPER: I can't recall what it was.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And who was aware that the
permit was going to be signed on the 26th?

MS. CULPEPPER: I do not know in totality who
was involved. I believe our public information officer

was...
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MR. GREENE: And that would be?

MS. CULPEPPER: Gosh. At the time I believe
it would have been Bridget Munger was with us at the
time.

MR. GREENE: Any other people or -- I guess
my...

MS. CULPEPPER: I assume Brian Wrenn as the
hearing officer and Karen Higgins as the permitting
branch head.

MR. GREENE: Would you notify anyone above
your position?

MS. CULPEPPER: When we have significant
permits being issued, I do notify Sheila Holman that we
are issuing a permit, same thing sometimes with
enforcement.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Do you recall that's who
you actually notified?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall.

MR. GREENE: And would that be typically on
the same day or would it be prior to? How would that
normally shake out?

MS. CULPEPPER: The public information
officers for significant permits do want to know before
the issuance so that they can prepare if they do get

media inquiry. We try to let them know this is coming
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so that they can have talking points ready. There's
anything that's controversial..

MR. GREENE: Okay. Did you notify the
secretary's office that it was..

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't recall who I notified,
but I would assume my typical protocol is to let Sheila
know when I'm signing.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Anything else. Were you
aware of the mitigation fund that was being negotiated
outside of DEQ, the $57.8 million? Were you aware of
that at the time of the permit certification?

MS. CULPEPPER: I was not aware of that fund
at the time I signed this permit. I found out about it
through the media afterwards.

MR. GREENE: Okay. So there was no discussion
about how it could be used for cumulative impact or
whatever?

MS. CULPEPPER: No, sir. I found out after
via the media.

MR. GREENE: Okay. And did you find anything
unusual about the permitting process? Or was there
anything, any outside forces creating hurdles for it
that you could see?

MS. CULPEPPER: No. We added additional

listening sessions for the public. That to me was an
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extra step. My experience in solid waste management,
with landfills, we would also try to engage the public
in a very thorough way to try to make sure anyone who

had comments or issues make sure they were heard and we

understood concerns. So I equated that additional step
to my experience in a different -- in the other
division.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Is that a decision you
made, to have the listening sessions?

MS. CULPEPPER: I don't believe it was me
personally. I think it was a discussion point during
our meetings.

MR. GREENE: Okay. Meetings with..

MS. CULPEPPER: Our periodic meetings on
pipeline.

MR. GREENE: Okay. All right. Would that
have come from the secretary's office or other
individuals within the divisions?

MS. CULPEPPER: I believe it was at the
meetings where we had different divisions represented
as well as the secretary's office. But I do not recall
details of who initiated a conversation on the topic,
but..

MR. GREENE: Okay.

MR. BEERS: That's all I have.
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MR. GREENE: That's all we have.

MS. CULPEPPER: All right.

Page 32

MR. GREENE: And we certainly appreciate your

time and thank you for your duties, what you do.
Appreciate it.
MR. BEERS: (cross talk).

MS. CULPEPPER: Thank you.

MR. GREENE: So at this time it is 4:38. And

I want to take the recorders off.
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To: Bridgette R Morris-Mcl awhorn (bmorris@ncdenr.gov)

Subject: meeting with Linda
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 2:57:18 PM
Hi Bridgette-

"d like to go ahead and schedule time with Linda, Jennifer Burdette, Brian Wren and me to go
over the Atlantic Coast Pipeline Hearing Officer’s report and recommendation. We'll probably

need an hour and are looking for January 4" or 510,

Thanks-
Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor
Division of Water Resources

Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-8360 office

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604
1617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

I comresponderice to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Lay, =7

lased to third parties.






From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Rice, Sarah M
Subject: RE: ACP

Date: Friday, December 15, 2017 2:27:34 PM

Sarah,

Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss the ACP hearing officer’s report on Jan. 4" 1am finalizing
the HO’s report and hope to have a draft to Karen and Jennifer early next week (minus the
cumulative impacts evaluation — still waiting on info). Do you think you could have a EJ statement
completed next week? Thanks.

Brian Wrenn
919-743-8409 (office)
919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Rice, Sarah M
Sent: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 12:47 FM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP

Hi Brian,

Please let me know if | can assist with any EJ related questions for the hearing officers report.
Regards,

Sarah

919.707.8287

Get Qutlook for i0S





From: Doug Heyl

To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)
Subject: Date: Attachments:

Heyl, Douglas
FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office)
919.812.3415 (Mobile)
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Munger, Bridget

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM

To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018

ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018

DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.

DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.

DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification
issues are

*“Nothing Compares

resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.





DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.

Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a
Subject: Date: Attachments:

RE: ACP Well Testing
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png

Ok, I think | have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, | made one change to the
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other
than that. I've included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write-up as well. | think that covers it. I've saved the report with
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM

To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing

agreed
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L
To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer
Subject: a FW: ACP HO report

Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.





From:

To: Subject: Date:
Brian-

Higgins, Karen

Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM

Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. | don’t think Jennifer will review this today
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.

Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’'m not sure that it will
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401-
wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP HO report

Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’'m at home with one sick child and another out of school
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. | told
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. | doing another read through right now.
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!

Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Munger, Bridget
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report

That sounds great. Thanks!

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report

| think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff
to review. Thanks.

Sent from my iPhone
OnlJan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:

Hi Brian,

If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, | can wait for that draft. Please let me know what
you prefer.

Thank you!

Bridget

(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)

From: Wrenn, Brian L
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report

Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)
Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607

Mailing Address:

1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1623





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a

Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report
Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM

Attachments:

FYI

ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,

Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.
Brian L. Wrenn

Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section

NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

Physical Address:

4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607





From: To: Subject: Date:
Burdette, Jennifer a
Wrenn, Brian L

RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM

Sorry for missing your call this morning. | was deep into the draft of the 401. Before | left, | just
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. | enjoyed and learned a lot working
with you.

Take care, Jennifer

Jennifer Burdette

401/Buffer Coordinator

Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality
919 807 6364 office

jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov

1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9" FIr Archdale Bldg — Room 942F) Email
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the

North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM

To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report

FYI
Brian Wrenn 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM

To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report

Jeff,
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’'m at home with kids, so try my cell (919-491-2616). Thanks.

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Higgins, Karen
Poupart, Jeff
Cc:

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM

Karen,
| accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. | looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?

I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on
this.

From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L
Cc: Poupart, Jeff

Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Brian-

Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. | made the edits to the HO report based on your
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. | used the HO report | sent
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those |
made today.

| also made the recommended changes to the draft 401.
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.

Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov





From: Higgins, Karen

Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM

To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP - Draft Decision Documents

Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use
track changes so | can look at them easily.

Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.
Thanks- Karen

Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

919 807-6360 office





From: Wrenn, Brian L

To: Culpepper, Linda

Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen

Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report

Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. |
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!

Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office) 919-491-2616 (cell)





From: Munger, Bridget

To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas

Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM

Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm

Please see attached.
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:

From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget"
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report

FYI

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office

karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits

512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Wrenn, Brian L

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM

To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov>

Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report

Linda,
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast

Pipeline project. | am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!





Brian L. Wrenn
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section
NC Division of Water Resources 919-743-8409 (office)





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Culpepper, Linda

Subject: draft 401 decision documents
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM

Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx

Linda-

Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’'m
working on the bullet points.

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office





Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP

Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount

Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Linda-

(none)
Not yet responded

Higgins, Karen
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff

We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents
if you had any questions. | gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification
and draft denial.

Thanks- Karen

127

Subject: Location:

Start:
End:
Show Time As:

Recurrence: Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

(none) Accepted





Canceled: ACP Team Meeting
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse

Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free

Lucey, John D
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura





From: Higgins, Karen

To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R
Culpepper, Linda

Cc:
Subject: ACP - word document

Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM
Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx
Bridgette-

| put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today — there are two places for Linda to sign. | will not be in the office
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I've attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?

Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?

Thanks- Karen
Karen Higgins

401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources
Department of Environmental Quality

(919) 807-6360 office
karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits
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